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JOINT HEARINGS ON THE ISSUE OF NATIONAL
SERVICE

WEDNESDAY. MARCH 15, 1989

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEES oN ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND VOCA-
TioNalL EpuUcCaTION; POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION;
Human RESources; Serect EpucaTioN; aND EMPLOY-
MENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CoMMITTEE oN EpucaTioN AND LABOR,
. Weashington, DC.

The subcommittees met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 am., in
Room 2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F.
Hawkins [Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hawkins, Williams, Martinez,
Perkins, Hayes, Sawyer, Miller, Owens, Lowey, Poshard, Jontz,
Grandy, Smith, Bartlett, Gunderson, Ballenger, Panetta, McCurdy,
Bonior, Kennelly and Morella.

Staff present: Eugene F. Sofer, budget counsel; Richard P. Jerue,
staff director, Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education; Jillian G.
Evans, legislative analyst, Subcommttee of Seleet Education; Beth
B. Buehimann, minority education coordinator; Mary Gardner Cla-
gett, minority staff member; and Michael Lance, minority profes-
sional staff member.

Chairman Hawkins. The Education and Labor Committee is
called to order. .

This morning we convene for a joint hearing of five subcommit-
tees of the Education and Labor Committee on the issue of Nation-
al Service.

The subcommittees involved are Elementary, Secondary and Vo-
cational Education; Postsecondary Education; Human Resources;
Select Education; and Employment Opportunities.

Each has jurisdiction over some aspect of the National Service
issue. I also want to note that the Democratic members of the com-
mittee have set up an informal task force onr this issue, which is
chaired by Representative Ford. I also invite the minority tc do
likewise.

The purpose of this hearing is to hear from Members of the
House who have bills pending before our committee on this issue. I
anticipate additional hearings as the committee moves for writing
a comprehensive National Service bill.

I do want to briefly note some concerns of mine. First: I'm very
leery of tying service to student financial aid programs.

9}
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Second, I want to insure that service is accompanied by training
and educatlon, where necessary.

Third, I think we want to insure that any service bill leaving this
committee has strong antidisplacement provisions as well as other
labor protections.

Finally, in an era of budget restraint, I would not want to see a
large Federally-supported service program that drains scarce re-
sources from other existing high priority programs.

We are very pleased at this time to welcome to the committee,
because of the limited amount of time and because of the urgency
with which he is called to other duties, our very distinguished
chairman of the Budget Committee, and colleague in the House,
Mr. Leon Panetta.

STATEMENT OF HONORABLE LEON PANETTA, CHAIRMAN,
BUDGET COMMITTEE

Mr. PanETTa. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. I appreciate
the opportunity to testify.

I want to particularly thank Dave McCurdy, who has allowed me
to precede him because I have to return to negotiations with the
Administration on the fiscal year 1990 budget to determine wheth-
er we have resources to do anything for the future.

So for that reason, I thank both Mr. McCurdy as well as the
Committee for allowmg me this opportunity.

I would like my statement to be made a part of the record, Mr.
Chairman. I would just briefly summarize my thoughts with regard
to youth service.

This is obviously an issue whose time has come in terms of the
national debate. I introduced a youth gervice bill back in 1984 that
is very similar to the bill that is currently before the House.

There are a number of bills that have been introduced. Obvious-
ly, the President’s attention to this issue, I think, has focused all of
our attention to the issue of National Service. '

I think all of us recognize—and it becomes kind of a cliche to
keep saying it—that our greatest national resource is our children
and our youth.

I guess we never really stop to think of what that means. What
it basically means is exactly that—that they are our resource for
the future. They are our future.

President Kennedy was wise enough to issue a call to duty to
this country for service to the country. The youth responded,
whether it was through the Peace Corps, or the Job Corps, or
through the other programs that were established to bring youths
into government and government service,

The problem we’ve had in the last few years is that the call from
leadership has not been there. I think the incentive for service is
still there in our young people. I think they want to do it. What we
haven’t had is that call to service.

That's essentially what is our responsibility. We've got to issue
that call. There are three important reasons to do this.

Number one, we are, as all of you on this committee know, in
particular. facing some serious youth unemployment problems in
this country.
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It's quite a commentary when the city of Washington has to
issue a curfew with regard to 17 year olds. That tells you an awful
lot about the generations that are being lost in this country today.

I think it's particularly important that we try to reach those 2.5
million disadvantaged youths, drop-outs, and kids who have really
not had the opportunity to find some ability to contribute to their
community and to public service. .

Second, we've had some very serious cutbacks with regard to pro-
grammatic funds. Nobody knows it better in this room than Pat
Williams, who has served on the Budget Committee, and has seen
these programs hacked at time and time again.

The problem is that the resource has been cut back. The need
has not been cut back. The need has grown. We have had to turn
to other ways to try to meet the needs, Whether it's in health care
or education, or in conservation or the environment, or child care,
the need is still there.

So recognizing the limitations that we have—and I'm here to tell
you that those limitations still exist with regard to Federal funding
for many of these programs—the reality is that this youth service
opportunity gives us a chance to try to help fill the gap in a very
important way.

You hear a lot about a thousand points of light. Well, let me tell
you that ail of us need to recognize that unless we provide an in-
centive for people to work at these kinds of public service pro-
grams, we are just not going to be able to meet the needs of this
country.

Lastly, there is, I think, an important service ethic that we have
to emphasize in this country. We are a democracy. We extend im-
portant rights and liberties and freedoms to our citizens.

I think that in return we need to call them to duty to this coun-
try, to give something back to this country. We've lost sight of that
over the last few years. I think that service ethic is an important
one, and one that we need to resurrect in our society.

Lastly, in line with the resource problem, we're talking about
some very cost-effective efforts here. If you look at the programs
that we're talking about, for every dollar that we spent on many of
these programs it returns almost $1.50 to $1.60 back in terms of
savings because we are using the youth to perform these important
services,

This approach that I have recommended in the legisiation that I
introduced here, on behalf of Representative Martinez and a
number of others that have worked on this legislation over the
years, FL.LR. 717, tries to build on programs that are working.

I'm not here to start a whole new program. I'm not here to start
a whole new bureaucracy. I'm not here to tell you that there's
some kind of magic out there that’s going to take place.

I know the magic that's out there because it's been proven.
We've got 50 programs that are in place now throughout this coun-
try at the state and local level.

We've got 50,000 kids who are part of those programs right now
that are working at the community level, working at the state level
as part of service programs.
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. We've gone out and seen those programs in action. They're work-
ing. Ask the kids who are a part of these programs. They're work-
ing.

What I want to do is build on these programs. We have got six
state conservation programs that are in place right now, that are
working and working successfully.

So the key here, in terms of legislation that we have introduced,
is to build on those efforts. I do not want to establish any kind of
new Federal bureaucracy. I basically want to build on state and
local efforts to initiate these youth service programs because it’s at
the state and local level that they understand best their needs and
how to meet those needs.

Second, we need to be sensitive to those needs and how best to
address those needs. The people that are most sensitive about that
are people at the local and state levels.

Lastly, although I know there are proposals that I think need to
be looked at for a larger kind of national youth service, I think this
has to be viewed as a transition step that is an important one to
kind of test this idea to see whether it works; to see if the Federal
Government can provide the right incentives.

What our bill does is to basically provide incentives to the local
and state governments to continue what many of them are doing
right now.

It is a combination of legislation that was introduced by Mo
Udall, creating the Conservation Corps or the Youth Service Corps,
or rather the American Conservation Corps, which has also been
passed by the House and the Senate in the past.

It's an important bill. It basically provides funding for conserva-
tion work, preservation projects and national and state forests, and
would be administered by the Agricultural and Interior Depart-
ments.

The youth service part of the program provides matching grants
to state and local efforts. For example, for the 50 programs that
are in place, they're spending roughly $150 million right now. We
would basically match that funding for other communities to be
able to develop similar programs.

Those programs would provide opportunities, as I said, for home
health aides, child aides, hospital and social service agencies, and
would be administered through ACTION.

The reason we use ACTION is because this is not what we would
call a job training program. This is a service program to the com-
munity. ACTION is the one that has the best knowledge of how to
try to administer those kinds of grants.

It would be open to youths between 16 and 25, year-round. They
would receive a stipend of between 50 to 100 percent of the mini-
mum wage.

It would provide a total benefits package—including scholarships
and employment assistance—of at least 100 percent and not over
160 percent of the minimum wage.

It also includes very important non-displacement and non-dupli-
cation provisions to protect regular workers’ jobs. We've had a lot
of concerns raised on that issue. We have tried to provide those
kinds of protections and have worked with AFSCME and a number

iv-
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of others to try to ensure that we have that kind of protection in
our legislation.

We also include a commission to look at the hroader issue of Na-
tional Service based on proposals by Representatives Torricelli and
Sikorski, to more fully look at the National Service issue,

We think we've covered the hasic concerns that have heen raised.
This is legislation that moved out of the Martinez subcommittee of
this committee last year.

I think it's been debated, it's been looked at. I urge all of you to
look at it again because I think it could be a very important build-
ing block in trying to establish the right approach te youth service
this year.

In conclusion, let me just say that I've got three sons and my
oldest just came back from Kenya as a member of the Peace Corps,
having served in Kenya for over two and a half years.

I can't describe to you the impact that providing that service had
on him in terms of his call to duty and the kind of contribution
that he feels is important as a citizen in this country.

I think we need to bring that same call to duty to other young
people throughout this country. If we do that in an effective way I
think we could have a much better country in the future.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Leon E. Panetta follows:]
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Statement of the Hon. Leon E. Banetta Before the
Subcommittees on Employment Opportunities, Human Reseurces,
Postsecondary Education, and Select Education
Hearing on Youth service

March 15, 1989%

Mr. Kildee, Mr. Williams, Mr. Martinez, and Mr. Owens. menbers of
the Subcommittess on Human Resources. Postsecendary Education,
Employment OpPortunities. and Select Education, I would 1ike to thank
you for inviting me to come befere this joint hearing today on the
izssue of national youth service. The fact that such a hearing has
been convened bBY these four subcomaittees of the Education and Labor
compittes, and that the Committee has estabiisk~? a Working Group on
Youth Service, i an indication of how important thig issue has
Become.

AS you know, I have long been invelved with thiz issue and
recentlY introduced H.R. 717, the American Conservation and Youth
Service COTps Act of 1%8%, alon® with 65 origimal cosponsors. This
measure, which would establiish a national program of matching grants
to state and local youth service and conservation ¢oIps as well as
education and tralning assistance, is based on tyo sSepaTate peasures
from the 1ooth Congress: ReP. Udall's HLR. 18, the American
Conservation CoTps Act, and my H.R. 460, the voluntary National Youth
Service Act. 1 am Vvery pleased that my good friend and collieague,
Rep. Martinez:. chairman of the Subcommittee ¢n Enploynent
Cpportunities and 2 member of committeas's Working Group. who has
always been a strond supPorter. who Suided the measure through his
subcommittee last session, and who has scheduled field hearings on the

bill for APril, was amond tilie STiginal cosponsors.

The bill's 8%




current supporters alse include two other Working Group members. Reps.
Mfume and Fuster, as well as Reps. Coelho, Conte. Pepper. sikorski.
Morella, Jont2, and Gilman. I welcome this broad bipartisan shew of

suppert. In addition, I am deli9nhted that my distinguished Senate

colleadue, Senatol Dodd. intfoduced a companion measure, $. 322, and

that the Senate Labor and Human Resources Committee has convened

hearings similar to the one beind held here toda¥.

Youth service is an issue that is attracting more and more
attention, both here in Congress and around the country. Already.
thousands of young people are working full-time in gyer fifty full-
tire youth gervice and conservation pregrams throughcut the states,
Thousands more participate in these corps on a part-time basis, while
many others are taking part in programs commected with their schools
and Solleges. Many of these preYrams are growing, and many other new
ones are being graated. Here in Congress. several youth service
measures have already been introduced, as evidenced by my collea.ues
with whom I am pleased to testify today. I realize that this hearing
is among the first steps in a precess by which the Education and Laber
Committee ig planning tp formulate & policy on youth service, and the
Committee's involvement on this issue is welcomed. In addition, I anm
pleazed that President Bush has expressed interest in this issuve, apg
in fact included a proposal in his budget somewhat similar te H.R.
717.

1 firmly believe that America's youth are the post precilous patural
resource we possess. However, our economy still often does not

provide enough opportunity te find a preductive and respectable place




in seciety. COnsequértly. the lives of scores of young peOple'have
been damaged or destroyed by drugs. alcohol, and crime. Moreover,
even many of those youth who are gainfully employed have turned
increasingly inward., more concerned with making and spending money for
personal gain than with the cendition of their fgllow person. We as a
society are partly to blame for this 1ack of opportunity gp the gne
hand and of social respohsibility on the other, and we as a society

can and must de something about this.

There are three important facters which seem pelevant t¢ the
above concerns. First. while overall upemployment has been declining

for sume time, a5 of January 1, there were still nearly 2.5 million

youth from 16 to 24 yithout Jobs: and these comprised over 37% of all

unemployed. While total natioral unemplo¥YMent is now 5.5%, youth
joblessness is twice that. 11%. with rates of 9.3% for whites, 13.6%
for Hispapics: and 23.8% for blacks. While there are seme indications
that the employment picture for youth is improving., there is stily a
long way teo go. and many of the newly=-created jobs are still low-

paying, low=potentlal service sestor tasks.

Second, the tightening of federal purse strings over the past
eight years has shifted the burden for social prodrams to states and
localities, which simply do not have the cesources to compensate for
lest funding. The private sector., which Was to step in and fill the
gap, has certainly pade contributions bUt has been unable to cover all
the bases. Consequently, yital community services have besen cut back
signiflcantly cut back in many areas. The large federal budget

deficit still facing us means that this trepd 4= unfortunately likely
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to continue.

Finally. the Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement af Teaching
released 4 report a foy Years age on the state of higher education
that indicated a lack of creativity and civic responsibility ameng
collede students. While this trend ig changing. and groups such as
Campus Compact are actively encouraging college youth to do public-
service work, the pressure of repaying student loans is forcing many
graduates to pursue careers in which they will be guaranteed high
salaries. Publig service jobs are routinely bypassed for more
lucrative private sector positions. A pational wvoluntary youth
service and conservation ¢Orps program. especially one with an
education component such as 18 ingluded in our amendment., could go a
long way toward encouraging college students to de public-service

work, during and after their formal pducation.

I raise these concerns today hecause I believe that a national youth
service COrps program of the L¥YPe pefore you today would have a direct
impact on all of these areas, and would be a key component of a systenm
of naticnal sarvice. sSuch 2 program weould be an innovative means of
restoring lost social services T& our compmunities and performing vital
conservation tasks. It would alss provide youth with a constructive
alternative to unemployment, and te solely pursuing personal gain.
that would serve as a powerful lesson in citizenship. I firmly
believe that if we can dencnstrate te ocur young pesple that society
badly needs and values their services, we can go a long way towards
relieving the problems cutlined above. In additicn, recent surveys

have shown strong support for veoluntary youth service among the

-
CSJ
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American People. Fpr exampPle, & Gallup poll taken in December. 1987,
showed 83% favoring the establishment of a veoluntarY prtogram

allowing youth to anroll in either civilian or military service.

As you know. there is clearly a large number of pressing ynmet
human, social and environmental needs that could be met by a national
youth service program. Richard Danzid and Peter Szanten. in their

racent book: Natiopnal Service: What Would It Mean?. estimated that

up te 3.5 million positions could be filled by youth service workers
each Year to help Ffill the gaps without displacing surrent workers.
These included over 1 millicn in education, oOver 700,000 in the health
field, nearly 1.5 million in child care, over 165,000 in conservaticn
and the environment, and 250,000 in eriminal justice and public

safety.

In addition to mesting many Pressing needs, we will., by coffering
an epportunity teo perform Public service., mest the needs of many yeouth
for a useful reole in societY and meanindful transition t@ adulthcod.
Millions of young volunteers and ©SYps members have already discovered
a greater sense of purpese and 2 renewed Spirit of brotherhood through
participation in community service prejects. The value of such
projects is avident to many Young pecple. A pecent survey in
Minnesota found that aPproximately 75% of Minnesota high scheool
students wonld support a statewide veluntary youth szrvice program.
and that apput 590% would actually participate. ghen youth

enthusiastically enroll in the california Conservation Corps: whose

motto is “Hard Work. Low Pay: Miserable Conditions.' they must clearly

be involved for much more than the money, and Participants gain at
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least as much as the recipients recipients of the services.

45 I stated at the cutset, State ang locally initiated youth
service programs such as the California coTRs have Sprung up all over
the country. AL lagt count, there were 33 year-round state and local
service and conservation corps and, including summer PFograms. a total
of 50 in operation involving over 50,000 young pecple. and this number
is growing rapidly. Although the scope and form varies considerably
from one program tg another, they all share 2 common dedication to the

ideals of renewed activism, social responsibility and helPing Youth

reach their potential.

In the agth Congress, I first introduced the Voluntary Hational
Youth Service Ackt, yhich would establish a program of matching grants
to states &nd localities operatind youth service programs. The
Subcommittes on Employment Opportunities hgld hearings on this and on
other youth service measures in September. 1985 and June, 1987. This
hil! would begin an incremental Process of developing a2 mationwide
voluntary youth sgrvice program dedicated largel¥ te serving human
social needs. It yould be well-complemented by an american
Conservation Corps (ACC), a similar program of matchind grants for
federal and state conservation Programs in a modern yersion of the
Deal's famed Civilian Conservation CorPs. ACC bills were acted on by
both the 28th and 99th Congresses. In the 93th, both the House apd
Semate passed ACC bills, but the measure yas pocket-vetoed by the
President. 1In the 99th. the House apnd Senate passed somewhat
differing versions of the bill, and these could not b8 reconciled

be fore Tongress adjourned.
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In the second sessian of the laoth Con9ress, Mr. Udall graciously
consented to combine his ACC bill and my youth service measure into
one unified proposal. Mr. Martinez held four hearings on this
measure, dubhed the "Martinez-Panetta amendment to H.R. 18," last
spring. and his subcommittee marked up apd passed the amended version
of H.R. 18 last October. HNumersus changes and improvements weTe pade
during and after the amendment's consideraticn. Rep. Major owens. the
chairman of the Subcommittee ©n Select Education, the other EBducatien
and Labor Panel with jurisdiction. sent a letter to Rep. Hawkins
discharging the measure. However, neither the full Education and
Labor cammittee nor the Interior Committee had the oPportunity te take

up the measure hefore Congress adjourned.

Numercous <hanges and imProvements weTre made during and after the
amendment's consideration, and the free-standing bill beinyg introduced
now is the result of this precess. The programn to created by this
bill wonld be called the American Conservation and Youth Service
Corps. and will consist of an American Conservation Corps and Youth
Service Corps. Each of these will pe very similar to the Programs
that would have baen astablished, respectively. by H.R. 18 and H_R.
460 in the looth Ceongress, Both programs will be open to Yound PecPle
from 16 to 25 for year-round particiPation znd from 15 to 23 only for
the summer component. wWhile ©pen to al] eligible youth, special
efforts would be made to recruit and enroll those who are economically
disadvantaged, as defined by the Job Trazining and PartnershiP Act.
During their service in the preogram, particiDants myst be directly
paid at least S0%., and up to 110%., <f the ninimum wage. Their total

benefits, however, must he at least 100% and N0t pmeore than 1603 of
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minimum wWage. thereby guaranteeing that no program could Provide a

wage apd benefits package below the minimum wage. The malanece of
these benefits would be provided under a new "Youth 5kills
Enhancenent” section applying to both parts of the Corps, and which
Tequires participating agencies to include a training and education
component in their programs. The mpasure would also establish a
national commission on Yeuth service opportunities based on measures

introduced by Reps. Torriecelli and Sikorski.

Te deseribe the programs in greater detail, the American
Conservation Corps would operate both federal and state grant
Components. Work projects would include conservation of forests.
public lands, and wildlife:; revitalization of urban areas anpd
preservaticn of historie and cvltural sites; erosion ang Pest control.
and development and maintenance of recreational sites:; and energy
conservation and productien of renewable energy. The ACC would have
separate portions operated by the Interior and Agriculture
Departments. States would be required to provide a 5p=5¢9 match of
federal funds, and to provide a mechanism for participation by losal

government and nen=-profit organizations.

Work Programs uvnder the Youth Serviee Corps could jnclude
opportunities in non-profit soeial service organizations, nursing
homes., hospices, hospitals., sehools, libraries, day ecare centers.
parks: or state and lecal dovernment agencies. other service
categories could include the rehabilitation or improvement of public
facilities, literacy training. weatherizacion and basic repairs to

low-income housing, and other @nergy conservaticon projects. while, as

a




you can see, there is some overlap with ACC projects, ¥Sc programs
focus mors on meeting human and social as opposed to gnvirommental
needs. In addition, the ¥Y§c will be administered through the ACTION
agencyr which oversees federal volunteer service programs, by a naw
Assistant Director created for this purpose. Unlike the conservation
corps, this assistant Director would, as in H.R. 460, be autherized to
make matching grants not only to states but to localities as well to

maXimize local participation.

The Title on Youth Skills Enhancement, an impertant component
shared by the Service and conservation secticns, significantly
strengthens the edycation and training compeonents of both H.R. 18 and
H.R. 460. This title requires that all agenciss and projects
receiving assistance under this Act use at least 10% of available
funds to provide jn-service training and education., including
remediation, basic skjills enhancement, high scheol equivalency, anad
college classes. An additicnal 10% pust be used for post-zservice
educaticonal assistance and training. The assistance provided can

include vouchers, schelarships, grants, and adult education and gkills

classes. The Act alsc requires a skills assessment of all

participants when they enroll as well as vocaticnal counseling guring
service, and requires tnat any eligible youth whe have dropped out of
school enrell ip a high scheel edtivalency program in order to

participate.

Thisg title ensures that participating youth will receive not enly
valuable work eXperience and the opportunity to sarve, but equally

valuahle educatien and training as part of their youth and
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vonservation service, and they will therefore ke able to build on and
make the mest ©f their term of service. 1In addition, job training
programs under the Job Training and Partnership aet (JTPA) may refer
eligible youth to the Corps. and JTPA and cther current training and

service providers may in turp participate.

Drop=ocut youth who are ineligible for the Conservation and Youth
Sarvice Corps shall be referred t© relavant education and training
systems, and State Jobp Training Coordinating Councils (SJTCC's) shall
have a 20=day petriod for comments Onh applications submitted ynder both
the Service and conservation programs. A maximom aof 15% of funds may
be used for administrative purposes: and project and administrative
funds for local programs must. eXcept for a very amall amounkt. be
passed through. In addition., a maximum of 5% is set aside for part-
time demonstration programs of no more than 15 hours per week. This
takes account of the many such prodrams. especially those operating in
schaols and school districts, that are springing up around the

country, and involving many more in community service projects.

To prevent the program from adversely affecting emplo¥Ment
of cutrent Workers, extensive anti-displacement and non-duplication
provisions modeled on those of the Community Service Remewal Act have
been developed and lnecluded. I feel that these provislons, which wete
developed in cooperation with rePresentatives of the Awerican
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees. provide ample
asrotection for current and future workers from any possible
displacement by youth service workers. Finally., the commission on

Hational Service Opportunities would provide a valuable oppotrtunity to

10
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use tlhe experience of these service and conservatich programs to

actively etudy the whale question of national service.

This youth service/conservation measure would lend needed support

to existing programs te expand their scepe: while encouraging other

states and lecalities to launch hew programs. ‘The focus would be
largely at the state and local levels, Yet a national Program would
supply the coherence. This type of incremental appProach, preserving
and encouraging local autonomy and diversity, is the type favored by
many youth service organizations, such as the National Association of
Sexvice and Conservation Corpg, as the beginning of a national
pregram., As I alse mentioned, it is also similar te the appreach
embodied in the "Youth Entering Service" ("YES to America") Foundation
included by President Bush in his budget. As propesed, this
Foundation alse envisions a system of matching grants for a variety of
youth service ang volunteer pralacts. I logk forward to werking with
the President, and t0 those who SUpPPert his idea in Congress, as this

proposal is develcoped.

Mr. chairmen, H.R. 717 would pot create another j&b training
program. While these are <ertainly very important, the Corps strongly
enphasizes service, to communities, states, and gur COuntry. fThis
call to service is not issued lightly, and it is the entire natien, in
the long run, which stands to¢ gain the most from the more sutward-
looking citizenry that would developP from such a program. A natisnal
conservation and youth service corps pragram yould offer Young adules
a renewed eopportunity te earn a sense of Pride and self-resPect, and

fulfill many pressing naticnal human, secial, and apvircnmental needs.

11




ERI!

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

18

1 fervently hope that the Working Group op Youth Service, and the
Educatien and Labor committee as a whole, will take timely actions
build on extensive previous effoerts, and include the American
conservation apd Youth Service Corps as part of the natiocnal youth
service package that jt cQevelops. I lock forward to working with the
committeas in this process and, again, thapk you for the opportunity to

appear before yvou today.
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you, Mr. Panetta, for a very good
statement. Let me commend You and Mr. Martinez's leadership in
this field.

You are proposing a new service program. However, we have a
numb-=r of youth service programs that already exist, as you well
know. Some like VISTA, or the Peace Corps at the Federal level,
others such as the California Conservation Corps, that are state
funded, and still others like the New York City Volunteer Corps,
which locally gets funded.

In addition, there are a lot of private sector programs, Big Broth-
er, Marc of Dimes and so on.

I'm wondering how your proposal will fit in with those service
programs that are already in existence? Would you encourage
them through incentives, or any way you provide some coordina-
tion which seems to be clearly lacking currently in connection with
it? My question is not in any way to indicate opposition to your
proposal.

In what way would your program affect the funding of the vari-
ous existing programs? Obviously you would not want to rob Peter
to pay Paul, meaning, of course, to take money away from student
assistance or any of the other high priority programs in order to
fund a new one.

Could you just briefly respond to that general question?

Mr. PaNETTA. Surc. First of all, this is not intended to replace
those kinds of programs. I think the Peace Corps, Job Corps, and
other service programs like that are important programs.

I think perhaps what we need is some better coordination with
regard to those programs because I think oftentimes, it is a kind of
hit and miss operation with regard to how the programs work. .

What we need to do, I think, is to create some kind of second
level on those programs.

The reason we've used ACTION here is because we think
ACTION is the appropriate agency to provide that kind of coordi-
nation service to the community.

I don’t want to do away with the role that ACTION currently
performs because I think they do a good job. What we're trying to
do here is to basically complement those other efforts by establish-
ing grant programs as an incentive to state and local communities
to try to develop the kind of programs that many of them have al-
ready developed.

These are programs that are developed at the local and state
level to meet particular needs of their states and communities.
They're working, and working effectively.

W?e want to provide some guidelines so that when we provide the
money we know that these programs are going to work and meet
certain minimum requlrements

We think that this is a program that can serve as a real partner-
ship, if you will, with the state and local communities to give them
that incentive to develop these kinds of youth programs.

The problem right now is that because of limited funding, I know
at the Federal level, that the programs that are in place now have
had some problems in terms of their ability to work effectively.
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What we are trying to do is to build on programs that are work-
ing at the state and local level now. We know they're working.
We've been there. We've seen those programs,

I just think it's important for us at the Federal level to build on
those efforts.

I don’t have to prove this case to anybody. All I need to do is tell
this committee. We'll go out there and see the California Conserva-
tion Corps in action, go up to New York City and see the City Vol-
unteer Corps in action in New York City.

Talk to the Lids. Talk to the students. They're the first ones to
tell you these programs work. They never thought they would
work. Some of these kids went into these programs and said, “You
know, this is not for me.” Suddenly, in a few months they were a
part of that community.

They were working in senior citizen centers. They were working
in hospitals. They were working in environmental areas.

I just think that at the Federal level, if we could somehow pro-
vide an incentive for those kinds of efforts as a complement to ev-
erything else we do, I think it would be an important step forward.

Chairman Hawkins. Thack you. Mr. Grandy?

Mr. Granpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to welcome our
distinguished colleague from the Budget Committee, and formerly
from the oncepowerful Agricultural Committee. I guess he knows
where the power is in this body now.

Mr. Panetta, let me ask you something that relates to a thousand
points of light.

Is there anything in your bill that pulls in the private sector to
participate, or cost-share, or in any way underwrite some of these
community service types of programs?

I bring that up in the context of the Elementary, Secondary, and
Vocational Education Subcommittee, which is currently looking at
the reauthorization of the Carl Perkins Act.

It appears to me that if we are going to have a training mecha-
nism and infrastructure in this country that is consistently going
to retrain and reinvigorate skills, the Federal Government will not
be able to do that alone, nor will state governments.

We are geing to have to have some kind of community, business,
labor, and industry coalition helping. What are the chances for get-
ting the same kind of coalition to help states and communities un-
derwrite these kinds of projects? Is there anything in your bill that
would go specifically to that area?

Mr. Panerra. Well, I think they’re very good in terms of chances
to bring the private sector in. As g matter of fact, many of these
local programs, particularly at the local community level, the city
level, do involve the private sector.

To some extent, that’s going to have to happen because don't
forget, this is a matching pro%'ram. This is not a program where we
pick up the bill at the Federal level.

We are basically saying to local communities and to the states
that in order for the Federal Government to come into this you've
got to show us where your money is.

For them to do that, they have got to bring the private sector
into the program. So the incentive here is not te say we're going to
pick up the bill. The incentive is to say te a local community and

=
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to the state, “You develop the program, you come up with the
funding, your share of the fundmg, and we'll help match it. But it’s
got to meet your needs and it's got to involve the kind of partner-
ship that we think is important to try to advance these causes.”

Specifically, is there a requirement here that they have to in-
volve the private sector? No, but the reality is that that has to be
the case.

- Mr. Granpy. Let me ask you this: You have, according to the
breakdown that we have, $1562 million committed in the first year
for this program.

Mr. PanETTA. Right.

Mr. Granpy. Now 1 assume that on-going successful entities, like
EhedCalifomia Conservation Corps would be able to apply for these
unds.

Mr. PANETTA. That's correct.

Mr. Granpy. What happens? Do they in any sense have a kind of
priority over a state that perhaps has not designed a program like
this? 1 mean, will the reality of the program be that larger states
with existing programs will get a better shot at the monies, and
states that are perhaps a little bit more tentative in their initiative
on starting these kinds of programs will get left behind?

Will a lot of this money be immediately diverted into the on-
going programs, do you think?

Mr. Panerta. Well, 1 think right now what 1 sense, first of all,
with regard to the American Conservation Corps, we're ta]kmg
about a vast number of states that haven't even begun these pro-
grams but are looking at programs for conservation.

I think the incentive would be to tan,et those kinds of states that
woulcl be developmg these kinds of programs. Although, what
we've done here is we've looked at the cost, and the overall costs of
the existing programs are $150 million.

Don't forget again, this id a matching program. So roughly half
of that—if you even were to fund the ones that were already in
place—only half the funds that we have here would go to those
programs that are already in place, with half being used to develop
new programs, if in fact all of them were to apply for matching
grants.

I'm not sure that's the case becairse some of these states have in-
dicated that they would like to proceed on their own without get-
ting matching grants, according tc some of the people I've talked
to.

I think the answer to your question is, I think there’ll be a por-
tion of it that will certainly go to the existing programs. 1 think
the overwhelming majority of the funds will be used to initiate the
programs.

Mr. Granpy. California Conservation Corps, have they ap-
proached you by saying we need some kind of Federal commitment
to keep this program going? 1 mean, is there a certain needs base
that drives some of this legislation? Are they running out of money
in other words?

Mr. PANETTA. Obvlously, there are senous constraints, as you
know, not only at the Federal level but we're seeing t.hem at the
state and local level as well, particularly local communities that

e
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are finding it difficult just to fill potholes in the street, much less
deal with youth service programs.

So there is some concern that without additional incentives here
they are not going to be able to maintain some of these programs.

Mr. GRANDY. Let me ask one more guestion, if I could, and I ap-
preciate you waiting for questions.

Is there 8 mechanism within your legislation that would allow
regions to apply for monies? I live in the part of Jowa that adjoins
Nebraska and South Dakota.

Much of the economic development in that area is shared among
those three states. Unfortunately, when you apply for grants in
Federal programs, you're usually limited on the basis of your state
application.

Is there any mechanism within your legislation that would allow
what is known in my area as Sioux land, a Tri-State coalition, to
create a program for the same youths within a radius of, say, 200
miles, but would be shared by three states?

Mr. PaNETTA. I think as long as the program that they developed
meets the requirements of the legislation in terms of the funding,
the stipends, the kind of service, the age requirements that are pro-
vided here, I don't think we draw any distinction between whether
it's a regional operation or a state and local operation.

Myr. GraNDY. Thank you, Mr. Cbairman.

Chairman Hawrkins. The Chair would like to interrupt. Perhaps
the Chair is remiss in not having established the time that the wit-
ness has.

My understanding is that the Budget Committee——

Mr. PanETTA. I've got be on my way, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HawriNs. Would you indicate what your time ele-
ment——

Mr. PANETTA. Like right now.

Chairman Hawians. Right now?

Well, apologies to the other members. I feel somewhat remiss
that I did not establish this earlier.

Since you're represented by Mr. Martinez, in any event, we

]

Mr. PaNETTA. Mr. Martinez can answer all the questions.

Chairman HawrkinNs. I think you are amply protected. With the
permission of the other members, I would like to excuse the wit-
ness, and thank you again.

Mr. PanETTA. Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Mr. Martinez?

Mr. MarTiNEZ. I'm gratified for the confidence, but I’'m not too
sure it’s well-placed. '

If Mr. Panetta could just bear with us for a couple of minutes, I
would really like to enter into a colloguy with him for just a couple
of minutes.

Mr. PANETTA. Well.

Mr. MarTINEZ. How about one minute?

Chairman HawkiNs. Well, if you wish to impose on him, and he'’s
willing to be imposed on, it’s okay. But I thought we had estab-
lished that he’s due elsewhere. Since we're very much interested in
the Budget Committee ourselves——

A
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Mr. MarTingz. I think if we're going to be successful in the long-
run we need to——

Chairman Hawxins. Let's be very kind and see if we can’t cut
that time—

Mr. MARTINEZ. To one minute?

Chairman Hawkins. Please.

Mr. MarTiNgz. All right. In the third paragraph of his opening
statement, the Chairman alluded to his concerns about student fi-
nancial aid, and ensuring that there is training and education, and
that there is no displacement.

Very briefly, it's very important that the full committee under-
stand that, especially in the area of displacement, we went to labor
organizations that had those concerns and the displacement por-
tion of this bill was actually written in conjunction and cooperation
with them.

Of course, we've already taken into account the other concerns
about financial aid programs. So would you elaborate a little bit on
those things that you didn’t highlight in your testimony?

Mr. Pangerra. Well, obviously, one of the concerns about the
whole youth service approach ig the concern about displacement of
those who work at the local level now for county ancP state. It's a
legitimate concern. We don’t in any way want to try to replace
those who in fact work in those jobs.

So what we've built in here is very strong language with regard
to nondisplacement and nonduplication to ensure that those who
have regular workers jobs in these communities will not in any
way be displaced, but that the services that are going to be per-
formed here are services that are not currently covered by employ-
ees at the local level.

We ve gone through a lot of negotlatlon with AFSCME on these
various provisions, as you know, and we've been able to get their
support for most of the provisions that are part of this legislation.

I think it's legitimate to pay attention to that because the last
thing we want to do is rob Peter to pay Paul with regard to jobs at
the local level.

1.er. MaRTINEZ. One last thing. It seems you've been working on
this——

Chairman Hawgins. The Chair interrupts at this time. I think
we've gone quite beyond the point of being patient, Mr. Martinez.
Elenpromised the gentleman five minutes ago that we would excuse

Actually, Mr. Williams was the next person to be interrogating
the witness and he has been forced to yield his time.

" The Chair would take the prerogative and say that the witness is

excused. But Mr. Martinez, you may continue to represent his in-

terest.

Mr. MartIiNEz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your in-
dulgence.

Chairman Hawkimvs. Mr. McCurdy, we welcome you to the com-
mittee this morning. We know that you're the author of a proposal
that has received a great amount of attention.

We certainly want to commend you on your creativity. We want
to also express appreciation to you for yielding to Mr. Panetta in

£ -
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order to make the hearing move ahead orderly. We look forward to
your testimony.

STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE DAVE McCURDY,
REPRESENTATIVE. STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Mr. McCurpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will state categorical-
ly that after my nine years of service I've learned when to yield to
a Committee ghairman, especially the Budget Committee Chair-
man, because of their pressing demands.

As a matter of fact, 'm a supporter of the Panetta legislation as
well. I believe that the Chairman stated his case very well. As I
proceed in my testimony I think the primary emphasis of national
service will become clear.

I do appreciate, however, the indulgence of the Committee and
the opportunity to testify today on H.R. 660 with a companion bill,
Senate Bill Number 3 in the Senate, the Citizenship and National
Service Act.

For the past several months, H.R. 660 has been the focus of a
great deal of debate. It has gained so much attention because it is a
radical departure from traditional service and education assistance
programs.

It addresses many social concerns in a direct and, I believe, an
effective manner. It requires a fundamental change in the way
Americans view their role in society.

Most importantly, this plan offers citizenship and opportunity to
our young people. The results of this debate have been very posi-
tive.

There’s been useful input from community service groups, the
educational community and the military. On Monday, the United
States Jaycees endorsed this plan.

We've had the opportunity to hear the criticisms and consider
their value. I'm well aware that no legislation as comprehensive as
this is flawless when introduced.

With these constructive criticisms we are developing an effective
proposal to best address the issue of national service.

National service presents a framework to effectively address
many concerns. Among these are rising postsecondary tuition costs,
the sky-rocketing default rates of student loans, the declining pool
of youth available for military recruitment, the decreasing ability
of many young Americans to purchase homes, and the multitude of
social needs that must be met.

This country faces concerns with care of the elderly, illiteracy,
health care, child care, and conservation efforts, just to name a
few. The Citizenship and National Service Act is a way for individ-
uals to serve their country’s needs and earn something for them-
selves in return.

By serving for one or two years in community service, or two
years in the Armed Forces, an individual can earn tax-free vouch-
ers to defray college expenses, to pay for vocational or job training,
or to use as a down-payment on a home.

By participating in a program such as this a young person can
gain a sense of pride and civic regponsibility. These are very impor-
tant considerations.
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However, the debate surrounding this issue doesn’t revolve
around whether or not civic duty and service to the nation are
vital tenants of our society. Rather, the debate rests on what .he
terms of that National Service should be.

Mr. Chairman, I want to spare this committee my stump speech
on national service. I've been giving it for a number of years now.
Today I would like to present and address some of the criticisms
that you’ve perhaps heard of this proposal.

One of the most frequently voiced concerns relates to the educa-
tion title. Questions focus on the appropriateness of tying Federal
education assistance to the performance of national service.

Quite frankly, we don’t apologize for proposing a program with
mutual obligation. Democracy is the cornerstone of our great
nation, but it is not free.

For each right that is bestowed by Democratic principles, there’s
an obligation owed in return. Federal aid for education should be
an earned benefit, not an entitlement. As an entitlement program,
Federal college assistance has created a dilemma for many stu-
dents who otherwise can’t afford college. Since 1980, college costs
have risen by about 40 percent while median family income has
grown by only five percent. Simultaneously, the emphasis of Feder-
al aid has shifted from grants and work-study to guaranteed stu-
dent loans, which account for 66 percent of all aid today, as op-
posed to 21 percent in 1976. Since 1980, student indebtedness has
increased by 60 percent. A new class of indentured students is
being created. By the way, I went to college on a work-study pro-
gram and an Ajr Force ROTC scholarship.

There are those who would argue that we need to work for
changes within the existing framework of financial aid programs,
and that the system in place is effective.

However, in the face of budget constraints, as was so eloguently
stated by the previous witness, the very existence of Federal educa-
tion assistance is threatened.

I believe it is time to seek a new solution. What we really need is
a fundamental restructuring of the system. We have some real ob-
stacles to overcome, and small adjustments aren’t the answer.

H.R. 660 proposes a positive overhaul. By tying receipt of a Fed-
eral educational assistance to national service, this legislation
allows students the possibility of financing their entire education
without incurring debt, or certainly not as much debt.

It makes educational assistance an earned benefit through serv-
ice to the nation. This legislation requires a change in our funda-
mental perception of Federal financial aid. I submit that it’s tiine
that we made that change.

The current financial aid programs are not reaching all those in
need. From 1980 to 1986, the proportion of students from blue-
collar families enrolling in college dropped by one fifth. Black en-
rollment dropped from 34 percent in 1976 to 25 percent in 1985,
Hispanic enrollment declined from 36 percent to 27 percent. This
trend must be reversed.

The Citizenship and National Service Act opens new doors of op-
portunities for these students. It affords many individuals the
chance to gain a post-secondary education they might otherwise
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not be able to obtain. At the same time it increases the benefits
available for those already planning to attend.

There have also been sugzestions that this legislation targets
low-income youths.

In addition te providing educational benefits for students from
all economic bac unds, the legislation also greatly improves op-
portunities for students from low- and middle-income families,

The average Pell Grant award today for fiscal year 1989 is
$1,459.00. This means that an individual eligible for such a grant is
likely to receive only $5,600 for four years of college. That amount
covers less than 29 percent of the average tuition bill. Any addi-
tional Federal assistance would be in the form of loans. But the
young people incurring this debt are those least able to repay. This
is evidenced by the increasing student loan default rate. t year,
the student loan defaults cost the Federal Government $1.6 billion.

There have also been concerns expressed regarding the possible
hardships this bill might place on nontraditional students.

One important point to remember is the flexibility of the Citizen-
ship and National Service Act. Tying Federal financial assistance
to national service is a constructive measure. It isn't meant to un-
fairly discriminate against nontraditional students. The bill ¢on-
tains language to allow individuals over the age of 25 the option of
applying directly for guaranteed student loans without having per-
formed national service.

There is also a provision to exempt individuals from service if
they are deemed to show “compelling personal circumstances” or
have a physical or mental handicap. Compelling personal circum-
stances include consideration for such things as age, family size or
status, and income. For instance, if an individual 1s 18 years of age
and has a child, then the Corporation for National Service would
likely deem that person to have compelling personal circumstances,
It would not be feasible for that young parent to perform national
service and live on subsistence wages. This is just one example to
show how the bill considers an individual's particular situation.

It's important to réalize that this legislation doesn’t eliminate all
existing Federal financial aid programs. It simply narrows the eli-
gibility criteria for those who may receive the funds. )

Another concern relates to the time frame for implementation of
this program.

The transition period is an important provision of the legislation.
It allows for a five year ghase-in period, during which time the pro-
gram will run on a graduating scale. During this period, national
service positions in local communities will be created and filled
with volunteer applicants as they are available. If a position is not
available, then an individual can apply for Federal assistance. This
will be & period during which the program can bauild a strong base
of support, and young people can plan ahead for participation in
national service.

Many people have asked us, “What about the students who don’t
intend to pursue any form of postsecondary education?”’

These individuals are often referred to as the forgotten half, and
they have needs that are just as important as other young people.
That issue is addressed through use of the voucher as a down-pay-
ment on a home. Home ownership is one of America’s dreams, but
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it is hecoming less of a financial reality for many young Ameri-
cans.

From 1973 through 1987 the percentage of those under age 25
ownin'%htheir own home decreased from 23.4 percent to 16.1 per-
cent. The Joint Center for Housing Studies at ard University
in its publication, The State of the Nation’s Housing in 1988 stated
that “low home ownership rates for young adults are found in all
regions of the country, not just the high-cost Northeast or West.
The continuing high after-tax cash cost of home ownership and the
growing rental payments burden are preventing renters in all re-
giors of the country from accumulating the resources needed to
make the down-payment and meet the initial year carrying costs of
homes of their own.”

The Citizenship National Service Act will make it possible for
young Americans to overcome the greatest burden of home owner-
ship. It will allow them to earn a voucher for a home down-pay-
ment. The legislation is a mechanism to assist the forgetten half in
achieving what may be their greatest hope in life. It will help them
own a home. National service can help meet the needs of these
young people, and the opportunity should not be missed.

Another of the most frequently heard concerns relates to the ef-
fects this legislation Woul?lq]wve on the Armed Forces.

The potential benefits of this legislation for the military are
enormous. As we enter into the 1990s and beyond, the Armed
Forces will be faced with a declining pool of available youth. This
means that the military will need to recruit increasingly higher
percentages of the available young adult population.

The GI bill has worked and will continue to work exceedingly
well as a recruiting tool for the Armed Forces. I want to sniphasize
that H.R. 660 is not a replacement for that program. It is simply
an additional enlistment benefit option. The military would be able
to recruit larger numbers of young people in order to maintain and
possibly strengthen its personnel needs.

Mr. Chairman, national service is an idea whose time has come.
The principle is a solid one. I offer compiete support of initiatives
to encourage volunieer participation in kindergarten through the
12th grade. I believe that altruism is a qualii}:gv which we must in-
stil] in our young people at a very early age. Part-time service also
has its place. I believe Senator Mikulski's bill and Representative
Bonior's companion bil? in the House is a valuable piece of legisla-
tion. H.R. ﬁﬁg,ahowever, goes one step further. It identifies sources
of funding, which is the key to an effective piece of legislation in
today's environment. Unlike the other bills proposed here today,
when asked where funding will come from, we can point to identi};-
able sources of funding. That’s an important factor. _

In order to deal effectively with the issues facing our nation
today, a broad structural change must be effected. It is simply not
enough to hope for change. We must cause it to happen.

The Citizenship and National Service Act provides for the neces-
sary motivating factors. The Citizenship and National Service Act
proposes an effective means to address the national service ques-
tion. I would encourage you to consider it favorably.

Lastly, Mr. Chairman, the Chairman did indicate some areas of
concern 1n the legislation. I hadn’t intended to cover those in the
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prepared statement, but I will indicate that we do have a very
strong worker displacement provision in the legislation.

We also understand the importance of providing training to vol-
unteers. In response to ¢oncerns over the linkage c¢oncept, I think I
adequately addressed that fact. It's time for structural change if we
want to provide the opportunities for Americans to receive educa-
tion in this country today.

I thank the Chairman for the opportunity to testify, and will be
most happy to answer any questions that there may be.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Dave McCurdy follows:]
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Statement by Representative Dave McCurdy
Committes on Education and Labor

March 1%, 1989

MR. CHAIRMAN, I appreciate having the cpportunity to testify

today on H.R. 660, the Citizenship and Mational service aAct.

For the Past several months: H.R. 660 has been the focus of
a great deal of debate. It has gained se much attention because
it is a radical departure from traditicnal gervice and education
assistance programs. It addresses Many social concerns in a
direct and effective manner. It regquires a fundamental change
in the wa¥ Americans view their role in scciety. Most
importantly. this Plan offers citizenship and opportunity to our

young pecple.

The results of this debate have been very pesitive. There
has been useful input from comnunity service groups: the
educational community. and the military. on Monday: the U.S.
Junior Chamber of Commerce endersed this plan. We have had the
oppertunity to hear the criticisms and consider their value. I
am well aware that ho legislation as comprehensive as this is
flawless when introduced. With these constructive criticisms.
we are developing an effectiée propesal to best address the

issue of national service.
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Haticnal service presents a framewerk to effectively addraess
many cencerns. Among thesa are rising postsecondary tuition
costs: tha skyrocketing default rates on student locans, the
declining peol of youth available for military recruitment. the
decreasing ability of many young Americans to purchase homes,
and the multitude ©f secial needs to be met. This country faces
concerns with carz of the elderly, illiteracy, health care,
child care, and conservation efforts, to name a few. The
citizenship and Mational Service Act is a way for individuals to
serve their country’s needs and earn something for themselves in

return.

By setving [or one or twe Years in community service or twe

years in the Armed Forces. an individual can earn vouchers te
defray cocllege expenses: to pay for vocational or job training.,
or te use as a downpayment on a home. By participating in a
program such as this, a young person can gain a gense of pride
and civic responsibility. These are verY important

cansiderations.

However:, the debate surrounding this issue deesn't revolve
around whether or not civic duty and service to tha nation are
vital tenets of our society. Rather, the debate rests on what

the terms of that national service should be.




31

Hational Service

MR. CHAIRMAN, I want to spare the committee mY Stump speech
on hational service., Todayr I would like to present and address

some of the criticisms of this proposal.

ona of the most frequently wvoiced concerns relates to the
education title. Questions focus on the appropriateness of
tying federal educational assistance to the performance of
national service. We don't apologize for proposing a program of

mutual obligation.

Democracy is the cornerstone of our great nation, but it is

not free. For each right that is bhestowed by democratic

principles, there is an obligation owed in return. Federal aid

for education should he an earned henefit, not an entitlement.

As an entitlement programr federal college assistance has
created a dilemma for many students who otherwise can't afford
cocllege. Since 1980, colleJe costs have risen by apout 40%»
while median family jncome has grown by only 5%.

Simultanecuslyr the emphasis of federal aid has shifted from
grants and work-study to guaranteed student loans, which account

for 66% of all aid today as opposed to 21% in 1976. Since 1980,
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student indebtedness has increased by 60%. A new class of

findentured students" is beind created.

There are those who would argue that we need to work for
changes within the existing framework of financia) aid programs,
that the system in place is effective. However, in the face of
budget constraints that threaten the very axistence of federal
educational assistance, it is time to seek a new solution. What

we really need is a fyndamental restructuring of the system. We

have some real obstacles to overcome, and small adjustments

aren't the answer.

H.R. 660 proposas a positive gverhayl. By tying receipt of
federal educational assistance to national service, this
legislation allows students the possibility of financing their
entize education without incurring debt. It makes educaticnal
assistance ah earned benefit through service to the nation.

This legislation requires a change in our fundamental perception
of fedezal financial ajd. I submit that it's tipe wWe made that

charnge.

The current financial aid programs are not reaching all of
those in need. From 1980 to 1986, the proportion of students

from blue collar families enrolling in college dropped by
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one-fifth. Black enrollment dropped from 34% in 1976 te 25% in
198S; Hispanic enrcllment declined form 36% to 27%. This trend

must be reversed.

The Citizenship and National Service Act opens new doors of
opportunity for these students. It affords many individuals the
chance t© gain a postsecondary education who hight otherwise not
ba able t© do s50. At the szame time, it increases the benerfits

available for those already planning to attend.

There have alsc been suggestions that this legislation

targets low-income youths.

In addition to providing educational benefits for students
from all econconic backgrounds, the legislation also greatly
improves opportunities for students from low- and middle-income
tamilies. The average Pell grant award for fiscal Year 1989 is
$1,459. This means that an individual eligible for guch a grant
is likely to receive only 56,000 for four years of college.

That amount covers less than 29% of the average tuition bill.

Any additional federal assistance would be in the form of loans.

But the Younyg people incurring this debt are those least able to

repay. This is evidenced by the increasing student loan default
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rate. Last year. atudent loan defauwltsg cost the rederal

government $l.6 billien.

Thera have also been concerns expressed regarding the
possiple hardships this pil)l might place on non-traditional

students.

one impartant point to remember ig the flexibility of the
citizenship and National service Act. Tying federal student
financial aid t° national service is a constructive measure. It
isn't meant to unfairly giscriminate against non-traditional
students. The bill contains language to allow individuals over
the age of 25 the cption of applying directly for guaranteed

student loans without having performed national service.

There is also a provision to exempt individuals from service
if they are deemed to show "compelling persohal circumstances”
or have & physical or mental handicap. <Compelling personal
circumstances include considerations for such things as age.
family size or status, and income. For instance., if an
individual is 18 years of age and has a child, then the

Corporation for National Service would likely deen that person

to have compelling péfsonal circumstances. It would not be

feasible for that young parent to perform national service and
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live on subsistence wages. This 13 just one example to show how

the bill considers an individual's particular situation.

It is ipportant to realize that this legislation deoesn't
eliminate all existing faderal financial aid programs. It
simply narrows the eligibility criteria for those who may

raceive the funds.

Another concarn relates to the time frame for Implementation of

this program.

The transition period is an Iimpportant provision of the
legislation. It allows for a five year phase-in period: during
which time tha program will run gn a graduating scale. During
this periods national service positions in local communities
will be created and filled with volunteer applicants as they are
available. If a position is not available, then an individual
can apply for federal assistance. This will be a pariod during
which the program can build a strong base of sup, ort, and Young

people can plan ahead for participation in national service.

Many people have asked uUS: "What abow. .hose Who don't

intend to pursue any form of postsecondary education?®
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Thesa individuals are often referred to as the "forgotten
half,® and they have needs that are just as important. That
issuae is addressed through use of the voucher as a downpayment
on a home. Homa ownersbip is one of the American dreams, but it
is becoming less of a financial reality for many young

Americans.

From 1973 to 1987, the percentage of those under age 25
owning their own home decreased from 23.4% to 16.1%. The Joint
‘Centar for Housing Studies of Harvard University in its
publication, The §tate of the Nation's Housing 1988, stated that
"lower homeownership rates for young adults are found in all
regions of tbe country, not just the high-cost Northeast or
west. The continuing high after-tax cash cost of homeownership
and the growing rental payments burden are preventing renters in
all regions of the country from accumulating the resources

needed to pake the downpayment and meet the initial year

carrying costs of homes of their own."

The Citizenship and National Service Act will make it
possible for young Americans to overcome the greatest burden to
homeownership. It will allow them to earn a voucher for a home
downpayment. The legislation is a mechanism to assist the
nforgotten half" in achieving what may be their greates hope in
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life. It will help them own a home. MNational service can help
meet the needs of these young peopla, and the opportunity should

not be missed.

Another of the most frequently heard concerns relates to the

effects thisz legislation would have on the Arbmed Forces.

The patential henefits of this legislation for the military
are enormous. As ye enter inte the 199%0's and beyond, the Armed
Forces will he faced with a declining peool of available youth.
This means that the military will need to recruit increasingly

higher percentages of -the available ¥Young adult population.

The G.I. Bill has worked and will continue to work
exceedingly well as a recruiting tool for the Armed Forces.
H.R. 660 iz not a replacement for that pregram. It is sioply an
additional enlistment benefit option. The military would be
able to recruit larger numbers ©f Young pecple in order to

maintain and possibly strengthen its personnel needs.

MR. CHAIRMAM, national service iz an idea whose time has

come. The principle is a solid cne. I offer complete support

of initiatives to encourage volunteer participation in

xindergarten through the
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twelfth grade. I believe that altruism is a quality which ve
must instill in our young pecple at an early age. Part-time
gervice also has its place. This legislation, however, ¢goes ane
step further. It identifies sources of funding, which is the
ey to an effective plece of legislation. Unlike the other
bills Proposed here today, when asked yhere funding will come
from, we can point to identifiable sources of funding. That's

an important factor.

In order to deal effectively with the issues facing our
nation teoday, a breoad stuctural change must be affected. It is
simply not enough to hope for change. e must cause it to
happen. The Citizenship and National gervice Act provides for

the necessary notivating factor.

The Citizenship and National service Act proposes an
effective Deans to address the national service guestion. I

would encourage you to consider it favorably.
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Mr. Owens. I thank the gentleman for this testimony. I'd like to
begin by asking you to please repeat for me what your sources of
funding would be and what existing programs you'd be replacing.

Mr. McCurpy. Surely. Mr. Chairman, we need to emphasize the
fact that we are not phasing out programs.

. We have a five-year period transition in the bill. Once the system

is fully operational, there would be a conversion from the existing
grant programs and student loan programs to funding for the
vouchers.

Mr. Owens. So you would eliminate Pell Grants?

Mr. McCurpy. They would be brought into the national service
financing structure. For those without exceptions, in order to re-
ceive any government voucher—which today is in the form of a
Pell Grant—one would need to perform national service. The eligi-
ble criteria for government assistance would be changed. As op-
posed to being based solely on financial need it would be based on
service,

Mr. OwEns, What are the criteria that would be changed?

Mr. McCurpy. The eligibility criteria would change. I would em-.
phasize again the fact that the average Pell Grant is $1400. If your
family makes $33,000—and believe it or not, $33,000 in today’s
economy is not a lot of money. If you make $33,000, you are not
eligible for a Pell Grant. Furthermore, if your family saved, if they
anticipated the cost of education and saved, that would be used
against them in eligibility.

The percent system actually targets those who don’t save and
those who are not as——

Mr. OweNs. Are you changing the criteria for the work study
program also?

Mr. McCurpy. We anticipate that work study would be—again,
we'd like to use “converted” into thjs program.

Mr. Owens. I think your proposal has great merit, Mr. McCurdy.
I think the problem is that some of us would like to gee it intro-
duced as an addition to what exists already instead of frying to
golve all problems with one bill.

Certainly, for the oungsters who are late bloomers—they have
potential which just hasn’t developed by the time they reacﬁ' their
senior gear of high schoocl—for youngsters who are indecisive and
undecided; for youngsters who really don't have certain skills and
won’t be going into higher education but need a place to begin to
learn discipline and settle down; there are a number of ways in
which your program would be excellent for them.

I think you would agree with me that at the heart of our future
national securit’Y is our brain power; that no matter what area of
competition we're discussing, whether it’s commercial, military,
whatever, in the world arena, the brain power of America is going
to make the difference.

What you're doing is tampering with the brain power here be-
cause you're lumping any poor student who has a great deal of
talent. Because he’s poor, the only alternative he has in terms of
being able to get Federal aid would be to wait a year or two before
he can advance his education. )

Braing cool off, you know. It'll also present them with a problem.
They come out of the two year period with enough money for a
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down-payment on a house and their whole family is standing by
and they're looking to see: “Are you going to use this for a down-
payment on a house or go to college? That’s kind of selfish for you
to go off to college by yourself when you could have a down-pay-
ment on a house for all of us,” you know.

It's quite an alternative that you'd be presenting to a lot of poor
students who might have a tremendous amount of potential to go
on to school. Having been delayed already, they are presented this
dilemma of the house or the future education.

Future education would allow them to become a taxpayer, con-
tributing far more to the economy, and also allow them to do far
more for themselves, to buy a house later on. It's kind of an unfair
alternative.

Mr. McCurpy. If I may, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your con-
cern, and actually you're speaking to the choir a little bit here.

I think you have to look at thig in a little different light. You
and I have the same concerns. That is, we want to expand and en-
hance the opportunities for young people either to receive an edu-
cation, or to receive job training, or to Eurchase a home.

The bill does not do, I think, everything that you perhaps think
it does. It does not require that you serve. There are a number of
options available. For instance, if you're a bright kid, and you're a
Physics whiz, and you want to go directly to college, and you know
exactly what you want to do and you score the heck out of SATs
and you're eligible for other types of grants that are out there—
throlﬁ’h state or private assistance—then you have other options
available.

If you don’t want to delay two years but you still believe in the
concept of giving something back and serving your nation, you still
have a route. You can go into ROTC or you can do reserve train-
ing. You could do the Peace Corps afterwards. You could do
VISTA. We don’t eliminate those programs.

Mr. Owens. Maybe we ought to provide another alternative, a
peace academy structured like the ROTC?

Mr. McCURDY. There may be a way to do that. What I'm telling
you is simple, Mr. Chairman. We've gone out on a limb and taken
the tough criticism because we believe it's time that we reviewed
the existing structure of education in this country today. For those
who stand up and say, “Hey, no problem. It's working well,”
they're not paying attention to the statistics.

Do you know what the Federal budget looks like today? Mr. Wil-
liams and others, and Mr. Miller, they know full well. Forty-two
_percent in the existing budget is now consumed by entitlements—
and that’s expanding—and the next largest area is 30 percent for
defense. And I'm on the Armed Services Committee. I can attest to
that. The third largest portion is interest on the debt, and you
can’t control that. Those three are basically off-limits today—I
mean for any meaningful changes.

With those areas off limits, the approximately 15 percent that is
left is for NASA, or for highways, or all the other discretionary
 spending. Quite frankly, you and T came to this body, not to be
writing social security checks, or to be just paying interest on the
debt, we came here to be able to influence minds and the direction
of this society.
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But that discretionary portion of the budget is shrinking. So
what we’re trying to do is shift the mentality, change it; say: “Wait
a minute. Let’s step back for a minute and regain perspective.”
How else can we protect the educational opportunities in this conn-
try. What we're saying is, let’s shift the funding from one area
that’s strictly entitlement—which is being squeezed—to one of
earned benefits. If you work for it; you earn it. It’s there. I believe
by combining these programs we actua]ly have the opportunity to
expand opportunities that are available.

It’s just not targeting the poor. There’s a whole class of young
people out there today who are middle class or lower-middle class,
who don’t get any aid. What about them? There are a lot of those
that don’t intend to go to college either. What about them? We're
doing nothing for those people today. We focus entirely on the poor
and the rich get off. I don't believe that. I believe we need to
expand that base.

Mr. Owewns. Yes, Mr. McCurdy. Do you think we should consider
reducing our $150 billion expenditures for overseas bases in order
to be able to deal with having an impact on the minds of our young
people? But my time is up

Mr. McCurpy. I'm noted for the base closing bill and I can sup-
port base closings.

Mr. OWENS. ] have a limited time. Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smrra. Thank you. Mr. McCurdy, we haven’t had the chance
to meet each other. It’s nice to meet you.

I should confess to some bias in this affair because I have created
community service programs in educational institutions, both at
the secondary and at the postsecondary education levels.

I think the concern I have that I'd be interested in hearing from
you about is the strong feeling 1 have about this bill that I don’t
have about Congresswoman Morella’s bill, frankly, or Mr. Panet-
ta’s idea, that we are directing an educational verdict.

You talk about, you described a class of indentured students in
terms of the debt burden that people are bearing. I don’t think
there’s any doubt.

My concern is that this approach makes that case. It says that in
fact based on income and based on background we are going to
make extra requirements of you,

My experience as an educator is that if I want community serv-
ice to be educational to the individual, enriching to the institution
and helpful to the person who is receiving the service, that it has
to be something that is chosen by the individual, not mandated by
the law, that we fundamentally lose the flavor that will make what
you're after, I believe, possible and rich and good, precisely because
w:e:;ile it to money expost facto. It is determined i)y income level or
need.

The individual in the end is directed to work, rather than choos-
ing to work. Would we direct people to teach or would we direct
people who would want to have this student change the sheets on
their bed or work with their children in a community-based day
care center, or whatever the work might be, who was there under
sufferance, and not becanse they had elected that kind of work as a
contribution to society, which they could have done under Con-
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gresswoman Morella’s approach—which I would broaden, qulte
frankly—or under Congressman Panetta’s approach.

Mr. McCurpy. Well, sir, again, ours is not a draft. It is not com-
pulsory. There is the component that if you want to receive Federal
financial assistance, then you have to provide some service in order
to receive it.

I don’t discount your call for volunteerism. I support volunteer-
ism, and believe that it's essential. In reality, ,we're not just ad-
dressing the needs that are out there today. We're not just talking
about 1%89 We're talking about 1999, 1995 and the year 2000.

If you look at the demographics, they are moving in the wron
direction, economically and socially. You're going to have more ang
more older people. Those older Americans are going to require
more services. The pool of young people available for such volun-
teerism is going to shrink dramatically as the pressures on them to
compete in the lJabor market increase.

like to say, yes we will be just fine the so-called “me” genera-
tion attitude will fade. We've just gone through a decade when no
one asked youth to serve. In the future—and again, maybe not
today but ten years from now—we’re going to find that there are
not enough people to prov1de the services needed out there.

The service needs fomg to increase and the portlou of the
Federal budget that 1s able to address some of those needs ig going
to shrink even more, unless we have some major miracles from the
Budget Committee this year.

Mr. SMITH. Con%ressman my concern is—and maybe I can put it
more clearly—is that there's an enormous educational benefit to be
had from the program, from a program that comes out of the five
or gix ideas that we have before us.

I think it needs to be seen, not simply as a way to pay for college,
but as a way that college campus life is enricheg, the way that stu-
dents’ lives are enriched educationally as well as——

Mr. McCurpy. Again, there are great programs out here today.
There are some pilot programs that I support which are excellent
Campus Compact for instance, and other universities are looki
the concepts. I think those programs are good. As I've indicate
my statement, I'd love to see a program where K through 12 grade
youths do some work part-time. ey need to develop the sense
that there is.something out there for them, and that citizenship
has some great benefits for them, and that they are actually
making a contribution. Wishful thinking alone is not going to ad-

51 of these problems.

Second, there are reasons I've opposed a_compulsory mandatory
draft that some advocate. For mstance, Senator McCain in the
Senate likes our bill but says, “I won’t support it because it's not a
draft. It’s not mandatory.” Well, quite frankly, I don’t think we
could find meaningful work for three million young people every
year. I don’t think we need to.

Politically—I will put on my political hat for a moment—you ﬁo
out there today and start talking about a draft, and it’s almost li

talking and t?mg to defend the pay raise nght now. It's just not
feasible. You don’t have much of an opportunity to explain. People
react instinctively. However, I think that there could be meaning-
ful work for volunteers in this type of legislation. We don’t want

4
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make-work jobs. We don’t want another CETA type program. I
think that's one of the reasons we emphasize the community in-
volvement, cost-sharing. Mr. Grandy raised a question about cost-
sharing. We have a cost-sharing provision in the bill. States would
contribute 25 percent.

We want states and communities to have a stake in this because
the cities and communities are going to be key beneficiaries. Many
of the target areas are going to be in those areas that need the
ﬂg:& the most, in the poorest communities, the poorest neighbor-

S.

Mr. Owens. Thank you. Mr. Williams?

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Former President Nixon once said, “When I've said it so many
times that I never want to hear myself say it again, the American
people seem to have heard it for the very first time.”

ational service is nothing new. I'm not sure what all the fuss is
about. We have, after all, the Peace Corps, and the Teacher Corps,
and the Neighborhood Youth Corps, and the Job Corps, and the
National Student Volunteer Program, the Foster Grandparent Pro-
gram, the R.S.V.P. Program, and VISTA.

The idea of national service goes back to the 1800s. The idea of
dramatic Federal involvement in national gervice goes back to
Franklin Roosevelt. 8o I'm not sure what all the fuss is about,
unless it i8 about the fact that your bill, Mr. McCurdy, and Mr.
Nunn’s bill would say to the American people, if you want to go to
college, national service is mandatory. If your bank account’s a
little slim, and you want to go on to school, you have to work first.

That’s something different. That's a dramatic change in the way
America has allowed itg citizens to attend hiFher education, wheth-
er it's proprietary or traditional postsecondary education. Maybe
that’s what all the fuss is about.

I suspeect it is, don’t you?

Mr. McCurpy. The gentleman has stated it well. That is one of
the reasons there is a fuss. We're shaking the very foundation of
the so-called educational establishment by forcin% them to re-think.

If I could rephrase your statement just slightly, the only differ-

ence that I would make is this: we're not saying, ‘If you want to go

to college then you have to work first.” We're sayu;g,d “If you want

Federal financial aid, if you want to use tax-payers’ dollars to pay
your way through school, then we are requiring some type of serv-
ice in return, not necessarily before.” It could be done after receipt
of Federal benefits or it could be during receipt of Federal benefits.
I think over time we would welcome Senator Mikulski’s bill to be
incorporated.

The gentleman from Montana is a well-known spokesman for
education. I support many of the views that you have. We knew
when we introduced this bill that we were going to have some flak.
We wanted to shift the debate. We believe it’s time that people
start askinilthat fundamental question of system effectiveness.

Senator Mitchell, who has placed this issue as a top priority on
the agenda this year and the Speaker who has embraced this con-
cept and others, both have a problem with the funding portion.
Here there are two considerations. First of all, we have to know
where the money to fund the program is going to come from.




That’s not easy to do in this budget environment. Making structur-
al changes is a costly venture. But, more importantly, 1 believe
that we can merge a lot of bills, bring them together. I like the
idea of the task force, quite frankly. I'd like for us to start some
pilot programs.

From the armed service's perspective—and ] think Chairman
Montgomery especially needs to see some of this before he moves
from his )llaosition—we need to look at things such as a test period
in the military. I think the military would welcome a trial program
for a period of time. The transition period was no accident in this
bill. We're talking five years. We need that period to determine
how zlvell this will work. It may work better than we even envi-
sioned.

A number of people have said, “Well, wait a minute. There's
going to be a lot of cost involved.” ] have recently seen a wild cost
estimate of our bill. We're not talking about sending people to
Mars, we're talking about putting them to work in communities.
The cost estimates are outrageous.

Mr. WiLLiams. David, let me——-

Mr. McCurpy. People are attacking it, I think, without locking
at the ultimate goal.

Mr. WiLLiaAMS. Because | see the yellow light on, I——

Mr. McCurpy. I'm sorry.

Mr. WiLLiams. I don’t want to be rude and interrupt. But as you
know, I'm Chairman of the House of Postsecondary Education
Committee. I think it’s important that while you're here I make
.i:lear to you my concerns, and they are significant, about the legis-
ation.

You've talked about the physics whiz kid, and you’ve said he has
a lot of options. We don't stop him from going to school. He has a
lot of options.

But if he is a financialiy poor physics whiz kid, going to schoci
immediately upon graduating from high school is not an option
under your bill. That’s out.

Now as Chairman of the Postsecondary Education Committee, let
me tell you, I don’t know how the rest of them are going to vote,
but not this Chajrman.

I want that physics whiz kid to go on to college immediately. 1
don’t want to jeopardize the future of this country by saying,
“Well, look, you’re going to have to work it off.”

He may say, “I don’t want to work it off.” Or he may say, “All
right, I'll work it off.” And he goes for a year and he gets a $10,000
voucher, and his family is pressing him pretty hard about a mort-
Elage on a house for them, and America loses that physics whiz
D'a—-_—not this Chairman. 1 just want to make that clear to you,

vid. :

Now I want to commend you and Senator Nunn for finding a
way to wedge into the debate and shake America and say, ‘Look,
maybe Americans who have a visceral understanding of the impor-
tance of education should realize that Federal help cannot be taken
for granted, and it is no longer an entitlement, that you have to
work it off.”

But I am worried that you're going to create more than just dia-
logue in America with your legislation. I worry that you're going to

Sy
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c;-eatefc_livisiveness in America with your legislation and the discus-
s1on of 1t.

Let me be frank and tell you one of the reasons why: Because
today only 27 percent of the students in higher education who have
to rely on Federal grants are white.

Now the difference between rich and 1\foor also comes into this. If
you can afford to go to school and the McCurdy-Nunn approach be-
comes law—in other words, if your parents have enough in the
bank account, and the McCurdy-Nunn apiproach becomes law, you
will be the only person, the only class of people in America who
can go straight to college out of high school.

The poor won't be able to do it under your legislation because
they can get neither a Federal loan nor a Feder:%lgrant—not this
chairman.

Mr. McCurbpy. Well, if the Chairman would yield on that point.
And again, I have the highest respect for the gentleman and his
knowledge, and his experience, and his advocacy for education.

I would submit to you, Mr. Chairman, that if you look at the per-
centage of minorities in the military today you will find that the
percentage of minorities that are having to g0 into the military is
much higher than the percentage of white lkids. There’s also a
higher percentage of poor people because they have found that it's
ptgé'haps one of the few job opportunities that are available to them

ay.

You also look at the fact that black enrollment has declined, in
spite of the existing programs. I've stood there and fought with you
against some of these education funding cuts during the past eight
years. Look at black enrollment; look at Hispanic enrollment; and
lock at blue collar enrollment. They have all declined.

If all of a sudden—and I don’t want to make it sound isan—
the new president who wants to be the education president comes
in and dumps an additional $2 billion. on us, well then maybe we
won't have to worry about that, but I don’t think that's going to
occur. : -

The fact of the matter is that the status quo today discriminates
against the poor people. It discriminates against minorities. Qur
program is not perfect, but I tell you what, I think it's better than
the status quo. )

Second, I beg to differ with your point about bright students. If a
kid is a physics whiz, he will have a number of options available,
either through state or private agsistance. If he’s that good then he
may be going to the magnet school in Qklahoma City. There are
programs that are attracting those kids, and they are finding addi-
tional sources of revenue.

If he doesn’t want to pursue those routes, then perhaps he may
have to spend a year or two working for the Department of Defense
after coliege because there are programs available there; they're
trying to get those kids as well.

I don’t think it precludes or eliminates the options that perhaps
the gentleman believes it does. In conclusion, all I've asked is that
yoa give us an opportunity to work with you. We want to have a
chance tc pursue some options and to look at some tests and some *
programs. What we want to do is, I think, what you want to do
over time.
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Yes, it’s controversial right now, but I think it’s time that we at
least started asking some tough questions about how we're going to

Mr. WiLiams. Well, in conclusion, Dave, again, I appreciate the
innovative proposal that you place forward. It does establish a na-
tional dialogue. As you can tell, 1 have some serious reservations
about it.

As it was introduced, you began your testimony here by gracious-
ly acknowledging that you are, of course, open to change as any
author of legislation to this magnitude has to be. Of course, I'll
work with you.

While I speak as Chairman of the Postsecondary Education Com-
mittee, I only have my own vote. I just wanted to be clear with you
as we begin to work together that I have serious reservations about
changing what has long been the American tradition based on the
realization of the importance of education and that is the tradition
of assisting financially students in this country who want to try to
go on to higher education, without placing unreasonable hurdles in
their way prior to that assistance being granted.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And again, Dave, thank you.

Mr. OweNns. Yes, Mr. McCurdy, 1 wonder if you'd let us impose
on you. I know we all have time problems. Congressman Bonior is
here, and he has an urgent meeting. He'd like to just take five
minutes to make his presentation. Then he’ll leave and we'll
Eesuﬁne the questioning of you if you will be so gracious as to let us

o that.

. Mr. McCurpy. That will be fine.
Mr. Owens. Let’s do that.

STATEMENT QF THE HONORABLE DAVID E. BONIOR,
REPRESENTATIVE, STATE OF MICHIGAN

Mr. Bonior. I thank my colleagues and my friend from Qklaho-
ma. I do beg the committee’s indulgence and appreciate the oppor-
tunity to be before you today on this issue.

I'd like to begin by thanking the Chairman and the different sub-
committees and the Full Committee for holding this hearing today.

The idea that has been talked about throughout the morning, es-
tablishing a program to encourage a national and community serv-
ice, is indeed not a new one.

It's a concept that I have supported since I've been in Congress
now for 13 years. I believe it has gained a significant momentum in
recent months, much of it due to the interest of my colleague on
rrllly lefi and Senator Nunn, who have taken an active interest in
this.

As Dave McCurdy has indicated, has put this at the top of the
agenda, certainly in the Senate, with San Nunn. Senator Mitchell
is very interested in moving some legislation with regard to this
1S5U€.

In many respects, I think there is a commonality of purpose
among the various sponsors of service legislation. We all sense the
hunger among the people of this country to get involved and do
something positive for others. We sense a growing awareness of the
great n of our society.
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President Bush tapped this sentiment in his inaugural address
when he called for a new engagement in the lives of others.

We are responding to this call here today. I think each of us be-
lieves that it is the task of leadership to provide others with the
opportunity to give the hest of themselves.

We seek to renew the awareness that by serving others we serve
our country as well.

Let me turn to just a very brief description of the National Com-
munity Service Act which I have introduced in the House and Sen-
ator Barbara Mikulski has introduced to the Senate.

Qur proposal differs from any of the others you’ll be hearing
today in that it provides for a part-time neighborhood-based com-
munity service.

Volunteers would be required to serve two weekends a month
and two weeks a year. The idea is modelled after the National
Guard. ‘

This legislation does not require an individual to interrupt his or
her schooling or family life in order to take part in the program.
Rather, it'’s purpose is o help encourage people to make volunteer
activity a part of their daily life.

In the same vein, the legislation puts primary emphasis on pro-
viding volunteers to existing programs in their own communities.

Examples would be delivering meals on wheels for the elderly,
tutoring volunteer fire-fighting, emergency medical care, conserva-
tion, literacy training, and habitat for the humanity, just to name
a few.

We want to draw on the expertise and the enthusiasm already
well-established in s0 many of our community organizations. The
program would be open to any individuals of all ages, to anyone
who was capable of carrying out community service.

This is not just a youth service program. There will be incentives
involved that are probably more attractive to young. Volunteerism
can result in a renewed sense of pride in one’s community and pro-
vides valuable lessons for both young and old.

I believe the inter-generational aspects to this program is one of
the strongest components. Giving to others and giving to one’s com-
munity and country should be a lifetime duty and a lifetime oppor-
tunity.

I hope this committee will take into consideration the advantages
of encouraging the young and the old to work together, to interact
in voluntary activity.

In exchange for three to six years of service the individual volun-
teerzsed will receive a voucher equal in value to $3,000 for each year
5e .

The voucher can be used to pay off student loans, for payments
of tuition and fees at an educational, technical or vocational insti-
tution, or for a down-payment on a first home.

The vouchers provide not only for the incentives to get involved,
but new opportunities for middle class students or young families
to participate in the American dream that so often has been de-
Ened by this body as the ability to get an education and to own a

ome.
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It is anticipated that we could reduce student indebtedness to a
significant degree with this voucher system without disrupting a
student’s education.

The primary responsibility for administering this legislation
would rest with the states. The bill sets un a National Community
Services Corporation similar to the bill tl 't Dave has introduced,
and Senator Nunn, consisting of 11 memoers appointed by the
President with input from both the House and the Senate.

The duties of the Corporation would be to set standards and es-
tablish rules and procedures for programs. to accept volunteer ap-
plications and to approve plans from the states.

It is really the states, the entities with the best knowledge of
agencies and community needs, that would carry out the major re-
sponsibility for administration and placing volunteers.

The cost of the program is proposed to be 250 million for 50,000
volunteers in fiscal year. 1991, rising to two billion for 400, 000 in
fiscal year 1994,

The bulk of the Federal funding goes to payments of vouchers to
volunteers. The next largest share goes to payments for a six week
training session for volunteers.

This training is an important component of the bill because it is
our goal to provide skilled, committed volunteers who will not only
benefit the programs that they are assigned to, but will also gain
relevant experience in volunteer activities.

At the same time, the legislation provides special guarantees
that no workers will be displaced from their existing jobs or have
their hours and wages reduced because of competition from volun-
teers.

The fact that volunteer activities are to be channeled through ex-
isting volunteer organizations will help prevent worker displace-
ment. In addition, the states must take concrete measures to insure
that this does not occur, and establish procedures for resolving
complaints from employees.

In introducing thig legislation, I have been guided by several
basic criteria. We must ensure that we are actually able to provide
a service to reach the people we want to help with volunteer activi-
ty.

We must not undermine valuable programs already in existence.
We must not draw recruits away from the armed services or stu-
dents away from the educational system.

We must avoid creating a costly new bureaucracy, and instead
enlist the expertise of the private sector in selecting appropriate
volunteer programs.

The National Community Service Act meets these criteria. I be-
lieve that it is important that we take a modest and a gradual ap-
proach to any proposal for national service, but I believe that it Is
equally important that we begin.

In the last couple of decades we have seen some people in this
country wallowing in cynicism and criticism. At times it seemed
that our citizens had lost confidence in so many of our institutions.

I believe the tide has turned, and a new spirit of volunteerism is
movmg;:cross the land, and we have a historic opportunity to in-
spire ericans of all backgrounds to get involved in their commu-

&
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nities, to help others and to make our nation even stronger. I think
it’s time that we in the Congress get involved as well.

Mr. Chairman, again, let me thank the Committee and my col-
leagues who have worked so hard on the different service proposals
and for their leadership on this issue,

I look forward to working with each and every one of you as we
mgve forward on this very important concept in American society

ay.

Thank you.

{The prepared statement of Hon. David E. Bonior follows:]
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Testimony of Congressman David E. Bonior
on
The National Community Service Act

¥ would like to begin by thanking the chairmen of the different
subcommittees and the full committee for helding this hearing teday.
The idea of establishing a program 10 encourage national and
community sefvice iS not a new one. It is a concept I have supported
since 1 first came to Congress twelve years ago.

But, | believe it has gained significant momentum in recent
months. Interest in community Service is surging, and 1 would Jike
to see it sustained. | want to commend the effort you are making 1o
examine carefully the range of proposals.

In many respects, I think thefe is a commonalty of purpose
among the various sponsors of service legislation. We all sense the
hunger among the people of this country to get involved and do
something positive for others. And we sense a growing awareness
of the great needs of our society.

President Bush tapped this sentiment in his inaugural address
when he called for a "new engagement in the lives of others." We are
responding to this call here today. [ think each of us believes that it
is the rask of leadership to provide others with the opportunity to
give the best of themselves. We seck 10 renew the awareness that in
serving others, we Serve our country as well.

Let me turn to a brief description of the Nationa] Community
Services Act which I have iniroduced in the House. and Senatoer
Barbara Mikulski kas introduced in the Senate.

Our proposal differs from many of the others you will be
hearing testinicny on today in that it provides for part-time
neighborhood based community service. Voluntzers would be
requircd to serve 2 weekends a month, and two weeks a year. The
idea is modelled after the National Guard.

This legislation does not require an individual to interrupt his
or her schooling or family life in order to take part in the program.
Rather, jts i H

activity a part of their daily life.



In the same vein, the legislation puts primary emphasis on
providing volunteers to existing programs in their own community.
Examples would be delivering Meals on Wheels for the elderly,
tutoring, volunteer fire-fighting or emergency medical care,
conservation, literacy training, Habitat for Humanity -- just t¢ name
a few. We want to draw on the expertise and the enthusiasm
already well established in s¢ many of our community organizations.

The program would be open to individuals of all ages -- (¢ any
one who is capable of carrying out community service. This is not
just a youth service program, though the incentives involved are
probably most attractive to the young. Volunteerism can result in 2
renewed sense of pride in ones community and provides valuable
lessons for both young and old.

I believe, the inter-generational aspect of this program is one
of its strongest components. Giving to others, giving 1o one's
commtunity and country should be a life time duty and opportunity.
And 1 hope this committee will take intc consideration the
advantages of encouraging the young and old to work together in

voluntary activity.

In exchange for 3 10 6 years of service, the individual
volunteers will receive a voucher equal in value the $3.000 for each
year served. The voucher can be used to pay-off swdent loans. for
payment of tuition and fees at an educational, technical or vocational
institution, or for a downpayment on a first home.

The vouchers provide not ouly the incentives to get involved,
but new opportunities for middle-class stdents or youug families to
participate in the American dream. It is awmicipated that we could
reduce student indebtedness to a significant degree with this
voucher system, without disrupting a student's education.

The primary respousibility for administering this legislation
would rest with the states. The bill sets up a National Commuuity
Service Corporation consistiug of 11 members appoiuted by the
President with iuput from both the House and the Senate. The duries
of the Corporation would be to set standards and establish rules and
procedures for the program. (o accept voluuteer applications, and 1o
approve plans from the states.
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But, it is really the siates, the entities with the best knowledge
of agencies and of community needs that would carry the major
responsibility for administration and placing volunteers.

The cost of the program is proposed to be $250 million for
50,000 volunteers in FY 1991, rising to $2 billion for 400,000
volunteers by FY 1994, The bulk of the federal funding goes to
peyment of vouchers to volunmieers. The next largest share goes to
payment for a 6 week training session for the volunteers. This
training is an important component of the bill because it is our goal
to provide skilled, committed volunteers who will not only benefit
the programs they are assigned to but will gain relevant experience
in the volunteer activities.

At the same time, the legislation provides special guarantees
that no workers will be displaced from their existing jobs or have
their hours or wages reduced because of competition from
volunieers., The fact that the volunteer activity is to be channelled
through exiting voluntary organizations will heip prevent worker
displacement. In addition, the states must take concrete measures to
ensure that this does not occur and establish procedures for
resolving complaints from employees.

In introducing this legislation, I have been guided by several
basic criteria. We must insure that we are actually able to provide a
service, to reach the people we want to help with volunteer activity.
We must not undermine valuable programs a'ready in exisience. We
must not draw recroits away from the armed services or students
away from the educational system. We must avoid creating a costly
new bureaucracy and instead enlist the expertise of the private
sector in selecting appropriate volunteer programs. The National
Community Service Act meets these criteria.

I believe it is important that we take 2 modest and gradual
approach to any proposal for national service. But, I believe that it is
equally important that we begin.

In the last couple of decades, we have seen some people in this
country wallowing in cynicism. At times, it seemed that our citizens
had lost confidence in so many of oui institutions.

I believe the tide has tummed. A new spirit of volunteerism is
moving across the land. We have a historic opportunity to inspire




Americans of all backgrounds to get involved in their communities,
to help others, to make our nation even stronger. It is time that we
in Congress got involved as well.

Again, lzet me thank the committee and my colleagues who
have worked on the different service proposals for their leadership
on this issue. I look forward to working together.

FedFed
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Mr. Owens. Thank you for your testimony, Congressman Bonior.
I'm sure that all members of the task force, as well as members of
the commitiee will forward any questions to you in writing that
they might have about your proposal.

I want to again thank Mr. McCurdy for being so patient. We can
resume questioning now with—Mr. Gunderson has left?

Mr. Miiler.

Mr. MiLLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dave, thank you for your
testimony and your support of this matter.

I think, like most of our colleagues, Dave, there’s general support
of the notion of people giving something back to their country. I'm
sure that I won’t be the first rain on your parade today.

"Let me suggest that I'm not sure it's as complicated as has been
suggested here. Also, I'd like to suggest that, with all due respect,
maybe we've got it backwards.

I've spent the last six years on the Committee on Children,
Youth and Families. I look at the complexity of problems that con-
front our elderly, our young, the homeless, the drug-addicted, the
poor—with all due respect and all great admiration for American
youth, I don’t know that we're doing those people a great favor by
unleashing millions of uneducated, untrained teenagers on their
problems.

What I den't understand is why we don’t give them the educa-
tion first. Then let us forgive their loans, forgive the cost of their
education, forgive their grants, if you will, and let them use the
skills that they have acquired in vocational education; in higher
education at the community college, at the four-year college, and at
the graduate school in the community?

How can we send an enthusiastic but untrained individual to
teach literacy when we know that a good portion of our high school
graduates can hardly read their own degree, when we know that a
good portion of cur young people have dropped out of school and
that they may not be eligible for this program? Why don't we train
them first? .

We've done it at the highest levels. We've taken doctors and
trained them and said, “We will forgive the cost of your medical
education if you will go down to the border in Texas, if you will go
to the Navaho reservation, if you will go to the inner city, and
bring your skills, the skills the public paid fer, and put them into
use for puolic purpose.”

Why don’t we do that for somebody whoe wants to be a social
worker? Why don’t we gend in a trained 21 year old or 22 year old
social worker, as opposed to an untrained 17 year o}d?

Why don’t we send in a trained teaching specialist to work with
the teacher in the classroom rather than an untrained 17 year old
to deal with the problems of literacy.

Send in a person who has a degree in psychology or counselling
or drug abuse to deal with the addicted, rather than somebody
who's just enthusiastic and concerned.

We will give them the education, and they will give us back
skilled participation by our young people. It seems to me that all
we have to do at some point, a year from now or next school year,
or the year after that, is sitmply announce that this is available.
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We will forgive them their loans so that they can go to school for
four years, or go on to graduate school. We will expect national
service from these young people, and we will forgive them the cost
of their education, and they will contribute their skills.

It's like the Peace Corps. Poor people don’t need poor people.
When I was in law school they used to say, “The last thing a poor
person needs is a poor attorney.”

So study hard and then represent poor people. In the Peace
Corps, we didn’t want to send um;ra.ine«:{J individuals. We wantad to
send somebody who understood hydraulic engineering so that they
could build an irrigation system, or dig a well.

It just seems to me that we ought to think about the notion that
you've go out there and earn education. Get the education and
then pay it off. Then you bring in individuals with skills to the
country, some talented neople in structuring those children’s lives
and those families lives, holding those families together, putting
them back together.

The problems of addiction may be the most complexing problems
that this country is facing. Taking care of the elderly, who are now
reaching advanced ages and suffering from Alzheimer's disease, in-
volves more than simply custodial care. If we do this, we also have
pecple who have chosen a career.

I absolutely agree with your concept that there's a pay-back.
There's a pay-back ggu’ve got to make and a contribution for the
benefits of living within the borders of thig country for all we share
and all the privileges we have.

I really believe that we've got it backwards here. We could do so
much more in terms of the eradication of the problems that plague
us a policy makers. We know there’s not enough money in the
budget to take care of all those problems.

If we would just send in people who, one, chose to go, and two,
who brought a packet of gkills with them, so to speak, into that
problem, we could make a difference in alleviating these problems.

That’s my concern, and I don’t think it’s outside the confines of
what you and all the other coauthors or the sponsors of the various
bills are trying to do.

Mr. McCurpy. | thank the gentleman, and he certainly raises
some very good points.

I've been a long-time supporter of the Peace Corps and VISTA.
Actually, in our proposal, we would even provide benefits for those
who provide service in those programs—benefit packages that are
not available to them today.

So, again, I don’t see this as threatening to existi rograms be-
cause We want to enhance them. We know where VISTA is. It's
bﬁen hit hard in the last decade. I think we need to reevaluate
that.

Again, perhaps there are demographers and sociologists who can
better answer that question tha ; I can.

We're not just targeting the poor people. You talked about send-
ing poor illiterate kids back into the poor communities. We want to
keep people working within their own communities, and we have
tried to stress it at the local level.

" Many kids go on and get their education and develop valuable
skills. They become a very hot product after they get out of college,
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and the comPetition for their skills becomes very great. Quite
frankly, I don't think we’re going to be able to competie as effective-
ly in the future for those people, to send them back into those
areas.

Mr. MiLEr. Let them get their education. That's exactly my
goint. A physician, especially a family physician, is a hot product,

ut we have hundreds of physicians who do it.

Mr. McCurpy. As the gentleman knows, I'm married to a physi-
cian. We both worked our way through college. Those programs
were out there, but you'd be surprised at the number of physicians
who opt later just to go out and pay back in cash those loans as
opposed to actually ggmfg to serve. They find that it's better to
practice in the suburbs of the large city, because of the cultural as-
pects or whatever, as opposed to going out into some very small,
rural community.

It's not as been as successful as——

Mr. MitLer. Then I don’'t want that person out there. I don’t
want that person out there.

Mr. McCurpy. Quite frankly—

Mr. OweNs. The gentleman’s time has expired, I am just giving
him time to reply.

Mr. McCurpy. The problem is that they're not going out there.
Fm not sure we've provided enough incentive.

Second, let me say we, too, hope that they learn skills. Someone
raised the question, “Well, what about handicapped people?”

I said, well, I believe there are cases where people with handi-
caps might be exempt, certainly those. To be honest, I don’t dimin-
ish the invelvement of even poor kids, or kids who don’t have a
very good education. I think they learn a lot by the exposure.

We have a provision in this where we have senior citizens work-
ing with those young people to help provide some supervision. They
do it on an hourly cost basis, as opposed to earning the voucher.

They would actually be those who are working side-by-side and
helping to perhaps impart some gkills to these young people.

We're not frying to disrupt the existing sysiems. If New York
City has a program, let's build upon its success. In California’s %ro-
gram, they're now attracting generally lower income and higher
percentages of minority youth.

I don’t think their programs are counterproductive. I don’t think
they're negative. So quite frankly, I think you raised a very good
point. That is a segment. That is a gmall percentage of it, but that
alone is not going to solve all those problems. I think we need to
bring them all together and support VISTA, Peace Corps; provide
weekend support and then lock at ours as well.

Mr. OweNs. Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GUNDERSON. This is a real privile%e for me to sit here and
listen to my good friend. While I was listening to you, Dave, I
couldn’t help but reflect that a few months ago I was wondering
what Dave McCurdy’s next controversial issue would be after the
contras. I guess we've just found out what it is.

Mr. McCurpy. It's a 55 mile an hour speed limit, I think.

Mr. GUNDERSON. You had that in between.

I have really three questions. To the best of my ability, from
reading your statement in the time that I've been here, I've not
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heard you specifically address the issue of the military side from
the revolving door concept.

I mean, It was my understanding that our joint chiefs of staff
some years 2go came down in faver of a volunteer draft because
they said, ““The last thing we need in a high technology defense is a
revolving door of two-yexr people.”

I guess I'd just like you to go on the record in response to that. I

- have a couple more questicns.

Mr. McCurpy. Weli, as quickly as I can, the all volunteer force
has worked well up to this point. Last month was the first month
that they didn’t meet their quotas. We are paying enlistees what
we are paying starting teachers in our state.

Second, the Army alone last year spent $60 million in just televi-
sion advertising for recruitment, just television commercials, $60
million. You know, “Be all you can be.” The cost is going to in-
crease even more so.

The Army College Fund which is, quite frankly, discriminatory
because it applies only to combat arms, which means only males. If
you do that in addition to the GI bill, after three years you get
$17,000. We have a package far more attractive than that.

We would not disrupt the Army’s criteria for enlistment. They
would still have to have a high school diploma or its equivalent. So
we believe that the quality would be there.

We don't disrupt the career options or the four year options or
the three year options of those who want to go and learn a skill.
They want to use the military as a job enhancing program, or skill
enhancing program. That would continue. You would have that
option as well.

We're talking about job types similar to the “combat arms.”
People, male and female, could be the security guard at a military
il;stallation, or they could be a typist or they could be a wide range
o itions.

ith all the discussion today about withdrawing troops from
Europe and burden-sharing and all this, we are not going to be able
to afford as expensive personne] as we currently utilize. Forty per-
cent of the Defense budget today is personnel.

So in many of these military positions the people don't learn a
ot of skills. They say, “You are going to be in electronics; well
here’s a radio to carry around on your back.” Most of those are in
combat arms types of positions. We believe this will provide that.

At the same time the program actually increases exposure and
we’'d have middle class kids instead of just poor kids. We would
have mixing which you don’t have today. .

Mr. GUNDERSON. You're using up my five minutes, Dave.

Mr. McCurpy. Well, Pm trying to.

Mr. GUNDERSON. There is a lot of speculation surrounding your
statement that those who are over 25 could participaie in grants
and loans—I don’t know if you are aware, but the average of stu-
dents attending college ioday is 28. We have got a much higher age
bracket than we used to have.

Where are you going to get the money? It seems to me aj) the
money you refer to is going to be channeled into this program.
Where are you going to get the money?
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Mr. McCurpy. You are confusing me. There were two parts to
your question, but basically, yes, the average age has increased.

Mr. GunpersoN. Fifty percent of the students today are——

Mr. McCurpy. That’s right. We anticipate that. Granted, we an-
ticipate that. That’s why they would have access to existing pro-
grams. | have to reiterate this again: We do not eliminate the Pell
Grants or other programs.

Mr. GunpERsoN. | understand that, but I don’t know where you
are going to get the money.

Mr. McCurpy. But we would reduce the demand for those pro-
grams by shifting the emphasis from one of entitlement to one of
earned benefits. I don’t believe the grants are sufficient to meet the
needs today. We would shift it to an earning system.

Mr. GunbpersoN. Let me ask the third question.

In town this week are all of the American Vocational Education
people. As I read your bill, it seems to me that it’s an all or noth-
ing program. In ot{ner words, you go in and come out with a $24,000
education voucher. What does a person who'’s going to go to a post-
secondary vocational-technical college do?

Right now, they utilize grants and loans but obviously not
$24,000 worth. How do they fit into this picture?

Mr. McCugpy. Well, first of all, they would be entitled to those
benefits, which is very attractive to these people. As a8 matter of
fact we're negotiating with them, and we think they are very posi-
tive towards our legislation.

Second, you don’t have to use it at all. It is like the G.I. Bill—you
have it available. You could transfer then, if you want to go to
higher education. Or the remainder could be used as a home down-
payment.

It is like the G.I. program. As a matter of fact, for veterans it
still stays in the VA. The only difference is we would have a corpo-
ration administer it for the community service provisions.

Mr. GunpersoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McCurpy. Thank you.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Martinez?

Mr. Marminez. Thank you, Chairman Owens.

Real quickly, I'd like to go back to something you just said a
minute ago, that your bill does not affect Pell Grants. As I under-
stand your bili, it does phase out the Pell Grants.

After a five year period, beginning with the effective date of the
Act, no individua) eligible for a basic educational opportunity grant
under Subpart A, part (a), Title IV of the Higher Education Act
will be able to receive assistance without completing your service
program. It does phase out the Pell Grant.

Mr. McCurby. It does not phase out. It changes the criteria for
that grant.

Mr. Marrinez. Well, the bill says it does, but regardless——

Mr. McCurpy. Again, we don’t eliminate the Pell Grant. There
may be a change in name over time. ] am not sure Senator Pell
likes that. But up until that transition is over the grants would
still be out there. If you are exempt from this program, then you
would be entitled to a Pell Grant if this commitiee and others
deem to fund those grants.
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Mr. MArTINEZ. I think somewhere along the line we are going to
have to make that clear because as most people read the bill, that
parehgra'ph of the bill does phase them out. You can work on that.

I don’t want to be redundant in all of the guestioning that has
gone on before about the fears there are about the particular pro-
posals you bring forth, but I have one very grave concern.

The sentiment has been expressed by Mr. Miller. I just will say
this: I have a problem with people being told that they have to do
something before they get something in the area of education.

You know, we do lag behind some countries in our sense of re-
sponsibility to those people who cannot afford to educate them-
selves because they come from low socioeconomic backgrounds.
They come from what we call the disadvantaged families.

I don’t want to ever put any stumbling block in their way. I
would suggest that in your bill, as you proceed with it, one of the
things you could do is do very similar to what Mezico does. If you
take a poor person out of a poor neighborhood and train them and
make them a professional at something—dentistry, or medicine, or
law, for example—and encourage them to come back and practice
in that community, after they become professional and proficient,
you do that community a lot of service. .

Now there is some part of that idea in a program that we al-
ready have. The only problem is that a lot of the dpeople don't
foliow through. I use the example of one particular doctor in my
area who was required as a repayment of his loan to do service in a
particular area. He refused because he could make more money
somewhere elze.

Well, in Mexico, they have a more stringent requirement. They
will take 2 person who has the aptitude but comes from a poor
neighborhood and cannot educate themselves and they will put
them into a program to make them a doctor, for example. After he
completes that, from that period on, he has to give to the communi-
ty, it is either two or three days of free service to the needy. Then
he can make all the money he wants in the remaining four or five

fﬁ, most instances, and I have met several of these doctors who
have gone through this program, they make enough money in that
period of time to live the highest style they would like to live. So,
they are not hurt in any way.

They do give back to the community that which they receive. I
would rather see something in your bill that says, if you get an
education and become professional at something, and then you
must help your community as part of the requirement of paying
the government back. The requirement may be not as stringent as
the Mexican law, but some similar requirement should exist.

We have that system already in place in the military academies.
They get a fantastic education first and then they are required to
give back a certain number of years of service. Has any of the tagk
force or the group that put this together ever given any thought to
that? Letting the poor get the education they need and then letting
them give back the service afterwards, not requiring it beforehand?

Mr. McCurpy. Well, first of all, as I indicated earlier, we
wouldn’t disrupt an RQOTC program, and we certainly don’t disrupt
the service academies.
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The distinction between that service academy and encouraging
someone to go into an area that you can’t necessarily direct all the
way through, is quite different.

The freedom that a student has is still provided. We say, “young
person here is college, go.” They spend the first couple of years
trying to learn the ics, and often they change majors several
times, but if they are like most young people, they don’t know ex-
actly what they are going to do the day they walk 1n the door.

ereas, in a service academy, when you sign that dotted line,
you sign. There’s no guarantee you're going to graduate, but if you
do graduate, they've got you. They've got you for six years.

They educate you the way they want to educate you. I mean,
you're pretty we structurec{ all the way thro$h. If you drop out,
guess what, you don't drop out of just college. You go into the mili-

en I was on ROTC scholarship, I was actually in the reserves.

You know, they've got a hook in you. I'm not sure we can go out

there today and say, well, okay, young person, you are a bright kid.

Eoul;;(:l going to become 8 doctor and guess what? We've got you
ooked.

The system doesn’t work that way. I wigh it would.

That’s why some of us have scratched our heads for years. As I
indicated, my wife went to medical school. Medical school has a lot
of those folks who opted not to do return service.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Well, when a disadvantaged student applies for a
loan to get his education, you have got himm under contract, too. He
is supposed to pay it back. The only problem is that not many of
our agencies really go after them with a vendetta to get it back
until public sentiment forces them to do so.

The idea is that everybody has to pay something for what they
receive. There’s nothing wrong with writing something that would
accomplish that.

The other thing I have a problem with in your proposal, and it
even exists in the system with the academies, is that unless you're
really physically able you can't participate. That's one of the fears
that I have about your program.

Are we saying that the disadvantaged and the disabled are not
going to be able to participate in the program that would get them
the education they need?

Mr. McCurpy. Not at all. I tried to say that earlier. I take the
opposite approach.

I find it hard to find a program of community gervice that a
person with a handicap could not do. I don't care if it's just reading
to old people ir a home, or trying to help someone with literacy.

I'm a firm heliever that there's so much that they can contrib-
ute, if just asked. We can find 2 limitless number of projects that
thiesr could be involved in.

0, we encourage them. What we want to do is have a high
standard of people. We want to make voluntary service something
that people would ascribe to.

One of the criticisms, and I'm surprised I haven’t heard it today,
is that the rich kids don't have to have Federal financial aid.
they go off the Harvard or wherever, and do their thing and don't
have to be concerned.
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There are programs out there today, Campus Compact and
others where many of these prestigious institutions are consider-
ing, and have, as part of their entrance criteria some form of prior
service.

I believe that's commendable. 1 think we need to elevate what
service really means, as opposed to thinking, well, unfortunately,
I've got to go do this for two years. You know, I've got to delay my
opportunity to get that first BMW. Everybody else that I went to
school with is already on the fast track and I'm delayed because
I've got to go serve my country for a year or two. That's nonsense.

I think we need to engrain in our citizens a sense of civic duty,
and that is what we're trying to do. We're trying to engrain in
yogng people the sense that, yes, there is obligation and il’s not all
bad.

You have a choice. If you want to go plant trees in California or
work in a day care center or work with Alzheimer’s patients or de-
liver meals on wheels, whatever type of program, then you have
?_he option. It is meaningful in that you, too, can get something
roIn it.

The GI Bill put more pecple in and through college in the fifties
than any other program. I think the quality of the students who
came back from that experience was better. They were more moti-
vated, and they certainly gave more back to their country in the
long term than any other program we’ve had.

What we're trying to do is use the GI Bill as an example and to
build upon it.

Mr. MarTiNEz. Okay. Thank you, Dave. My time has run out.
There are some other questions that I have, but maybe we can
meet on the floor and talk about them.

Mr. McCurbpY. 1 thank the gentleman. As he knows I'm always
open to his suggestions and comments and would be glad to work
with him. ] appreciated testifying before your committee last year,
too.
Mr. Owens. Mr. Hayes?

Mr. Hayes. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. I have some
questions, but I don’t think I'll raise them because the Congress-
man’s and my thinking are as far apart as the two poles on this
issue. .

I do want to make a couple or three statements. I have harbored
an opinion for quite some time that there seems to be a concerted
effort not to offer the opportunities for a higher education to many
of the poor, particularly those who are black, because of the decline
in the amount of money we are willing to spend to fund current
programs.

When you come up with this kind of a proposal, it seems to con-
firm what I think because many kids who finish high school, and
who want to go to institutions of higher learning, come from single-
parent families with one income.

To say that they need to work or go into some branch of serv-
ice—maybe get a Job before they can go to an institution of higher
learning.

I wanted you to take into account the fact that most of the jobs,
if they are lucky enough to find one available, hover somewhere
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around the minimum wage level, $3.85 an hour, which some of us
are trying to preserve, even the administration, as a training wage.

How can you accumulate enough money to go to college? It’s not
because of the lack of interest as it was implied in some of your
remarks. The economic reason is the reason why many of the
kids—declining in the number of kids who are current enrolled,
particularly those who are black.

I was just wondering, I don’t see how this could help, taking this
kind of approach. A kid who wants to be a part of the society, who
wants to be in a position to help protect this great nation of ours.

I've often said, and I think there is some merit to this which I
heard years and years ago when we were fighting in the Civil
Rights movement—sometimes you have to almest live in this skin
to understand some of the prob{ems you have when it comes to jobs
and education.

We are not being hit by such issues as the Richmond, Virginia
case. When it comes to affirmative action, even in my city, They
have already seized upon this as a reason to hold up an affirmative
action decision that they previously made.

So I just don’t understand how this is really going to help the
poor black kid, who is economically disadvantaged, to have an op-
portunity to get an education.

Therefore, I'm going to be very frank with you. We cannot sup-
port it under these circumstances as a member of three or four of
these committees, which this legisiation has been shared by. I just
can’t do it. It is a matter of conscience and as a matter of under-
standing the interpretation of the legislation itself.

Mr. McCurpy. If the gentleman would yield and allow me to re-
spond. I would only say this to my good friend.

First of all—and I'm not sure you were here when I tried to
make the point earlier—when you look at the facts as they are
today, they're alarming, Joblessness among young people is higher
than it’s ever been; joblessness among black youths is even higher
than those among the total statistics: and minimum wage jobs are
not providing much opportunity.

You tell me, if you would, where that young person is going to be
able to make 100 bucks a week, live at heme, and at the end of one
year have $10,000 tax-free available to them, or after two years,
%23,0{??0 tax-free available to them, under any existing program

ay?

The status quo stinks. It's not working today. Black enrollment
gagaé:leclined in universities today, over 10 percent in the last

ecade.

What I am trying to do, and my friend from Illinocis knows, is try
to open the doors of opportunity. The funding has squeezed. I don’t
believe this government has given enough priority to dealing with
the underprivileged and the truly significant problems In the
urban areas.

That’s why the president of the Urban Le%gue likes the idea in
this bill. That's why we've gotten the endorsements of many
mayors and community leaders. They see this as an opportunity.

A hundred bucks a week. At the end of the time, you've got
$20,000, two years. That's better than minimum wage any time. All
you have to do is go serve and work in your own community.
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I don’t know that there's a job program out there today that's as
generous as this. I don’t know what the percentage among minoerity
students is that attend higher education as opposed to the general
population, but when 50 percent of the general population doesn't
even intend to g0 to college, we've got problems. It may be higher
with minerity, I'm not exactly sure.

The 0§¥ortunity to own a home or at least a down-payment, was
designed for those peoples needs. So as opposed to being discrimina-
tory or trying to block out opportunities, we're trying to expand
the opportunities.

I'd only conclude with one point. Many of the black community
leaders in my digtrict got their experience through the military. 1
happen to have three large military installations, so it may be
skewed with other populations.

Many pecple that are involved in the communities enlisted and
officers in the military, the Army specifically.

If you look at the percentage of recruits that are blacks and mi-
norities in the military, you'll find it's much higher than the gener-
al population. As opposed to having an opportunity to go to college,
many of them went into military first.

What we're saying is, well, let’s broaden that. Let’s not just say,
you have to go to the military. Let's give thein the opportunity to
work in their own communities that need them even more.

The very people we are drawing from in many instances will be
the very people going back in that same community to provide as-
sistance. They will be matched with local funds and state funds to
contribute to addressing some of the needs in the local community.

Before the gentleman concludes all his reading of the bill, I
would hope that he would discuss those topics in more detail, be-
cause | believe there are ways that we actually may have more
commonality, and those poles may not be as far apart as you might
think in an initial rea ing.

Mr. HA”es. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the gentle-
man's opinicn and position and would like to maybe at some time
further to discuss it, but I think this discussion has not altered or
made the poles any closer together.

Mr. QwEeNns. Mr. Sawyer?

Mr. Sawyver. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Qne of the advantages
of sitting in this position on the committee is that so many of the
good guestions or comments have been made all the way along. |
would, in that sense, would just like to take a moment to associate
myself with some of the spirit and the substance of the comments
that have %one before me, particularly with the gentleman from
California. I want to express iy sense of both gratitude and con-
gratulations for having elevated this issue, the importance of na-
tional service, and its role in providing an avenue for expanding
educational opportunities for a wide variety of people.

That gratitude is genuine, and I think it is shared hy most of the
members of this committee. The substantive concerns, I think, are
also real. The question of whether or not we buiid a system that
calls on us to serve, to earn a series of benefits, or to supplant a
system that offers the opportunity to benefit first and then serve,
or to do both simultaneously, really presents many kinds of dilem-
mas that we have heard discussigns of here today.
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Ancther important concept to consider is the changing demo-
graphics of the work force, college population, the difficulty of a
young mother who has several children, not having the opportuni-
ty for the kind of service we are discussing here today and really
being held hostage to a benefit first—serve later format.

I suspect the kinds of proposals that we' vz seen that include the
variety of opticns, simultaneous, standing side by side—a student
loan forgiveness component in return for service represents an op-
portunity to capture a larger and more diverse pool that Mr. Miller
talked about. '

Let me just close with a thought. Our system of education in this
country was put together in a time when we were trying to make
the transition from a largely agrarian, rural economy into an in-
dustrial and urban one.

At that time we put in place a system of v ' :ation that built for
the first time something we had been talki -out for a hundred
years. That was a 12 year entitlement to univ.. sal free public edu-
cation. I took a long time to put that in place. There are some who
suspect that it may now be outmoded in some places or least not
sufficient to meet the needs of a changing society.

It seems to me that one of the things that we need to consider in
building those avenues for a larger educational envelope, is to rec-
ognize that in some ways it- may be in the national interest to
expand our notion of that entitlement and rather than moving
away from it, we might be well served to think how we can expand
it as an entitlement, and that voluntary service becomes one of a
number of avenues to achieve that entitlement for those who seek
to exercise it .

No one has said in the last huizdred years that anyone had to go
to twelve years of free public education, but we know that those
who did benefitted themselves and benefitted this naticn encrmous-

If we were to expand that to 14 or even 16 years over the next
century, it seems to me that we would have done an enormocus na-
tional service.

With that, I will stop, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McCurpYy. Mr. Chairman, if I could just quickly respond. The
gentleman’s statement was very good. I would just ask some ques-
tions in return, and that is: What about the 25 percent who drop
out of high school today? I'm not sure the twelve year entitlement
has worked as well as it should be right now. There many sccial
program problems that we need to be addressing.

e have a difference on the question of entitlement. I support
public education. I've opposed offorts to have vouchers for private
schools. I'm a product of public education. The hairs on the back of
my neck stand when people start to talk about limiting an opportu-
nity. I am a product of it and I am here because of education, state
education and public education.

Let me just reiterate one point. Again, the GI Bill worked. It's
probably the best program we’ve ever had for getting people into
colleges and providing opportunities. We're just trying to use that
as a basis here.
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The question about the young mother, I don’t know if you heard

in my statement, but there are compelling personal circumstances
. that we try to anticipate.

In coming from the state where the rate of teen-aged pregnancy
is, I think, the third highest of any state in the country, it is abso-
lutely outrageous to be faced with those situations and I think we
have deal with them. We don’t want to alter that.

Of course we shouldn’t diminish ¢he ingenuity and the ability of
people to survive in this country as well. Just as a quick note, I
know a young woman who just graduated from the University "of
Oklahoma in engineering with a eraduate degree, a black lady who
had children when she was 16, and she just graduated in electrical
engineering and is going on for a Ph.D.

Once we start to stereotype and say that people can’t make it,
then we find that there are those notable exceptions and we're
often wrong.

One last thing on your question, I would hope that the gentle-
man, having been the mayor of a well-known city, would under-
stand the positive impact that a national service program would
have in urban areas.

Considering the budget crunches that we have, I don’t think
we're going to be able to expand entitlements. Second, we are not
going to be able to address those issues such as urban problems
without something like this.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Poshard?

Mr. Posuarp. No questions.

Mr. Owens. Mrs. Unsoeld?

Ms. UnsoeLb. Mo questions.

Mr. Owens. Congressman, you've been guite generous with your
time and quite patient. I appreciate your testimony.

Mr. McCurpy. Well, I certainly thank the committee for the op-
portunity. I appreciate your concerns. We certainly want to work
with you.

I want to apologize to Mrs. Kennelly and others who were
having—maybe I've taken all of the heat and she is going to come
on here and have kisses and hugs, but she has been a very vital
person in this debate and has provided some very good input as
well.

I appreciate her indulgence with this this morning. Thank you.

Mr. Owens. You have taken a lot of heat, but you have thrown a
lot of light on the subject. You will be hearing from us, I assure
you.

Mr. McCurpy. Thank you very much.

Mr. Owens. We are pleased to welcome as our next witness, Con-
gresswoman Barbara Kennelly.

STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE BARBARA B. KENNELLY,
REPRESENTATIVE, STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Ms. KenneLLy. Thank you Mr. Chairman and members of the
Committee. I thank you for the invitation to testify, and for the
i_;ime that you are taking to address the question of national serv-
ice.
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I have listened to Congressman McCurdy on the subject at great
length. I appreciate listening to him because I think he’s quite re-
markable in his ability to defend the national service proposal that
he is propesing with Senator Nunn.

I think my coming after two hours of testimony on the Demo-
cratic Leadership Council’s national service proposal is absolutely
correct in timing because I alsoc endorse the DLC’s proposal. I have
been supportive of Senator Nunn and Congressman McCurdy’s pro-
posal, but disagree with the national service proposal presented by
the DLC on the subject of education.

That is why I am here this morning, because I have had to wres-
tle with this entire issue. I'm sorry that I missed Congressman
Miller because I know he usually enlightens when he speaks to a
situation like this, because of his prominence and position on this -
committee, as well as the Select Committee on Children.

I am an absclute adamant supporter of national service. Thirty
years ago, our President, Jochn F. Kennedy, put forth that unforget-
table call to national service. National service is an embodiment of
that call. Yet, the need for national service is greater and more im-
portant than it was 30 years ago.

I am a woman who served on the city council of Hartford, Con-
necticut. I'm not proud of it, but I have to admit that the city of
Hartford is the fourth poorest city of cities over 100,000 in the
United States of America.

What I am afraid of, having gone through some of the exercise
that I see the members of this committee go through, is that if we
begin to put national service over here and the present system over
here, and we just have a debate under those rules, we will not get
national service. It’s scmething that we need very desperately.

We need it because in the 30 years since John F. Kennedy many
things have changed. And one of the very basic things that has
changed is in fact the cost of education.

I think what some of us who are so proud of the Pell Grants, stu
dent leans, the work programs in cur universities, these things
that have done so much for our citizenry that we are afraid of
change.

So, what I come here proposing this morning is that, if, in fact
you really can be convinced of the need for national service, that
you take the DLC proposal. One of the best pieces of the DLC is the
fact that they are talking about $10,000 and $12,000. That’s real
money.

I think what some of us have refused to admit exactly how much
some of our universities and colleges cost today. Without buying a
shirt or a pair of pants or a notebook, we're talking about $18,000.

Being a woman who paid to send two children to Yale, one to
Georgetown, and one to Wesleyan, I know what I am talking about.

I think that we should look at this whole proposal and take some
of the very good pieces out of it, and work with what we have, the
scholarship type programs, the student loan programs, and try to
build a system. We have to build a safety net for the very poor.

And, Mr. Hayes, I know that is what he is trying to say. A safety
net should be there. Obviously it should be there because the very
well off, would not to even know about or read about this program.

e
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Let’s be honest, and remember the Peace Corps: Who were those
who joined the Peace Corps and are waiting in line in the Peace
Corps at this very moment? Often they're children of the well-off,
and they have as much idealisim as any other group of individuals.

Having said that, we know the very well-off won't have to do na-
tional service. Therefore, the very poor who don’t have choices and
have difficulties should have that safety net.

So I'm appealing to you, as the committee with the jurisdiction
and the expertise, to try to put this together. I'm also appealing to
you to do it because of the cost of a home, which is almost astro-
nomical now; because, as I said, of the cost of education.

I'm also appealing to you to do this and try to bring forth with
the McCurdys and the Nunns of this world, a national service pro-
posal.

Last year we had before us a Pepper propesal, a health service
program of entitlement, which would address the needs of the el-
derly, who wanted to stay within_ their homes, but had to have
health care workers with them. I don't care if we had all the
money in the world and got rid of the deficit. we couldn’t have
done that proposal because we didn’t have the individuals to put in
those homes. National service could provide by these workers.

We women in Congress talk about day care all the time. The fact
of the matter is, we don’t have individuals who can be in those day
care facilities.

I am coming here today, and I am working on my own hill
with difference.

In the Nunn-McCurdy proposal, your $10,00¢ or $12,000 voucher
would not be counted as income for tax purposes.

I agree with that. However, I think that the financial aid forms
that parents fill out should include the voucher as income.

This also addresses the question of the most needy. If they had
the $10 thousand and still required additional assistance, this
change would target any additional aid to the most needy.

Also, the DLC proposdl says you must complete your service
prior to higher education. I think it’s very important that we say
you can be a member of national service after your education, for
two reasons.

First, I've talked to educators. Very often high schools are able
to get a child on the track to go to college. There is a certain
amount of worry about the marginal case who isn’t that well pre-
pared, that if in fact they got into national service, that they would
be less likely to be successful in college.

We want to open doors to education through national service. We
don’t want to be closing any of those doors. So I would suggest that
we allow that to happen.

I'm very concerned, and one of the reasons I'm interested in na-
tional service is that I think it’s terrible that we allow our young
people to build up debt upon debt to get their education.

So I think it would be very good if we did have a national service
proposal, if in fact we allow students who are already in college to
use this voucher, so they could use that to help pay off their debt.
: Tl;en the last proposal that I would make concerns the drop out
evel.
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Let’s talk about the facts. Many of our inner-city young people
are not getting out of high school, let alone being into the track for
college.

I would suggest that any state that has a national service pro-
gram be required to have a high school equivalency section to that,
so if a student was attempting to get that high school equivalency,
he/she could participate in national service. Oh, of course some
kids make a hash of their lives during that high school period, but
many later go back to that high school equivalency. Therefore, you
should be eligible for the national service if you are in a high
school equivalency program or willing to get into one.

So 1 come to you this morning really to caution you that two
things are happening. The amounts of money that we can give for
scholarships and loans is not providing adequate amounts of money
for education.

We need national service because we don’t have the manpower
or the womanpower to do many of the things we would like to be-
cause of the demographics of what is going on with the birth rate.

I think we need a national service. I think we need a safety for
the very poor, but I think the middle class truly would be support-
ive of the DLC proposal. The time has come to have a national
service. .

I thank you for letting me appear before you today.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Barbara B. Kenneily follows:]
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Testimony of the
Honorable Barbara B. Kennelly
before the
Education And Labor Compittee

March 15, 1589

Thank you, Mr. chairman and Members ©f the Committee. Thank yon
for this invitation to testify here today. Let me speak briefly ahout
the concept of Hational Service and then address those aspects of the

bill that are within your jurisdiction.

The time has come for Wational Serviece. It asks cur young pecple to
give something back to their cOUrtry. Americans believe in hard work
and etMal sacrifice for commen good. Wational Service creates a new
ethic of civic ebligaticn that will assure access to increasingly
expensive higher education or affordable housing for average y.ung

americans and simultanecusly addresses very reai needs.

My legisletisn, H.R.9248, is essentially a model for National
Service proposed by the pemgeratic Leadership council last May. It is
virtually identical to legislation introduced by Sehator Nunn and

Representative McCurdy, H.R. 460, eXcept for the education component.

Now == I differ witn H.R. 660 in the area of education. This bill
would egndition federal student financial aid on National Serviece., I
balieve in Naticnal Service. That is why I am here today. But I
represent the 4th poorest cilty in the nation. I cannot force my

constituents and Americans like them into Maticnal Service by denying
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them federal [inancial aid unless they serve., We must establish a

safety net for the very poor.

Let me elaborate. As we progeedr, we will find issues that need to

be addressed, as in apy legislation. The legislatlon says that for

federal incoi.e tax purposes the Hational servige voucher is pat
congidered income and therefors is exempt from taxes. We should
revise this to retain this exclusion from income, but clarify that for
purposes of the Financial Aid Form -- which Parents submit %0 regaive
student aid -- that the wouchers should be considered income. In this
manner, Students who perform service would be required to prove peed

for any assistance beyond the Natienal Sexviee voucher.

A related issue is one of timing. MNational service le9islation
would allew citizen seldiers to Complete their service either pefore
or after recelving the voucher. Civilian members would be refuired to
Camplete their service onl¥ before receiving the voucher. 1n working
on this legislation, I have had 2 number of discussiens with aducaticn
groups. They worr¥ that marginal students have a very hard time making
a sucgessful transition from high school to college and that any
break, sugh as national service, might jeopardize their chances of
suCcess in college. e should allew students to do their service

before or after higher educaticn,

We all inow that student loan gdefault rates have skyrocheted. We
should allow those who are in default to participate in Mational
service and allow the voucher to he used to reduge ©r eliminate their

debt. This will not completely sclve pguy default Problem. hBut it would
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be a small beginning to POYing off the honge backlog of unpaid laans.
It may alse encourage sowe kids who alrcady are in schoel and nave

loans to participate in the program.

H. R. 660 and other National Scrvice bills assume that 2 student
bas a high scheol diPloma. Given the droprout rates. I proPese that
we require each State to include in its National Service plan
provisions for thosc whe are pursuing an equivalency dipleoma z2n2 to
accept students without a diploma for service on the condition that

they pursue an equivolency diploma.

Again, I think the concept of ational gervice is an important one.
I commend the committee for looking into it so seriously ama fer

beginning the gebate.

I would be happy to answeor any guestions you may have.
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Mr. Owens. Thank you for your testimony. I just have a couple
of broad questions.

You mentioned you regretted not hearing Congressman Miller.
The basic point that he made was that the problems out there—
among the elderly, young people, the need for tutors and drug
counsellors, et cetera—cannot adequately be addressed by teen-
agers coming cut of high school.

To turn those teenagers loose on those people might not help
matters very much. It would be far better to have people who have
gone to school, to college, gotten the training and are able to bring
back skills. They would be able to deal with the problems after
they’'ve gotten the training as 2 pay back.

The emphasis of this program is in the wrong direction in terms
of up front. Could you comment on that?

Ms. KeNNELLY. Yes, and I see I've walked right into that. I usual-
ly agree with George Miller, but I don’t agree with him on that.

I think one of the reasons that I'm attracted to in the national
service program is that I think some of us get very much caught up
into the idea that everybody goes to college.

Many of us did go to coﬁ’ege We get kind of in a higher educa-
tional ethnic here in Congress, here in the Beltway. A lot of people
don't go to college. They get out of high school and they go to work.

I think they do very well, many of them. That’s why the attracti-
vegdess of it, being able to put a down-payment oh a home it is so
g0

So I have to argue with Mr. Miller. I think if you do graduate
from high school and you are a student, you would be able to pro-
vide some very needed services.

I would believe that most of our convalescent homes that are
staffed, yes, by an administrator and some nurses; are staffed by
health care providers who are doing a very good JOb, who are not
college graduates but are in fact high school graduates. A revised
version of my bill, however, will allow students to perform service
before or after higher edueation.

Mr. Owens. Do you use Senator Pepper’s bill as an example? Do
you think high school seniors or high school graduates could be
used to take care of people in their homes? There is not much su-
pervision out there. The g are on their own.

Ms. KENNELLY. Yes, Congressman Owens, because I have spent a
good deal of the last two years of my time in Congress, being a part
of a team on the Ways and Means Committee to bring about wel-
fare reform.

I have spent a great deal of time going back to see programs and
do work in on the job training for 30%

AFDC mothers—one of the dellghts of my life—when I'm in
Washington I'm constantly told these programs won't work. Yet I
can go out into a community and see a program being carried out
for an AFDC mother—once again, a woman who has made a hash
of her life at 15, and at 18 or 19 or 20 wants to get back on the
track—and see her get a six week or an eight week training pro-
gram for health care or day care, and do very well.

Mr. Owens. The youth program would have to build in some
training before those youths are able to go out and do anything?

Ms. KenneLLy. Oh, yes.
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Mr. Owens. You would have to have some additional education
and training?

Ms. KENNELLY. I would say any job that ang high school person
goes into has some training. You go into any office, you go into any
factory, you have a certain few weeks when you are made ready for
- the jump.

They don’t put you right on a machine in a factory without any
training. They don’t do that. You would lose your hand.

Mr. Owens. I have another broad question. Should this be limit-
ed only to youth or is it be o%en -ended entitlement? A welfare
mother with a few kids at age 30, would she be entitled to come
mto this program also?

Ms. KENNELLY. I'm in leery of opening it up too wide. In fact, I
have some reservations on the DLC program including senicrs be-
cause of our limited numberof dollars.

I would think it would.Be all right to put restrictions on it, but
I'd think 26, say, would‘be a perfectly good age. If we Jook at the
demographlcs of our welfare mothers, often they’re very young
when they begin. These are exactly the women that we want to get
back.

We women, you know, live forever. These are the ones who want
to get back into the mainstrezm. So I think you would welcome at
least up to 26. What happens when it gets opened up too much, as
you know, we can’t pay for it.

Mr. OWENs. Should it be universal entitlement for all youths up
to age 26?7

Ms. KenneLLy. You know and I know we're not there yet. But I
think we should look at those things. That's why I'm here to ask
you to look at them.

OweNs. Thank you very much.
Ms/ KennNerry. Thani you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. OweNs. Congressman Smith?
Mr. SmitH. I thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Congresswoman Xennelly, it’s nice that we have friends in
common but we have never had a chance to say hello to each
other. So, 1t is nice to meet you.

Ms. KenNELLY. How do you do, Congressman?

Mr. SmrtH. I assume despite your repeated reference to this DLC
organization, I'm not quite sure what those stand for. The members
of the minority have ideas and input on this.

Ms. KenNeLwy. I apologize for that. However, I didn’t want to
separate myself from that because I am sponsor of that bill, except
for the educational title.

Mr. SmitH. I understand. My intent is to be mostly whimsical,
but I do want us all to remember that this is a hearing of five sub-
comrgittees with both parties, and I know that your party has an
agenda.

Believe me, there are those of us on the other side of the aisle
who know somethmg about it and have deep concerns about these
areas, too. I hope we'll keep that in mind.

I have two questions. First, has it occurred to anybody yet that
there is another—we are talkmg about the coin of the realm being
money. We're really quibbling over whether we put it up front or
after the fact and how much and what the configuration is.

e
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My experience, both with high school students, which gets to
your high school equivalency level—I absolutely agree with you on
that—and with college students, is that there’s another kind of
credit that really unlocks kids’ interest, and it's academic credit.

We ran a program like this in Vermont, and it’s been done in
other places, but I would urge all of us who are thinking ahout
these gjnds of legislation to consider the explosive potential of
saying to young people who are in vocational schools or who are in
high schools, as well as in college, that if in fact you participate in
one of these programs you get academic credit for it also,

It's a way to hold kids in school, quite frankly, and not simply as
a retainer kind of a function, but to allow them to connect their
own direct life experience with service to the community, and from
thag_begin to draw some meaning that influences the rest of their
studies. -

If we think about it, we know that, we just don't act on it very
often. So my concern is that you and others think about the ques-
tion of academic credit as well as the idea of financial credit after
the fact. The minute an institution, whether it's a college or a high
school, says that this program is so important that we’re willing to
put credit on the line, which every lud in the world knows is what
school is all about, then it becomes valued.

When the institution values training for community service and
community service, regardless of what the financial piece is—and I
think that’s an important consideration—you have gained some
ground with a kid who otherwise would correctly be very suspi-
cious, and whose motives ought to include something on the non-
financial side, I would argue.

Do you have any comment on that? I have one other question,
but do you have any comment or reaction to that?

Ms, KENNELLY. Your comments are very well taken, Congress-
man Smith. I understand exactly what you're saying.

We get involved in this, how do you pay for it? We certainly
don’t forget that we're talking about education. I welcome that sug-
gestion.

Mr. SMiTH. My concern is that if you don’t ground it on the edu-
cational side, you loose an incredible opportunity. Second, I'm just
not clear—I was pretty clear with Congressman McCurdy, but in
your ¢case—is the program a mandatory or is it a quid pro quo that
you're talking about, or 15 it choice? Does the student have the
right to decide whether to fulfill his financial obligation either
through service or other more traditional ways?

Ms. KexnEeLLy. I'd hate to bring up the DLC again, but I think it
should be made clear, and I think it sometimes gets lost in the con-
versation. The proposal that Nunn-McCurdy puts forward is totally
voluntary. My bill however does not include the student aid pro

uo.

d To take it one step further, yes, there is the choice between a ci-
vilian job or a citizen soldier. The difference is the citizen soldier
has to serve two-years. The civilian can chose between serving one
or two years.

Mr. SmitH. But you can’t chose betwean paying your bill some
other way or being a citizen soldier? In other words, you've got to
g0 into service to the country in order to pay back your financial
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aid or to earn this voucher. That’s mandatory. The only question is
what kind of service it is.

Ms. KEnNELLY. Well, or you go in the civilian area. We have a
choice, it’s absolutely voluntary: A, B, you chose whether you want
to stay in the civilian world or you want to join the military.

Mr. SpuiTH. But it’s not voluntary in terms of whether you get to
play or not one way or the other.

Ms. KENNELLY. Oh, yes, it is, sir.r What we're trying to say is, if
you are well off, you don’t even have to look at this at this pro-
gram. You don’t even have to be aware of it. You do what you were
going to do.

The problem, I think, with the Congress people was that the
McCurdy-Nunn bill does away with—down the line, the student
loan opportunities that we have today.

If in fact you were going to get these vouchers, that would be the
only way you would get help from the government. That’s contro-
versial. That's what I think brought the controversy. I disagree
with that. I think there has to be a safety net there. My bill does
not contain this quid pro quo.

Mr. SmrrH. My sense of it is—I’m still confused and that means I
will just have to read it all again. At the point when you tell
people to go help other people, I think the odds, as opposed to en-
couraging them as an option—whether it’s a financial option or an
academic option or an integrated program—the minute you get on
to the mandaticn side. )

If you want the build a road, I suppose that's one thing, but I
sure as heck wouldn't want to have my bedsheets changed, if I
were a senior citizen, by somebody, even if they had two weeks of
training who didn’t want to be there.

Ms. KenneLLy. No, I didn’t say two weeks.

Mr. Owens. The time of the gentleman is up. Maybe you can
submit your questions in writing to get further clarification at that
time.

Mr. Hayes?

Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to commend the
young lady for her presentation.

Ms. KeNNELLY. Thank you, sir.

. Mr. Hayes. I think there is a distinct difference. Although you
support the McCurdy bill, as I understand it, you have indicated a
willingness to understand our need to develop some kind of safety
net to protect the poor, which is my deep concern.

Just to indicate to you that—I am bothered about having that
kid wheo is poor and wants to go to school having to wait instead of
having help up front.

There ought to be a way that we can at least work out some
part-time arrangements, where they can w.rk and go to scheol or
something of that sort and at the same time get a repayment of the
money if it is in the form of a loan.

I hate to see us do away with the grant program or the guaran-
teed loan all together because many of them would never have
gotten in there without it, or can’t get in without it.

With the drop-out ratjo of kids in high school increasing, particu-
larly among blacks, because they just don’t see any future. There is
no hope. Some of them disagree with the curriculum and that kind
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of stuff and some of them for economic reasons drop out. But I just
don’t think without some kind of safety net we’re going to do any-
thing but increase the number of kids who don’t have an opportu-
nity, who are poor, to get a higher education.

I noticed this years past, but I just have to say this. I, upon grad-
uation from high school, down in that isolated town of Cairo, Illi-
nois, had no money. I had a desire. There was no kind of program,
but available to me was an opportunity to enter the Civilian Con-
servation Corps, which I took advantage of,

I got $30 a month. I kept five and sent 25 home to help my
family to care for my sisters and brother. Hence, when I left the
Civilian Conservation Corps, I had no money and my family had no
money.

I realize it was a rough period of time then, but I just don’t see
us—I would have liked to have had an opportunity to take advan-
tage of some of the kinds of programs, such as a guaranteed loan.

I would have gone on into college, and maybe I wouldn’t even be
here _todday. I do not regret being here, but I have had other things
in mind.

I just think that if kids finish high school, that should be some-
thing that’s available to them, and those who are poor and need
help to at least help them when they need it and want to go. 1
think that is not only to their advantage. I think it is to our coun-
try’'s advantage to be in that position.

s. KennerLy, Well, Congressman, that's why I agree with Con-
gressman Miller, that in fact you should be able to have college
and then do your service,

I also think that—we were starting with Mr. Smith, to get to the
heart to the matter of whether it's voluntary or not.

Where 1 had to differ on an educational title is: If in fact down
the line you do away with the student aid, how is the program vol-
untary, when your only avenue is in fact national service?

So I guess I would just reiterate once again, that's why I'm here.
I think this committee has the expertise to fashion that safety net
and still allow us to have a national service program that I feel is
desperately needed in this country.

Thank you, sir.

Mr. OwEens. Mr. Perkins.

Mr. Perkins. Yes, Barbara, 1 tell you, I'm very much in favor of
the concept of a voluntary type program. ] am adamantly opposed
to a concept of an enforced type program where there are no other
options available to the individuals.

There are cost problems that worry me greatly. Let's just take
the mandatory program that we arer{ookjng at. It would probably
cost, let’s say, $5.3 billion the first year and go up to $50 billion,
literally, with implementat’.n of the program.

We're looking at about seven to eight hundred thousand students
who would be served., again, under that type of program per year,
versus around two million students that we serve for around $9 bil-
lion presently.

So I think programs that we presently have fashioned probably
aﬁe getting out there and serving the populace as well as we need
them to.




There are some problems with them, sure, but the big problem
that we have and have had in education for a long period of time,
is we don’t have the money to do what we want to do.

o I think the idea of allowing the student to go through and
work in a national program is a good idea. I think it's something
we would all benefit from. I'm worried about the cost, quite frank-

y.

As I was driving to work today, I had National Public Radio on
and I listened to one of my favorite programs beinz talked about,
the Women and Infant Children program.

Ms. KenNELLY. What, Congressman?

Mr. PErkiNs. The Women and—the WIC program.

Ms. KennriLy. Right.

Mr. PErkins. And of course we here on this committee know that
less than one half of the students, the children, presently eligible
for this Frogram aren’t recetving any type of assistance.

There's long lines and this long waiting list. Children after the
age of one—it is supposed to go up tc the age of five—aren’t receiv-
ing the vouchers for basic type of development in these early vears,
because they don't have enough money in the Women and Infant
Children program.

Vocational educaticn has declined in real dollars somewhere be-
tween 28 to 29 pescent since 1980. The programs that we have in
all education have decreased from around 13 percent of total dol-
lars being Federal, in all education programs, to today’s seven to
eight percent.

The problems that we have had in education are very significant-
ly effected by the amount of money that we are able to provide.

I think the concept—and of course we look at programs like Job
Corps that have been so effective for us, and that indeed are volun-
tary, where we utilize those students in a lot of community situa-
tions that are able to really get some benefit. I agree with you
wholeheartedly that we could find uses for these students. We
could put them to very positive uses in the community. There’s no
guestion about it.

We could combir -+ that, I think, also with a training punch. The
question ultimately in my mind gets to be, with the incredible
number of good things that we’ve got going here in education and
the scarcity of dollars that we have been able to put toward :l.ose
causes and are presently putting forth for those causes, how much
money do we have? How is that going to effect us in term. of cost?

Ms. KENNELLY. Congressman Perkins, I would have 10 jsin n
with Congressman McCurdy and say that we can pat ourselves on
the back and say we are doing some wonderful things, but there is
a good part of our student population that is not getting to college
that should get to college.

One of the reasons that we have the competitive problems we
have now is that we don’t have enough well educated individuals.

So I just think we have to look &t some new avenues. I think this
is a very definite avenue to look at. That’s all I can say.

I know we don’t have enough for those other programs, but I
think education and excellence is something tat made us the
country we are, and we have to look for ways of doing it.

£) 7
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Mr. PerkiNS. Great. Do you think then, is your contention for
this program that it would have additional students? It would
really be an outreach program that would have additional students
that presently aren’t taking advantage of college? I am all for
that—that would, in fact, now not take advantage of some of the
prograrns They are worried by the tremendous debt that they
incur when they go to college, and they would, in fact. now go to
cobl;egg because of this additional program that we are talking
about

Ms. KenNELLY. Yes, I do, Congressman, for two reacons. One, as I
already said, I don’t think the dellars in that we are providing
right now are adequate. In that proposal I am putting forth, you
could build upen the two, and you pick up the new dollars.

have, as I said, four children. One of them was absolutely
young for 18. I will be very frank with you There were moments
when I thought maybe my son could go in the service, and in two
years would be much better ready for college than he was when he
got out of high school. I think many students get out and they're
not quite ready to make a choice.

I think one of the beauties of the national service proposal is
that it is asking our young people to do something. It gets them in
a track of responsibility.

I think this proposal does two things. One, it gives you that
dollar value in the voucher. The other thing, it puts you in an at-
‘mosphere where you are domg things and you are going to feel
better about yourself. You're going to get more skills than you had
when you did get out of high school.

I think there’s an awful lot to be said for national service. I do in
facl;lt put more of our young people on the educational track through
college.

Mr. Perrxws. Okay. I realize my time is up, Mr. Chairman, but
let me give you my bottom line.

Essentially, and I think this is going to be the bottom line with
most of us here on the cominittee, The bottom line is we don’t have
anything against service, in the national s2rvice. We think it could
be a very positive force.

We are concerned what additional educational component is it
going to add to the training of people in this country and how
much it’s going to cost.

Ms. KeNNELLY. I “now that. Every one of us wishes e could do
so much and the deticit is not allowing us to do almost anything.
Thank you, sir.

Mr. OwENs. Thank you very much, Congresswoman Kennelly.

Ms. KeENNELLY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman for letting me appear.

Mr. Owens. Now we're pleased to welcome oitr next witness, the
Honorable Constance A. Morella, the gentlewoman from Maryland.

STATEMENT GF THE HONGRABLE CONSTANCE A. MORELLA,
REPRESENTATIVE, STATE OF MARYLAND
_Ms. MoreLLA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I welcome the opportu-
nity to appear before the joint subcommittees meeting today to dis-

cuss national service. I want to thank those of you who are able to
remain for the end of this hearing for so doing.
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I am going to try to be mercifully brief in terms of giving you a
summary, so that there will be time to answer any questions that
you might have about the bill that I have reintroduced this year.

It was in 1961 that John F. Xennedy signed the executive order
10924, which established the Peace Corps. It was later that year
that about 900 people went on to 18 countries as our first Peace
Corps volunteers.

In the mid to late '60s the number of people in the Peace Corps
had increased to about 16,000. Now here in 1989, the number has
dropped to approximately 6300. So the number has gone down.

The Peace Corps continues to be heralded by the heads of state
of various countries benefit from Peace Corps programs to combat
malnutrition, to help the malnourished, to help with education, to
help with engineering of wells, all kinds of things that are done.

We saw the dedication of the Peace Corps volunteers last Novem-
ber, the 25th anniversary of John F. Kennedy, when in the Rotun-
da for 24 hours there was a vigil of returned volunteers, who read
from their journals. They read not only about what they had done
in the various countries where they worked, but also how the
Peace Corps touched them, made them then citizens of the world
Sndl no longer just citizens of one country. So it has done a great

eal.

Father Theodore Hesburgh, past president of Notre Dame Uni-
versity and a man very much interested and involved in young
people and in service programs, spoke at a 1986 ceremony at Ar-
lington National Cemetery in memory of these Peace Corps volun-
teers who had died during their service.

At that time he proposed that it is time for us to train people for
peace, peace through development. He referred to the RQOTC pro-
gram, which is highly successful, and on which we spend $535 mil-
lion a year.

We get some very bright people who are very interested in
ROTC. He said, “You know, we really should do something with
Peace Corps. We ghould make it a parallel program, nothing that
conflicts with it.” And really, my bill is based on that.

It goes a bit further. It would establish a demonstration program.
So in response to Congressman Perkins’ previously ¢:pressed budg-
etary concerns, it would cost $5 million to start off as a demonstra-
tion program at some universities to pay tuition fees for the last
two years of college for those who qualify, and in return, they
would spend three years of service in the Peace Corps.

During those last two years of college, students would be taking
courses to prepare for service in Peace Corps project countries.
During the school recesses, they would do Jocal community service.
So there would be a combination of emphases, foreign and domes-
tic.

Then they would go off prepared, ready to assist, and not have
the burden of -student loans, for their last two years, which have
prevented many potential volunteers from joining the Corps.

The hill is also targeted toward minorities. You know, it's inter-
esting, just as an example, in the United States, 12 percent of the
population is black and only two percent serves in the Peace Corps.

That was one of the things that was discussed by college univer-
sity presidents when they got together to talk about what could be
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done to enhance the participation of minorities in the Peace Corps.
This is also a result of that concern.

Inevitably. some of these programs would be established on his-
torically black campuses. I believe such programs also generate the
ambience of public service and leadership. Certainly, the returned
Peace Corps volunteers end up in careers that are public service
oriented, whether they're in the foreign service, or they’re working
in areas where there are great needs to help eliminate poverty.

This bill has the approval and strong support of the returned
Peace Corps volunteers. University presidents have called me to ex-
press their support

You have a Member on this committee, Congressman Smith, who
has had some direct experience, a working relationship with this
type of program, becanse his university, Norwich University in
Vermont, is the only one in tue country that has as an undergradu-
ate like this.

Certainly, he is, as are other members of the committee, a co-
sponsor of the bill. It now has more than 80 cosponsors. It passed
the House last year as a study. It got over to the Senate, and died
in the waning hours of the session. It was never actnally voted on.
But we know that happened to a lot of legislation.

As a final point, my legislation also ties in a resolutior, passed
by Congress in 1986, which said that we should work to raise the
numbers of Peace Corps volunteers to 10,000 by 1992,

So if it is 6300 now, and we made a commitment of 10,000 by
1992, here is a way of combining community service, international
peace through the development, assisting people with higher educa-
tion, creating leadership on ccllege campuses which permeates the
community, and reflecting the interest of Congress.

I thank you very much. I hope you do scmething with this. I
have no problem with you trying to incorporate it into a public
service bill.

Obviously, I think it's exemplary. I really appreciate the opportu-
nity to share it with you,

[The prepared gtatement of Hon. Constance A. Morella follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, I want Lo befin by thanking you for the
opporiunity to address this hearing on national service legislatioln
under consideratior in the 1015t Zengress, and I aphreciste your
interest in tihe legislation which I have introduced to incr-ase
partieipation in the Peace Corps. I know that the exchance of ideas
which will opecur today will make an imPortant contridution to the

final structure of the patienal service legislation whigh I an

eonfident Will eventually be paszed By the 1075t Conpgress.

Mr. Chairman, the tige has come to challenge & new genération of
American students. The kind of commitsent that President Bush spoks
6 in his ‘na2ugural address, “to make kKinder the face of the nation
and Zentier the fage of the world," is indeed @ rezlity in the United
States tada¥. In meeting and talwing with Younz pecPls in my
Condre-sieonal Tistrict a2nd throughout “he metropolitan arza, I can
vestifY to 8 new idealism and an 2agsrness to serve othsrs -— in
n2igharheod food ban%s aagd soup Xiichens, in sheiters lor the
homeless, in nursing homes, and L5 afteraschool tutorial Prograns.

And T zee 8 renayed ifnttereoszk i- osverseas prograns Like the Peaze

corps.

In Saptenver G858, a e T ial servize a3t Ari
Twetery neld Yo horor thase Panza {2rps Yolunteers whn died in
service, Fatner Tnesdore Hesburgh, then-President of fotre Dane
Iniversity, suspostied the wdar shedald hage the opRariunitly Lo

irarn for peaae as Shey do z Fathaer itesturgh prosecded Lo

ERI!
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Propose 2 new challenge Lo our nation's eollepe students, taxing as

hiz model the Reserve dfficer Tra:aing Corps [BITC).

Tens 27 thousands of cutatanding 1igh school graduaies compete
far ROTC schelarshiss each year. The moot gualified candidates,
derermined by merit and commitment, 3re chosen, 2iven excellent,
sll-expenses-paid educations, and at graduation are sworn in as
offizers In Lhe arr:d serviepes. “ather Hesbhurgh called 20TC "a goad
bargain Tor both parties and for our counkry, Soo," ong Suffssted "not
g2 replacenent Tor A0TC, but 2 parallel ehoice.” Having slanted this
seed, I determined Lo work with the Pzace S5rps to nurture this idea

ane nelp it 2row to fraltion.

On February 9, 1 refetrodused the Peace Corps Yoliuntear
Jenohstration Program fel, B,R. 735, This 9ill, cosponsored by more
than 30 Menbers of the Houss, with 59 3-izinal cosporsors, seeXs to

srzblish a Pesee Corps training and zcholarship progran similar to
the 3LTC programs already is niace al many »f our 20lleges and
you may -ecall, :n amended version of cimilar
tagtalztion passed ne "ause last year. I obelieve that
ifgerlant addition and complament Yo the naticonal youin
already rropesed Ly the Zush fdministration and by other ‘lembers

Zancrass, and which vew are gonsidoring Latuay.

Tanislanion whiel

wiieh Fathos
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Tt would help "to institutienalize the Peace Corps and set

it firmly¥ into 4dmerican Life."

It would produce Peace forps Yoluntieers who are much better
trained than present Volunieers, who onl¥ have aboul three

months to prepares for service.

It would reinvigerste the once fryitiul relationship between

the universities and the Feage Corps.

It would "suddenly adéresr... one Zrea: lack so often voiced
about universities snd American students todaY: the
provincialism of students, the lack of interrational
concerns, the dearih of Americans wWho can sPeak both the

main and the gsoteric languages of the world."

H,5. 935 4ill provide financial assistance -~ tuition, reom, and
board =- in the final two ¥ears of ccllege fFor students who afSree =o
serye in the Pezecas Zorps Tor three Years foliewing their graduation.
Special emphasis will be given to recrulting minerity students, who
have “een historically underrepresented in the Peace Cords, and
preference will be Biven to studedts earalled in technological and
scientific fislds. In addition te their regwiar academic curriculum,
thiese Peace Corps candidates will 3lse be required to study the
languages, sustoms, history, une politics af tvosce countvies or

=egtons in whieh thay will sorve.  Jurinfl thelr sunmar brealis. they

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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will receive Practieal exPerience in Publie service in either their

own eommunities of in the esommunities where tha¥ attend colleBe,

For man¥ stiudents. and Partieularl¥ for minority students,
entering the workloree as gquielly as possible after graduation is a
Practical esconomie nexessity.  Repa¥ing she often enerpous loans that
have financed their educations must be @ tep priority for them and
their families. H.R. 385 pould help to remove that finaneial Sarrier,
easing the burden for many studsnis and encouraging international
service by providing grants in peilurn for a three.fear commitment to

the Peace CorPs.

At a meeting 3t Stanford Universisy tWe Years abo, callege
presidents, including representatives freT historieally blask
colleges, met with Peage Corps offizials to renew old ties betwsen the

*

academie comnunity and the Peace Jorps, and to consider ways o
attraet new volunteers, especially Trom minority groups. It was noted
vhat although the idea of publiz serviece 15 an essentla) threod in the
fabrie of blagk Amerizan 2ife, it is particulardy difficu’ s for
students whe m3y be the Tirst in their fam:ilies to atltend eadlegs 'o
surrender their first few y2ars of ecariing pouwer,

Mr. Shairman, there s ne suescion that the Pefes Corps s
committed to reflectinf the Aiversity of the 4moriear pecple in its
own ranks af Foodwill ambazsadors Lo the b it hes indoed had
troubla at.oracting minoaritian,  3p way of oxamplo. alihnugh the

populabien of bhe lmifed Suatas in abaul
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African-hmericans constitute only aboul Lwo percent of Peace CorPs

Volunteers.

The college Presidents suggested that the incentives ~roposed by
the legislation which 1 have lntroduced are certain to be of
particularly 8reat value in attracting Afriecan-Americans and other
minorities ints the Corps. The Peace CorPs has indicated that a
program like that envisioned by H.H. 985 could take in 200 to 40D
students each Year. If onl¥ one in four ©f a minimum 200 students

were black., the nupmber of African-Americans in the Corps would

ifcrease by as much as 50 percent in Just ene year. And this Presence

would have a ripple effect, helping to augment the number of
minorities among foriegn serviee officers and personnel of the RSency
for International DeveloPment, both of whom the Peace Corps 1s a noted

suPPlier.

Mr. Chairman, as You know. the ConEress and President Reagan
strongly supported the 19856 resolution setling a target of 10,000
Peace Corps VYolunteers by 1992, This legislation would help achieve
that goal by addressing the decline in the number of Volunteerss which
has dropped from a hifh of around 15.:000 1in the nid-i19460's to just

over 6,000 today.

The proBran created by this lefislation would also help the
Pease COTps reeryit students with an expertise in such “"searee skill™
areas as [orestr¥, cerop extenslon, animal husbardry, irrigation —- all

of them skills which are mueh 1n demand in Peace CorPs countriles and
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in short suPPly on american campuses. It is well Xnhown that the Peace
Corps toda¥ has a surplus of applicants with generazlist degrees in
fields such as histery and politieal science. It i3 less well known
that the Peace CorPs does not come close to satisfYing host countries’
refuests for Volunteers with those 'searce skills" which T Previously
mentioned. For instance, im Flseai Year 1988, the Corps was short 35
forestry specialists, 121 eroP extension sPecialists, 29 sPeciallsts
in husbandry of large animals, 62 sPecialists in health and autrizion
extension, and 50 spzeialists in earl¥ ehildhood a2nd orimary
education. And we know ghat host countries goften do not ask for all
the sPecizlists that theY need in a Particulsr field, but instead
revise the number downward so as to more ¢losely approximate what they

feel the CorPs is Presently able to Provide.

Mr. Chairman, liberals and conservatives, returned Peace Corps

Volunteers, educators; editorial writers, and peace groubs [rom around

the country have supported the concept of a Poage CorPs training

Profram. In addition, Loret Ruppe, who has served 88 an cuistanding

Peace Corps Director for the past eight years, has strongl¥ endorsed

H.R. 985,

¥Mr, Chairman, I believe thas it is time to pagnd the challenge to
a new generation of Ameriean students and to ocurs2lves as a nation "to
make geantler the face of ghe worid.™ I firmly believe that national
service leBislation, and M.R, 9535 in particuelar, yill osrovide our
vouth with the opportuaity to econfront Lhat challenge. Today,

_thousonds of nur young peadle sorpete lor ROTC schelsrships. MR, 085S

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC
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will 2llow our best and our brightest to compete for scholarships for

peace a3 well.

Hr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I want to thank all of

you for your interest in this legislation and in national service.
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Summary of H.R. 985

The Peace Corps Volunteer Education Demonstration ProBram Act
Introduced in the 1013t Congress, Fobruary 9, 1989

Reapecifully subpitted to the Committee on Educatien and Labor
Subcommittee ouw Post-Secondary Education for March 15, 1989 hearings
on national Service legialation introduced in the 109st Congresa

Mr, Chairman, pecause I firmi¥ belizsve that the pime has come
aBaln to challeng€e 3 new generation of American students, 1 inktroduced
legislation on February 9 of this year which would pa¥y [or two years
of colleBe study in return for three years of service in the Peace
CorPa.

H.R. 985, the Peace Torps Yolunteer Edutation Demonstration
Program Act, coaponsorad by more than 80 House Members. including 64
oriBinal cosponsorsy was deaveloped in copsultation with the Peace
CorPs administration and would provide 35 millien for the first year
of 3 five-year demonstiration Profram. An amended version of aimilar
logislation, whioh I intraduced in 1987, Passed the House last year.

This 1eg€t{slation is esPezially timely in 1ight of the renewed
emphasis which has been Placed on public service recently, and I
would 1llKe to coomend president Bush Tor pis leadership of this issve.
This bill weuld bring the Kind of commitment which the President sPoke
of in hils fpnaulural address, "to pake Kinder the face of the pation
and Eentler the face of the world.™ ¢loser to regalization. While We
certainly must be cautlouss In this era of (tscal restraint, about
commitLing surselves Bo new expenditures, it should be conaiderad that

. we NoW approPriste approximately $500 miliien each Year for Reserve

Dfficer Tralring Corps (ROTC) proframs. Surely we can afford just gpe

FRIC
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Percent of that sum %o train Our Youné PeoPle to york Tor Peace in
service to their country.

Under the program, which is modeled after the ROTC Proframs now
offered at many collegeS, the federal BEovarnment would pay the
education costs For Qualified undergraduates during their last two
years of sehool. Juat 82 ROTC students take military c¢ourses, these
Peace CorPs condidates would take courses designed to help prepare
them Tor 3ervice in the nations that have Corps prolecta. They would
study the 1an8qa80, culture, and histor¥ of the pation in which bhey
would serve, as well a3 such subjects as agriculture and economic
develoPment. After Braduating, particiPants would serve three Years
a3 Peace CorTPs volunteers.

411 candidates would be sele¢ted on the basis of merit and
commitment. However, because the Peace COTP3 has has difficulty
recruiting minoritie., Praferance would bz given to minority students,
who are sharpl¥ underrepresented among the ranks ol Peace CorPs
vo Oteers. For examPle, recent statistics showed that while blacks
ar ... Percent of the PoPulation, onlY¥ twe Percent of volunteers are
black.

For 2u¢h a small investmenk, OUr pation would reap Eenerous
benefits. The Peate CorPs, whose effortz are 30 appreciated oversecas.
and which imeludes perhaps some of our country's most effective
goodwill ambassadora, has hed a sho}taSG of skilled volumteers. This
Pro8ram would ecorrect that deficiemey: &3 well as help to develop a
commitment to Public Service which sometimes seems disappointingly

absent amonf 3% mzn¥ of our younfer c¢itizens. And., as is the caze
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toda¥, Peace Corps volunteers continue to serve thelr nation upon
their return, in suech Ficlds as Bovarnment. international relations.
medicines and eduycation.

All meross the nation, thousands of students compete bas ROTC
scholarships. With this legislation., our best and brightest Young
PeaPle will have the opportunit¥ (o coempete for scholarshils for

Peace.
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Mr. OwEeNS. Just a couple of broad guestions, Corigressworman.

The numbers are down for the Peace Corps. They are also down
for VISTA, which is almost out of business In terms of the amount
of money appropriated for it. Do you think this is bacause of youth
apathy or the policies of the past few administrations?

Ms. MoreLLA. Well, as you know, there are a variety of reasons
that Peace Corps numbers have gone down.

One of them has to do with budget cuts; I cannot deny that that
had an impact on it. I think it also had to do with the direction of
the country.

I think that young people reflect the vibes in the nation and !',.heK
became more oriented toward specifically “getting by,” but I thin
this is changing. I really do feel, in talking with the young people
in my community, and those who have called from college campus-
es throughout the country, that attitudes of our young people have,
indeed, changed. I think they want opportunities for public service,
b}lllt we have to be able to provide the opportunities tor them to do
that.

One <of the problems is that we forgot there was a Peace Corps.
So this also helips with revitalization.

Mr. OweNs. When you say “we” what do you mean?

Ms. MoreLLA. The Tnited States.

Mr. OweNs. The Administration or Congress?

Ms. MoRrELLA. We as people. I don’t want to just biame the Ad-
ministration, I don’t want to blame just the Congress. I think all of
us share the blame.

In fact, there is a new program now, the VITA. It’s even a reflec-

tion of what the Peace Corps volunteers contribute, even after com-
pleting their service. It just started last year.

Some states, like Virginia, are picking up on it. Volunteers who
have returned from the Peace Corps are going into their states to
establish community service programs to assist, hoping also to
create that kind of ambience of public service.

There are a lot of other ripple effects. There are partnerships
now being established with businesses and returned Peace Corps
volunteers, with schools, again to utilize the experiences of peace
through development.

So I thaink there is a beginning and a renewed interest in the
Peace Corps and in public service. I think we should act now. By so
doing, we can ultimately, through that multiplier effect, and
through concentrating on it, expand the numbers.

Mr. OweNs. You didn’t mention VISTA. Are you familiar with
VISTA?

Ms. MorgLLa. I am very familiar with VISTA, Volunteers In
Service To America. I have applauded their good works and I have
been to many of their functions. As a matter of fact, the VISTA
people think this is a great bill, too.

Mr. QweNs. Thank you very much. Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smira. Congresswoman Morella, I was wondering to follow
along on what I think the Chairman was pursuing, can you imag-
ine or conceive of a situation either in the write up of this bill over
the next few weeks or months, or five years down the road after it
has been demonstrated to be effective, that it might be broadened
include VISTA, to include the Teacher Corps, to even include three
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years of service in a non-profit church or other agencies as long as
its service at a low level of pay.

In other words, is there room in the idea structurally and philo-
sophically to see it spread at some pomt"

Ms. MoRreLLa. Absolutely, and I'm glad you worded it that way.
This is the beginning; this is the spark that I think can radiate in
so many different ways.

But yes, it can expand, and I can see it incorporated in many dif-
ferent ways in various programs. It is not an island unto itself. It is
a ‘“rebeginning,” a renewal of a concept that is truly American.

Mr, SMI’I‘H. I guess the other observation that I would have, and
since you've blown my cover—It probably won’t sound like more
than a paid nonpolitical advertisement, but my experience in over
20 years of working with kids in educational programs around ex-
periential things is that this program, this concept, the way you
constructed it, in fact, has the seeds of success.

Father Hessburg was just dead right, you have combined the two
things or the three things that will compel young people or older
people to participate.

One, you're going to answer a financial need. Two, the institu-
tion that they are involved with, their college or their university is
saying, this is so important to society that we are going to take a
stand and make room for it in our structure.

The inessage of the culture is that it is valued to do service. 1
would tell you for all our words, and understanding the last eight
years that it’s been difficult down there—and I guess I thank God 1
wasn’t here. It sounds like it was pretty tough stuff,

The fact is that since the Watergate tragedy, maybe go back a
few years before that, the institutions of higher education in this
country, and really our general institutions, haven’t been able to
sustain, either in terms of their rhetoric or in terms of their being,
the way they do business—a commitment to serve other people.

It just has not been on the national agenda. It was driven off by
all sorts of other concerns like gas shortag&s and other things.

Now is the time to bring it back home. I think this structure is
educationally sound. It will turn kids on. Qur experience up in
Norwich—the military institution—we had kids leaving ROTC to
join this program on a demonstration basis.

Qur first graduate is in the Peace Corps today. He quit Air Force
ROTC, to go out and help people rehab their houses during the
Vermont winter and he is In the Peace Corps today. It really is
powerful for the faculty and for kids, and it is going to help them
with their bills, too. I think it is a great idea.

Ms. MorerLa. Fantastic, Thank you for being so articulate in re-
lating the personal experience of success which you have had.

You know, it is interesting because my alma mater, Boston Uni-
versity, is tryin%some of this program on a graduate level. I under-
stand Harvard Dental School is thinking about doing it for periods
of time, again, on a graduate level.

With this bill it would be the first time we’re doing it on an un-
dergraduate level. We are doing it particularly with the jdea in
mind of getting minority students, who without this kind of pro-
gram, might be shackled—this was discussed—with college loans

G
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and so, therefore, do not see the Peace Crops as a feasible opportu-
nity.

Mr. Qwens. Mr. Hayes?

Mr. Haygs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just want to commend
my colleague for submitting this proposal, this proposal, this reso-
lution. I think it's a good idea, it's one good example. I certainly
support it. I am very much in favor of the Peace Corps.

When you cite a figure that only two percent of blacks are part
of it, there is a reason for that. It is a volunteer kind of program
and many of them can’t afford it. but here is an opportunity that
they can enter it and at the same time further their eduecation. I
think it is a gcod idea. I am surprised it is coming from your side
of the aisle, though.

Ms. MoreLLA. Oh, stereotypes. Thank you. Congressman Hayes is
one of my cosponsors. I thank you very much for that.

Mr. Owens. Congressman Perkins?

Mr. Pepxans. I think it is a wonderful idea, Connie. There’s no
problem over here as far as we are concerned. We just wish you'd
come over on our side.

Ms. MoreLLa. This is a great subcommittee,

Mr. Owexns. Thank you very much, Congresswoman.

Ms. MogreLLa. Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Owens. The hearing is now adjourned.

[{Whereupon, at 12:25 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]




JOINT HEARINGS ON THE ISSUE OF NATIONAL
SERVICE

WEDNESDAY., APRIL 19, 19589

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEES oN ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND VOCA-
TioNal. EpUcaTioN; PostsEcoNparY EbUcaTioN;
Human Resources; SELect EpUcatioN; anp EmpLoy-
MENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CoMMITTEE oN EpucaTioN AND LABOR,
Washingion, DC.

The subcommittess met, pursuant to notice, at $:35 a.m., in
Room 2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F.
Hawkins [Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hawkins, Kildee, Williams,
Martinez, Owens, Hayes, Sawyer, Payne, Lowey, Poshard, Unsoeld,
Fuster, Goodling, Petri, Gunderson, Bartlett, and Smith.

Staff present: Eugene F. Sofer, budget counsel; Richard P. Jerue,
staff director, Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education; Jillian G.
Evans, legislative analyst, Subcommittee of Select Education; Beth
B. Buehlmann, minority education coordinator; and Michael Lance,
minority professional staff member.

Chairman Hawkms. The Committee on Education and Labor is
called to order. Let me welcome all of yvou to the second joint hear-
ing of five subcommittees of the Educ.tion and Labor Committee
on the issue of national service.

The subcommittees involved are Elementary, Secondary, and Vo-
cational Education; Postsecondary Education; Human Resources;
Select Education; and Employment Opportunities.

Each has jurisdiction over some aspect of the national service
issue. I anticipate one additional hearing before the committee
begins to develop its own comprehensive national service bill.

Let me briefly note some concerns of mine, First, I am very leery
of tying Service to the Student Financial Aid programs. Second, I
want to insure that Service is accompanied by training and educa-
tion, where necessary.

Third, I want to insure that any Service bill leaving this commit-
tee has strong antidisplacement provisions as well ag other labor
protections,

Finally, in an era of budget restraint, I would not want to see a
large Federally-supported gervice program that drains scarce re-
sources from other existing high priority programs.

(95}
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I hope that this hearing helps to provide members with a sense
of what we should do in the national service area as well as with a
sense of what we should avoid.

We have a list of very competent witnesses before us today and I
would ask that I be permitted to revise and extend my remarks
and have them inserted in the record at this point.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Augustus F. Hawkins follows:)
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Remarks of Chairman Augustus F. Hawkins
Hearing on National Service, April 19, 1989

GODD MORNING, | WANT TO WELCOME YDU TQ THE SECOND JOINT HWEARING
OF FIVE SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE EDUCATION anp LABOR ComMITTEE ON THE
1SSUE OF NATIONAL SERVICE. THE SUBCOMMITTEES INVOLVED ARE
ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND VOCATIONAL EpucaTion: POSTSECONDARY
Eoucatron: Human RESOURCES: SELECT EDUCATION; AND EMPLOYMENT
0pPORTUNITIES. FEACH HAS JURISDICTION OVER SOME ASPECT OF THE
NatioyaL SERVICE §SSUE. | ANTICIPATE gNE ADDIT1ONAL HEARING
BEFORE THE COMMITTEE BEGINS TO DEVELOP ITS OWN COMPREHENSIVE
NaTionaL SERVICE BILL.

| DO WANT TO BRIEFLY NOTE SOME CONCERNS QF MINE. FIRST, | aM
VERY LEERY OF TY1NG SERVICE 70 STUpeNT FINANCIAL A1D PROGRAMS,
SECOND, | wANT TO INSURE THAT SERVICE 1S ACCOMPANTED BY TRAINING
AND EDUCATION, WHERE NECESSARY. THIRD, | wANT TO INSURE THAT ANY
SERVICE BILL LEAVING THI1S COMMITTEE HAS STRONG ANTIDISPLACEMENT
PROVISIONS AS WELL AS DTHER LABOR PROTECTIONS. FimaLly, N au
ERA OF BUDGET RESTRAINT, [ WDULD NDT waNT TO SEE A LARGE
FEDERALLY-SUPPORTED SERVICE PROGRAM THAT DRAINS SCARCE RESDURCES
FROM OTHER EXISTING HIGH PRIDRITY PRDGRAMS.

I HOPE THLS HEARING HELPS TO PROVIDE MEMBERS WITH A SENSE OF WHAT
WE SHOULD po IN THE NATIONAL SERVICE AREA AS WELL AS wITH A SENSE
OF WHAT WE SHOULD AVOID.




OuUR WITHESSES TODAY ARE ON THREE PANELS!:
THE FIRST 15 COMPRISED OF FIVE COLLEGE PRESIDENTS--
1. Dr, Josunerta CoLe oF SpeLman COLLEGE,
2. Dr. Epwarp BLoustein OF Rutcers UN1vErsITY,
3+ Dr. Ropert CORRIGAN OF SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY.
&+ DR, Steven ALTMan OF Texas A & 1 UNIVERSITY. awD
5. Dr. W. RusseLL Topp aF NorwicH UniverstiTy.

THE SECOMD PANEL 13 COMPRISED OF--
I. Dr. DomwaLp STEWART. PRESIDENT OF THE CoLLece BoaRrD. AnD
e B I SRR G g S Secomee
HOOLS .
THE THIRD PANEL [$ COMPRISED OF--
l. Mr. FRep Azcarate, PresiDent, U S. STUDENT A$SOCIATION,
Z. MR, Hayne Meiser. Campus OpPorTUNITY OQUTREACH LEAGUE,
3. Ms, Martien TavLOR OF YALE UNIVERSITY, AND

4. Ns. BEMEVIEV’E LVNCE OF THE VoLunTeer Action Council,
HIVERSITY QF RICHMOND

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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I yield to Mr. Goodling and any of the other members who would
like to make a statement at this time. Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoopLiNg. Mr. Chairman, just a brief statement and then I
would ask that the entire statement be placed in the record for Mr.
Coleman.

Chairman Hawkins. Without objection, Mr. Coleman’s statement
will be inserted.

[The prepared statement of Hon. E. Thomas Coleman follows:)
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wvpening Staterent
F i
Congressman E. Thomas Coleman
licaring on Nalional Secrvice Legislative

April 19, 1959*

Mr. chairman, I am nleased that we will be discussing

agair., this morning, the issue of Wational Service.

Clearlyr this is an isgue that has gained

cansidorable national attention. EZually clear is the
importance of Providing young people in America an opportunity
to participate in communities in which they live, to serve the
larger societyY, and by doing so. find a sense of PurPose bayong
themsclves,

No one would argue with guch @ goal, Dasced on current
volunteer service programs in high schoels., colleges.
state~ipoyel conservation D}ograms. and such Federal programs as
VIETA and the Studepnt Community Serviec Program. yOoung Americans
are contributing virtvwallY millions ¢f hours of community
scrvice to the Peor, the infirm, te the educationally
disadvantaged., te the inner-clties, and £O Dreserving the
cnvironment.

The contral dQuestion before Condress iS the extent to which
this spirit of volunteerism should be harncgsed at the
naticnal level By an over-arching "pational service™ prodram.

From the perspective of the Postsecondary Subcommittee. such
"national service™ programs raise a number of concerns:i (1)
such as. the imPact of mandatory or volunteer schemes on

current enrollment patterns of the 18 to 24 ycar-eld age groum;
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{2} the extent ko which these programs suPPlement or suPPlant
current Federal student financial aid programs. ang (3} the
eQuity issue of reduiring seme form of service-- whether
civilian or military=-- a5 the sole means of earning Pederal
student ecducaticnal benefits. Given such a reqQuircment.
law-income students osPecially weuld be forced into gervice or
petalized for not seorving. SurelyY. such direcct tying of
paticnal service to cduczitional bepefits-- in the form of

vouchers or lean forgivencas-- will mean that paticnal scorvice

Brograms will bave disPraporiicnately large mnumbers of

low-income participants, who would not othcrwise have aceess bto
student financial aid.

1 am also concerned about providing continuing access to
financial assistance bto the fasLeslt growing segment of
Postsccondary odwm ation: colder., Pari-time students. Many of
Lhese so-called "non-traditiomal" students arc alrecadY Paronts
and have family responsibilities. will naticnal service

rograms have tho flemibility o enrell volunteecrs from this
group of independent. Sclf-Suprorting studcnks?

&n additional concern is the extent teo which national
sérvice Programs will have an imPact on enrecllments and
attendance Pattorns. cospecially in the context of the
demograPhic decline in phe 18 to 24 Year-old age cohort. which
is prolected to droP from a 1980 high of 230 millicn to 24
million by 1995, a drop of roughlY 25¢, Will postsecondary
institutions, the military. and naticmnal service Programs

intreasindlY comPete for members of this cohore?
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h reocont study by the Deopartment of education on

¥
Peroistence and degroe atiainment patterns provides us with

sobeoring statistics on the ¢ffoces pf delayed., interrubted, ang
pare-time study., While 75% of 1980 high schopl graduates whe
enrolled full-time after high school received a degrec by 1986,
only 20% of those who delayed their education or studied
Part-time received a degree during the same period.  For
low-incose sktudents. the impact of delaying study in oven more
devastating: less than 1 in 10 had received a degree during the
samec time period.

I hoPc that you ;i]i be able to respend, today. ko these ang
aother coneerns. I will be the last member of this committeco to
makc the claim that our eurrent financial aid Pro9rams arc
flawiesa, Indeecd, current financial aid reaourecsz are streotched
to ghe limit and the integrity pf theo Stafford Studenkt Loan
Program is jeobPardized by Tontinuing Problems of Program abuse
and defaults., But the Program does scrve cach Ycar some 6
million students, through a combination ©f grants. loans. and
work-study assistance. Most Of the recipients of this aid are
low-income students, who could not otherwise continue their
education. Indced, our primary Foederal role is to provide
increascd access to educational Opportunities.

Will national Servicc programs provide the game aecess., Lo
the same number of Participants. and will thesc Programs cnhance
or lessen the chances that low-income, “high risk" students will
complete a postsecondsly cducational Pro9ram?

Againe T welcome you todays and 1 look forward to Your

testimonyY and resPonscs.
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Mr. GoopuLinG. I am pieased that we will be discussing again this
morning, the issue of national service. Clearly, this is an issue that
has gained considerable national attention. Equally clear is the im-
portance of providing young people in America an opportunity to
participate in communities in which they live, to serve the larger
society and by doing so, find a sense of purpose beyond themselves.

Mo one would argue with such a goal based on current volunteer
service programs in high schools, colleges, state-level conservation
programs, and such Federal programs as VISTA and the Student
Community Service Program. Young Americans are contributing
virtually miilions of hours of community service to the poor, the
infirmed, the educationally disadvantaged, the inner-cities, and to
preserving the environment.

The central question before Congress is the extent to which this
spirit of volunteerism should be harnessed by at the national level
and over-arching “national service’ program. I think the izssue that
will be discussed as we talk about these progr-=s is what role and
how heavy-handed the Federal Government should be in its in-
volvement in the whole idea of a community service program.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Any other members who would
like to make a statement at this point?

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Williams.

Mr. WinLiaMs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to say I am
particularly impressed by the three panels thar you have selected
to be here. The five college presidents represernt a wide variety and
I think an appropriate variety of higher education institutions in
the United States reflecting differences in size and student popuia-
tion and location and mission of higher education in America and
we are going to be very interested in what each of you have to say
to the committee with regard to national service.

The second panel is made up of two witnesses who have been in-
volved for years in both opportunity of education in the United
States and access and the importance of the access question to stu-
dents in the country and then the third panel is one that we have
long-waited to hear from and that is the students themselves who
in the final analysis will be the expert witnesses on the validity of
f_he national service legislation and its effect upon their individual
ives.

As chairman of the Postsecondary Education Committee, I do
want to note my own personal concern and the concern of what I
now believe to be a majority of the members of our Postsecondary
Education Committee with the national service approach that is re-
flected in the Nunn/McCurdy legislation.

I now believe there is a majority of our subcommittee in opposi-
tion to the approach of our friends, Senator Nunn and Congress-
man McCurdy. The value of the bill, therefore, seems to be in fur-
thering the deb~*~ about national service legislation. I say, per-
haps, with some -pardy, that it now appears as though the Nunn-
McCurdy bill as . sits, as it is written, and has been introduced
has very little ck ;nce to see the light of day because it cannot pass
the subcommittee itself.

g -
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I understand that Senator Nunn and Mr. McCurdy are busily
working on suggestive amendments which they intend to visit with
me and the members of my committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman HawkINs. Any other statements at this time?

Mr. MArRTINEZ, Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Martinez.

Mr. MarTINEZ. In consideration of the time and the excellent
panels that will be testifying, I would ask that my statement in its
entirety be entered into the record and I will be very brief.

Chairman Hawkins. Without objection, so ordered.

Mr. Martinez. Like Mr, Wiliiams and yourself, I have great res-
ervations about tying youth service to higher education and espe-
cially what it would do to displace those higher education assist-
ance programs that are so important, especially to the kinds of
people that I represent.

I really don’t feel that that particular legislation is going in the
wrong direction, and we have seen through the chairmanship of
my subcommittee current programs throughout the United States
that are very successful and that are harnessing the talents of
young people and rewarding them for service in several ways.

The fact that participating ycuth begin to feel a self-worth and
feel that they are a contributing member of the community is im-
portant. In addition, the fact that they receive education in return
for the service that they provide is crucial to any legislatior. An
expansion of those successful programs in my mind is a movement
in the right direction.

I really would hope that somewhere along the line we cculd get
Congress to believe that one of the most important roles of any
youth service program is to provide educational assistance because,
after all, these young people cannot move forward in careers or job
opportunities unless they have that education necessary in today’s
technical world.

With that, Mr. Chairman, I relinquish back the balance of my
time.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Matthew G. Martinez follows:]
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- STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN MATTHEW G. MARTINE
HE RIEG ON YOUTH SERVICE, FOCUS 0N HIGRE
WEINESDAY, APRIL 19, 9:30, RM. 2175 RAYBUR

£, 5 SUBCOMMITT
R EDUCATION LEG

EE JOINT
ISLATTION,
IT IS MY PLEASURE T0 JOIN THE OTHER FOUR SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRMEN OF THE EDIICATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE TO FOCUS ON THE

iMPORTANT [SSUE OF YOUTH SERVICE FOR guUR COUNTRY.

AS A CONCEPT. YOUTH SERVICE IS AN [DEA WHOSE TIME HAS COME.
PRESIDENT BUSH HAS ENDORSED THE MEED FOR NATIONAL YCBTH SERViCE.
IN MY HOME STATE OF CALIFORNIA. FORMER GOVERNOR RONALD REAGAN
SIGNED INTO LAW ONE OF THE MOST EFFECTIVE ONGOING STATE

CONSERVATION CORPS PROGRAHMS, THE CALIFORMIA CONSERVATION CORPS.

THERE ARE AM EXISTING ARRAY OF 53 HiGHLY SUCCESSFUL YQUTH
SERVICE CORPS PROGRAMS AROLND TﬁE COUNTRY THAT HAVE PROVEN AN
IMMENSE SUCCESS FOR THEIR LDEAL;COMHHNITIES. IN FACT, ON APRIL
28 aND MAY 19, MY SUBCOMMITTEE WILL BE HOLDING FIELD HEARINGS iN
SAN FRANCISCO AND LOS AMGELES TO REVIEW THESE SUCCESSFUL PROGRAMS
AND LEGISLATION INTROBUCED BY CONGRESSMAN PAMETTA AND yDALL TO

BUILD ON THESE PROGRAMS.
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PAGE 2
TODAY'S HEARING FOCUS ON A VERY SEMSITIVE SUBJECT, THAT OF
PROPOSED HIGHER EDUCATION PROGRAMS THAT WILL DELIVER COMMUMITY
SERVICES. ALTHOUGH MY SUBCOMMITTEE 1S FOCYSED ON THE PROBLEMS OF
“ TRATNING DROP-OUT YQUTH AND SCHOOL-AGED YOUTH FOR COMMUNITY
SERVICE, WHILE LEARNING JNB SKILLS AND LIFE DISCIPLIME, HIGHER
EDUCATION HAS A CRITICAL ROLE IN SRAPING THE LIVES OF YOUTK FOR

SERVICE TO THEIR COMMUNTTIES.

THEREFORE, TODAY'S HEARING WILL BE INVALUARLE IN DETERMINIMG
HOW WE CAN FASHION A BROAD PROGRAM OF YOUTH SERVICE FOR OUR
NATION. 1 LODK FORWARD TO HEARING FRGM OUR EXPERT WITNESSES AND

RECEIVING THE VIEWS OF MY COLLEAGUES OM THIS SUBJECT. THANK YOU.

[1{[ itz
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Chairman Hawkimns. Thank you, gentleman. The chair would
like to introduce, welcome, and call to the witness table the follow-
ing witnesses. First, Dr. Johnnetta Cole of Spelman College; Dr.
Edward Bloustein of Rutgers University; Dr. Robert Corrigan of
San Francisco State University; Dr. Steven Altman of Texas A & I
University; and Dr. Dr. W. Russell Todd of Norwich University.

The chair would yield at this point to Mr. Smith for the purpose
of “_’;legoming a particular witness from his area. Mr. Smith is rec-
ognized.

Mr. SmitH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to take a
second to welcome formally and publicly not only a very close
friend of mine and now a constituent of mine, but it is not often
that you get to take testimony from somebody who is your boss up
until about five months ago and that person sits before me today,
W. Russell Todd, president of Norwich University.

I am pleased beyond my akility to articulate to have you here
today and along with your distinguished colleagues to talk to us
about national service generally and peace corps and student-relat-

programs.

Specifically, Norwich has been a leader and I think it is very ex-
citing to me that we have a chance to hear about what you all
have done by yourselves up in the wilds of Vermont for the univer-
sity and for students and for the community.

It is goed to have you here.

Chairman Hawkins. Well, thank you, Mr. Smith. Dr. Cole, I sup-
pose you are the first witness. It is a pleasure to welcome you as a
friend. As one who has appeared before this committee before and
we look forward to your testimony.

May I just simply make a general statement that the statements
of all the witnesses will be entered in the record in their entirety,
o0 it is not really necessary for anyone to just reac the statements
verbatim.

We would rather have the highlights, question the witnesses, and
then have the general discussion. That way we can have a give and
take. I think that would be more profitable than me:-ely listening
te a statement being rendered verbatim.

That was not directed at you, Dr. Cole. It is a general statement
we make every time we have these hearings. We welcome you

STATEMENTS OF DR. JOHNNETTA COLE OF SPELMAN COLLEGE;
DR. EDWARD BLOUSTEIN OF RUTGERS UNIVERSITY; DR.
ROBERT CORRIGAN OF SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY;
DR. STEVEN ALTMAN OF TEXAS A & I UNIVERSITY; AND DR. W,
RUSSELL TODD OF NORWICH UNIVERSITY

Dr. CoLs. Thank you. Chairman Hawkins and members of the
subcommittee, I am Johnnetta Cole, president of Spelman College
in Atlanta, Georgia. Spelman is a one hundred and eight year old
institution with the mission of educating black women leaders in
our nation.

We are convinced that at the core of leadership is service. Spel-
man is 2 member of the United Negro College Fund and I am here
this morning on behalf of the Fund 4nd the forty-one other presi-
dents. As you know, the United Negro College Fund raises money

.,E n _.‘,
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to help forty-two historically black colleges and universities to pro-
vide high quality and low cost education to forty-five thousand men
and women.

In recent years, the college fund has actively worked with Con-

ess and, more specifically, with this committee in order to fash-
ion legislation that would advance in our nation higher education
for all. We look forward to continuing to work with this committee,
particularly under the leadership of gressman Hawkins.

We at the United Negro College Fund feel that nothing could be
more important than the very idea of doing well for others. This is
an idea, of course, that is fundamental to the very fabric of our
nation and most of us associated, of course, with that very famous
question posed by President Kennedy in his inaugural address, the
question is, “What will you do for your country?”

For the communities in our nation that are made up of African-
American people, we too wish to say that we see the necessity of
service. If we could capture that, perﬂaps, it would be in the saying
that comes from the National Negro Women’s Club Movement so
associated with Mary Mcleod Bethune and that saying is very
simply that we must lift as we climb.

So, the basic premise of national service, we think, is rooted in a
very fundamental human value and that is helping others and, al-
though the notion is often associated with somehow doing good
only for others, it ig our belief in the Fund that national gervice as
a kind of service will, indeed, benefit the givers ag well as the re-
ceivers.

United Negro College Fund holds, however, that certain basic
principles nmust guide the development of comprehensive national
service legislation. We feel that national service legislation must
preserve the important role that has been played in our natiocn by
such programs as the Peace Corps and VISTA.

We also feel very strongly that national service must maintain
our ongoing strauggle for equal access by all who wish to go to col-
lege or universities by the assistance then of our Federal Govern-
ment in the provision of loans and of grants.

Mr. Chairman, a four-year college education makes a fundamen-
tal difference in the ability of young black Americans to compete
in the job market. Black college graduates still only earn about the
same amount as white high school graduates. As I am sure you are
aware, Chairman Hawkins, one of the most frightening realities in
our nation today is the fact that at this very moment there are
more college age black men in jails and prisons than-in our col-
leges and universities. '

e must do all that we can, not only to maintain the current
involvement of black and Hispanic and other minority students in
higher education, we must increase that amount. We are con-
cerned, therefore, about any national legislation which would
appear to delay that possibility, or worse, to deny it.

Any legislation that would substitute service for access to educa-
tion would be a cruel hoax to play on black youngsters who are
only recently beginning to realize that with Fyederal help, college
attendance is a real option for them. Senator Nunn and Represent-
ative McCurdy’s bill 1s, of course, the most comprehensive of the
national service proposal. .

1i:
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We in the United Negro College Fund are greatful to those con-
gressmen for generating national attention on the very question of
national service, but we are deeply concerned by a bill that would
seem to substitute national service for student aid.

Sponsors of this bill seem to argue that national service could be
funded in its early years almost entirely from the current $8 bil-
licn cost of Federal support aid programs, but this assumes a level
of involvement of students which is far short of those who, indeed,
deeply need aid in order to pursue the American dream through
higher education.

Mr. Chairman, we feel that the Nunn-McCurdy bill would have
certain negative consequences for all of higher education and par-
ticularly we address that education in the United Negro Fund
family. We are concerned for any bill that would eliminate the con-
cept of need-based aid which is critically important to the poor and
to the near poor and the institutions that they serve.

We are concerned about a bill that would create another obstacle
to access to higher education for minorities at a time when minori-
ties in high school need all of the encouragement and all of the
reenforcement that they can receive. College delayed is too often
college denied.

According to a report on college persistence by the National
Center for Education Statistics, those students who enter college
immediately upon graduation from high school have a far better
chance of completing that process and, indeed, Mr. Chairman, we
in the United Negro College Fund are very taken by the idea of
national service occurring after the completion of college.

One, because it rids us of that danger zone and two, because it
would mean, of course, that we would send into the communities of
our countries highly educated men and women. We are also con-
cerned, as I draw towards conclusion, that the McCurdy bill with
Senator Nunn seems to promote the longstanding myth that aid to
needy students does not work and that, indeed, our students who
receive Federal aid are getting a free ride.

The overwhelming majority of Pell Grant, as we use to call them
Pell Grant recipients, come from families with incomes below $14
thousand and among the more than six million low and middle
income students who received Title Four aid, their families contrib-
ute the largest share of their educational cost.

At United Negro College Fund institutions, nearly 90 percent of
all Pell Grant recipients work during the school year or during the
summer or both to help finance their education. Mr. Chairman, we
feel that we need more, not less, Federal aid to low income stu-
dents. We feel that we do need more, not less, than national serv-
ice, but we are deeply concerned about any bill that would, indeed,
substitute national service for student aid.

We believe that national service like every other major issue in
our country must be viewed in light of the $150 billion budget defi-
cit. Clearly the price tag on national service when it is not tied to
current funding for student aid wruld be extraordinary expensive.
While UNCF certainly understands congressional concern about
program cost, we also believe that this and other human service
initiatives must be viewed as investments.

-E -
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Stated differently, we do believe that funding for student aid
should never be sacrificed on the alter of national service. If our
nation needs both, and we believe that we do, then the Congress
must, irdeed, authorize both programs, but only with the way to
fund each sufficiently.

In closing, please permit me to commend You, Mr. Chairman,
and the members of this committee for focusing your attention on
this important issue. Since we know that Mr. Williams and other
members of this committee have a long interest in the summit con-
ference on education, we in the United Negro Cellege Fund would
like to suggest such a summit, a summit on education that would
focus on national service in the context of the upcoming 1991 reau-
thorization of the Higher Education Act.

Mr. Chairman, we, indeed, in the United Negro College Fund
wish to see in our nation greater and greater involvement of cur
youth in serving their country, but without having to pay the price
of unduly deferring and even eliminating the opportunity of higher
ed scation and without fostering a differential system, one for the
aftfluent and one for the poor.

With you, Mr. Chairman, and cther members of this commitiee,
we do, indeed, feel that every mind is a terrible thing to waste.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Johnnetta Cole follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF DR. JOHNNETTA COLE, PRESIDENT
SPELMAN COLLEGE., ATLANTA, GEORGIA

ON BEHALF OQF
THE UNITED NEGROD COLLEGE FUND
BEFORE THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION
AND LABOR

APRIL 19, 1989

CHAIRMAN HAWKINS AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE, I AM JOHNNETTA
COLE, PRESIDENT OF SPEIMAN COLLEGE IN ATLANTA, GEORGIA. SPELMAN
1s THE LARGEST AND OLDEST INSTITUTXON OF HXGHER EDUCATION DEDICATED
TO PROVIDING A COLLEGE EDUCATION FOR BLACK WOMEN. SPELMAN HAS A
PROUD TRADITION OF "“ERVICE TQ THE ATLANTA COMMUNITY, OUR NATIOM
AND THE WORLD. SPELMAN IS ONE OF THE 42 MEMBER INSTITUTIONS OF THE
UNITED KEGRO COLLEGE FUND, AND X APPEAR BEFORE YOU TODAY ON BEHALF
OF THE FUND AND MY PRESIDENTIAL COLLEAGUES.

AS YOU XKNOW, THE UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND RAISES MONEY TO HELP
PRIVATE HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES PROVIDE HIGH~
QUALITY, LOW-COST EDUCATION TO 45,000 MEN AND WOMEN. STUDENTS
ATTENDING THESE PRIVATE, FULLY-ACCREDITED INSTITUTIONS COME FROM
ALL 50 STATEC AND 62 FOREIGN COUKTRIES. FUNDSs CONTRIBUTED TO UNCF
HELP PROVIDE FCR THE COLLEGES' DAY-TO-DAY OPERATING EXPENSES,
FACULTY SALARIES, LABORATORY EQUIPMENT AND SCHOLARSHIPS.

IN RECENT YEARS, THE COLLEGE FUND HAS TAKEN AN ACTIVE ROLE IN
WORKING WITH THE CONGRESS AND WITH THIS COMMITTEE TO TASHION
LEGISLATION TO ADVANCE THE FEDERAL COMMITMENT TO EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
IN HIGHER EDUCATION AND, IN PARTICULAR, r0 STRENGTHEN THE KATION'S
HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES. THE COLLEGE FUKD AND
ITS MEMBER PRESIDENTS LAVE WORKED COOPERATIVELY WITH YOU AND
SENATOR PAUL SIMON OF ILLINOIS ON THE CHALLENGE GRANT ACT
AMENDMENTS OF 1983 (P.L. 98-95) AND ON THE BLACK COLLEGE AND
UNIVERSITY ACT OR PART B OF TITLE Iil OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT.
THE LATTER WAS ENACTED AS PART OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION AMENDMENTS
OF 1986 {P.L. 99-498)

=
koo
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WE LOOK FORWARD TO WORKING WITH YOU TO FASHION A COMPREHENSIVE
RESPONSE TO THE NEED TO ENCOURAGE SERVICE AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE. THAT OBJECTIVE CAN AND MUST BE ACHIEVED
WITHOUT ALTERING THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT'S COMMITMENT TG ELIMIMATE
FINANCIAL BARRIERS TO A COLLEGE EDUCATION BY ASSURING ACCESS AND
SOME MEASURE OF CHOICE 1IN POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION FOR ALL
AMERICANS, REGARDLESS OF RACE, SEX, NATIONAL ORIGIN, OR ECONOMIC
STATUS.

WHILE THE FOCUS OF TODAY'S HEARING IS THE GROWING NUMBER OF PUBLIC
SERVICE BILLS, THE COLLEGE FUND BELIEVES IT IS IMPORTANT TO KEEP
THE CONCEPT OF PUBLIC SERVICE IM MIND. EACH OF THE BILLS BEFORE
THIS COMMITTEE HAVE SOME STERLING QUALITIES THAT COMMAND
CONSIDERATION 1IN ADDRESSING THE NATIONAL SERVICE PROBLEM AND
FINDING A WORKABLE SOLUTION. WE THINK IT IS ALSO CRITICAL NOT TO
OVERLOOK EXISTING PROGRAMS WHICH HAVE ALREADY DEMONSTRATED THEIR
SUCCESS IN PROVIDING MEANINGFUL OFFORTUNITITS FOR NATIONAL AND
COMMUNITY SERVICE. WE ESPECIALLY NOTE THE ENORMOUS CONTRIBUTIONS
MADE BY THE PEACE CORPS AND VISTA (VOLUNTSERS IN SERVICE TO
AMERICA) .

THE NATIONAL SERVICE CONCEPT

THE IDEA OF NATIONAL SERVICE MAY BE AS OLD AS THY NATION 1ITSELF.
THOMAS JEFFERSON IS QUOTED AS HAVING SAID "A debt of service is due
from every man to his country proportioned to the bounties which
nature and fortune have measured to him." THE SERVICE TRADITION
IS PART OF THE FABRIC OF THE BLACK COMMUNITY AS WELL AND IS ETCHED
IN HISTORY AS THE SLOGAN OF THE NEGRO WOMEN'S CLUB MOVEMENT.
"Lifting as we climb," CAPTURES IN BLACK AMERICAN CULTURE THE
PRINCIPLE THAT SERVICE TO OTHERS IS AN ESSENTIAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR
EACH OF US. ©PRESIDENT JOHN F. KENNEDY UNDERSCORED THE IMPORTANCE
OF NATIONAL SERVICE IN HIS 1961 INAUGURAL ADDRESS, WHEN HE SAID
"and so: my fellow Americans, ask not what your country can do for
you: AsKk what You can do for your country."

THE BASIC PREMISE OF HNATIONAL SERVICE IS ROOTED IN THE MOST
FUNDAMENTAL OF HUMAN VALUES -- HELPING OTHERS. WHILE WE TEND TO
ASSOCIATE THE IDEA WITH MISSIONARY WORK AND THE NOTION THAT THOSE
BEING HELPED ARE ALWAYS LESS FORTUNATE, THE REALITY IS THAT HELPING
OTHERS IS ALWAYS A RELATIONSHIP INVOLVING ADDITION, NOT
SUBTRACTION! THOSE WHO GIVE ALSO RECEIVE. THE PROCESS OF HELPING
HOPEFULLY ENRICHES THE LIFE OF THE RECIPIENT, BUT THE LIFE OF THE
GIVER 1S ALSO ENRICHED.

THE UNITED MNEGRO COLLEGE FUMD BELIEVES THAT FOUR BASIC PRINCIPLES

MUST GUIDE CONGRESS' DEVELOPHENT OF COMPREHENSIVE MATIONAL SERVICE
LEGISLATION:
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<+ NEX NATIONAL SERVICE LEGISLATION MUST PRESERVE THE IMPORTANT
ROLE PLAYED BY EXISTING NATIONAL SERVICE PROGRAMS SUCH AS THE PEACE
CORPS, VISTA, FOSTER GRAND PARENTS, RETIRED SERVICE VOLUNTEERS
FROGR™ {RSVF), AND MUST ALSO HAINTAIN THE BASIC PURPOSES OF THE
TITLE IV, FEDERAL STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AS "“ACCESS" AND
"CHOICE" VEHICLES FOR LOW AND MIDDLE INCOME STUDENTS WHO SEEK AND
CAN BENEFIT FROM A COLLEGE EDUCATION.

*  NATIONAL SERVICE MUST BE TRULY VOLUNTARY AND NATIONAL
SERVICE LEGISLATYON MUST PERMIT STUDENTS FROM LOW AND MIDDLE INCOME
FAMILIES TO EARN COLLEGE FUNDS OR TO CANCEL COLLEGE TOAN DEBTS.

+ NATIONAL SERVICE LEGISLATION MUST MAINTAIN THE PRE-EMINENT
ROLE OF THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE AND THE SENATE
LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE AS THE AUTHORIZING COMMITTEES
FOR NATIONAL SERVICE. THIS MUST BE DONE WHILE FINDING CREATIVE
WAYS TO SHARE THE FINANCIAL BURDEN OF FINANCING THE COST OF A MAJOR
NEW PROGRAM MODELED ON THE OLD CIVILIAN cONSERVATION CORPS, BUT RE-
NAMED THE YOUTH OPPORTUNITY CORPS (Y¥OC) OR THE CITIZEN CORFS.

# NATIONAL SERVICE LEGISLATION MUST PROVIDE DEMONSTRATION
GRANTS FOR PARTNERSHIF FROGRAMS BETWEEN ELEMENTARY/SECONDARY SCHOOL
DISTRICTS AND BUSINESS AND CORPORATE ENTITIES TO CREATE VOLUNTEER
OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS AGE 8-18 IN THEIR COMMUNITIES.

]& WYSH TC UNDERSCORE THIS POINT -- WE DO NOT SUPPORT FEDERAL

" FUNDING FOR FULL-SERVICE GRANTS TO LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS OR NON-

PROFIT ENTITIES BECAUSE WE BELIEVE PRECIOUS RESOURCES AT THE
ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY LEVELS SHOULD BE FOCUSED ON THE HEAD
START, CHAPTER 1 COMPENSATORY EDUCATION, AND THE WVOCATIONAL
EDUCATION PROGRAMS.

OUR MOST SERIOUS CONCERN WITH SOME OF THE NATIONAL SERVICE
PROPOSALS IS BOTH PHILOSOFHICAL AND REAL. A FOUR-YEAR COLLEGE
EDUCATION MARES A FUNDAMENTAL DIFFERENCE IN THE ABILITY OF YOUNG
BLACK AMERICANS TO COMFETE IN THE JOB MARKET. BLACK COLLEGE
CRADUATES STILL EARN ABOUT THE sSaME AS WHITE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES,
YET COLLEGE OR SOME POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION IS ESSENTIAL TO COMPETE
FOR JOBS IN THE YEAR 2000. MORE THAN 22% (ONE IN EVERY FIVE) OF
BLACK HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES WAS UNEMPLOYED IN 1987, WHILE THE
FERCENTAGE OF BLACK AMERICANS WITH COLLEGE DEGREES WAS 11.4% (MORE
THAN ONE IN NINE}. ASTOUNDINGLY, THERE ARE MORE COLLEGE-AGE BLACK
MALES IN FRISON THAN IN COLLEGE DORMITORIES!

MAKING RECEIPT OF FEDERAL STUDENT AID CONTINGENT UFPON MEETING A
PUBLIC SERVICE REQUIREMENT WILL HAVE A DISPROPORTIONATE IMPACT ON
BLACK AMERICANS SINCE THEY COME FROM FAMILIES WHICH ARE
DISFROFORTIONATELY POOR AND THEREFORE ELIGIBLE FOR NEED-BASED

FEDERAL STUDENT AID. THIS MAKES PUBLIC SERVICE MANDATORY FOR THE
POOR!
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WE KNOW THAT STUDENT AID IS A CRITICAL ELEMENT 1IN SwubENT
ENROLLMENT DECISIONS AT OUR COLLEGES. OUR JOINT STUDY WATH THE
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND UNIVZRSITIES
{NAICDO), ACCESS TO COLLEGE, SHOWED THAT MANY OF THE 62,000 STUDENTS
AT 47 PRIVATE, HISTORICALLY BLACK COLLEGES HAVE VIRTUALLY NO FAMILY
RESOURCES TO HELP PAY FOR COLLEGE. FULLY FORTY-TWO PERCENT COME
FROM FAMILIES WITH INCOMES BELOW THE POVERTY LINE. MNEARLY ONE IN
THREE -- OR 30 PERCENT -- COME FROM FAMILIES WITH INCOMES BELOW
$6,000. A MEASURE OF THE COMMITMENT OF UNCF STUDENTS TO OBTAINING
A COLLEGE EDUCATION IS THE FACT THAT 0% OF STUDENTS AT OUR
INSTITUTIONS WORK DURING THE SUMMER AND THE ACADEMIC YEAR TO PAY
ForR THE coOST OF THEIR EDUCATION. :

SUBSTITUTING SERVICE FOR ACCESS Is A CRUEL HoaX TO PLAY ON BLACK
YOUNGSTERS WHO oNLY RECENTLY HAVE BEGUN 70 REALIZE THAT WITH
FEDERAL HELP COLLEGE ATTENDANCE IS A REAL cPTION. MAKING YOUNG
BLACK AMERICANS WORK FoR THEIR COLLEGE OPPORTUNITY, WHILE THEIR
WHITE COUNTERPARYS -- WHO ARE LESS AID DEPEMDENT -- SUFFER NO SUCH
BURDEN IS SIMPLY INEQUITABLE AND UNFAIR. COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
WILL BE FURTHER SEGREGATED ALONG RACIAL AND ECONOMIC LINES AND

“COLLEGE DELAYED WILL BE COLLEGE DENIED™ FOR MANY YOUNG BLACK
AMERICANS .

THERE IS A GROWING BODY OF EVIDENCE THAT WHEN MINORITIES AND OTHER
1OW INCOME STUDENTS POSTPONE ENTERING CCLLEGE DIRECTLY AFTER THEY
COMPLETE HIGH SCHOOL, THE DECISION TO PURSUE A COLLEGE EDUCATION
MAY BE PERMANENTLY PUT OFF. ACCORDING TO A RECENT REPORT ON
COLLEGE PERSISTENCE BY THE HNATIONAL CENTER FOR EDUCATION
STATISTICS, DELAYING COLLEGE ATTERDANCE IN ORDER TO CARRY OUT
NATIONAL SERVICE WILL ALMOST CERTAINLY REDUCE THE PALTRY LEVEL OF
MINORITY PARTICIPATION IN HIGHER EDUCATION. THE REPORT FOUND THAT
STUDENTS HAVE THE HIGHEST CHANCE OF ATTAINING A BACCALAUREATE
DEGREE IF THEY START THEIR COLLEGE EDUCATION IMMEDIATELY AFTER
GRADUATTION FROM HIGH SCHoOL. THREE QUARTERS OF ALL 1930 HIGH
SCHOOL GRADUATES WHO ENTERED A FOUR-YEAR INSTITUTION IMMEDIATELY
AFTER COMPLETING HIGH SCHOOL AND WHO ATTENDED FULL-TIME, HAD EARNED
A BACCALAUREATE DEGREE BY 1985. 1IN CONTRAST, ONLY 21 PERCENT OF
THOSE WHO DELAYED THEI ENTRY INTO COLLEGE COMPLETED THEIR DEGREE
BY THEN. FoOR LOW INCOME STUDENTS, THE RATE WAS 34 PERCENT.

ANALYBIS OF EXISTING PROFOSALS

THE CONCEPT OF HATIONAL AND VOLUNTARY SERVICE IS ENDORSED AND
ENCOURAGED BY UNCF AND UNCF MEMBER INSTITUTIONS. WITHOUT IT, THE
FUND WOULD MOT BE IN THE POSITION IT’S IN TODAY. THE FUND WAS
CREATED, AS THE BRAINCHILD OF THE LATE Dr. FREDERICK D. PATTERSON,
AS AN EXTENMSION OF THE BLACK FAMILY TRADITION OF HELPING LESS-
FORTUNATE, LOW INCOME STUDENTS FULFILL THE AMERICAN DREAM BY
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RECEIVING A COLLEGE EDUCATION. OUR MEMBER COLLEGES TURN THOSE
DEEMED SOCIETAL DEBITS INT® SoCIETAL BASSETS, THESE BLACK
YOUNGSTERS, TOLLOWING GRADUATION FROM UNCF MEMBER INSTITUTIONS,
RETURN TO THEIR COMMUNITIES AS TEACHERS, NURSES, DOCTORS, LAWYERS,
ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES AND COMMUNITY LEADERS. FOR THAT REASON,
WF, ARE PLEASED THAT A NUMBER OF LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS HAVE BEEN
INTRODUCED TO EXTEND SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES TO A GREATER NUMBER OF
CITIZENS.

UNCF FINDS CERTAIN ASPECTS IN EACH OF THESE BILLS WHICH WE CAN
SUPPORT:

] SENATOR PELL'S BILL, FOR EXAMPLE (S. 576/H.R. 1400} wWOULD
PROVIDE A LIMITED DEMONSTRATION OF HOW A NATIONAL PROGRAM
OF MILITARY OR CIVILIAN SERVICE MIGHT BE BUILT ON THE
FOUNDATION OF EXISTING STATE PROGRAMS.

o SEMATOR KENNEDY'S BILL (S. 650) WOULD ENCOURAGE SCHODLS
AND COMMUNITY AGENCIES TO CREATE NEW OFPPORTUNITIES FOR
YOUTH TO SERVE THEIR COMMUNITIES.

o THE DODD/PANETTA BILL (S. 322/H.R. 717} IS GEARED
ESPECIALLY TO THE NEEDS oF DISADVANTAGED YOUTH, AND WOUED
ESTABLISH A SPECIAL COMMISSION To STUDY THE IMPLICATIONS
OF A BROADER NATIONAL SERVICE PROGRAM.

o THE NHUMM/McCURDY BILL (S, 3/H.R. 660) WOULD ESTABLISH A
LARGE-SCALE, MNATIONAL SERVICE PROGRAM WITH OPERATIONS
CONDUCTED BY STATE AND LOCAL COUNCILS.

©  THE MIKULSKI/BONIOR BILL (S. 408./H.R. 1000) WOULD
ENCOURAGE WEEKEND AND PART-TIME SERVICE ACTIVITIES FOR
CITIZENS OF ALL AGES AND PERMIT PARTICIPANTS TO EARN
COELLEGE VoUCHERS FOR THE SERVICE THEY PERFORM.

o SENATOR BUMPERS' BILLS (5. 539/540/541) WOULD FORGIVE
STUDENT LOANS OF COLLEGE GRADUATES WHO WOULD PARTICIPATE
IN FEDERAL VOLUNTEER PROGRAMS THAT EXIST PRESENTLY (I.E.
VISTA, RSVP, SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM, OR THE PEACE
CORPS.) .

o REPRESENTATIVE KENNELLY'S BILL (H.R. 948) CREATES THE
CITIZEN CORPS AS AN ALTERMATIVE TO MILITARY SERVICE AND
PERMITS ALTERNATE FORMS OF NATIONAL SERVICE —- EITHER TWO
YEARS OF ACTIVE MILITARY DUTY OR FOUR YEARS IN THE READY
RESERVE OR EIGHT YEARS IN THE SELECTED RESERVE; ONE YEAR

!-m: &Y
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OF CIVILIAN SERVICE IN THE CITIZEN CORPS, INCLUDING
SERVICE IN THE SENIOR CORPS; OR SERVICE IN VISTA OR THE
PEACE CORPS.

SENATOR GRAHAM'S BILL (S. 382) ENCOURAGES BUSINESS AND
CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT IN THE SCHooLS, ESPECIALLY IN
PROGRAMS INVOLVING HIGH-TECH SKILLS TRANSFER, DROP-OUT
PREVENTION, DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PREVENTION, HEALTH
EDUCATION, ETC.

UNDER MOST OF THESE BILLS, VOLUNTEERS WOULD EARN BENEFITS THAT
COULD BE USED TO HELP THEM MEET THE RISING CoST OF A POSTSECONDARY
EDUCATION. THIS WOULD MAKE COMMUNITY OR HNATIORAL SERVICE AN
IMPORTANT GOAL OF NATIONAL POLICY, COMPLEMENTING THE GOALS OF
CURBENT STUDENT AID PROGRAMS. ONE OF THE GOALS OF FEDERAL STUDENT
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS IS TO STIMULATE THE AWARENESS -- VERY EARLY IN
LIFE -- THAT HIGHER EDUCATION IS ACCESSIBLE TO ALL ABLE STUDENTS,
EVEN TIF THEIR FAMILIES CANNOT PROVIDE THE FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
ANOTHER GOAL IS TO ENABLE NEEDY INDIVIDUALS wHO DESIRE SHORT-TERM
VOCATIONAL FROGRAMS AND CREDENTIALS OTHER THAN A BACCALAUREATE
DEGREE TO OBTAIN THE SKIYLLS NECESSARY TO SUPPORT THEMSELVES AND
THEIR FAMILIES. MILLIONS OF STUDENTS AND THEIR FAMILIES DEPEND ON
THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO CONTINUE ITS COMMITMENT TO THESE
PROGRAMS .

SENATOR NUNN AND REPRESENTATIVE MocCURDY'S BILL, THE MosT
COMPREHENSIVE OF THE NATIONAL SERVICE PROPOSALS, HAS HELPED TO
ELEVATE TO THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FEDERAL LEGISLATION IN THIS FIELD.
THE NUNN-McCURDY BILL HAS ALSO GENERATED A NATIONAL DIALOGUE ON HOW
FEDERAL INCENTIVES SHOULD BE PROVIDED. HOWEVER, NUNN-McCURDY
DIFFERS MARKEDLY FROM EACH OF THE OTHER BILLS IN ONE MATOR RESPECT:
IT WOULD PHASE QUT ELIGIBILITY FOR EXISTING FEDERAL STUDENT AID
PROGRAMS, AND MAKE ONE OR TWO YEAR NATIONAL SERVICE THE SOLE
CRITERION FOR ASSISTANCE FOR MOST STUDENTS. STUDENTS WHO COMPLETED
SERVICE WOULD RECEIVE $10,000 FOR ONE YEAR AS A CIVILIAN VOLUNTEER,
OR $24,000 FOR 2 YEARS OF MILITARY SERVICE, REGARDLESS OF THEIR
NEED OR FAMILY INCOME. STUDENTS IN FINANCIAL NEED WHO DID NOT
SERVE OR COULD NOT GET SERVICE UNDER EXISTING PROGRAMS. WHICH
CURRENTLY PROVIDE, ON AVERAGE, LESS THAN $2,000 A YEAR IN FEDERAL
SUBSIDIES PER AIDED STUDENT.

SPONSORS OF HNUNN-McCURDY ARGUE THAT NATIONAL SERVICE COULD BE
FUNDED 1IN ITS EARLY YEARS AIMOST EMTIRELY FROM THE CURRENT %8
BILLION <OST OF FEDERAL STUDENT AID FPROGRARMS. HOWEVER, THIS
ASSUMES A LETEL OF 700, 000 VOLUNTEERS A YEAR. IF THE PROGRAM WERE
TO BE CONDUCTED ON A SCALE SUFFICIENT TO ACCOMMODATE ALL CURRENT
RECIPIENTS OF STUDENT AID, IT WOULD <¢OST IN THE RANGE OF $30 TO $50
BILLION ANNUALLY.
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NONE OF THE OTHER NATIONAL SERVICE BILLS INTRODUCED TO DATE RAISES
THESE SERIOUS PROBLEMS. DODD/PANETTA PROVIDES EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS
SUPPLEMENTING EXISTING NEED-BASED AlID, WHICH WOULD SUBSTANTIALLY
INCREASE THE SIZE OF THE SYSTEM. S. 408/H.R. 541 {MIKULSKI/BONIOR)
WOULD ENCOURAGE WEEKEND, PART-TIME, AND VACATION SERVICE TO MEET
RECOGNIZED NEEDS IN THE COMMUNITY. S. 322/H.R. 717 WOULD REQUIRE
COHCJRRENT REMEDIAL WORK FOR DISADVANTAGED HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES,
WHICH WOULD BETTER PREPARE THEM FOR COLLEGE WORK INSTEAD OF LEAVING
THEM FURTHER BEHIWD. S. 650 (KEWNEDY) WOULD BUILD GON EXISTING
VOLUNTARY ACTIVITIES AT THE LOCAL LEVEL AND REQUIRE AN EDUCATIONAL
COMPONENT. ALL WOULD BE IMPLEMENTED ON A LIMITED SCALE: SOME WOULD
REQUIRE AN ASSESSMENT QF INITIAL EXPERIENCE AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
FURTHER MCDIFICATION AND IMPROVEMENT OT' THE PROGRAM.

NURN-McCURDY WOULD HAVE AT LEAST TWO SERIQUS CONSEQUENCES:

* IT WOULD ELIMINATE THE COHCEPT OF NEED-BASED AID WHICH
IS CRITICALLY IMPORTANT TO THE PDOR AND NEAR POOR AND THE
INSTITUTIONS THAT SERVE THEM. HIGHER EDUCATION WOQULD BE
RESTRICTED, RATHER THAN EXPANDED, IF EXISTING FEDERAL AID PROGRAMS
WERE ABOLISHED. HATIONALLY, THIS WOULD EFFECT SOME ¢ MILLION
STUDENTS, WHILE 45,000 AT - UNCF - MEMBER INSTITUTIDNS ATTRACTED
ANNUALLY. NUNM /McCURDY WOULD RESTRICT EDUCATIONAI BENEFITS TOQ
THOSE FOR WHOM THE GOVERNMENT IS ABLE TO PROVIDE A NATIONAL SERVICE
JOB -- ACCORDING TO ONE ESTIMATE AT 700,000 POSITIONS EACH YEAR.

* IT WOULD CREATE ANOTHER OBSTACLE TD ACCESs TO HIGHER
EQUCATION FOR MINORITIES AT A TIME WHEN MINORITIES IN HIGH SCHOOL
NEED ACADEMIC REINFDRCEMENT AND PERSOHAL ENCOURAGEMENT. DENYING
NEEDY STUDENTS FEDERAL AID UNTII- THEY PERFORM HATIONAL SERVICE., IN
EFFECT, MAKES NATIQHAL SERVICE MANDATORY FOR THE POQOR. BY
DEFINITION, IT ALMOST ELIMINATES THE COLLEGE OPTIDN FOR ALL EXCEPT

THE ACADEMICALLY TALENTED AND THE ATHLETICALLY GIFTED.

THE DIFFERENTIAL IMBACT OF THE NUNN/McCURDY PROPOS™L QAUSES U5
ERIOUS CONCERHN. UNDER NUNM/McCURDY THE CHILDREN OF THE AFFLUENT
CAN GO DIRECTLY TO COLLEGE, WHILE THOSE WHO BENEFIT FROM FEDERAL
STUDENT AID MUST PQSTPONE THEIR STUDIES WHILE THEY COMPLETE THEIR
SERVICE REQUIREMENT. JUST AS THE NATION IS MAKING MEAGER PROGRESS
TOWARD OPENING THE DOGRS OF HIGHER EDUQATION TO ALL -- TO SHUT THAT
DOOR IN THE NAME OF NATIONAL SERVICE WOULD BE CRUEL AND
INSENSITIVE.

UNCF BELIEVES NUNN/McCURDY MUST BE EXAMIHED IN LIGHT OF ITS LIKELY
IMPACT ON MINORITIES, THE POOR AND THE NEAR-POOR. THE QVERWHELMING
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MAJORITY OF PELL GRANT RECIPIENTS COME FROM FAMILES WITH INCOMES
$14,000 AND BELOW. WHILE AMONG THE HORE THAN SIX HILLION LOW AND
MIDDLE XYNCOME STUDENTS WHO RECEIVE FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE,
THE LARGEST SHARE IS CONTRIBUTED BY THEIR PARENTS OR FINANCIALLY
INDEPEHDENT STUDENTS. ‘HE “FREE RIDE" NOTION ADVANCE BY NUNN=-
HcCURDY PROPONENTS SIMPLY IS HNOT SUPPORTED BY THE FACTS. THE
REALITY IS THAT MOST STUDENTS EARN THEIR WAY, BY WORKING, OR
MORTGAGING THEIR FUTURES AGAINST ANTICIPATED INCREASED INCOME.

FEDERAL POLICY, IN RECENT YEARS, HAS RESULTEP IN AN INVERSION OF
THE STUDERT AID PACKAGING POLICY WHICIH PROVIDED GRANTS, RATHER THAN
LOANS, TO LOWER IRCOME STUDENTS. THAT BALANCE HAS HOW SHIFTED
FROM 80 % GRANTS AND 20 % LOANS IN 1976, TO 47 % GRANTS, 4 % WORK
STUDY AND 49 % LOANS IN 1588. STUDENTS WALTZ EVER CLOSER TO THE
BRINK OF FINANCIAL SERVITUDE THROUGH EXCESSIVE RELIANCE OH PERKINS
{NDSL) LOANS, STAFFORD {(GSL) LOANS AND SUPPLEMENTAL LOANS (S1S).
HIGH DEBT LEVELS, PARTICULARLY AMONG BLACK AND OTHER MINORITY
STUBENTS REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD THEY WILL PURSUE A GRADUATE OR
PROFESSIONAL DEGREE AND ENHANCE THE POSSIBILITY OF DEFAULT.

.

IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS IN CONGRESE' DEBATE ON NATIONAL SERVICE

THE DEBATE AROUT NATIONAL SERVICE IS ROT A NEW ONE, HOWEVER, IT
HAS TAKEN ON A DIFFERENT PRESENCE IN CONGRESS -- IN PART BECAUSE
OF SENATOR NUNN'S HEW INTEREST IN THIS AREA. THE DEMOCRATIC
LEADERSHIP COUNCIL, UNDER. THE STEWARDSHIF OF SENATORS NUNN AND ROBB
CALLED ATTENTION TO THIS IMPORTANT AREA WITH THE PUBLICATION OF
CITIZENSHIP AND NATIONAL SERVICE =-- A BLUEPRINT FOR CIVIC
ENTERPRISE IN MAY 1988. DR. FRANK NEWMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF
THE EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES, LAUNCHED THE PRESENT ERA
OF CONCERN ABOUT HATIONAL SERVICE AND ITS RELATIONSHIP TO HIGHER
EDUCATION IN 1985, WHEN HE PUBLISHED HIGHER EDUCATION aND THE
AMERICAl- RESURGENCE, TWO CHAPTERS " EDUCATION FoOR CREATIVITY, RISK
TAKING, AND CIVIC INVOLVEMENT” AND YAMERICAN YOUTH AND THE IDEA OF
SERVICE" WERE DEVOTED TO THE QUESTION oF WHAT SHOULD BE DGNE TO
ENCOURAGE SOCIETAL VALUES BY INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND
TO FOSTER A GREATER SENSE OF HELPING, SHARING AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
IN A TRADITIONAL LIBERAL ARTS EDUCATICH.

OF HECESSITY, DR. NEWMAN DISCUSSED THE INFLUENCE CF THE FORM OF
FEDERAL FINANCIAL AID N CAREER CHCICE AND VALUES AS THEY RELATE
TC INCOME EXPECTATIONS. HE HIGHLIGHTS, AS HAVE MANY OTHERS --
INCLUDING THE COLLEGE BOARD HEADED BY MY FRIEND AND PREDECESSOR

AT SPELMAN, DR. DONALD STEWART =-- THE DRAMATIC SHIFT IN FEDERAL
STUDENT AID FRCM GRANT AID TO LOANS. WITHOUT EVEN DISCUSSING THE
LOST PURCHASING POWER OF GRANT DOLLARS, THE SHIFT IN GRANT AID FROM
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80% OF ALL AID AVAILABLE IN THE MID-1970‘s TO 56% IN 1%80-81, AND
TG 47% IN 1987-88 HAS HAD A DEVASTATING IMPACT ON CAREER CHOICE
AND MINORITY ACCESS TO HIGHER EDUCATION.

RECENT DATA FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT LOS ANGELES (UCLA)
1988 COLLEGE FRESHMAN SURVEY MAKES THE POINT EVEN MORE POIGNANTLY.
A SHIFT IN VAILUES IS REFLECTED IN BOTH THE DECISIONS OF COLLEGE
FRESHMEN IN REGARD TO A MAJOR SELECTED -- ONE FOURTH (23.6 PER
CENT)} OF ALL FRESHMEN ENTERING IN 1988 PLANNED TO PURSUE A BUSINESS
CAREER, COMPARED To 11.3 PER CENT IN 19&8. THERE WERE
CORRESPONDING DECLINES IN THE NUMBERS OF FRESHMEN SELECTING A
MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE OR ENGLISH MAJOR OR THOSE WHO PLAN TO ENTER
TEACHING.

EVEN MORE DRAMATIC IS THE CLEAR SHIFT IN VALUES FROM —~ "DEVELOP
A MEANINGFUL LIFE" WHICH 80 PER CENT OF ENTERING FRESHMEN ASPIRED
TO IN 1967 (COMPARED To 42 PER CENT IN 1567), WHILE “BEING VERY
WELL OFF FINANCIALLYY wAS ARTICULATED AS THE STATED GOAL OF 75 PER
CENT OF ENTERING FRESHMEN IN 155685 (COMPARED TO JUST 45 PER CENT IN
1967} .

IT IS WORTH NOTING THAT PREVIOUS EFFORTS TO REVIVE AND REVISE THE
CCC PROGRAM WITH SO-CALLED YOUTH OPPORTUNITY CORPS LEGISLATION
HAVE RECEIVED BROAD CONGRESSIONAL SUPPORT, BUT MET WITH CONSISTENT
OPPOSITION FROM THE PREVIOUS ADMINISTRATION. REPRESENTATIVE "MO"
UDALL AND SENATOR DANIEL PATRICK MOYNIHAN HAVE CONSISTENTLY FOUGHT
TO ENACT NATIONAL SERVICE LEGISLATION IN THIS FORM. REPRESENTATIVE
LEOR PANETTA, SENATOR CHRISTOPHER DODD AND SENATOR PAUL SIMON HAVE
AILSO CONSISYENTLY SUPPORTED THE NATIONAL SERVICE CONCEPT.

RECENTLY, CONGRESS TOYED WITH THE NATIONAL SERVICE CONCEPT IN THE
HIGHER EDUCATION ACT AMENDMENTS OF 1986 BY ENACTING NEW PROVISIONS
IN THE COLLEGE WORK STUDY PROGRAM AND UNDER THE FUND FOR THE
IMPROVEMENT IN POSTSBECONDARY EDUCATION. BY PROVIDING FINANCIAL
SUPPORT AND INCENTIVES FOR COMMUNMITY-BASED LITERACY PROJECTS AND
OTHER COMMUNITY-ORIENTED SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES FOR COLLEGE
STUDENTS, THE CONGRESS HOPED TO ENCOURAGE THIS TYPE OF INVOLVEMENT
AS PART OF THE COLLEGE EDUCATION EXPERIENCE.

CONGRESS' RELUCTANCE To ADDRESS THE NATIONAL SERVICE ISSUE HEAD-ON
IS IN PART, WE BELIEVE, DIRECTLY RELATED TO CONSTRAINTS PLACED ON
FEDERAL SPENDIRG BY THE $150 BILLION BUGCGET DEFICIT. CLEARLY, THE
PRICE TAG ON NATIONAL SERVICE —- WHEN IT IS NOT TIED TO CURRENT
FUNDING FOR STUDENT AID =-- IS EXTRAORDINARILY EXPENSIVE.
CONGRESSIONAL BUDGET OFFICE ESTIMATES ON THE MOST RECENTLY PASSED
VERSION OF THE UDALL/MOYMIHAN AMERICAN COMSERVATION CORFS BILL
(H.R. 99) WAS $75 MILLION IN OUTLAYS IN FY 1988. AS I HAVE ALREADY
MENTIONED, THE C0OsST OF REQUIRING NATIONAL. SERVICE OF ALL CURRENT
STUDENT AID RECIPIENTS COULD BE A STAGGERING $50 BILLION!

9
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WHILE UNCF CERTAINLY UNDERSTANDS CONGRESSIONAL CONCERN ABOUT
PROGRAM €0OSTS, WE ALSO BELIEVE THAT THIS AND OTHER HUMAN SERVICE
INITIATIVES MUST BE VIEWED AS INVESTMENTS. STATED DIFFERENTLY, WE
B0 NOT BELIEVE FUNDING FOR STUDENT AID sSHOULD BE SACRIFICED ON THE
ALTAR OF NATIONAL SERVICE. IF THE NATION NEEDS BOTH -- AND WE
BELIEVE THEY DO =-- AND THE CONGRESS INTENDS TO AUTHORIZE BOTH
PROGRAMS, IT MUST ALSD FIND A WAY TO FUND THEM SUFFICIENTLY. IF
FUNDING IS WOT FORTHCOMING, THE CONGRESS SHOULD SIMPLY POSTPONE
LEGISLATING IN THIS AREA UNTIL THE BUDGET CRISIS IS OVER!

THESE ARE DIFFICULT TIMES AND THEY REQUIRE DIFFICULT CHOICES. UNCF
WILL HOT SUPPORT CREATION OF ANOTHER PROGRAM WITHIN FUNCTION 500
T¢ COMPETE WITH STUDENT AID, HEAD START, CHAFTER 1, AID FOR THE
HAMDICAPPED AND JOE TRAINING PROGRAMS.

WHILE WE STRONGLY SUPPORT THE PRE-EMINENT ROLE OF THIS COMMITTEE,
AND 1T5 COMPANION COMMITTEE IW THE SEHATE, WE BELIEVE THAT HEW
PROGRAMS INCLUDED IN THE MIX CAN COME FROM OTHER AREAS AND
THEREFORE BE FUNDED FROM OTHER BUDGET FUNMCTIONS. WHILE THIS MAY
CREATE SOME PROBEEMS TN THE CONGRESSIONAL CONSIDERATION OF HATIONAL
SERVICE LEGISLATION, WE BELIEVE THE RESULT WILL BE WORTH THE
EFFORT. WE HOPE THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE WILL KEEP THESE
CONCEPTS IN MIND AND KNOW THAT WE ARE READY AND WILLING TO MAXE OUR
STAFF AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE STAFF TO WORK OUT THE DETAILS OF
OUR SUGGESTIONS IN THIS AREA.

UNCF RECOMMENDATIONB REGARDING MATIOMAL BERVICE LEGISLATION

1. HATIONAL SERVICE SHOULD BUILD OH EXTENSIVE COMMUNITY SERVICE
ACTIVITIES ALREADY GOING ON IN STATES, LOCALITIES, EDUCATIONAL
INSTITUTIONS, AND HNoON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. T™0 AVOID
EXCESSIVE FEDERAL REGULATION, PROGRAMS SHOULD BE DESIGHED AS
FEDERAL-LOCAL=PRIVATE SECTOR PARTNERSHIPS TOT MINIMIZE THE
HEED FOR A NEW YBUREAUCRACY" OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENT SHOULD
BE IMPLEMENTED THROUGH EXISTING AGENCIES ©OR DIRECT
PARTHERSHIPS WITH A LOCAL, STATE AND NON-FROFIT ENTITY.

ANY HATIOHNAL PRCGRAM SHOULD ENCOURAGE OFPORTUNITIES FOR
SERVICE IN A VARIETY OF FORMS, FOR CITI2ENS OF ALL AGES, AND
INCOME LEVELS. TO THE GREATEST EXTENT POSSIBLE, VOLUNTEER
ACTIVITIES SHOULD ENCOURAGE SERVICE LEARNING EXPERIENCE WHICH
RELATES THE EDUCATIONAL PROCESS TO THE REAL WORLD. FROGRAMS

FOR DISADVANTAGED PRE-COLLEGE YOUTH SHOULD INCLUDE A STRONG
COMPONENT OF COMPENSATORY EPUCATION TD INCREASE THEIR CHANCES
OF ERROLIMERT 1IN, AND SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION, OF HIGHER
EDUCATION. ACADEMICALLY AT RISK STUDENTS, AND ALL WHO WISH
TO PURSUE THEIR EDUQATION DIRECTLY, SHOULD HAVE OPTIONS TO
PERFORM THEIR SERVICE AFTER COLLEGE =-- POSSIBLY BENEFITTING
FROM PARTIAL FORGIVENESS OF STUDENT LOANS. SERVICE DURING
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COLLEGE, ON WEEKENDS, AND VACATION PERIODS SHOULD ALSO BE AN.
QPTION, AND WOULD PARTICULARLY APPEAL TO OLOER AND PART-TIME
STUDENTS WHO MAXE UP A GROWING SHARE OF CURRENT COLLEGE
ENROLIMENTS . NATIONAL SERVICE SHOULD TRULY BE VOLUNTARY AND
PERMISSIVE, NOT MAMDATORY.

HATIONAL LEGISLATION SHOULD BE IMPLEMENTED CAREFULLY AND
DELIBERATELY. SEVERAL YEARS OF CAREFUL PLANNING SHOULD

PRECEDE ITS IMPLEMENTATION OF A MULTI-HILLIOM DOLLAR PROGRAM.
TESTIRG THE CONCEPT ON A LIMITED BASIS AND EVATLUATING ITS'
PERFORMANCE TO DETERMIRE HOW VOLUNTEERS CAN BE ABSORBED MOST
EFFECTIVELY AT ALL LEVELS IS CRITICAL, IN oOUR VIEW, TO ITS
SUCCESS. 1IN ADDITION, THIS APPROACH MAY BE NECESSARY FROM A
BUDGETARY PERSPECTIVE DUE TO CURRENT BUDGET CONSTRAINTS.

WE SHOULD EXAMINE EXISTING FEDERAL PROGRAMS TO DETERMINE THEY
MIGHT PROVIDE FURTHER INCENTIVES To STIMULATE GREATER
COMMUNITY SERVICE (I.E. COMMUNITY SERVICE-LEARNING PROVISIONS
OF COLLEGE WORK-STUDY PROGRAM). THE PEACE CORPS, VISTA AND
OTHER PROGRAMS MUST BE WOVEN INTO THE MIX AND PROPERLY
ADVERTISED AND FUNDED BEFORE WE CREATE A WHOLE WEW WHEEL!

IN CLOSING, I WANT TO COMMEND YOU MR. CHAIRMAN AND THE MEMBERS OF
THIS COMMITTEE FOR TAKING THE TIME TO HEAR ME AND TO FOCUS YOUR
ATTENTION ON THIS IMPORTANT ISSUE. SINCE I KNOW MR. WILLIAMS, AND
OTHER MEMBERS OF THIS COMMITTEE, HAVE LONG HAD AN INTEREST IN THE
IDEA OF A SUMMIT CONFERENCE ON EDUCATION -- I WOULD LIKE TO SUGGEST
THAT THE FOCUS OF THE SUMMIT BE ON NATIONAL SERVICE IN THE CONTEXT
OF THE UPCOMING 1991 REAUTHORIZATION OF THE HIGHER EDUCATION ACT.

THE CONCEPT OF NATIONAL SERVICE IS EXTREMELY IMPORTANT AND VERY
COMPLEX. SINCE THE 101ST CONGRESS CONVENED, IT HAS ALSQ BEEN THE
FOCUS OF NUMEROUS BILLS Now BEFORE THIS COMMITTEE AND OTHERS IN THE
CONGRESS« IT MAY WELL BE WISE, GIVEN THESE CIRCUMSTANCES, TO CALL
FOR A HIGHER EDUCATION/NATIONAL SERVICE SUMMIT CONFERENCE. T
THIS CONTERENCE WOULD ANALYZE AND EVALUATE THE VARIOUS NATIOMAL
SERVICE PROPOSALS IN THE INTEREST OF CREATING A PROGRAM WHICH HELPS
AMERICA'S YOQUTH SERVE THEIR COUNTRY WITHOUT PAYING THE PRICE OF
DEFERRING, AND EVEN ELIMINATING THE OPFPORTUNITY FOR COLLEGE. I
BELIEVE THIS CAN BE ACCOMFLISHED WITHOUT FOSTERING A DIFFERENTIAL
SYSTEM -- ONE FOR THE AFFLUENT AND ONE FOR THE POOR.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you, Dr. Cole. The next witness, Dr.
Edward Bloustein of Rutgers University.

Dr. BroustemN. Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, I
am Edward Bloustein, president of Rutgers, the state university of
New Jersey, an institution of some 48 thousand students, but I am
here to express the enthusiasm for the underlying principle of the
bills for national and community gservice which this committee cur-
rently has before it.

I am expressing an enthusiasm on behalf of the American Coun-
¢il on Education, an associated group of other higher educational
associations who feel very strongly that the general principle em-
bodied in the bills you are looking at is a very sound one and very
central to the educational purposes we represent.

Indeed, I feel so strongly about the issue personaily that at com-
mencement exercises last June, I made a speech in which I urged
our university community to look at community service as a re-
quirement of graduation, as a necessary and integral part of what
we mean by an educated person who leaves an undergraduate edu-
cation.

With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I would like for the record
to submit that commencement speech, not that it is memorable.
Very few of us give memorable speeches at commencements or
anytime else, but that it had such an impact in our local communi-
ty. I heard from everyone from archbishops to governors, corporate
leaders, to labor leaders.

I am in the presidency some 25 years now. I have never had a
response so strong to my urging that community service be under-
taken as a necessary part of an undergraduate education.

Chairman Hawkins. Without objection, the commencement
speech of Dr. Bloustein will be entered in the record at the conclu-
sion of his prepared statement.

Dr. BroustemN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Now,
whether as a requirement for graduation or merely as a voluntary
_program, the American Council on Education, its associated insti-
tutions, and the other associations, I speak for all, believe that
giving of yourself, that service to the community is an invaluable
educational opporfunity and we also already sadly admit, I at least
do, that we in higher education have neglected it for too lon%

I do want to add that there are modest ventures in voluntary
service, in some instances required service, throughout the United
States in a great variety of institutions. They are all interesting
and important. They are at this juncture fairly modest, however.

I would like to urge a set of principles on you as you consider the
bills before you and the first and maybe the most important one
for us as the educational institutions is that this matter be treated
as an educational matter, not as a substitute for some other social
pr .
e as educational institutions loock at community service as an
integral part of our education of the young ple for whose educa-
tion we bear the responsibility. Second, I you to recall and Mr.
Chairman, this goes directly fo your preliminary statement in
which you express skepticism about the creation of a national bu-
reaucracy for this purpose.

1
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I ask you now just to observe that we in higher education al-
ready have an infrastructure, ideally suited for both the supervi-
sion of such community service and for its supplementation in the

lar curriculum program that is possibly second to none.

e have a student affairs staff and a faculty cF‘i\a'en to just such
educational capacity and they are in place. We do not need a new
national bureaucracy for the purposes of this program. We have in
our colleges and universities a siaff, I think, well-equipped te un-
dertake through course work and through supervision of the com-
munity service programs whatever we might undertake.

other advantage I personally see in a required program of
undergraduate community service 1S that it does not put an undue
burden on the poor and give the well-to-do a free ride. Everyone,
everyone would be part of such a community service program and,
moreover, it would not be an isolated part of a student’s growing
up. It would be an integral aspect of the education they otherwise
receive in the colleges and the universities of this country.

I also urge upen you, Mr. Chairman, what my colleague, Presi-
dent Cole so eloguently stated that above all else, whatever Federal
benefits flow to making such a program work, this should be in ad-
diﬁion to and not as a substitute for a Federal system of financial
aid.

Next I urge wli}xm you that you seek in every way possible, and I
am sure you will, to build on existing programs—the Peace Corps
has been mentioned, other programs of community service or in
the field, to build on those existing programs and to build on our
educational base as you create a new structure of national and
community service.

I also urge, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, that
we make such community service available in a variety of forms to
a variet{lof different people of all age groups. I have to inform you
that within our own university as we plan to put such a program
into being, we are looking at community service, say, for our
Center for Performing Arts. .

We are looking at community service in our schools of engineer-
ing. We are looking at community service right throughout the cur-
riculum as an adjunct of the regular curricula program available
in the same period of time, available in the same period of time,
not a new burden, not an extra burden, but available in the same
period of time that an undergraduate student is otherwise qualify-
ing for the bachelor’s degree.

inally, Mr. Chairman, I want to put before you what I hope you
would have, I am sure, under any circumstances you realize would
be there, the availability of the higher education community and,
again, President Cole stated it eloquently, to sit with you and mem-
bers of the Congress and help fashion this program.

We believe we have a great deal to offer in respect with helping
to build it and we want to work with that wonderful initiative that
the Congress has already shown to make it a stronger and sounder
program.

I congratulate you and your colleagues in taking this initiative
and assure you of our continued support at the most enthusiastic
levels. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Edward J. Bloustein follows:]

fos
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Hatienal Association of Student Financlal Aid Adwinistraters




125

Mr. Chairmen and Menbers of the Committee;

1 am gdward J. Bloustein, President of Rut9ers, The Stete
University of pNew Jersey. 1 ePPreclate the opportunity to present the
vigws of rhe Americam Council on Edutation and other assotiations on
several ProPosed legislatlve intentives £or pational and communlby service.

We support the aim of all these bills, to stimulake a sense of
service to the Nation and the community as an obligation of citizenship.
This concept has been & basic renet 90 American higher education throunghout
its history. Our first colleges were privete {nstitucions Counded to
educate ministers &nd leaders for the colonies. In the early 15%th century.
teachers colleges were establizhed to meet the needs of & burgeoning publlc
school $ystem committed to equadl educationel oppotkunity, and land-grant
institutions to bring the agricultural and mechanical arks to the people.
Community colleges grew in phe 1960°'s as & gpegific response to the need;
of lotel titizens.

Today: colleqes and universities across the counrey are making
greater gfforvs tO serve ghelr O¥n conounltles and to encourage ghelr
siudents to eXxperience gych setvice. This povement has been developing for
Qecadng. For Lxamnle, Phillips Brooks House, a community Service
organization run by siudents ak Hacvard Univetsity, vecently celebrated its
75th enniversary.

At Ry own institutlon, several hundred students ate engaged in
community service through the Rubgers Compunity Gutreach Program and gther
student and faculiy and s¢atf volunteer organizations. While we applaud
and encourage these voluntary efforts: we have been interested in
considering how such efforts should resPond to the question: what ghould

an educated person know?
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I belleve that clvic education &nd 32 secvice-based learning program
will #nlarge the exPerience of our students, help reduce prejudice and
bidokry: sgtve those in speclal need: and Drovide & new basle for
describing the relationship of a universlty to its students. Thus, I have
called for a fundamental evaluation of the place of civic sducation and

community service a5 an Intedral element in under3raduate egdycation.

Toward that end, & commlttee of students., faculty apd stéff have
baen conslidering how Rutgers might commit itself t9 2 universal program of
civic gducation and gervice learning. We expect to pllat gome Programs in
the coping yebt, pnd, if we can secure financial suppart for our proposals.
wa hope to have a program of community service that le Part of 3 atructured
intellectual experlence in place the following year. We ghatl also look tao
those yho $har® our yieys to develop straktegies to encourags centinusd
service, beyond that which will be a part of a mandatoty course, Here, we
shall need to find ways to reduce the bucden of debt on those who otherwise
will have to work to afford to continue in school.

Simitar actlvitiss are under why at hundreds of other [nstitutions.
The Campus Compact. organized in 1985 as a Project of the Educatlon
cenmission of the States, jolns some 150 institutions in 389 states in a
coalition to advance community service by sponstring projects to combat
adult illiteracy and to tutor academically at-risk ¢lemeéntary and secondary
students. Campus Compact recently establiched state compacts in
California. Michlgan, ana Pennsylvaniar others are bein9 orfanized.

Another network, the Campus Qutreach Oppoartunity Lea%ue, launched
by students in 1984, now numbers 450 colleges and 208 pacisnal and local
nenprofit organizatisns working Jeintly throu$h workshops: technical
assistances and an extensive variety of community service prolects to make

such opportunities more readily available %90 studenkts.




The Partn#rship for Service-Laarning: gseablished in 1982, now
numbers 40 collaPes and unjversities whose programs ynjte academic study
and community service, so rhat the service makes the study jmmediate and
relevant, and the stvdy relates L0 and supports the service.

Some colleges have established a community service requivement for
graduation. 1In addition to the STowing pnumher of service opPortunities jnp
cellege, some private agoncies provide Peace Corps-type experience after
graduation. For example, some 354 volunteers f£rom 115 public ang Private
colleges are curcentlY serving one-year terms in the Jesuit Volunteer

Corps: Performing social service work in 50 cities throughout the pation.

Thus, it should be clear that the concept of natjonal and community

gervice i{c warmlY supPerted and sncouraged hy pmerican highet education.
For that Teason. We are pleased that a nunber of lagislative proposals have
heen introduced to axtend service opportunities to greater numbers of
citizens. -

We f£ind much to commend and support jn each of these bills. Rep.
L=on Panetea's bill, HR T17 lineroduced by Sepator Dodd as § 3223, is
Feared especially to the needs of gisadvantaged youeh. FRep. FRobert
Garcia’s bill, HR 1§15 {introduced by Senator Pell as § 576), would
establish & linited pilot project to demonstrate how A national program
night be pullt on the foundation ©f existind State Programs. Rep. Major
Owens' bill, HR 1947 {introduced bY Senater Kennedy as 5 650). would
encourage schools dnd communicy adencies to creats new opPortunities for
youth to Serve their communities.

Rep. Dave McCurdy's bill, HR 560 {introduced by Senator Nunn as
§ 3} would aestablish & large-scale national program administered by a

nongovernnental Corporation for National Service. and bY state and local
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councils. 1t would involve retired citizens as well as Youth. ReP. pDavid
Bonior’s bill, HR 1000 (introduced by Senator Mikulski ag § 408) would
encoura% weekend and part-time service activities for citizens of all
ades,

Three bills sPonsored bY Senator Aunpers (5 539, § 540 and S S4t)
would Publicize and extend cutrent provisions of law providing deferment
and cancellation of student loans for voluntar¥ service in tax-sxempt
organizations: the Peace Corps. and VISTA. ReP., Connie Morella's bill {HR
995) would stipulate 2 naticnal competition among gualified undec3radudtes
to enter training and service in the Psace CorPs.

In additions the Bush Administration i%s expected toe make its own
recopmendations Shortly. The fresident has spPhasired his own belief in
the importance of fostering a life-long spirit of service. and has promised
to propose a national Youth Entering Ssrvice {YES) inltiative., The program
would be administered by a public-private foundation entitled the YES to
Amepica Foundation, and would channel the enerdy and creativity of yound
pesple into existing communit¥-based organirations.

These various approaches sbviously serve a variety of different
purpeses. Some of them do not relate directlY to higher education's
sPecific capacities for education and training and community setvice.
Hevertheless wg believe that these sevaral Purposes are all walid and
worthy of considepation in developing sound patjonal policies and programs:
wg urge the Committee to combine the best features of sach. Without

attempting to prescribe the Jetails ¢f such broad legislation. we suggest

the following criteria to reflect the perspective of the higher education

communiby:
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1. Any educationdl pepefits earned throudh voluntary sService

should be in addition ko, or as Part of=-vather than in place of-=the

fedecal SYstenm of need-based ajd.

This system, which has been developed with bipartisan support over
theee decades, 1ls desidned to achieve the vitsl national PucPose of
assuting Postsecandary cpportunities po all students ywho have the abllity.
but lack the financial tesources, to attend the jnstitutions best suitad to
their needs.

gne of the goals of these prograas is td stimulate awateneSs very
early in life that higher education i aceessible to all able gtydents,
even {f thelr families cannot provide pthe financial ¢esoutces. Anather
goal is t0 gnable those wha desite short-term yocational pPrograms and
credentials ather than a bachelor’s degree to phtain the skills necessary
to Support themselves and their families. Mjllions of students and thelir
families dePend on the federal gOVOINMEnt to continue its commitment Lo
these programs.

Undet mopst of the lagislative Proposalit, pational Secvice would
complement the goals of the current student aid Programs: voiunteers Who
commit themselves to A tecm gf service would =arn penefits that could be
used to help meet college costs, The Mcturdy-Nunn bill, however, would
phase out eligibility for current programs and make national service the
sole criterion for assistance pg mMOSt gtudents. This would revoke the
national commitment to postsecondary oppottunities established three
decades ago, when President Eisenhower proposed legislation which became
the Naticnal Defense Education Act of 1958. Ag he said at the time:

“The secutity of the Ndtion tequires phe fullest developPment of the
mental resources and technical skills gf its youn¥ men and women,..HWe WUSt

increase our effocts to identify and educate MOLe of the talent of our

]
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Nation. This reQuires programs that will give assurance that 0o student of
ability will be denied an opportunity for hiGhetr ¢ducation because of
financial need."

N HWe stil) have 2 1cnd waY to 9o to achisve the 9oals of developing
cur talents to the fullest, and assuring postsecondary opportunities far
all qualified students who lack the n=cessary financial resources.
Currently 73 percent of low-income, high-ability high school graduates ge
on to college, compared with 93 percent of those from higher-income
families.

Requiring national service# as a Precondition for federal student
assistance would geverel¥ restrict postsecondary opportunities. The
McCurd¥Y-Nunn Bbill it designed to gffer 700,000 volunieer DPogitions a Ye=arJ
current federal ProJrams as2is5t some six million recipients, including over
two million new studcnts each year. If the prodram wers to be conductead on
a grale sufficient to accommodate all current recipisnt: of student atd, it
would cost 1ln the range of $30 to §$50 billion annually.

To be educationally sound, le9islation must provide optlens for
sarvice during and after postsecondacy =ducation, &5 well as before. Th.e
report on college persistence yzgued last month by the Hational Center for
Education Statistics found that students who start collede upon graduation
from hi9h schoo) have 2 Significantly greater chance of attaining a
bachelor's degree: three—quarters of 1980 high school graduwates whe
antered a four-Year institution immediatelyY and persist#q full time nad
earned a baccalaursate by 1986; only 21 percent of thoge who d=layed entcy
had completed th# degre¢e by then. For low-income students {(who tend to
have pooc#r academic Preparation). the completion tate was B Percenk: for

high-income students. the rate was 24 percent.

:
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Thus, requiring service before tollege would be especially damaging
to low-income and minocity students, whe disproportionately come from )
disadvantaged backgrounds and whe will constitvte oneuthird of all
school-age children by the year 2000. Creating such obstacles to
successful Postsecondar¥ sducation for so many of pyur youth would also have
serious conseguences for th# national economy: surveys indicate that the
vast majority of new jobs cr#ated in the next two decades will Tequirle some
kind of postsecondary education.

We believe strongly that national service legislation should be
compatible with the federa) aid s¥stem, not designed to replace jt, whil=
the current system n#eds to be reviewed and may need adjustm#nt. it
provides access to postsecondary education for some six million students.
many of whom would be unable to att#nd coll#ge without assistance. Hane of
these students receives a "free ride.™ 1lp fact, they apd their families
conttribute the largest share of their educational costs. and most eacn
their way by working or berrowing mgainst future income.

Nearly 90 percent of 511 students or their spouses, and nearly
9% percent 0f all pell Grant cteripients in the collegiate gector, work
either durind the suymmer ot school Yeae or both to finance their aducation.
The ne=ed-analysis provisions of the Higher Education Act require & minimum
annual contribution from student income of at least $700-$90¢ for dePendent
stvdents apd $1,200 for independent students. 1n reality., needy students
make & much more substantial contribution to their educational costs.
Single Pell Grant reciplents contribute an average of 52,500 » year, and
marriesd recipi#nts and their Spouses gontribute an avarage of §7,0(00 per

yearr rtowards their educational exPenses. 1In addition, virtuwally all




colleges and universities participare in the C9llege Work-Study program,
which helps nesdy students mect thies self-help reqguirement amd, in
addition. providee millions of dollavs in other job opportunities both on-
and off=campus.

!, Hatiopal legiglation should bnild on the sxtensive comaunity

secvice activities alcsady bejng copgucted in grapeg and localities,
wducational ingtitutiont and Public interest organizations.

To avoid excessive federal regulation, programs should be designed
as federal-state-private sector PartnecshiPs. To mininize the need for a
new bureaucracy, eliglbility determinations and overgight of community
setvice Programs ghould be conducred by & guasi-governmental earlty with
representation fron' the scates and local Yovernrent, public and indePendent
colle9es and universities, the private sector. and other key particlpants.

Each of the bills, as well as the antlcipated propesal of the Bush
pdministration, 18 sensitive to this criterion.

3, Any rational prodram should epncoyra9e @BPortunities for
asrvice in a variety of fopms, for citizens ©f all income levels,

The bills pefore the Commictes OFfer & variety of models for

addressing this criterion, ftThe McCurdy-Nuan bill speciflcally iacludes
retired ¢ltizens;: the Bonior-Mikulski bill and phe OWens-Kennady bill
provide service incentives to citizens of all ages,

T0 the greatest sxtept posSsible. yolupt=er activities shoild
encourage Gakvice=learning sxperience yhich relates the =ducaticnal process

to the Teal world. Most of the current bllls do pot place specific

emphasie on activitles which encourage such 3 relattonshiP between learning

and working iz a fleld relevant to the individual’s future career {although
the Owens-Kenned¥ bill requires all projects to include age-appropriate

lmarning components for all particiPants).




Programs tor disadvantaged Pre-college yonth shonld inclnde a
strong component of comPentatory =dncation to increase their chances of
encrollment in, &nd gncoessiul completion of, postsecondacy sducation. The
Panetta-Dodd bill doeg this by regriring that 10 percent of project Eunds
be sarmpatked Eor remedial edncational prodcams while in service.

Academically at-risk students, and all who wish to pursue their
education directly. should have oPtions to perform their secvice aftar
collede and throughout their 1ifetime. Service during college, on weekenas
and vacation periods. shorkd alse be apn option. and wonld alpeal

particularly to pldery and Part-time students who make up a Jrowing share of

college enroliwments. The Bonlor-Miknlski bill provides such oPtions im the

torm of gervice that cowld be performed two weekends a month and two weeks
a y=ar, ar on 2 part-time basis. The Brmpers bills ofter another jpcentive
tor service atter ¢ollege by extending current Provisiens tor loam
torgivensss and rePayment deterral gor service.

4. Hational legislation should be implemeated carefnlly and

daliberately.
Several years of caretful planaind shonld be Provided betere 2

lavger—-scale prodram is established, to test the concept oh & limited basis
and determine how veluntesrs con be abserbed most effectively at the state
and l4acal levels, and what kind Of activities are most approPriste.

The Garcia-Pell bill ls a model foc this criterion. offering a
limited pilot program to gstablish a tive-year test before considering
turther legislation. The Fanetta-Dodd bill also Provides 3 useful study by
A natiomal commistion to svaluate the results of the DroSram and make

recommenditions gor changes.
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5. Exigting fedechl Pro9cams ghould be sxamined to detecmine
whether they aight provide fycther incentives to ghimylate community
service,

The Bumpers bills offer en eaxample of how loan forgiveness and
deferral of repayments gould @ncourdge service activities. The community
service-learning provisions of the College Work-Study progrdm should alse

b= reviswed to determine how they could be uytilized more fully.

Any legislatien drafted 3¢cording to these guidelines wnula promote
both increased voluntary service to the Hation and greaber educational
oppottunities for all citizens. We Strongly support. and stand Teady to

assists all such efforts.
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COMMUNITY SERVICE
A New Requirement
for the Educated Person

EDWARD ] BLOUSTEIN

| hope this 222d commencement of Rutgers, The
State University of New Jersey, is as happy an oc-
casion for you as it is for me, It should signify a

provocative new beginning for you, another pivotal
point in your life. You will now begin to employ the

many gifts and talents you developed here toward the
goals you choose to pursue. On behalf of all of us at
Rutgers, let me congratulate you and your families
on your many accomplishments and let me wish you
well in your chosen pursuit.

Besides marking a new beginning for graduates,
commencement provides us all with the occasion for
rededication to some of the principles that enlarge
and magnify what is best in each of us and in the
hurman spirit generally. Today I want to talk about

Address dclivered on May 26, 1988, at the 222d Comunencemsut Ex-
ercises, Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey, New Brumswick,
New Jersey
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two personal and political shibboleths of the 1980s,
and ask you whether they make sense for any of us or
for our nation.

I must confess to begin with, however, that, of
recent years, 1 and many other college and university
presidents have hesitated to express moral convictions
because we felt we would be violating the principle of
the moral neutrality of the university. This is, in-
deed, a most important principle and I would not
risk abridging it.

But some of us have mistaken teaching for preach-
mng. We certainly should not expound a moral creed;
we should not ask that what we say be believed be-
cause of the authority of our offices. We abandon our
calling, however, f we neglect, as too many of ys do,
moral teaching. What I mean js that, as university
presidents, we must invite thoughtful discussion of
moral issues as we invite it of any other substantive
issue. We should not exact moral conformity of our
students any more than we should of our faculty, but
we should express our moral concerns, and ask our
students, no Jess than our faculty, to consider them.
That is what I intend to do now.

I put before you two tendencies of our time that I
believe to be fundamentally wrong. They inhibit the
satisfaction to be found in our private lives, and they

.‘-i:“.“!
o

o
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also impair the attainment of our public purposes.
Think about them with me.

There is a distinct sense afoot in the nation that the
battle against bigotry we began to wage so intensively
in the 1960s has now been won. This is partly fed by
the general reaction against some of the excesses of
the '60s. It expresses as well, however, some dis-
couragement after years of effort that our exertions
have not been as fruitful as we would have liked. It
also reflects a return to the simplistic notion that the
strains associated with the clash of cultures we find
ourselves experiencing would be dissolved, and a new
strength of common purpose achieved, if only
everyone would adopt the ways of the dominant

white, male, anglo-Christian society. Finally, I sug-

gest that attention to bigotry has waned because
many of our nation’s leaders have, in effect, declared
that the war against it has been won, and have dis-
plac:1 its position in the national consciousness with
other priorities.

The biceer fact is, however, that racism, sexism,
homophobia, religious intolerance, fear of and
animosity toward "foreigners,” and such other forms
of provincialism are still very much with us. Tley
still eat at our nation’s vitals. The differences among
us will not simply go away, and our failure to accom-
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modate judiciously to themn mars this nation’s ability
to achieve the greatness s political philosophy
promises; 1t also impairs this university’s capacity to
achieve true distinction.

Declaring the war won when it has not been has
had grave and unfortunate consequences. Among
other things, it has emboldened the bigots among us,
and this and other campuses, as well as other com-
munities throughout the nation, have paid a painful
price as a result,

The most compelling reason to accelerzie the task
of rooting out bigotry is that it unjustly and crueliy
encumbers the lives of people and causes them: pain.
We must act aggressively and affirmatively, not to
give those subject to victimization some special ad-
vantage, but simply to assure surcease from neglect
and deprivation.

There is another reason to do so as well, however,
a reason that is frequently neglected. Our failure to
redress forms of oppression is not only unjust to
those who suffer it, but it also impedes the advantage
we might otherwise derive from the richness and
strength that the differences among us offer.

Our nation is comprised of a more imposing as-

sernblage of races, cultures, religions, and
nationalities than the world has ever known. As a
result, we have people-to-people connections with vir-
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tually every life experience on the globe, linking us
as no political ambassador ever could to all parts and
all peoples of the world, from Africa to Europe, and
now, ever more so, to Asia and South and Central
Aanerica. This is sarely a capability comparable in its
significance for world leadership to productive fac-
tories and fertile fields, armed battalions, or nuclear
warheads. Unfortunately, it has recently been gravely
neglected.

In terms of the life of this university, our faculty

and staff, and the men and women we enroll, come
from an uncommonly broad range of backgrounds.
They offer us as a university a unique strength in ad-
vancing the cause of liberal education.

Among other things, liberal education promises to
overcormne what the philosopher Francis Bacon called
the Idols of the Den, the mistaken attachment to
beliefs and values for no other reason than that they
are our own. The very wide range of differences .
among us enables us to appreciate a breadth of
knowledge, culture, and experience which takes us
beyond the narrow confines of our individual begin-
nings. What could be more central to our education-
al mission!

Lt me turn next to another contemporary shib-
boleth, a distortion of a concept central to the nature
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of our democratic heritage: individualism. Of recent
years it has become- disturbingly fashionable for

people to live as if the human condition were largely

the product of personal choice and effort in the free
marketplace of life, and as if greed and private
wealth were sovereign virtues. The attitude is
epitomized in two slang slogans. "I've got mine,
Jack,” and "I'm doing my own thing” have, unfor-
tunately, found their way into our mores and gained
currency as latter-day political articles of faith.

To be sure, human choice and effort are important
and they do shape, to a significant degree, the
human condition. And, of course, material goods con-
tribute greatly to both the private and the public
good.

But the naked pursuit of individual interest and
material gain is a hopelessly inadequate source of per-
sonal satisfaction. It 1s also a thorough distortion of
the ideal of civic virtue in the democratic state.
Moreover, it is a dangerously obtuse response to the
global condition in which we find ourselves.

This anemic ethic has flourished on ignorance and
isolation. Born of a poverty of cultural imagination,
it explains why so many among us are without
material want, but are wasted and unfulfilled emo-
tionally and spiritually. Proceeding from a
xenophobic sense of self, it causes many of us 10 simp-
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ly cut ourselves off from the poor, the dispossessed,
and the downtrodden. It is that same form of self-ab-
sorption that allows us as a people to confuse those
nations which recoil before our power from those
which respect and admire our purposes.

All too often, as individuals and as a people, we
act out the role of the Lone Ranger, riding the moral
prairie alone in our righteousness, aloof from com-
munity and allies, at a remove from those who think
and live differently than we do. We segregate our-
selves in cocoons of homogeneity. Sometimes it takes
the form of sequestered housing, sometimes that of
seeking out schooling arrangements which isolate our
children from the very communities they should come
to understand and care for. Sometimes it takes the
form of failing to consult valued allies. In some of
our colleges and universities, it takes the form of
neglect of the systematic study of foreign languages
and culture. For individuals, colleges and univer-
sities, and for our nation, while there may be smug
cornfort in such isolation, it portends personal and
political failure.

I believe that, as individuals and as a nation, we

must substantially increase our effort to learn from
and accommodate to those among us with different
cultures and life styles. We who arc educated rmust
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reach out to the uneducated; those of us who have a
full measure of the world’s wealth must hold out our
hands and our hearts to those who lack even a bare
portion of it. Giving is no less part of the good life
than receiving. This truism is as sound a principle of
foreign policy as it is of personal gratification.

Higher education already makes important con-
tributions to teaching the virtues of sharing and
caring, but I propose that we do more. I propose that
we look at community service as a necessary comn-
ponent of the learning experiences which constitute a
liberal education.

I am extremely proud of the several hundred Rut-
gers students who now work in the Rutgers Com-
munity Outreach program—tutoring students in the
inner city schools, assisting in hospitals, serving
meals to those who cannot serve themselves, acting as
tour guides at local musewmns, and engaging in many
other forms of community service. I congratulate the
students at Rutgers College who have proposed com-
munity service courses that are now being adobted by

our faculty. I urge that we consider going one step
further by making service to others a requirement of
the undergraduate liberal arts degree.

Everyone would agree, I am sure, that such service
would contribute greatly to the communities in which
our universities live and are nourished. In these
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terms, student commitment to community service
would constitute a partial return to the commonweal
of what they received from it.

Such service as part of an undergraduate education
would have a much broader significance, however. It
would constitute a valued ingredient of liberal educa-
tion. It would help educate our students to the world
of the sick and the aged, the world of the deprived
and dispossessed, a world which looms before us and
which we can no longer continue to neglect except at
our moral and political peril.

This and other American universities must now ex-
plore ways to enlarge the liberal component of educa-
tion by instituting a requirement of ¢ivic service.
Even if we were to suppose that sorne portion of the
student body might undertake it unwillingly, without
compassion, or with disdain for its ethical quality, it
would find justification m the expansion of the

horizons of feeling and experience it would afford.
Would it be very different from requiring our stu-
dents to read and write in terms some of them will

never thereafter have need or appreciation for? Why
not an introduction nto social and cultural literacy,
reflecting our time and place, as well as an introduc-
tion into mathematical, aesthetic, or historical
analysis?
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1 hope I have given you some reason to believe that
the campaign against bigotry deserves once again to
be put at the very center of our national agenda, and
at the very center of this university’s agenda as well.
Let our diversity be seen for what it is, a source of
our strength, not of our weakness,

But nurturing it requires that we abandon the shal-
low image of individualism that has recently been in
the ascendent, in favor of a2 more robust one. We
must rediscover, as a nation and within this univer-
sity, the satisfactions of caring for others as we would
have them care for us; we must rediscover and teach
civic responsibility as a liberalizing art. I believe that,
in finding ways to modulate our individualism with
altruism, we will thereby foster greater individual
gratification, and bring ourselves into greater har-
mony with an increasingly heterogeneous and tumul-

tuous world.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you, Dr. Bloustein. The next witness
is Dr. Robert Corrigan, San Francisco State University.

Dr. CorricaN. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am
Robert A. Corrigan, president of San Francisco State University,
and chairman of the Board of the Association of Urban Universi-
ties and I deeply appreciate this opportunity to appear on behalf of
the urban sector.

San Francisco State University in brief is a relatively young in-
stitution with 28 thousand students, many of them first generation
college students. We are slightly more minority than we are major-
ity at the undergraduate level. We are increasingly more female
than we are male and our students come from the lower of the
income groups in the area.

I speak, therefore, as the president of an institution that is,
indeed, very representative of those urban institutions that I have
been asked to speak for today. The Association of Urban UmverSI-
ties mlght be called an organization whose middle name is “com-
munity.

We believe unequivocally and enthusiastically in the obligation
of the university to the city. It follows from that that we are also
enthusiastic about the concepts on which you are taking testimony
today and we like all or parts of most of the bills that are before

you.

AUU believes that none of the bills before you should either be
discarded unconsidered, or enacted unread. Your work on these
bills remains, of course, cut out for you. Let me guickly summarize
what we believe might constitute a useful mixture of the bills that
are before you.

The Morella-Pell Bill, H.R. 985, should be a part of what you fi-
nally produce in our opinion. San Francisco State University,
which enjoys a richly multi-ethnic and multi-cultural student body
and which stands facing the Pacific Basin where so many worlds
meet, is perhaps naturally receptive to ideas like the Peace Corps.

We urge its adoption, as a demonstration project, and as part of
a larger community service package. The Bonior-Mikulski Bill,
H.R. 1000, provides a useful basis for building on in the drafting of
a more comyrehensive bill, but we would suggest a few modifica-
tions.

First of ail, we believe that your final product should ke enacted
on i1 demonstration scale and with a very strong sunset clause in
the bill and in the committee report. The community service pro-
gram may be so vitally important a new idea that the Congress
should mandate a thorough evaluation of its first three or four
years of operation before giving it a longer life or a wider door.

A five-year authorization might be a reasonable period. The
number of participants we suggest could be a little more modest
than the 750,000 total provided in H.R. 1000. Perhaps 50,000 a year
might be a good limit, allowing volunteers who get off to a good
start to continue on in service for two or three years, and allowing
losses through attrition to be replenished.

If the 103rd Congress finds the program to be as successful as I
think they will, they should then think about enlarging the scope
of the program. The Bonior-Mikulski Bill does not require that -

15,
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service be performed in the applicant’s hometown or where the ap-
plicant’s college i3 located.

On balance, perhaps, it should not, but it might be useful to ex-
amine Senator Kennedy’s bill which mandates linkage between the
school and the community in designing a project. Universities and
colleges are already experienced sponsors of community service.
Their experience; we argue, should not be overlooked.

At this point in the record, Mr. Chairman, I have included some
information on San Francisce State University and its volunteer
programs. Qf great importance to everyone involved is a need to
assure that the Federal costs of community service be.carried in
the budget functions where the services to be performed would nor-
mally be carried.

The same principle, we argue, should apply to the rewards for
service. The vouchers envisaged in the Bonior and McCurdy Bilis,
the rewards should be seen as a cost of the service performed, and
budgeted accordingly.

Tﬁe Bonior-Mikulski Bill is exactly right in specifying only that
service should be performed by volunteers of whatever age or phys-
ical condition who are fit for service and for the particular service
that is seen in the individual case, )

Mr. Chairman, this committee’s own reports have been telling
the world for a dozen ]{ears that education is not just for kids, that
the average Ia_lge of college students is going up. Don’t change that
provision of H.R. 1000, whatever else you might think about doing
and let me, Mr. Chairman, add one here.

In my opinion, none of the pending bills are needed to encourage
the willingness of the American people, young or old, to serve their
country and their fellow citizens. Patriotism and the will to public
service do net have to be rescued. They were never lost.

I understand that Mr. Bonior and Senator Mikulski are already
working on language which would soften the idea of a “non-trans-
ferability of vouchers,” by permitting clder volunteers to transfer
their vouchers to their children or, indeed, their grandchildren.

Again, because of the increased age and diversity of the school-
going population, we would recommend that the vouchers be trans-
ferrable between generations in both directions. It might do good
things for the extended family to allow young volunteers to trans-
fer their vouchers to their parents or to their grandparents, as well
as in the more conventional direction.

While we are on that subject, let me as president of an urban
university voice, perhaps, an unorthodox view. Many of the bills
before you offer educational benefits as a reward. Two of them
offer either education or housing as a reward. It would be worth
your while, perhaps, to examine language making vouchers.usable
towards paying the costs of other public benefits require user fees
or premiums.

Let me look as I come to a conclusion at the history, perhaps, of
our nation’s education policy. Senator Mikulski in a recent speech
to the Association of Urban Universities observed that our country
invented the community college and night school because of the
wide sgectrurn of our population who wanted to learn and she wasg
r}ilght, ut those inventions were the creations of state and local au-
thorities.
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This Congress hag itself made three great higher education in-
ventions in the past century and some in each was built, not on the
ruins, but on the shoulders of its predecessor.

In the middle of the last century, the Congress invented the land-
grant university. It js useful to remember that in creating the land-
grant universities, that Congress did not dismantle or expropriate
the great private colleges of America.

Almost a half-century ago, the Congress enacted the GI Bill of
1944. That legislation obviously rewarded one generation of war
veterans. Perhaps even more, it made the dream of going to college
a realizable goal for millions of young people who would never
have thought it a possibility, if not for the example the GI Bill of-
fered o their brothers and sisters and fathers and mothers.

You did not terminate the land-grant institutions to pay for the
GI Bill. It, in fact, paid for itself many times over. Twenty-five
years ago, you and this very committee offered the nation a third
great invention—the idea of need-based student aid, not an entitle-
ment by any reasonable use of that term.

The Need-Based Aid Program said simply that you would help
remove the barriers of price that stand in the doorways of higher
education institutions of whatever siripe. If a student can prove
need, you said, he should have or she should have help to the
extent of that need. You did not do away with the GI Bill when you
invented need-based aid. Both remain serving different clienteles
and meeting different purposes.

On all three occasions, I am afraid, you were warned that you
were threatening higher education, that the campus would never
look the same again and those who said that were half right. Qur
campuases do not look like they did in the 18405 or in the 1930s or
even In the '50 and ’60s. They look better, more diverse, more
usefu] to the communities in which they are rooted into the stu-
dents they serve.

The community service/national service experiment may be the
fourth great invention, building on the basis of what you have al-
ready done and done extremely well without tearing down need-
based aid in the process. We urge you to be innovative and daring
in the field of community service and to take chances on our young
people and on our educational system. Neither, we argue, will dis-
appoint you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Robert A. Corrigan follows:]
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PR. CORRIGAN: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee on Education
and Labor: I am Robert A. Corrigan. President of San Francisce
State UniversitY, and Chairman of the Board of the Association of
Urban Universities. I deeply appreciate the oPPortunit¥ to aPPear
on behalf of the yrban sector.

AUV is an orJanization whose middle name is “"communit?”. We
believe uneQuivocallY and enthusiasticallY in the ebligatien of
the university to the cit¥. It follows from that that Wwe are
enthusiastic about the concePts on which You are taking testimony
today-—and we like z1] or parts of most of the bills before you.

I will begin. against the advice of some of my colleafues.
and some of yours. by repeating one thing you have heard over and
over aYain. While the idea and Practice of communityY service are
noet néw to the uwniversity, nor to ghe‘Congress. it is important
that once afain ye thank the Members of Condress who have focused
our attention by introducing legislatien in this area.
Representative Morella and $Senator Pell: Reﬁresentatives Martinez
and Panetta and saﬁator Dcad; Representative McCurdy and Senator
Nunn;.RePresentative Ponior and Senator Mikulskis and
Representative Owens and Senator Kennedy. To each ©of these
legislators. and te the President for wis YES proPosal, a voice of
thanks is owed.

SecondlY., AUU believes that none of the bills should either
be discarded uncensidered, nor enacted unread.

Let me summarize what AUU believes would constitute a

useful mixture of the bills before you.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Education and Labor
April 19, 1989

The Morezlla-Pell bill., H. R. 985, should be a part of what
¥You finallY Produce. San Francisco State University. whieh enjo¥s
2 richlY multi-ethnic and multi-cultural student body. and which
stands facing the Pacific Basin where 5© man¥ worlds meet, is
Perhaps paturallY receptive to ideas like the Peace CorPs. We urde
its adoption. a% a demonstration Project. and as part of a lar%er
communit¥ gervice Package.

The Bopior-Mikulski bill., HR 1000, Provides a useful basis
for building opn in the drafting of a more comprehensive Bill, But,
like Mr. Jefferson‘s first draft of the peclaration ©of
Independence, it peeds a little work.

First. all of Your final Product. should P2 enacted en 2
demonstration scale, and with a very strong sunset clause ip the
bill and in the Committee Report. The community service prodram
ma¥Y be s© vitallY important 2 new idea that the Congress gheuld
mandate & thorou¥h evaluation of its first three or four Years cof
operation before - ‘sing it a longder life or 2 wider door. A five-
Year authorization is not anp unreasonablé peried.

The number of ParticiPants could be a little more modest than
the 750.000 total Provided in HR igop. 50.000 each year might be
a good limit. allowing volunteers who Jet Off €0 & good start to
continue on in service for two ©r three years, and allowind losses
through attrition te be replenished. If the lo03rd Condress fipds
the proYram to be as successful as I think they will., the¥ should

then think about enlarging the scoPe ©f the prodram.

[
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Education and Labor
April 19, 1989

The Bonior~-Mikulski biil dees not reQuire that servicé be
performed in the aPPlicant's home town or where the aPPlicants
collede is located. ©On balance, it should net. But it might be
useful tes examine Senator Kennedy's bill which mandates linkage
between the school and the community in designing a Prolject. Some
middle ground would be useful to exPlore. Universities and collefes
are already exPerienced sPonscrs of community service. Their
eXperience should not be disregarded.

We have heard, Mr. Chairman, that the current Jeneration of
students is npeot interested in community service. Let me tell you
hew the students at San Francise¢o State University are actively
addressing social Problems through voluntary community service.
With 40% of SFSU graduates rePorting that gork internship and
volunteer eXperience is their gindle most important factor in
obtaining a Job, I su9gdest that the will to make a Positive imPact
on the community's needs and the ways to accomPlish this are as
close as the Personal and career geals of each student. While
students are strongly oriented toward Personal achievement, they
are also cabPable of making Positive Juddement about the value of
Personal involvement in community affairs., once they are informed
of service-learning oPPortunities and encouraged by the positive

experiences of their Peers.

Y
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DR. ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Eduycation and Labor
April 19, r9a9

Since 1973, an averade of 30 grudents Per semester at SF3U
have chosen to contribute 10 to 20 hours A week serving as
ParaProfessional staff runnind and develoPind a student—
administered, faculty supervised exPeriential educatien ahd
communit¥ outreach Program. This Pregram has the ambitious aim of
combining student needs for life/work/service exPerience with
community needs for cost-free assistance to human services. This
core JgrouP ©f students, called the Compunity Involvement Center
{¢I¢)., works tirelessly each semester to recruit and enpable

hundreds more students to volunteer in non-profit agefcies oyuerside

the camPus. Whereas the limited scoPe of man¥ university-based

Programs often lessens their attractiveness te students at larSe,

the CIC has grown to become the central lsocatien on campus for
giving referrals. advice, trainind and suPPort te students whose
collede Years are enriched by the volunteer exPerience.

CI¢ thrives on jts interdisciplinary and multi-ethnic
character and its abilit¥ to¢ serve students and faculty needs in
all the university's academic disciPlines. students finding
volunteer oPPortunities with CIC are referred to faculty and
fieldwork Prodrams throudhout the campus in order the integrate
serving and learnins.

At the beginning of each academic year. CIC sponsors a two-
da¥, on-camPus Volunteer OPPortunities Fair in which 40 communic¥
ggencies ParticiPate, answeriny iQQuiries from some 3,000 students

about volunteer oPPartunities.
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ROBERT A. CORRIE&N
House Committee on Education and Labor
April 19, 1989

During the year:. CIC spudent staff members make over 150
sPeeches to some 7,000 students in selected classes. The CIC staff
Provides students with over 2.700 voluntesr Placement sitss
organized under such headings as Youth and senior service; physical
and mental health Programs: ledgal and human rights advocacys
education, literacy and school Programs; crisis intervention: needs
of the honeless., and more.

CIC has its own academic Volunteer Internship Program.
through which nearly 400 students a Year earn credit £or
volunteering 8 hours a week, attending a weeklY seminar and keeping
a journal. Perconal growth and social :onseiougness. as well as
carcer development, are facilitated through the integration of
subjective exPerience, transferrable skills training and cognitive
learning., The close working relationshiP between CIC students and
facultyY, at the academic and the Program level, is a model for

demonstrating how much can pe accomPlished when students are given

extensive resPonsibilitY for communitY as well as intellectual

endeavors.

Mr. Chairman. let me extend to You and your colleagues a very
warm invitation t¢ come to our camPus and see some of those
programs in action. And let me admit that you could have a similar
exPerience at universities and colledes in esach of Your own

districts.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN .
E;:gg gngiggge on Education and Llabor
Let me, Mr. chairman. add one word there. In my oPinion.

none of the Pending bills are needed t® encourafe the willingness
of the American PeoPle. Young or old. to serve their country. and
their fellow citizens. Patriocism and the will to Public service
2o not have te be revived., They were never lost.

0f great imPortance to ever¥Yone involved is the need to
azsure that the Federal costs of community service be carried in
the Budfdet Functions where the services te be performed wyould
normallyY be carried. Conservation services, of the sort envisaded
by the Martinez-Panetta-Dodd bills should be carried in Function
300. If the national service is to be Performed in the military.
its costs should be carried in Function 050. If, and only if., the
service itself has an educational purpose. it ghould be carried in
Function 500. And cthe same PrinciPle should aPPlY to the rewards
for service--the wvouchers envisaged in the BRonier and McCurdy
bills. The rewards should be seen as a cest of the service
performed, and budgeted accordingly.

The Bonior~Mikulski bill is exactlyY right in sPecif¥ing only
that service should be performed by wvolunteers, of whatever age or
Physical condition, who are “fit for service"--and for the
particular gervice envisaged in the individual case. ¥r. Chairman,

this Committee's own rePorts have been tellind the world for a

dozen years that education is not Just for kids--that the average

age of college students is going up. Don't chandge that Provision

of HR 1000: whatever else you do.

19~-864 0 - 89 ~ 6
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee ol Education and Laber
April 19, 1989

Clearly, it would be consistent with the intentions of the
sPonsors of a1l these bills to add to the final ledislatien strong
anti-discrimination language--covering age., seX, ph¥sical
disability, reli@ion and race. By the same token, I would strondly
urge that the final bill centain lanQuaCe assuring that the final
bill protect the wages and working conditions of those peoPle
alresady performing service.

I understand that Mr. Bonior and Senator Mikulski are already
working on landuade which would soften the idea ¢f the “"non-
transferability of vouchers”"., by Permitting older volunteers to
transfer their vouchers to their children and grandehildren. Again
because of the increased Aage and diversityY ©f the school-going
pobPulation, We would recommend that the vouchers be transferable
between generations in both direetions. It might d¢ good things
for the extended family to allow young volunteers to transfer their
vouchers te their parents or grandParents, as well as in the more

canventional direetion.

While we are on that subject, let me, as President of an

urban university., voice an unerthodox thouvht., Many of the bills
before you offer pducational benefits as a reward. Two of them
offer either education ¢r housing as a reward, It would be wortk
Your while to examine lanJuade making vouchers usable toward PaYing
the costs of other public benefits which require user fees or
Premiums. I think of the premiums on Catastrophic Health Insurance

2% one such examPle.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Bducation and Labor
April 19. 1989
Let ug, Mr. Chairman look back at the history of our
nation"s éducation policy. sSenator Mikulski, in a recent speech
to the Asspciation of Urban Universities. observed that sur country
invented the community colle9e and night school because 9f the wide
sPectrum of our poFulation who wanted to learn. And she was right.
But those inventions were the creaticns of State and local
authorities. This- conYress has itself made three dreat higher
education inventions in the Past century and seme. and each was
builc: not on the ruyins. but on the shoulders ©f its Predecessor.
In the middle of the last «entury, the Congress invented the
land-grant university. Books have been written on the results of
that Con9ressional eXPeriment. ©f which the nation's 9reat network
of public universities and colledes is only the most obwvicus
examPle. It is useful to remember that in creating the land-grant
universities, the Congress did not Jismantle or eXpropriate the
great Private colleGes.
Almost a half-century ado, the Condress enacted the GI
Bill of 1%44. That leGislation obviously rewarded onhe generation
of way Veterans. But perhaps even more, it made the dream of Qoing
to collede a realizable Yoal for millions of young People who would
never have thought it a possibility if not for the examPle the GI
Bill offered to their brothers and sisters and fathers and mothers.
¥ou did not terminate the land-grant institutions teo pay for the

GI Bill. It paid for itself.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Education and Laber
April 15, 1989

Twent¥Y-five yeArs ago. you in this ver¥ Committee offered
the pation @ third great invention-—the jdea of need-based student
aid. Not an gptitlement bY anY reasonable use of that term, the
need-based aid Pro9rams said simplY that you would help remove the
barriers of price that stand in the doorwa¥s of higher education
institutions of whatever striPe. If a student can prove need. you
gaid, he shoul’ have help to the eXtent of that need.

You did not do away with the GI Bill when You invented
need-besed aid. Both remain. $erving Jdifferent clienteles and

meeting different PurPoses.

On all three secasions. ¥Y9U were warned that You were

 threatening higher education. that the campus would never look the

ERI
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game aPain. Thoese whe said that were half right. Our campuses do
net look like theY did in the 1840's or the 1930's or even in the
50's and 60°s. They look better., mere diverse, more useful te the
communities in which theY are rxooted znd te the students they
gerve.

At San Fralcisce State UniversitY. almost 35% of the students
whe are enreotled for ensugh hours te be gligible, actually receive
some kind of financial aid. As is the case at mest urban
institutions, most of our financial aid comes from govermmental
programs. with almost 80% of the mors than $20.000.000 awarded
coming frem the Federal student aid programs. More than five

theusand of sur needY students will receive Pell Grants this ¥Year.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Edusation and Labor
April 19. 1989
Loans account for almost 45% of the tetal financial 3id made
available to our students. Almost all of this is under the
Stafford Student Loean Program.

Almost 60% of pur financial aid aPplicants are self-
suPPorting according to federal eriteria. Qur scudents tend te be
clder than the sterectypical “cellege-age Youth". with over 0% of
them being over 23 Years of ade.

Even with low costs and modest student budgets, we are unable
o meet the £yll need of most of our studenrs, Most work to suPPort
themselves——and man¥ have familY resPonsibilities of their own.
ManY of our students hold full-time jobs while attendinS schoel.
We provide frinancial assistance to almost 400 single Parents. some
with mere than one ehild.

0f our dePendent students., mMore than 60% come from families
with incomes of less than $1£.000 Per y¢ar. Many of these students,
though technically gependent do in fact contribute te the supbPort
of their families while working and stud¥Ying.

The drep in the numbéer of financial ald reciPients ac San
Francisee State--from 7,572 ip 1985-86 t¢ about 6.000 in 1988-89
has stemmeg net from concePtual flaws in the need-based aid
programs: byt f£rom 3IinadefUate funding levels ang tightened
eligibility reduirements.

There is a breoad PercePtion that financial aid recibPients
have all or mest ©f their finaneial need met, and that they are

free te devote themaslves whollY te their acadamic endeavers.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Educatien and Labor
April 19, 19a9

While I doubt that many members of this Committee laber
under that misaPPrehensien. 1 aPPreciate the oPPortunity to make
thig profile of our aid reciPients a part of Your recerd te help
dispel the potion that & service—based Prodram can 1lightly repPlace
a peed-~based program without seriousl¥ and adverselY affecting the
needy.

TYind student aid t¢ Prior communit¥ o patiopal service
would simply discrimipnate aJainst those mest in T-~those who are
tr¥inq. with the aid you have Provided them. to & .ak the c¥cle of
PovertY. I believe that giscrimination would hit the urban
upiversities apd colleges DParticulariy sharply, but the
discrimination would be felt all across the higher education
community.

Were service to become the opl¥ dosz throudh which students
could secure fipancial aid. our campu$e$ would., at the best becone
PoPulated bY Yound PeoPle from uPPer and middle income families apd

a substantially smaller pumber of .lder students who. because of

financial need, Rad to postPone collede sntrance while theY

Performed their mandatory national/ community¥ service. But that
is the oPtimum ocutcome. More 1likel¥. the student from a lower
economic backdround would conclude that 30 Years of tr¥ing to oPen
the doors ¢o him and ber had ended., and he/ she would not PostPone,

but abanden. their college plans.
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ROBERT A. CORRIGAN
House Committee on Education and Laber
APril 19, 1989
A CommunityY service bill, with educational {and othern)

rewards, can live tegether with need-based a2id programs, and theY

can eontribute mightilY to eaeh other. Service is npot an

accePtable substitute £or need as a way through econemic barriers
at the eamPus Jate.

The communitY service/national service exPeriment ma¥ be the
fourth “reat inventien. Building on the basis of what You'have
alread¥ done and doneé well, without tearind dewn need-based aid in
the process, ¥we urde You to be innovative and daring in the field
of communitY service and to take chances on our yound people and

on our educational SysStem. Neither will disaPPeint You.
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Mr. Wirriams. Thank you, Dr. Corrigan. Dr. Altman.

Dr. ALTMAN. Mr. Chairman, distinguished members, I am Steven
Altman, president of Texas A & I University and president-desig-
nate of the University of Central Florida. I appreciate the opportu-
nity to present my views and those of the American Association of
State Colleges and Universities on these legislative proposals
before you.

The message I intend to leave with you today is that we support
the positive aims and good intentions of all of these bills as ways to
stimulate a sense of service to the nation and to the community as
an obligation of citizenship.

While this concept is widely accepted in higher education and
certainly among AASCU institutions, I would like to personalize it
a bit by describing how these proposals might affect my institution
and then I would like to share several suggestions with you for how
such a model program might work and some suggestions on how
we hope the committee might proceed.

AASCU institutions come from a tradition of public service and
like other institutions, Texas A & I is an institution that was cre-
ated to serve the public need. We were founded in 1925 as a teach-
er’s college to serve a large area in South Texas. Qver the years,
our role expanded several times and today we are a public, compre-
hensive institution enrolling over 5700 students.

We offer a wide range of degree programs. Qur student body is
55 percent Hispanic and five percent Black, figures that exactly
match the ethnic and racial profile of the region we serve. We have
had good opportunity over the years to produce large numbers of
Hispanic engineers, geologists, biologists, teachers and accountants.

South Texas is not only heavily Hispanic, it is also poor. Three of
the poorest Metropolitan Statistical Areas in the country are locat-
ed in our region. Qver 70 percent of our students qualify for need-
based aid and most who do not receive their full allotment because
of restrictions on funds.

Further, a large proportion of our students are ‘‘at-risk,” mean-
ing that regardless of intellectual ability, they are in jeopardy of
dropping out of school and either becoming a cost to society be-
cause of the social service needs they are going to require or being
less than full contributors at a time when the country needs them
most.

Cur attrition rate remains high and surveys conducted to find
out why regularly come back and tell us that it is a combination of
financial problems, family problems and poor academic prepara-
tion.

Yet, as a minority institution with strong programs, we are con-
tributing to that pool of minorities who will be leaders for the
future and we are doing so without the direct Federal institutional
support enjoyed by the historically black colleges, but our role is
equally deserving and just as urgent to the national agenda.

Several phenomenon are o¢curring in the now 80 member insti-
tutions of the Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities
wgg:h enroll fully one-third of all Hispanic students in college
today.
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We know and recent research results have confirmed that the
longer a student delays going on to college from high school, the
less the chance is that the student will ever enroll in college.

Low income students have a completion rate of less than one
quarter of that of high income students. For the majority of His-
panic students, they enroll in community colleges. Nearly 60 per-
cent are enrolled in community colleges, yet only five to fifteen
percent are actually transferring to four-year institutions.

So, when we can get students to take that first step to go on to
college, we are not being fully successful yet in getting them
through to the full four-year degree. For our students, it is a
matter of money, of preparation, K-12 and a concerted system of
reducing perceived obstacles to go into college.

There are a few family support systems to encourage college
going and great traditions about avoiding debt, particularly when
one has lived in poverty for a long time. At the same time, there is
a deeply embedded and strong cultural tradition of helping others,
of providing gervice and the opportunity to engage in a more sys-
tematic service program is likely to be warmly embraced.

However, it is from this profile that I want to express concern
and opposition to two elements contained in the Nunn-McCurdy
legislation. You have heard already from our other distinguished
witnesses the concerns they have and I share them, that at the
prospect of tying service to financial assistance programs would,
indeed, be devastating to my institution and many others around
the country.

QOur enroliment would be limited to those fortunate. few who
could pay tuition themselves because our students are so dependent
on financial assistance. For those of you concerned about whether
financial assistance programs are achieving their needs, I invite
you to Kingsville, Texas to see that it is.

Our student’s first stop is not the admission’s office; it is rather
to the financial aid office. This office is where the dream of a col-
lege education is matched up reality. Federal financial agsistance is
the major vehicle for our students to keep their hopes alive and for
our students and many others, it is working and without it, the re-
ality of providing true educational opportunity would simply never
materialize.

The second element of concern is the negative effect that re-
quired service would have on college participation, particularly for
minority students. I have noted already the consequence of delay
before a student goes to college after high school.

Universities like mine are actively involved in pre-college prepa-
ration programs for minorities, especially in acute shortage areas
like science, math and engineering. We are working hard to get
students interested in college and what it means at early ages and
we are staying close to them to promote the transition to higher
education by reducing the barriers they face.

National service requirements after high school will dramatically
undercut these efforts by interrupting the educational cycle. Texas
A & I is asserting its resources to a track to motivate, to enroll stu-
dents in activities which might improve the success for graduating
from high school and attracting students to our college.
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It takes all the resourcefulness we can employ in many different
ways as one can imagine to improve the under-representation of
Hispanic and other minority students in college. There are large
numbers of service %mgrams underway now on our Campuses
across the nation and I believe they are having the desired effect of
building better commumities.

From these programs, we have learned a number of lessons from
our experienc? about what makes a successful program and I
would like to share five criteria with you that we believe would be
helpful as you consider this proposed legislation.

The first is that any program of national service should be volun-
tary rather than mandatory. ‘‘Forcing” service undercuts the prin-
ciple of volunteerism and ultimately creates resentment. Programs
should be constructed which create a sense of value, opportunity,
and fair play.

Second, any program of national service should provide supple-
mentary benefits to those who participate. We have discussed this
already. Third, any program of national service should encourage
opportunities for service in a variety of forms for citizens of all
income levels.

To the greatest extent possible, volunteer activities should en-
courage service-learning exlgeriences which relate the educational
process to the real world. Programs for disadvantaged pre-college
youth should include a strong component of compensatory educa-
tion to increase their chances of enrollment in, and successful com-
pletion of postsecondary education.

Fourth, any program of national service should be implemented
carefully and deliberately. Several years of careful planning should
be provided before a larger scale of program is established to test
the concept on a limited basis and to determine how volunteers can
be absorbed most effectively at the state and local levels, and what
kind of activities are most appropriate.

You can ask several questions in this regard. What capacity does
the country have to absorb national and community service re-
cruits? What skill level of training for recruits would be necessary
before they engapge in community service and who would train
them? What impact will having a second “citizen army” have on
the nations’ armed forces and their ability to recruit for the exist-
ing services?

The more we think about it, the more complicated all these ques-
tions get, but imagine the consequences of losing public confidence
in and support for national and community service programs be-
cause We started our program too quickly, if we were too ambitious,
if it cost too much and we had no solid evidence from pilot studies
or models to show that it would work.

Finally, any program of national service should seek to build on
partnerships with the extensive community service activities al-
ready being conducted in the states and localities, educational in-
gtitutions and public interest organizations. Like most things in
life, people respond, learn, and are enthusiastic about activities
which are meaningful and which are perceived to be well organi
and purposeful.

The bills before the committee are sensitive to these needs and
as such will serve to encourage participation. To answer the ques-
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tion about what we think needs to be done, well, there are lots of
good ideas on the table already, but they are found in different
Ppieces of legislation.

We would suggest the best way to proceed is to frame an inte-
grated omnibus national and community service bill. Such a bill
should be sensitive to the increasingly diverse nature of our popu-
lation, have a clear sense of the goals to be achieved, should be ap-
plied fairly and equally to all citizens and be feasible within budget
constraints.

We look forward in the higher education community to support-
ing these efforts and commend the spirit and intent of these bills
regarding national service and certainly stand ready to help wher-
ever we can. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

fThe prepared statement of Dr. Steven Altman follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Distingquished Members:

I am Steven Altman, President of Texas A & I University. I
appreciate the opportunity to present my views and those of the American
Association of State Colleges and Universities on several legislative
proposals for pational and community service.

The message I intend to leave you with today is that we support the
positive aims and good intentions of all these bills, to stimulate a sense
of service to the nation and the community as an obligation of citizenship.
This concept has been a basic tenet of American higher education throughout
its history. As educators, we all seey ways to create and advance
development — in pegple, in organizations and institutions. in
commnitieg, and in the nation -- and so a program of national service can
provide an excellent means te achieve these goals. We, are provd of our
tole in establishing, early in the 19th century, teachers colleges to meet
what was then described as an emerging need created by a burgeoning public
school SYstem committed to equal educational opportunity. Recognizing
local and state public npeeds and acting responsibly to provide educational
opportunity with assistance from federal and state gources is

characteristic of the 374 AASCU state colleges and yniversities

representating over two and gne-half million students enrclled in higher
education today.

Texas A & I is a good example of the type of institution created to
service the public need. We were founded in 1925 as a teachers college to
serve the needs of a large area of South Texas., Over the years our role
expanded several times, and today we are a public, comprehensive
institution encolling over 5700 students. We offer a wide range of
undergraduate and graduate degree programs. Our student body is 55%

-1-




170

Hispanic and 5% Black, figures that exactly match the ethnie/racial profile
of the region we serve. Ffor many years we have been among the country’s
top providers of Hispanic engineers. geologists. biologists: chemists.
teachers and accountants.

However. Scuth Texas is not only heavily Hispanic, but it is also
poor — three of the poorest Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSA's) in the
country are located there. Over M% of our students qualify for need-based
aid, and most who qualify do npot receive their full allotment because of
restrictions on funds. A la:-ge pottion of our students are "at-risk,”
meaning that regardless of intellectual ability. they are in jecpardy of
not completing their education and either becoming a cost to society
because of their social gervice needs. of being less than full contribmtors
when the country needs them most. Our attrition rate is high: surveys
conducted to determine why regularly indicate that financial problems.
family problems. ard poor academic Preparation are the most frequent
reasons for drop—outs. vet, as a minority institution with strong programs
we are contributing to the pool of minorities who will be leaders for the
future, And we are doing so withour the dipect federal institutional
support enjoyed by the historically black colleges, but our role is equally
deserving and just as urgent to the national agenda.

The reason for the urgency is that the Hispanic population is the
fastest growing minority group in the country and will continue to be in
the foreseeable future. Hispanics are at the same time Severely
undecrepresented in victually all fields regquiring a college degree, and
therefore are unable to compete, or more importantly. contribute to the
coming labor shortage. The demographic shift now evident jn the country
creates 2 situation wherein we must find ways to help these people advance
as a matter of national Security. The country’s ability to compete in
world markets can only be fulfilled with an educated workforce. Today:

—-2=
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Hispanics do not have the same opportunities ta be part of the sclution we
need, There is a population boom evident among the vary young, and we can
predict with a high degree of accuracy that the very large numbers of young
bays and girls living in the Southwest will grow up! The question is
whether we can prepare now £or them to take their needed place in the
mmerican workforce. With continued high drop-out rates. high incidence of
poverty and illness, and several obstacles to educaticnal achievement. they
certainly cannot. Given the projections that the U.5. will run out of
white males to f£ill all the jobs we will need by 2005, we believe that

Texas A & I, and many athers, can do mach to help, and we must continue to

do so.

It is against this backdrop of the role of AMSCU institutions., and
sare of the compelling national needs that we wish to evaluate and comment
upon the issues posed by the Chairman. The several pills which have been
introduced contain elements deserving of policy consideration. Framing an
integrated ommibus national and commnity service piece of legislation is
what we believe mist be dope, It must be sensitive to the increasingly
diverse nature of oyr population. have a clear sense to the goals of be
achieved, apply fairly and equally to all citizens, and be feasible within
budget constraints. Some of the provisions proposed contain tfoubling
elements, arnd these will be described in a moment. But, in general. the
concept of pational service can do much to benefit the nation, and support
thaose of us in higher education to build a more educated population.

The following is an examination of the jssyes which we were
reguested to address.

1) Tying service to student fipnancial assistance programs.

The student fipancial assistance system. which has been developed
-3-
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with bipartisan support over three decades, is designed to achieve the
vital national purpose of assuring postsecondary opportunities to all
students who have the ability, but lack the financial resoutces, to attend
the institutions best suited to their needs.

tne of the goals of these programs is to stimilate awareness very
early in life that higher education is accessible to all able students,
even if their families cammot provide the financial resources. Another
goal is to enable those who desire short-term vecational programs and
credentials other than a bachelor’s degree to obtain the skills necessary
to support themselves and their families. Millions of students, pat most
specifically the students at Texas A & I and their families. depend on the
federal government to continue its commitment to these programs.

Under most of the legislative proposals, national service would
conplement the ¢lals of the current student aid programs: volunteers who
commit themselves to a term of service would earn bemefits that could be
used to help mueet college costs. The Munn-McCurdy bill, however, would
phase cut eligibility for current programs and make national service the
sole criterion for assistance to most sindents, Not only dees this single
provision cause us ko oppose the thunn-MeCurdy bill, it detracts frem many
of the more plausible aspects of the bill which deserve discussion.
Implementing the phase-out of grant and loan financial assistance would
revoke the national commitment to postsecondary opportunities established
three decades ago, when President Eisenhower proposed legislation which
became the Naticpal Defense Educatien Act of 1958, As he.said at the time:
"The security of the Nation requires the fyllest development of the mental
resources and technical skills of its young men and women.....We must
increase out efforts to identify and educate more of the talent of gur
Nation. This requires programs that will give assurance that no student of

4=
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abiiity will be denied an opportunity for higher education because of
Einancial need.”

The Nunn-MeCurdy provisions would be disastrous for Texas A & I
It would limit eproliment to those few fortunate enough to pay tuition
themselves. The forces operating among peers, families, and tradition
would move the prospect of college off center stage for many or our
students, and we would virtually have to start all over again to build the
attitudes needed to prepare these pecple to attend college.

For those of you who are cencetned about whether financial
assistance programs ape achieving their goals: I jnvite You to Ringsville
to see that it is, Our stuwdents’ first stop is not the admissions Office.
but rather the Financial Aid Office. This office ig where the dream of
_ higher education iS5 matched up to realit¥. gpederal financial asgsistance is
the major vehicle for our students to keep their hopes alive. and for our
students, and many others, it is working. Without it, the reality of
; providing true educational ©pportunity would simply never materialize.

Requiring pational service as a precondition for federal student
assistance would severely restrict postsecondary opportunities. The
tunn=McCurdy bill is designed to offer 700,000 volunteer positions a year;
current federal Programs assist some six million recipients. including over
two million new students each yeac. If the program were to be conducted on
a scale sufficient to accommodate all current recipients of student aid, it
would cost in the range of $30 to $50 billion annually. Even if it was
implemented on a smeller scale, my supposition is that most of my students
would be cut out of the system because yet another barrier to getting inte
college would be present. students today are looking for greater
flexibility and more access not more barriers to college. We cannot afrord
that to let that happen.

—5-
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2} How high school and college students can be encouraded to

patticipate in youth service programs.

There is ample evidence to Suggest that the concept of national and
commnity service is warmly supported and encouraged by american higher
education.

Since 1985, when the Campus Compact was organized as » project of
the Education Commission of the States. Some 150 insticutions in 38 states
have joined this coaliticn to advance comminity service by sponsoring
projects to combat adult illiteracy and tutor academically at-risk
elementary and secondary students. Campus Compact recently established
state compacts in California, Michigan., and Pemnsylvania; others are being
organized.

Another network. the Campus Outreach Cpportunity League. launched
by students in 1984, now numbers 450 colleges and 200 pational and local

- nonprefit organizatiens. The League sponsors joint workshops, technical
assistance, and an extensive variety of commnity service projects o make
such oppertunitiez more readily available to students.

The Partnership for Service-Learning. established in 1982, now
numbers 40 colleges and universities whose programs unite academic study
and commmity service, so thac the service makes the study immediate and
relevant, and the study relates o and supports the service.

Some colleges have eriablished a community service reguirement for
graduation. In addicion to the growing rumber of service cpportunities in
collage: some private ugencies provide Peace Corps-type experience after
graduation. For example. some 354 volunteers from 115 public and private
colleges are turrently serving one-year terms in cthe Jesuvit Volunteer
Corps, perfarwing social service work in 58 cities throughout the nation.

At Texas A & 1, pur students ate encouraged and regularly

—&—
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patticipate in service activities th:augh- a variety of interest clubs,
fraternal organizations and as a component of cur social seiences
cutriculum,

We have learned a numbet of lessons from the expetiences of
institutions about how to encourage participation. Expanding this concept.
we ask you to consider the following suggesticns:

a} Any program of national service should ke voluntary rather than
mandatary. “Forcing” secvice undercuts the principle of volunteerism and
ulimately creates resesentment. Programs should De censtructed which
create a sense of value, opportunity. and fair play.

Successful programs rely on plausible incentives (ie.. loan
forgiveness: college credit) for participation.

b) Any program of naticnal setvice should provide supplementacy
benefits to those who participate. As noted earlier, we oppose a system
which would make service a precondition for federal financial aid.

c} Any pregram of national service should encourage opportunities
for service in a variety of forms, for citizens of all income levels.

The bills before the Committee offer 2 variety of models for
addressing this crilarion. The Nunn-McCutdy bill specifically includes
retired citizens: the Mikulski-Bonior bill and the Kennedy bill in the
Senate provide service incentives to citizens of all ages.

To the greatest extent possible., volunteet activities should
encourage service-learning experiences which relate the educational process
to the real wortd. Most of the current bills do not place specific
emphasis on activities which encourage such a relationship between learning

ard working in a field relevant to the individual’s future career (although

the Fennedy bill requires all proiects to include age-appropriate leatning

components for all participants}.
-7-
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Programs for disadvantaged pre-college youth should include a
streng component of compensatory education to increase their chances of
enrellment in, and successful completion of, postsecondary education. The
Dodd-Panetta bill does this by requiring that 1p percent of project funds
be earmarked for remedial educational Progdrams while im service.

Academically at-risk students, and all who wish to pursue their

education directly. shoulh have options to perform their service after

college and throughout their lifetime. Service during college, on weekends
and vacation periods., shrmuld also be an option. and would appeal
parcicularly to older and part-time studsnts who make up a growing share of
college enrollments, The Mikulski-Bonior bill provides such options in the
form of service that could pe performed two weekends a month and two weeks
a year, ¢ on a part-time pasis, The Bumpers bill ifn the Senate pffers
another incentive for service after college by extending current provisions
for loan forgiveness and repayment deferral for service.

d} Eny program of national service should be implemented carefully
and deliberately.

Several years of careful planning should be provided pefere a
larger-scale program is established, to test the concept on a limited basis
and determine how volunteers cap be absorbed most effectively at the state
and local levels, and what kind of activities are most appropriate.

The most telling example of the need for plarning comes in
actempting to address the apswers to questions like:

1, What capacity does the pation, state, commmity possess to
absorb pational and community service recruits?

2. What skill level of training tor rcecruits would be necessary
before they engage in community service and who would train them?

3. what impact would having a second "citizen army" have on the

-G
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nations’ armed forces and their ability eo reetuit for the existing

setvices?

Successful legislation will have to be well integrated to

consider pre-college, colleges post-college, senior citizens: and even

yuppies. The more we think about it, the more complicated it gets.

Imagine the consequences of losing public confidence in and support for
national and commmnity service because we started our program tco quickly:
were too ambitious, it cost far too much: and we had no solid evidence from

pilots studies or models te show that it would work!

It js fair to ask what we could support as the next step in

‘developing legislation for national and commnity setvice. The Ametrican
Associacion of State Colleges and yniversities and its Cowncil of State

Representatives {its elected policy making body) have taken positions on
this question.

We have stated a position which does support the
development of a pilot program meeting these conditions heretofore stated

and that the program be undercaken it a group of states cepresentative of

the nation. The pilet program should have specific and clear guidelines for
implementation to assuce equal and faitr treatment in each state and should
have a carefully designed evaluation component. The pilot program should
not requite state matching funds since some states that would likely L2

representative may not be able to afford the match. Finally: the pilot
program should supplement rather than supplant federal financial aid
prograns.

In supporting a pilot program. we nonetheless call attention €O the

fact that this kind of a program does not address lacge segments of
alienated and disenfranchised Youth i our population who do Rot cemplete

high school and hence would be ineligible to participate in a college-bound
type of national service program.
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The Pell-Garcia bill is & model for this criterion, offering a
limited pilot program to establish a five-year test before considering
further legislation. The podd-Fanetta bill also provides a useful Study by
a national caﬁssim to evaluate the results of the progzam and make
recommendations for changes.

e} Any program of national service should seek to build
partnezships with the extensive community service activities already being
conducted in the states and localities. educational institutions and public
interest organizations.

The above approach will avoid excessive federal requlations and
minimize the need for a new bureaucracy. Eligibility determination and
oversight of community service Programs would be conducted by 2
quasi-governmental entity with representation from the states and local
governments, public and irdependent colleges, and the private secter.

Like most things in 1ife, people respond, learn and are
enthusiastic about activities which are meaningful and which are perceived
to be well organized and purposeful. The bills before the committee are
sensitive to these needs, and as such, will serve to encourage
participation.

3) How participation in sych programs after high school may affect

college attendance and persistance.

Second only to the chilling prospect of supplanting financial
assistance Programs discussed earlier, this jssue raises substantiasl
trepidation for us in the academic commnity. It is of special concern for
those ©f ys serving large minozity populations.

Recent research findings (from the National Center for Education
Statistics) on college students show that the longer a student delays going
to college after high school, the 1eSS the chance iS that the student will
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ever enfoll in college. Fully three—quarters of 1980 high school graduates
who entered a four-year institution immediately and persisted sull)-time had
eamed 2 baccalaureate by 1986; orly 21 percent of those who delayed entry
had completed the degree by then. For low-income students {(who tend to
have poorer academic preparation). the completion rate was 8 petcent: for
high-income students, the rate was 34 percent.

Thus, requiting service before college would be especially damaging
0 low-income and minority students. who disproportionately come from
disadvantaged backgrounds and who will constitute one-third of all
school-age children by the year 2000. Creating such obstacles to
suceessful postsecondary education for so many of our youth would alse have
serious consequences for the pational economy: survevs jndicate tnat the
vast majority of new jobs created in the next two deciues will recuire some
kind of postsecondary education.

The matter is even more Severe for Hispanic students. The pipeline
is already very leaky. pot only do we face the prospect that 25 percent of
high school students (and 45 percent of Hispanics} will not graduate. data
from the Hispanic psseciation of Colleges and Universities (HACU)} indicates
that only 70 of every 1000 Hispanic students who enter the U.S. education
system. On the average. will graduate Erom college.

Universities like mine are actively invelved in pre-college
preparation programs for minorities, especially in acute shortage areas
like science, math and engineering. We are working hard to get students
interested in college and what it means at early ages. And we are staying
close to them to promote the cransition to higher education by reducing the
barriers they face. Hational service requirements atter high schaol will
dramatically undercut these effores by interrupting the educational cycle.

The problem is serious enough already. For example, transfer rates
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from commmnity college to four-year schools range from 5 percent to 15 ¢
peccent fotr Hispanic students, yet 55 percent of all Hispanic students are

enrolled in commnity colleges. The point is that even for those we can

encoutage to take the mext step to a community college. we are still having

a difficult time getting adequate persistence. Another interruption will

reduce the participation rates even more.

Unforunately., we daily confront the situation in families that do
not share the act of faith ¢hat highet education is important for personal
and career success. Poverty pPlaces a high premium on immediate economic
returns, and when one cemes from @ tradition of doing without, the prospect
of further sacrifice is repugnant.

Texas A & I is exerting its rescurces to attract. motivate and
entoll students in activities which might improve the success for
graduating students from high school and attracting students to gur
college. It takes all the resourcefulness we can employ and as many
different ways as one can imagine to improve undetrepresentation of
Hispanic and other minotrity students in college.

Qut research. as well as HACU‘s suggests that minority student role
models are not the visible public officials. athletes, musicians. or even
teachers ot clergy. For this reason., and not unlike other colleges and
univetrsities, we are making great efforts to serve our own commnities and
families in them, and to direct our service activities there. Hence.
volunteer programs in literacy, drug education, and the creation of
positive values toward education occupy much of ocur time, To take students
out of these situations and to interrupt the flow to college will have a
negative effect on the investment we are making. WNew barriers apd delay
are tancamount to cancelling the dream for our prospective students.

4) Existing service programs that might serve as models for a

12
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Hational Youth Service Policy.

Several programs were mentioned earlier which provide elements for
a pational policy. 1In addition. programs of loan forgiveness for teachers
and physicians who satisfy specific conditions have been effective in
achieving certain policy goals. Programs which provide jncentives and
flexibility for the diverse nature of our population will be most
successful.

We commend the spirit and intent of the various congressional
bills regarding national Service, recognizing thereby the value Service has
to the pation by its citizens., the maturing effect it can have o0 its
youth, the lessening of dependency on loans by college students, and the

potential for ingraining the concept of volunteerism as a meaningful aspect

of onefs life. We Support these efforts and stand ready to help.




Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Dr. Altman. Dr. Todd.

Dr. Topp. Mr. Chairman, thank you for this opportunity to
appear before the committee and testify on behalf on the concept of
Federal support for voluntary youth community service and in par-
ticular H.R. 948 as afroposed by the Honorable Constance Morella.

Accepting the challenge of Father Theodore Hesburgh, President
Emeritus of Notre Dame, to deveiop an ROTC-like program to pre-
pare students for Peace Corps service, the trustees of Norwich Uni-
versity in the spring of 1986 authorized the development of a Peace
Corﬁ, Preparatory Program.

This program builds on the founding tradition of Norwich Uni-
versity which has been to train citizen soldiers for the military
forces. When Senator Justin Morrill of Vermont introduced the
Land Grant Act of 1862, one provision provided for the training of
future military leaders in the state colleges and universities
through a reserve office like training efﬂ:r{)ﬁg,‘ral:u.

He changed the nature of higher education in the United States
and today, again, we are looking at legislation that may well
change higher education significantly. H.R. 948, the Morella Bill,
presents an opportunity to both encourage and support students as
they prepare for voluntary service in the Peace Corps.

oday, the United States not only needs citizens who are pre-
pared to serve as officers in the armed forces, but also those who
are trained, willing, and yes, enthusiastic about serving in develop-
ing countries of this world as we move into the 21lst Century as
America strives to meet its global commitments and responsibil-
ities.

In the past two years, Norwich has developed and begun to im-
plement a Peace Corps Preparatory Program. The students who
elect to join the program may substitute Peace Corps activities in
lien of ROTC. The program consists of an outdoor leadership com-
ponent designed to build confidence and teamwork and self-esteem.

The student takes one three-credit course during each semester
of their junior and senior year. These courses addresses issues per-
taining to the Third World and concepts of community change. In
addition, each semester the student is required to serve as a volun-
teer in a variety of placements which progressively place responsi-
bility on the student to assume a leadership role.

These two components are compatible with the ROTC and mili-
tary science program; they are very similar. In the summer be-
tween the junior and senior year, the Peace Corps student will take
part in an internship in either a developing country or a culture
that is substantially different from his own.

This linking of academic learning and practical volunteer experi-
ence has been carefully designed to prepare students to be effective
and to successfully be Peace Corpa volunteers. In order to establish
the program, the university has hired additional faculty to teach
courses, acquired a staff to work with students to assure appropri-
ate community service placement and it has instituted a special
scholarship p am.

Each Peace Corps student is offered a low-interest loan from the
university which is totally fo&given upon completion of two years of
service in the Peace Corps. Now, this is a substantial contribution
by the university making it clear that our commitment is not only
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to the program, but to the concept of volunteer and national serv-
ice.

This model program has been developed and put into place. It
has become clear that it is not only the students who benefit, but
the entire university and the local community as well. What has
Norwich learned as a result of the development of this program?

First, that the curriculum must be carefully crafted to present a
reasonable sequence, the issues of concerning developing nations.
Many students have little knowledge of the world beyond their own
eavironment and are eager to learn not only the pertinent facts of
geography, history and cultural, but the larger human values that
arise when ethical matfers are discussed in the broader context.

Second, we have learned that the program must devote time,
energy, and resources in explaining not only our program, but the
ideas of the Peace Corps itself. Additionally, the introduction of a
community service really brings in practical examination of what
is happening within the community.

Third, I believe that the $5000 loan/grant of the financial aid
program that we have initiated will attract only a limited number
of students, that the kind of support proposed in H.R. 948 could
make & substantial difference in the willingness of American stu-
dents to pursue Peace Corps service.

I have been asked to comment upon the effects of this legislation
might have on military service. I now speak for myself. For thirty-
two years, I served in the United States Army. In 1971, I was the
chief of the Modern Volunteer Army Division at Department of the
Army responsible for bringing forth the program we have today of
voluntary service.

I currently serve on the Secretary of the Army’s ROTC Advisory
Panel. In my opinion, the Morella Plan when fully implemented
would have no significant impact on either officer training or pro-
grams and enlistments. The goal of the Peace Corps is to field
10,000 volunteers by 1992 and that equates in numbers to less than
one percent of the manpower strength of the Army.

This is an insignificant number. However, should there be total
naticnal service, it is an entirely different issue. Realistically, how-
ever, everycne cannot serve, no matter how desirable that may be
and, thus, the current loan and grant programs that make up Fed-
eral financial assistance should not be eliminated.

It is my opinion that H.R. 948, the Morella Bill, will provide the
necessary experience in the area of exchanging of financial assist-
ance for service to the nation in a field other than where it has
already has been proven, i.e., military service.

I personally believe that every young person in this country
should be encouraged to serve of his own free will on behalf of the
gublic good. To quote Samuel Halperin of the Wiliam T. Grant

oundation, “Youth service should be part of the dues we pay as
citizens and heirs of our democratic society.”

I thank you for this opportunity to testify.

[The prepared statement of Dr. W. Russell Todd follows:]
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Toi: Educatlon and Labor Committee of the U.S. House of
Repreeentatives

From: Presldent W. Russel]l Todd
Rorwich University, wWorthfleld. VT

Dater April 19, 1989

Mr. Cchairman. Thank you for this oPPOrtunity to appear before the
Education and Labor Committee and testify on behalf of the concept
of federal suPPort for voluntar¥ youth community service,
particularly H.R. %48 as proposed by the Honorable Conatance
¥orella, I wbuld 1ike to thank Congessman Peter Smith ©f

vermont by whose invitation Norwich University is represented
today.

Aecepting the challende ©f Father Theodore M. Resburgh.

President Emeritus of Notre Dame, to develoP an ROTC-11ke program
to Prepare studente for Peace CorPs service, the Trustees of
Norwilch Univerefty in their epring meeting in 1986, authorized
the develobment ©f the Peace Corps PrepParatory Program.

This program, ¢alled PCPP for c¢onvenience Sake, builds on the
founding tradition ¢f Werwich University which has been to

traip ¢ltizen soldiers for the military forces. When Senator .
Justin Morrill of Vermont introduced the Land Grant Act of 1862,
providing for the training of military leaders in state colleges
and universeities through the Reserve Officers Training Corps, he
changeéd the rature of education in the United States. Again today
we are looking at 1egislation that ma¥ well change higher

education slgnificantly. H.R. 948, the Morella bill, pPresents an
opportunity to both encouragde and suPPort students as they prepare
for voluakay service in the Peace Corps. Today, the United

Statesa not only neede citizens whe are prepared to gerve, 1f needed,
ag officers in the Armed Forces, but alse those who are trained,
willing and yYes, enthusiastic about serving in developing

countries as thie worid moves int0 the 218t century and strives to
meet ite global commitment and responsibilites.

In the Past twe Years Norwich has developsd and begun to imPlement
ite Peace Corps Preparatory Frogram. Students who elect to join
the program apd are selected, maY substitute PCPP courses and
activitles in liew of ROTC or ae an electlive ag abpropriate. The
program consletes of an cutdoor leaderghip component designed to
build confidence, team work and self esteem. The sgtudent tekes
one three e¢redit course during each semester of their Junior and
penior year. Thesee c¢courses address lesues Pertaining to the Third
world and to concepts of community change. In addition. each
semeeter the etudent is required to serve as a volunteer In a
variety ©f Placements which pProgressively place responeibility op
the student to assume a leadership role.
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Thease two Components are Comparable ro ROTC's military science
course and Military laboratory requirements. In the summer
between the Junior and Senior year. the PCPP students take part in
an internehif in either a developing Country or in a celbure
pubstantially different from hie own. This linking of academic
learning and practical voiunteer experience has been carefully
designed vo prepare students to be effective and successfu]l Peace
Corpa volunteers.

In order to establish this program cthe universit¥ has hired
additional faculty to teach the courses, acuired &taff who work
with stedents t¢ insure approbriate community gervice Placements
and inatiteted a epecial scholarship progzam, Each PCPP srudent is
offered & low interest $5000 loan which is totally forgivan ubon
the completion of twod Yearg Seérvice in the Peace CoOIps.

This substantial university contribution te the Program is clear
evidéence ¢f the commitment Horwich has not only to its Program

but to the concept of voluntary national service.

It is appropriate to note that Norwich has been encouragedlin its
endeavors by the support it is recelving from the Fund for the
Improvement For Posteecondary Education.

Ag this model program has been developsd and Dut into Blace it has
become clear that not only PCPP students: bubt the entire

university and the local community have benefited as well., To
quote a Junior student as she refers to her exbPerience as a
volunteer 2ide ip & local nureing home, ". . . I have learned a lot
of things about myseif. I have iearned of my miscoOnCeptions about
the elderly, + . They are living human beings., . . They are valuable
people. , » They are real. . , We can laugh,.play, talk, c¢ry, hud.
hold hande and juat hang out,.® Two Seniore organized and
imPlemented an IRS volunteer income tax assigtance {VITA} program
at the 10¢al village iibrary. This VITA DProject has served low
income and c¢lderly citizens from the entire arca. Residents of

our local communit¥. returned Peace Corbs volunteers, Prospective
Peace COrps volunteere and juwst interested folks have supported
informational meetings and an Intriguing inter-cultural theatrical
event., In ghort, the PCPP has encouraged awareness of the plight

of others, our local community and concern £or global itsues as
well. .

what has Horwich learned as a resuit of the develaopment of the
PCPP? Firet, the curriculum must be carefully crafted to precent
in a reasonable sequence, the issues of concern regarding .
develeoping nacions. Many students have lictle knowledge of the )
world beyond theilr own environment. They are eager to learn npot
only the Pertinent facts of geography, historys and culrural
matters, but the larder human value jigsues that arise when echical
matters are discuseed in the larger context.
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Second, wWe have learned that the PCPP muet devote time, energy

and resources, not only in exPlaining our special program to
gtudents but aleo in promoting the idea of peace CoOrpe service. In
my opinion, the Peace COrpPs must work toward increased vieibility.
adéitlonally, the introcduction of community service ipsues and
actual practice in the primary and secondary achools across the
country will be vital to promoting a generation of gervice minded
young peoble.

Third, I believe that the $5000 loan/grant ptudent financial aigd
program will attract only a limited number of students. The kind
of suppert propoged by H,R. 948 could make a substantial
difference in the willingnese of students to purswe Peace CorpPs
Service.

1 have been asked to corment ©f the effect this legislation might
have on military service. I now spPeak only for myself. For 32
years, I perved in the United States Army; in 1%71 I was the Chief
of the Modern Volunteer ArmyY Divizion of the Qff.ce of the
hesistant Chief of Staff for Personnel, Department of hrny.
CurrentlY I Berve on the Secretary of the Army's ROTC Advisory
Panel., Ia my opinion the Morella Plan. when fully implemented
would have no significant impact on either officer training
programs or on ¢nlistments,

The goal of the Peace Corps to field 10,000 volunteers by 1892
watees in numberz to lese than 1% of the manpower stréngth of
hrmy. This ip an insigeificant nurber when one considere what
might occour 1f all college age citizens were to Perform service in
one wa¥ or another. Addlitionally. Peace CorPs PrebParation and
gervice, in my OPinion, will attract oplY those ‘students who would
not be inclined to serve in the military forces.

Tieling student assistance to service is a Proven CONCept
oTriginating with the GI Bill of 1945, It is clear that this ldea
cont inues to encourage Youth Lo serve. Reairistically everyone
cannot serve no matter how desirable that may¥ be. Thus., Current
loan and grant programs that make up federal financial assistance
programeé should not be eliminated.

It ie my opinion that H.R. %48, the Morella Bill, will provide
experlence in the area of exchanye of financial asselstance for
service to the nation in a field other than where it hae been

proven, i.9., military gervice.

1 personally believe that the every young person in this country
shouid be encouraged o serve of his own free will on behalf of
the public good, To quote Samuvel HalPerin ©f the william T. Grant
Foundat ion, "Youth eervice should be Part of the dues we pay as
citizens and helirs of a democratic society.®

Thank you for this opportunity to testify,
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Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Dr. Todd. Dr. Todd, let me ask you
first. You suggested that the Morella Bill when it comes to fruition
would have a minimal effect on eng?i into the military service.
Have you looked at the cther pieces of legislation and particularly
the National Service Bill from Mr. McCurdy and Mr. Nunn and if
you have reviewed particularly that piece of legislation, do you
have a personal opinion about the effect it would have on entry
into the military service?

Dr. Topp. Yes, sir, I do. I think when we are talking in those
kinds of numbers and the declining number of 18 years old in our
population, there is no question that it would be competing for the
same resources and it would affect the numbers of people entering
the military service unless there was some differentiation in what
was provided for the more difficult service.

Mr. WiLLiams. Effected negatively?

Mr. Topp. Yes, sir. Now, there is a difference in who you will at-
tract into these programs and who would be volunteering in as an
enlisted man in one of the military services.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Thank you. The others of you who testified about
the McCurdy-Nunn legislation expressed some concern with put-
ting service reguirements prior to benefits. Let me ask if you have,
in visiting with students or staff, or faculty, administrators, or par-
ents, have you had a sampling that would demonstrate support for
the McCurgl'y-Nunn approach among the people on your campus or
their parents?

Have any of you—Dr. Bloustein?

Dr. BrousTEIN. No. The fact is that there is very open opposition
and skepticism about that bill. The only response has heen a very
negative response.

Mr. WiLLtaMs. Dr. Altman?

Dr. ALtMaN. The same response on our campus, Mr. Chairman.
It has been very negative of the prospect of ancther obstacle for
people who feel that they are facing so many already, is very nega-
tive.

Dr. Core. The same.

Dr. BLousteIN. I am not sure you need any more argumentation
on this issue, but ameng other things that people find anomalous
about that bill js that we subsidize all our students, at least in my
university, some 75 percent of the cost of their education.

They should all be subject to the same obligation. Why choose
one body of students who are taking slightly more aid, not all that
much more and impose a special burden on them. The fact ig if
service to community is of value, it is value to everyone and if
there is an obligation to serve that comes from receiving benefits,
those benefits are benefits received by everyone in higher educa-
tion.

Mr. WiLLtams. Mr. Smith?

Mr. SmitH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have a question about
the so-called Morella Bill for presidents Cole, Blovstein and
Altman. One of the fundamental questions, I think, is whether or
not the university involved as Dr. Corrigan they did at Norwich ac-
cords the queen of the realm.

Now, we spent a lot of time talking about one kind of coin, ve
important is money, but then there is a question of academic credit
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in the progi;ram Do you envision it as a positive o1 an essential or
an impossible eventuality to award undergraduate credit for com-
munity service in your institutions as a component, or the Morslla
Bill, or some other adoration?

Dr. Covk. It is very sensitive, the question of acadernic credit and
we remind ourselves that that decision rests with the faculty and
any president whom wishes 0 remain a president, better remem-
ber it, but I think we ¢ould each say that in our colleges and uni-
versities, there is a formula.

It is as simple as this. The things that we care about deeply, ihe
things that we insist are at the very core of a solid liberal arts edu-
cation, we give credit for. Now, we call the others electives which is
nﬁ)t to say that they are irrelevant and that we do not care for
them.

I think it is possible to build the notion of very strong education-
al improvement with community service, both with and withous
the awarding of credit.

Mr. BuoustEn. I would go further, not dlsputln at all what
President Cole has said about this being ultimately the decision of
a faculty. That is certainly true, but I am urging our faculty not
only to give credit, but to make it a requirement of graduatior.

I think if we are really serious about it, the symbolism of that
itself would be very important, but moreover, it would attract to
that program students who are already burdened with zxcessive re-
quirements of one kind or another, I think we coula glve up some
of the requlrements we currently have.

I fee} this is as basic as literacy in many of its forms and I am
urging it in straight educational terms. I am not teaching volun-
teerism in this program. I am teaching what it is to live as an edu-
cated person in a community and that is as basic to education as
an{lthing I know.

r. ALTMAN. College credit, most often, represents an evaluation
that learning has occurred and there are ways to evaluate whether
learning has occurred as that can happen in the classroom or out-
side the classroom.

We have mechanisms already where we will provide credit for
demonstrative learning and certainly there is not a substantial
amount of difference here. My view would b« that if a program,
indeed, was such that providetf an educationa’ basis, that we could
evaluate that and make those judgments.

Mr. SmitH. Thank you. I would add one thing. We may be talk-
ing as the chairman reminded me about why I left higher educa-
tion. As a politician, we used to have these arguments even before I
went to Norwich.

I think you will find that if and when the institution says it is
important and so important and s¢ essential, that sends a message
to students and you will see retention go up, you will see all sorts
of ancillary data improve because, in fact, you dignified the experi-
ence, the life experience of the studeats, so I think it is an essential
component.

One final quick question far President Corrigan, have you
thought in the question of transferability of vouchers in the inner-

enerational notion of adding other than housing and education
fng-term care or long-term insurance? In other words, transfer-
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ring upwards go that as a child cares for a parent, they might just
s;ipeak to the need or as an older person works, they speak to their
ovwn need?

Dr. CorriGaN. Absolutely, Mr. Smith. We have certainly given
attention to that and it is an exciting concept. What [ wanted to
call attention to in my testimony is a notion that for many of us,
our college students are no longer the 18 to 22 year old cchort. We
have hundreds of students at San Francisco State who over the age
of 60, as we did at the University of Massachusetts at Doston where
I was chancellor before coming, so we wanted to urge that, but cer-
tainly to move into other areas as you suggest would be quite ap-
propriate.

Mr. Smita. Thank you very much.

Mr. WiLiams. Mr, Hayes.

Mr. Haves. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You raised one basic
question which you know I have been concerned about and that is
the impact and the effect of the proposed Nunn-McCurdy Bill on
economically disadvantaged families of students.

I was glad to hear and am I correct in assuming the consensus
opinion among the panelists is that we are opposed to that piece of
legislation. My direct question is, I noticed you, Dr. Cole, were
quite clear in saying that it would have negative impact on low-
incoriz?e students. Is that shared by the rest of the members of the

el
paII'lJr. Broustein. I certainly agree with Dr. Cole, yes.

Mr. AvT™aAN. [ do too.

Dr. CORRIGAN. Yes, indeed.

Mr. Haves. All right. I just wanted to get cleared that, I am going
in the right direction. Dr. Cole, one statistic that you pointed out
was very surprising to me. I am confessing my ignorance, that
there are more college aged black males now in prison than en-
rolled in our colleges. That is correct, right?

Dr. CoLk. It is both correct and terribly frightening. :

Mr. Haves. I am telling you this is something you if you need
know more of the stimulus to go out and do what we can to im-
prove and reform our system. This is a great waste to this nation of
ours and I certainly-—I am going to use that in many of my speech-
es that I make in different sections of this country in support of
some of the legislation we have discussed in here. Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Petri.

Mr. Petr1. Thank you very much. I apologize for arriving a bit
late. I think Dr. Bloustein and 1 hagd the tg;portum‘ty to meet and
discuss this subject a bit in New Jersey and I know ycu have been
very interested in trying to have some sort of a community service
feature as part of the college education and many colleges and uni-
versitics do try to encourage students to do that on a voluntary
basis through organizations such as Phil Brooks hold at Harvard or
other similar institutions at different schools.

To require it in a sense undermines the volunteerism and the
fact that someone has given of themselves, it is being extracted
from them and before we think about coming forward with some
sort of a Federal requirement that would apply to all schools re-
gardless of their circumstances and regardless of the student's cir-
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cumstances, nationwide is sort of out of the box. Can you tell me
any college that currently certainly would have the right to do re-
quires community service of its students before Eiving them a di-
ploma or do you think before we proceed down this path as a Con-
gress, using the force or law, we might see how it works on an ex-
perimental basis.

You know, our country, they say the states are of laboratory and
democracy, well, the universities can be a laborztory too and if you
are doing it and it really has worked wonders, you may not need
Federal legislation. They will all do it because it is such a good idea
and if they don’t, there may be a reason they are not doing it, that
we ought to think about invoking the power of law through the
Federal Government in an area such as this. I would just like you
to respond to that.

Mr. BrousTeln. Well, first, let me say that what I believe we as
teaching institutions do is not teach volunteerism, but teach what
comes out of community service by way of knowledgz of that com-
munity. If volunteerism is a secondary product, I am pleased as can
be that we are also viewing our students with volunteerism.

I do not think it is our role as universities to be moral teachers. I
do think it is our role, however, to put before students the nature
of the reality, the real world in which they live and that is as im-
portant to their education as teaching them English.

We require that regularly. I should say, on the other hand, that
there are some institutions, there are very small ones who de¢ have
community services a regular requived par? of their program. They
are very small ones and I don’t know even the name offhand, but
thirdly, let me say that our own program envisages a required sem-
inar or lecturer program in community service in which communi-
ty service itself would be a voluntary practicum so that a student
would have the alternative.

Everyone would take a course in the community service area in
relationship to their own profession, but there would be a practi-
cum or a variety of practicums among which would be actual com-
munity service so that we as this is being thought of in the context
of our university have the feeling that we can provide students
with different kinds of practicums, some of which would be volun-
tary service.

Finally, I would say, I would hope whatever bill comes out of
Congress, that it would allow each university to make that choice
for themselves, and not mandate a single pattern across the coun-
gly. One of the great virtues of basing the system in existing higher

ucational institutions is you use the infrastructure and the orga-
nizational and regulatory capacity of that institution and not sub-
stitute a Federal set of regulations for what the institutions itself is
going to do.

Mr. PeTRI. I saw several stirring on the panel. I don’t know if
someone else wanted to respond to that.

Dr. CoLk. I simply wanted to say that there is an organization of
colleges and university presidents who are concerned about the
issue of national service. We are bound together under the title of
“eampus compact” and among the 150 institutions that are in some
way associated with ‘‘campus compact,” there are those which,
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indeed, do require community service, and of course, in our high
schools.

I live in a city of Atlanta, Georgia, where one does not graduate
from high school without a certain number of hours of community
service.

Mr. PETRI. Thank you. I see the yellow light on, so I guess I am
suppose to stop, but I hope there will be another round, so I have
another question I would like to ask.

Mr. WiLLiams. Yes, we have a second ronnd of questioning if the
gentleman wishes. Mr. Owens?

Mr. Owens. I think Ms. Unsoeld was here before me. I wish the
panelist would comment on the fact that the Mikulski Bill pays
people $6.50 an hour to work part-time on the weekends with non-
profit organizations. The Pell Bill pays people about $5.00 an hour
to do community service and the Panetta Bill will pay at least min-
imum wage.

None of them, however, limit the payments to low-income per-
sons. Would you care to comment on like the impact that is to have
on helping with the problem of low-income students earning money
that might help them to go to college?

Dr. CorriGan. Well, I think, sir, that is one of the reasons that
those of us in urban institutions and historically black institutions
have problems with aspects of the bills. Qur students are already
workinf large amounts of time. At both U Massachusetts, Boston
where | was chancellor and at San Francisco State, I think 80 per-
cent of our students are gainfully employed or many, many of
them, a large percentage are fully employed while they are going
to college so that we are, again, our medium age of an institution
such as an urban institution may be 24 medium age, 27 average

e.
It is these people that are working, so there is & concern that
that kind of extra burden being imposed upon a population that is
already working to support itself through school.

Mr. Owens. I think many of your students are employed in pro-
grams that are means tested, targeted for low-income students——

Mr. Corrican. I think you get all kinds of employment, but at a
place snch as mine, students, for the most part, have gotten em-
ployment on their own. This is not coming through the university.

Mr. Owens. If yon eliminated the government, the means tested
program, or the targeted prsgrams for low-income students and
these programs are available for all students, would that have an
impact on the number of low-income students who would——

r- BLOUSTEIN. One of the advantages of the program that we
are thinking about, namely a required program, is that it would
not add to the burden of poor students wl;-lo are already at work. I,
like President Corrigan, have a large, large proportion of my stu-
dent body that is already at work.

That would not take advantage of these opportunities, especially
at those small sums because they are already over-burdened. We
think they are working too much as is to complete an undergradu-
ate education. The virtue, to go back to the question I was asked
previously, one of the virtues of making it required for all students,
is that the burden is then fairly born and it is a substitute for an-
other course in the curriculum, so that there is not another either
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period of time or ancther burden added tc an already over-bur-
dened poor person attending the college.

Mr. OweNs. On the Nunn-McCurdy Bill, there is sort of uniform
agreement that we don’t want to go that way, you will find a lot of
sympathy here with this committee also, but Nunn-McCurdy has
quite a bit of momentum in the country right now.

They seem to have identified some constituency or theﬁr think
they have a constituency of the people of America who think that a
patriotic American means you ought to be willing to work for the
society and most of all, nobody should be given anything for noth-
ing. You should not have Pell Grants and various kinds of grants
being given to students who have not worked for them.

We should onli; give S & Ls and people, the banking industry,
things for free. They feel they have a constituency. He is a possible
candidate for president in the future, so we are going to have to
contend with that maybe. What would be——

Dr. BLousTtEIN, Mr. Owens, one answer to that is that all our stu-
dents in our university, every student is subsidized to 75 percent,
Those students on financial aid are just getting a slight bit more
than most every student in that university.

Mr. OwenNs. In counteracting some of the momentum that the
Nunn/McCurdy seems to be building up among people who do feel
that we're giving too much to certain people, what is your com-
ment on the alternative that a student would have. Let’s suppose
there are no more Pell Grants and student assistance programs
and you force the low-income student into a program for two years.

They come out with two vouchers of $10,000 each—§20,000—have
you had any interaction with students or any cornments in teyms of
low income-students feeling that they have a great dea) of pressure
from their families and their surrounding environment to spend it
on the alternative of buying a home instead of going to college.
Any feedback on that at this point?

Dr. CorrigaN. If I could speak to that. First of all, that alterna-
tive in a way frightens us. We have been working, as President
Cole suggested, to reach down as far as the middle schools to en-
courage Individuals who had not previously been thinking about
going into—finishing high school, let alone going through higher
education.

We cultivate these students, we bring them along, we work with
them closely. We don’t now want something that interferes with
that momentum where we could bring them into college and make
them productive citizens.

Second, in fact, I think for us there is a class to element hore.
Under that act. somebody who can afford to go to college on his or
her own. who does not have to depend on financial aide, does not
have to do the public service. So we are requiring those people who
are most in need of financial aide to do the public service in order
to come to the university.

Mr. OwENs, Then your offering the alternative of they can buy a
home. Ms. Cole, do you have a——

Dr. CoLE. I simply wanted to make the point that I think in low-
income and minority communities the ver{1 notion of community
service is very deep. That is the idea of helping other folks, of
bringing somecne up from the scuth to live in a northern home to |
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go to school, The idea of through churches and sororities, fraterni-
ties, and clubs, of reaching out to help others.

So, the idea that somehow we have to have national legislation
for people to understand, as Martin Luther King said, that the
most fundamental guestion is, “What are you doing for others?” is
very misguided. What we do need is a national service legislation
that is fair, that is well-tested, and certainly one that is in cahoots
with fundamentally sound educational policies and not running
counter to it.

Mr. Owens. Thank you.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Gunderson,

Mr. GuxpersoN. Thank vou, Mr. Chairman, and panel. I've re-
viewed all of your statements and listened to this intently. The one
question that I would like you to respond to is one of priorities put
into all of this nice intellectual discussion of what the role of serv-
ice to government is or is not and all of that.

Then pretty soon the reality hits you in the head, as it is doing
right now. We find that we are going to have to somehow dig up—I
think it is something like $500 million plus just to keep the GSL
program at current services due to the interest rates fluxuation,
etc.

My question to you would be, even if we look at service on a vol-
untary basis as a part of a higher education aids program, where
do you put it if it means reprogramming funds out of Title 4 into
this kind of an incentive service base program? In other words, do
you support it then or do we have an absolute essential commit-
ment to maintain the present level of Title 4 before we create any
new initiatives because I don't know ahout the rest of this panel
but my gut feeling is we are not going to see a lot of new money
above current services in Title 4 over the next couple years.

Dr. AvtMan. It is my view it would be that we do not only pro-
tect, but find ways to supplement what is there, or else our stu-
dents are going to have an increasingly more difficult time to be
successful and to complete their degree programs and we would
hope that that would be first priority.

Dr. Coie. It is very tempting to become rhetorical and I really do
not want to do that. I want to say in clear language that we must
have educating our people as a top priority. When it is no more
basic than that, the idea that we educate some and not all is in
contradiction to what America is about.

So, we can’t identify for you, Congressman, exactly where you go,
in which pot you dip, but we do know that in the coming century,
we have got to educate better, more and more of our population.
The idea of ridding our nation of financial aid for our students is
simply not even thinkable.

. Gunperson. I hope I did not suggest that in my question.

Dr. CoLe. No.

Mr. GuxnpersoN. Lord, I really miscommunicated if I did.

Dr. BrousteiN. Congressman Gunderson, I too believe we can’t
rob the financial aid pot to build this system. It is already inad-
equate. On the other hand, I will say that I think that there are
aspects of the financial aid pot, say in loan forgiveness programs,
which would nut make or put any immediate threat on the system
or raise the cost.
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Movreover, I think if you rely on the existing infrastructure of
colleges and universities and high schools to promote a system of
national community service, that you will be talking about costs of
very marginal nature in terms of any Federal budget. We need
very little beyond what we have to make this program work. That
little should not come from the existing financial aid system.

I am sure that the sums involved are minuscule in terms of the
burdens this nation faces and in terms of the benefits to be derived.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Let me complete my questioning with a request
to the five of you. who I guess I consider thought leaders in the
higher education community. It is literally impossible for this Con-

to maintain the level of services everyone of us in this room
would like when college tuition continues year after year to out
pace inflation. We can’t keep up no matter how hard we try.

We badly need some input from the community as to how we can
maintain quality and get a handle on higher education tuition cost.
I mean next to health care it is the second highest element that is
going through the roof. Please give me personally and I would
think this whole committee some insight on that in the future.
Thank you.

Dr. CoLE. Thank you.

Mr. WiLtiams. Ms. Unsoeld.

Ms. UnsoeLn. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would just ask if I
could have a name and contact address for Campus Contact since
that is a new entity to me and I would like to be able to get in
touch.

Dr. CoLE. Brown University,

Ms. UnsoELD. I guess I would yield the balance of my time to Dr.,
Cole anytime when somebody else has run out. I see that she is
eager to respond because I appreciate your responses today.

ﬁlr. WiLtiams. Well, the chair has reserved the time of Ms. Un-
soeld for Dr. Cole. Mr. Payne.

Mr. PaynNe. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am sorry
that I was not here in a timely fashion to hear most of the testimo-
ny, especially from Dr. Cole, who I have heard of for many years
and have great deal of respect for and, of course, the president of
the New Jersey Umversﬂ:y

Most people didn't know we have New Jersey University, they
call it Rutgers. Dr. Bloustein, I was at a breakfast where I spoke to
the association of school administrators from New Jersey and that
session went late, therefore, I was unable to hear your testimony.

I don’t have any specific questlons regarding your testimony only
that I do agree with you, Dr. Cole, about the fact that there has
always been this volunteering. I lived up north so I saw everyhbody
come up from down south. We brought people in and the extended
family concept.

So, it’s not something that needs to be recreated here. As a
matter of fact, we could probably write a better program if we were
given the o portunity. I would just like to say that I believe—the
court is stilf out so far as these various pieces of legislation is con-
cerned. I have to continue to study and look at the ramifications,

I am appalled too by the statistic that you mentioned about black
males, having more in prison than in colleges. As a matter of fact,
black males make up seven percent of the population in this coun-
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try, but 40 percent of the prison population happen to be black
males.

So, I certainly agree that there needs to be a total turning
around. I am aiso disturbed at the cuts in the education budget. We
have a president that really ran on the fact that he wanted to be
the “environment and education” president. It may have been that
it was simple to say the “EE”president, so he said environment and
education; I do not know what it was, but, I look at the budget and
there is certainly no way, and I understand that there are a lot of
competing interests and there are a lot of cost that we have to bear
as a nation.

For a person to use—and that is what it is, simply use somethin
and then turn around and put $400 million more into new speci
programs and turn around and find that special education is cut by
46 percent and Title 1 is reduced by 40 percent, and bilingual edu-
cation by about 35 percent and on and on and on. That is even
worslt)a tl;an robbing Peter to pay Paul; he simply killed Peter to -

ay Paul.
P go, I think that we really need to take a look at the whole ques-
tion of education. If this nation is going to become a first ¢lass
nation, we're down to 1.5 percent of our national budget for educa-
tion of the gross national product where we're doing 22-27 percent
over the past eight years for defense. )

Thirty-three %Jillion dollar outlay as opposed to $300 billion
makes no sense. S0, I'm here to listen and to be supportive of edu-
cation, because that is the only we are going to work our way out
of our deficit and our lack of competitiveness in this country.
Thank you.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Poshard.

Mr. PosHaRD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of
the committee. I represent a district that has a relatively small mi-
nority population, but it has a very high poverty population. I just
want to paint a scenario for you, because I have some éoncerns
about voluntary service and its effect upon pre-college education as
well ag college education.

A lot of our kids, even when they are in high school, end up at
MecDonalds and Hardys working 25-30 hours a week. They graduate
with a six grade reading level, with very poor fundamental skills
because our university policies, at least in our public universities,
are for the most part open.

These children go on to college and they need extensive remedi-
ation skills even at the university level. We have extensive remedi-
ation programs at the university levels. My question is, those are
academically at-risk students and our universities are filled with
them today; you folks know that.

Now, we're going into this higher education philosophy where we
require everybody to have a c¢lassical curriculum to get in and we
are raising the standards which puts these kids even more at-risk.

Why can’t we find a way to integrate the volunteer programs
into some sort of remediation studies or something, rather than
these kids going and earning minimum wage. They can get a mini-
mum wage ’]ob at McDonalds while they are at the university.

Why don’t we integrate some kind of voluntary prograin which
would help them financially while at the same time they are get-
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ting the academic remediation that they need to compete and to go
on through school and to survive academically, because my experi-
ence is that too many of these children are getting into their fresh-
man year or maybe to their sophomore year and they are out of
there. They cannot survive academically.

They do not need another job at McDonalds or another 20 hour a
week volunteer job somewhere out in the community. They need
help to survive academically. We are not doing that. We are not.
My God, the body can onlgostand 50 much stress. I mean, & mind
cannot function when the body comes home at night and gives out.

I see that and I know it js a problem that needs to be solved and
it seems to me that we ought to be able to integrate the two. Do
you have any opinions of that?

Dr. BroustEIN. Mr Poshard, I have every sympathy for what you
are saying. I believe it as deeply as you do. One of the virtues of
making such a program service a requirement is that we hope
thereby to create within the university a community that does not
exist.

One of the main burdens of the very poor and of the minority
population as they come into the university is that they have no
ref;tionship with other students who are in some common purpose.
We hope through our course structure to make it possible to groups
of students, some well-educated, some from families with high
income, some poorly educated to work together for a common pur-
POse.

The anomy, the sense of isoclation, of the poor and the minority
student in the university, is a major, major problem that we think,
a combined effort at community service in the context of a learning
experience where you are learning with other students, would be of
extraordinary value.

Mr. Posuarp. Could you folks perhaps draft something for this
commitfee because eventually, one of these bills is going to survive
and come through here and I think we need to amend it to include
this very kind of inter-university, voluntary program that you are
talking about which gets that academic upgrading, as opposed to,
perhaps, some other thing out in the community necessarily.

Dr. BroustemN. I think the program should be essentially a edu-
cational program.

Mr. PosHARD. Yes,

Dr. BroustEiN. It should be—that is what we are best at. We are
not a social service organization. If we can also do something of
value in terms of social service, that’s great, but our primary mis-
sion is to educate and I think the point you make is central to our
educational purpose.

We have to build more cohesiveness between the student body
which increasingly of late, at least, has divided among itself.

Dr. AuvtTMan. If I might add, your question hones in on another

oup that we have not talked very much about today. We have

een assuming that a lot of these students are, in fact, graduating
from high school and what might happen to them then.

We are losing 25 to 45 gercent of those student who are not even
finishing high school and who are being lost somewhere in that
pipeline who are not going to be able to contribute in the way we
would like to see them and any feature of legislation that would
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come out, we hope would include that group so that we do not lose
them to American scciety, and include the compensatory educa-
tion, to help these students who are going to suffer if we don’t.

Mr. Posuarp. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, would you allow me
one more statement on Ms., Unsoeld’s time, please? I have noted
during the past several years, the division in our society between
the haves and the have nots. The wider caesium, I should say.

That is true also in the university community if you note that
verﬂ sgeciﬁga]ly and I think integrating the volunteer programs
with education, where you bring those children together, would go
a long way toward bridging that gap even more out in our society.
So I would hope that you could offer some hands on suggestions for
us in that. Thank you.

Mr. WiLLiams. For a second round of questioning. Mr. Petri?

Mr. Perri. Thank you very much Mr. Chairman. I just was in-
formed, too, in your opening statement, and I commend you for it,
you indicated that you need not tremble quite as much about the
prospects of some of these bills, and that I?Iunn/ McCurdy, at least
as originally suggested, would not come out of here.

Certainly if something does come out, I have a modest sugges-
tion, and, that is, that rather than eliminating all of our existing,
or phasing out our existing higher education programs and substi-
tuting some sort of national service requirement on young people
who aspired toward a higher education, that we, on a national
basis, just go ahead and do it on a trial basis in the District and
Oklahoma, represented by our colleague and in Georgia.

If they come back here after the young people discover what has
been done to them by their representatives, why we could consider
doing it to my constituents, but don’t do it out of the box to the
people of Wisconsin, please.

The question I really wanted to address to the panel was that lis-
tening to all of this discussion there seems to me to be a false as-
sumption, and that is that somehow young people as they are out
working, whether it is at McDonalds, or as a plavground summer
guidance counselor, or at a youth camp, or as a carpenter or some-
thing, are not enga in-community service.

It is not as though somehow they are doing wonderful and worth-
while when it is organized and paid for by the government and
they are doing something that is not socially beneficial when it is
paid for by the community voluntarily through the private sector.

It seems to me, in fact, that we are looking at things artificially
and with blinders on and that the young person who is putting
himself through college by working on a road crew is providing
community service has better roads and the one who is working as
a carpenter, is providing a community service, better housing, and
the one working at McDonalds, who by the way should not be
downgraded.

It is the largest employer of first experience in the United States
and they take that very seriously. I would urge anyone, if you have
the chance to do what I have done, and go through their program
for intrcducin%young people to the world of work, it is a wonder-
ful, well thought-out effort and I think more conscientious then we
would likely find from the government community service pro-
gram, frankly.




198

I would kind of like your reaction to that and whether we might
not just stumble into re-inventing the CETA program and turning
a lot of young people off on the idea of community service if we do
not thin{( things through properly.

I would rather than have them out there working as they are
now in a hundred and one ways, private sector, non-profit, serving
their community and making a hving, helping them get through
college doing so.

Dr. BrousTteIN. Mr. Petri, I think you are perfectly right that
there is a large amount of community service being done out there,
but no one has expressed as eloquently as I just heard you express
it, the conceptual and ideological framework of that community
service.

That is why I think the importance for us is not more communi-
ty service, Qur students do a lot of it. The importance for us is to
put it in the context of educating them for public responsibility, for
educating them in the scope and the significance of what they are
doing in respect of that service.

Now, it is an isolated experience in their life sometimes that
they regard as a misfortune, rather than seeing it as a component
part of citizenship and of a vital democratic state, Our purpose is
to put it in that intellectual, and moral context, not to substitute
more and new forms of community service necessarily, but to give
it an intellectual context as you did in your very question.

Dr. CoLE. I would like to respond if I tmight. I too feel that there
iS an enormous amount of activity which we can properly and fully
call community service, but I am uneasy with the notion that ev-
erything is community service, what the corporate world is in-
volved in is profits for community service, what teachers in our
public schools are doing is teaching in the interest of community
service.

Certainly each and every act that we do can either further or de-
tract frotn a sensible vi;%le commmunity. I think we are talking
about something other than working at McDonalds. I think we are
talking about a sense of engagement in one's own life and in one’s
society.

We are talking about something that does represent sacrifice.
Someone who spends a Saturday afternoon tutoring little kids at
the YWCA, has made a choice and it is, in fact, a sacrifice. I think
we want not to make community service everything because then
it becomes nothing. It has no meaning if everything is community
service.

What we do want to do is to make community service a more in-
tegral part of the life of every individual. I think one of the things
I am the most struck by in living in Atlanta is the amount of com-
munity service done by the corporate sector. I do not mean that it
is community service connected with the product they make.

I mean that these are the individuals who chair the United Way,
who head the girls club committee for this, who are raising funds
for that, but I think we do not want to confuse it, to act as if any
action on the part of an individual is in the interest of the commu-
nity.

Mr. WiLLtams. Mr. Owens, did you or Mr. Hayes wish a second
round? Mr. Hayes.




199

Mr. Haves. I realize tinie is slipping away from us. There are a
few of us who share the opinion that education should be viewed as
an investment. This includes economically disadvantaged, not a
burden but an investment, as well as security of this great nation
may very well rest on how well we approach this question of educa-
*tion.

You, Mrs. Cole, I wonder if it is possible if you have any figures
- to insert ir ‘he record. I happen to believe on this area of invest-
o ment. Ther. are figures that indicate that it costs us more to keep
' a prisoner incarcerated, than it woald almost twice as much to give
him an education which may ve:y well keep him out prison. My
candidate for President used this guite often In his speeches, Rever-

end Jesse Jackson.

Dr. Core. The only comment that I would add and I do so with
ﬁeat respect for the committee, ana for my colleagues as panelists.

at is that to date we really have not said something about the
particularity of educating young giris. I think one of the problems
that many of us are so frightened by is that inci _using phoneme of
teenage pregnancy.

I think. we need to remind ourselves—I've forgotten who said it—
but, when you educate a young girl or a woman, you, indeed, edu-
cate a nation because it 15 that woman in our society, still to this
point, plays a major role in educating that next generation.

I would like to, if I may, Mr. Chairman, just say that as we look
at the question of national service, although we want ultimately in
our society to be blind, to questions of race and of gender that we
do need to think very particularly what these questions would
mean for young girls and for women who are often carrying par-
5cular kinds of burdens as we attem:pt to go through the education-

rocess.

r. BLousTEIN. Mr. Owens, if I may, that number you're seek-
ing—the National Counsel on Crime and Delinquency, on whose
board I serve, estimates that the average costs of one year in prison
is something like $28,000. Most of our institutions provide an edu-
cation at much less than that. I'm sorry—Mr. Hayes.

Mr. WoLiams. Thank you. Thanks to the panel and the wit-
nesses. I have noticed that a number of today’s witnesses men-
tioned, as did witnesses in our first day of hearing, that a national
service now exists throughout the United States. It also exists as a
Federal effort, statutory effort. We seem to have forgotten that in
our haste to discuss national service.

The idea was first purposed in the 1880s, and then, of course,
under Franklin Roosevelt, during the depression national service
began to flower in the United States with the old CCC camps.
President Kennedy established the Peace Corps. Under other presi-
dents since that time, we have had retired senior citizens volunteer
programs, RSVP, Greenthumb. _

- In fact, we have an agency that is seldom mentioned in these
hearings which is an agency that performs and administers nation-
B al service in the United States called VISTA.
So, sometimes I wonder what the fuss is all about. Finally, let me
note, Dr. Cole, that you mentioned—restated the famous line from
John Kennedy's inaugural address, in which he said, “Ask what
you can do for your country.”
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No where, it seems to me, has any president said to the Ameri-
can people, and particularly its youth, “you will either ask what
you can do for your country or we will tell you and assign that
work to you.” That is what we are discussing today, whether or not
‘to amend that slogan.

[Laughter]

Well, you have been very helpful. Your counsel has heen valued,
indeed, and we appreciate you being with us. Thank you very
much. .

If our second patient panelists, Dr. Stewart and Ms. Manley will
please come .0 the witness table. Mr. Hayes, I cannot help but note
that Ms. Manley is from a city cailed Chicago, a place with which I
believe you have some familiarity and I thought you may want to
welcome Ms. Manley to the hearing room today.

Mr. Haves. Yes, Mr. Chairman, I certainly appreciate the oppor-
tunity to present and introduce a person who is from that citadel of
democracy where I come from—Chicago, and one who is a coordi-
nator of post-secondary guidance in the public school system.

As she well knows and many of us know, that we had gone
through the rather arduous tasks of trying to reform our public
schoof system 1in the city of Chicago, and in the state of Illinois,
with some trepidation.

It is hard for us to unify and get together around this kind of an
issue, which I think we will have to do. Ms. Manley’s role is cer-
tainly one that in the postsecondary area where we have, not ~nly
the high school drop-out rate, which is at an astronomical level,
but, also the abilities and the opportunities for kids to go to institu-
tions of higher learning, is on the decline rather than ascendancy;
that is particularity true among our minorities.

I just want to welcome her here before our committee and let her
know she has every cooperation for her organization from me as a
congressman, at least in the first congressional district. Thank you
very much for that opportuniiﬂ. Mr. Chamrman.

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you, Mr. Hayes. Also, on our second panel

is a good friend of this committee and me and particularity the
subcommittee on postsecondary education, the president of the Col-
lege Board, Dr. Don Stewart.

Dr. Stewart, we'll begin with you this morning.

STATEMENTS OF DR. DONALD STEWART, PRESIDENT OF THE
COLLEGE BOARD AND MS. REGINA MANLEY, COORDINATOR OF
POST SECONDARY GUIDANCE CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Dr. StEwant. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the com-
mittee. I am Donald Stewart, President of the College Board, Presi-
dent Emeritus of Spelman College, and a graduate of McChoush
Grammar School and Hyde Park High Schools on the south side of
Chicago, Illinois.

I speak, however as president of the college board, an organiza-
tion founded 89 years ago. We are an association of 2600 gchools
and colleges that seeks to bring educators together to develop
common testing, guidance and financial aid services designed to
assist students in the transition from secondary to higher educa-
tion.




201

Our ¢Hecial involvement with financial aide is carried through
the College Scholarship Service. CSS is a division within the college
board that was established in the mid 1950s to seek agreement on
standards and procedures for awarding scholarships and other fi-
nancial aid to students.

The overriding mission of the college board is to expand and
egualize access to quality education in our country. I deeply appre-
ciate this opportunity to present testimony on proposals to help
citizens serve their nation and local communities.

My statement will be brief. You have already heard considerable
testimony from educational representatives on this issue. I also
sense that the debate is moving rather quickly to a new and more
constructive stage. Qver recent months several ideals—tapping
youthful energy and commitment to address social needs, while as-
suring equal opportunity for higher education—seem to have been
set at odds in the discussion of national service.

Happily prospects now seem much better that the 101st Congress
will be able to reconcile these ideals and consensus legislation. It
goes without saying that as educators we recognize the importance
of helping students learn about the obligations as well as the bene-
fits of democracy and of encouraging them to carry on the heritage
gf civic involvement that represents the very best of America’s tra-

itions.

When I served as Johnnetta Cole’s predecessor at Spelman Col-
lege, we encouraged but did not reguire our students to engage ac-
tively in service programs. An increasing number of high schools
and college do the same. I welcome the prospect that additional
support from Washington will increase the opportunities for our
citizens to undertake such activities, but the tough gquestion is
whether financial benefits, such as financial aid, should be linked
to the performance of national or community service.

The Nunn/McCurdy proposal, in an earlier version, would re-
quire students to perform full time service for one or two years in
order to become eligible for existing Federal educational grants or
loans. Current student aid would phased out in favor of educational
vouchers earned through service. Like the other witnesses this
morning, and In earlier hearings, I have serious reservations about
such a linkage.

Conversion to an earned benefits aﬁgroach would be unfair. Its
impact on college enrollment would felt most heavily by eco
rnomically disadvantaged and minority groups. For financial and
needy students whose college aspirations now rest substantially on
government aid, service would oecome compulsory not voluntary.

Those most in need would face another barrier in the way of edu-
cational opportunity and upward mobility. I would also be con-
cerned about the administrative complexity of such a conversion.
~n already complicated student aide system would become even
more 50 if service vecords were to be gathered and validated and if
provisions for exceptions and exemptions were to be made.

Difficult questions about how to handle drop-outs from service
programs would have to be addressed. Attrition in service pro-
grams with which we have had considerable national experience,
such as VISTA and Peace Corps, has unfortunately been high. Now
part of the appeal of recent national service proposals is a —ide-
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§preadl%-lerception that current student aid programs are not work-
ing well.

e current array of stindents assistance programs was created to
level the playing field as it were to make college a realistic hope
for all of our children regardless of background and financial cir-
cumstances.

There is no doubt tha’ the system has fallen short of equalizing
access for all and equiti¢s do persist, but there is also no doubt that
student aid has assisted, millions of financial needy individuals to
pursue postsecondary eciucation and has helped lower barriers that
made higher education for most of our early history, largely of
white, largely upper class preserve.

The college board pluns to participate actively in efforts to sim-
plify and strengthen thgz programs. We have, for example, just pub-
lished a book “Radical Reform or Incremental Change”, which pre-
sents a number of optivns for students loan policy in the 1990s, but
surely it would be premature to displace or begin to phase out ex-
isting programs before we have alternatives proven to do a better
Jjob in equalizinﬁ educational opportunities for the disadvantaged.

On the other hand, we would favor, and 1 would suspect much of
the educational compiunity would favor an approach to national
service that supplements rather than supplants student aid in its
current form.

Uncoupling service: and existing student aid programs would
remove for now the mnost troubling aspect of the national service
debate. The benefits of the supplemental, demonstration program
could be significant in terms of piloting possible new models for the
future delivery of financial aid services in conjunction with the
program of voluntary national service.

The College Board's periodic reports on Trends and Student Aid
show only a small increased in the purchasing power of Federal
student assistance wnce the mid 1970s, which is now being spread
over a larger number of eligible students. Service-related educa-
tional benefits might help students meet more of their educational
costs and they might give students a means for reducing their
growing reliance o'1. loans.

Service program: can also give students who do not qualify for
need based assistziice a way to take more responsibility for meet-
ing their own collzge expenses. The logical first step is a pilot or
demonstration preject of some kind.

We-can thereby learn about the willingness of students to under-
take and complete service jobs, the amount of administrative regu-
lation required, the extent to which service participants would
mirror the population as a whole. The participation of minorities,
the extent to wkich meaningful service opportunities can, in fact,
be created, and how student aid and service related benefits can be
brought together in & complimentary array of college financing
option. -

pFlexibi]jty and promotion of a variety of service alternatives
rather than pursuing just one model that focuses on service in the
pre-college years will be important features of any demonstration
effort.

Alternative forms of service-related educational benefits might
be designed to assist individuals who serve at different times in
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their lives. Vouchers for those who served before or during school,
and loan forgiveness options for who serve after completing college.

Even in a national service program that supplements, not sup-
plants, student aid, there must be attention to how service-based
benefits interact with student assistance. For example, decisions
will have to be made about how such benefits are counted for need-
analysis purposes, just as the need-analysis system currently must
consider how to treat veterans’ educational benefits.

Thought should be given to how different service models might
affect the financial relationship between students and parents and,
in particular, the traditional assumption that parents will pay to
the extent of their financial ability for the educational expenses of
their dependent children.

These igsues must be addressed not solely within the context of
Federal student aid, but also in relation to the strong commitment
made by states and higher education institutions to student access
and choice through financial aid.

In short, I suggest a caretul, measured approach to introducing
new kinds of incentives for students based on service. Federal fiscal
constraints, in any event, will undoubtedly limit the resources that
can be devoted to such a pilot effort in the next several years.

The College Board is prepared to help in anyway we can to
devise 2 consensus approach and to discuss and promote the cop-
cept of service with our szcondary school and collegiate member in-
stitutions.

Naticnal service for our young people offers many appealing pos-
sibilities. We must make sure, however, that the opportunity to
serve enhances, not distracts, from the continuing task of equaliz-
ing educational opportunities for all Americans while improving
educational performance.

As we approach the end of the Twentieth Century, demographic
and economic changes make this goal not just a hope, but a neces-
sity. The College Board, for which equity has always been the cen-
trai mission, has committed itself to a goal that, by the end of the
century, individuals from traditionally under-represented groups
not only have access to, but complete two-year and four-year ccl-
lege programs at the same rate as traditional students.

We are examining all College Board programs and services to
make sure that each has the maximum impact possible on the
achievement of this national goal.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I urge that these
same criteria, equality of access to quality higher education and
comparable outcomes for all students guide your deliberations on
national service and student aid, and I thank you again for the op-
portunity to testify, and I thank you for your support of American
education.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Donald Stewart follows:)
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Mr. Chairman and members pf the committee, 1 am Donald Stewart. President of
the Collede Board. Founded BY years ago. the College Board is an association
of 2500 schools and colleges that brings educators together to develop ¢ommon
testing, guidance, and fimancia) aid services designed tg assist students iR
the transition from secondary to higher pducation. Qur 5pecial inwolvement
with financial aid is carried out through the College Schelarship Service.
(SS is an association within the College Board that was established in the
mid-19505 to seek agreement on standards end procedures for amdrding
scholarshils and other financial 2id te students. The overriding mission of
the College Board is to expand and equalizZ€ access to quality edycatisn in

this country,

) appreciate this opportunity to present testimony on preposals to help
citizens serve their nation and Jocal communities. My statement will be
brief. You have already heard considerable testimony from education
representatives on this issue. ! also sense that the debate is woving rather
quictkly to @ new and more constructive Stage. Over recent months. two
principles--tapPing youthfu) energy and commitment to address social needs.
and assuring efual opportunity for hiQher education--seem to have been Set at
odds in the diseussion of national service. MNow prosPects seem much better
that the 101st Congress will be able to reconcile these ideals in consensus

legislation.

it goes without saving that, as educators. we recognize the importance of
helping students learn about the oblipations as well as the benefits of
democracy and of encouraging them to carry on the heritage of eivic

involvement that characterizes our nation. In a former life, [ served ten
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years as Johnetts Cole's Predecessor at Spelman Cpliege, where we encouraged
{but did not reqeire) gur students to engage actively in servige progroms.

An intreating pumber of high schools and colleges do the sape, I welcome the
prospect that additiomal swpport from WashiMften will increase the

opportunities for our citizens to wndertake such activities,

But the tough question is whether financial benefits. such as student aid,
show)d be Vinked to the performance of national or comunity service. The
Hunn-McCurdy Proposal, v its early version. would require students to Perform *
full.time service for one or typ years in prder to become eligible for
existing federal educational grants OF Toans. Current student aid would be
phased. out in favor of educational vouchers earned through service. Like
other wilnesses this morning and in earlier hearinds. I have seripus

veservations about such & linkage,

Conversion to an earnced-benefits approach would e inequitable. JTts impact on
college enroliment and retention would be felt most heavily by economically
disadvantaged and minority groups. For financially-needy students whose
college asPirations now rest substantially on government aid. service would
bezome compulsory. pot voluntary. Those most in peed would face another

barrier in the way of educational opportunity and upward mobility.

I would also be concerned about the administrative complexity of such a
conversion, An already comPlicated student aid system would become even more
complicated if service records have to be gathered and validated and if
Provistons For exceptions and exemptions must be made. pjfficylt questions

about how to handle drop.outs from service Pregrams would have to be
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addressed: attrition in service Programs with which we have some pational

experience [e.g., VISTA, Peace Corps) has been high.

Part of the aPPeal of recent national service Proposals is a widesPread
perception that current student 3id program: are not working vecy well. The
¢cyrrent array of student assistance progeams were created to level the playing
field, az it were: to make college a realistic hope for all of our children,
regardless of background and financial ¢ircumstances. There is no doubt that
the system pas fallep short of eualizing aceess for all. [neQuities

persist. But there's also no doubt that studemt aid has assVsted millicos of

financially-needy individuals to puriug postsecondary education and has helped

Tower barriers that made higher education for most of our history a largely

white, largely upper-class preserve,

The College Board Plans to particiPate actively in efforts to simplify and
strengthen the programs. HWe have, for examples just published Radical Reform
or Incrementa] Chanoe?, which presents a pupher of options for student Jloan
pelicy in the 1990s., dut it would surely be premature to displace or begin to
phase out existing progeams before we have altermatives proven to do 3 hetter

job in equaiizing educational opportunity for the disadvantaged.

On the other hand, [ would faver, and 1 susPect much of the aducation
community would faver. an approach to national service that suPPlements rather
than suPplants seudent aid in its cuerent form. Un=coupling service and
existing student aid progeams would remove for now the most troubling aspect
of the nationa) stervice debate. The penefits of a sUPPIementals demonstration

program could be significant in tevms of Piloting possible new podels for the
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future delivery of {inancial aid services in conjunction with a program of

voluntary national service.

The College Board's periodic reports on repds ip Stident Aid show only a
small increase in the purchasing power of federal student assistance since the
id=-1970s, which is now being spread over a larger nunber of eligible
students. Service-related educational bepefits might help students meet move
of their educational costs, and they might give students a means for reducing
their 9rowing reliance on loans. Service programs covld also give students
who don*t guatify for peed-based assistance a way to take more responsibility

for meeting their own college exPenses.

The logical {irst step is a pilet or demonstration prodect of some kind, We
could thereby learn about the willingness of students t0 undertake and
complete service Jobs, the amount of administrative regulation required, the
extent t0 which service particiPants would mirror the Population as a whole.
the participation of mingrities, the extent to which meaningful service
opportunities cam in fact be created, and how student aid and service-related
benefits can be brought together in a complementary arvay of college financing

options.

Flexibiltty and promotion of a variety of service alternatives. rather than
pursuing just one model that focuses oo zervice in the pre-college years, will

be imPortant features of any demonstration eiferi. Alternative forms of

service.related educational benefits might be designed to assist individvals

vho serve at different times in their lives: vouchers for these whe serve

before or during school, for instance. and loan forgiveness options for those
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100 serye after completing college.

Even in a maticnal Service program that suPPlements. not Supplants. student
aid, there myst be attention to how service-based benefits interact with
student assisStance. For exampie. decisions will have to be made about how
such benefits are counted for need-amalysis Purposes. just as the
need-analysis system currently must consider how to treat veterans' -
educational hepefits. ThouQht should be given to how different Service mogdels
might affect the fipnancial relationship between students and parents apd in
particular the traditional assumPtion that parents will pay tg the extent of
their financial ahility for the educational expenses of their dependent
chiidren. And these jsspes must be addressed pot s0lely with in the context
of federzl student afd, but alse in relation to the strong commitment made by
states apd Postsecondary dnstitutions to student access and choice through

financial aid.

In short. 1 suggest a careful. measured approach to introducing new kinds of
incentives §o students based on service. Federal fiscal constraints. in any

event, will undoubtedly Vimit the resources that can be devoted to Such a

pilot effort in the pext several years. The College Hoard is PrePared to help

it any way we €an to devise A consensus approdch apd to giscuss and promote
the concept of service with cur secondary schepl and colleglate pemher

institutions.

Natipnal service for our young ptopie gffers many appealing possibilities, We
must make sure, however. that the opportunity iy serve enhances. not
distracts, from the continuing task of equalizing educational opportunities

for 811 Americans and improving educational Performance.
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As we aPProach the end of the twentieth century. demographic amd egonomic
changes make this goal mot just a hoPe, but a necessity. The Cellege Board,
for which equity has always been the pentral mission, has commicted itself to
a goal that, by the end of the tentury, individuals from traditionally
underrepresented grouPs have acress to and complete two-year and four-year
college programs at the same rate a5 traditional Students. WHe are examining
all College ppard programs and servives to make sure that each has the maximum

impact possible on the achievement of this mational goal.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. [ wrge that these same
criteria--8quality of access to fuality higher education and comparable
outcomes for all Students--guide your deliberations on patiomal Service and
student aid. Thank you for the opportunity te testify. and thank you for your

suPPort of American education.
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Mr. WiLLtams. Thank you, Dr. Stewart. Ms. Manley.

Ms. ManNuwey. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, it is,
indeed, my pleasure to be with you teday. The National Association
of College Admission Counselors is supportive of service by stu-
dents and applauds the logic behind many of the bills that have
been introduced in Congress in the past few months.

We think, that whenever posmEle, citizens should engage in
meaningful and necessary service to their community and the
nation. Indeed, most of our colleges and universities and many of
our schools already have such programs. Some make such service a
prerequisite to graduation.

In Chicago large numbers of high school students participate in
voluntary activities within the schools, community, and civic orga-
nizations, and from the vantage point of my position, as coordina-
tor of postsecondary guidance for the Chicago Public Schools,
which involves direct contact with students, as I review their schol-
arship applications, I can attest firsthand to the degree to which
Chicage High School students already involve themselves with vol-
untary organizations.

Let me give you some information about our school system. I
work with 65 high schools and we have 430,000 students in our
system, and our student egopulai:ion represents gifted and talented
to the most disadvantaged, as well the most severely handicapped.
So I do have a broad scope of working with all kinds of students.

Our high school students are volunteering in student council,
they are tutors, they are office aids, they are involved in leadershig
clubs, they are in mentoring programs, they develop big sister an
brother programs, and this year we have a new program-—the
young lawyer explorers. They work with lawyers on actual cases of
concern to the needy.

There is a key club that is in most every high school in our city,
and a key club 18 a key organization. The key ¢lub is most impor-
tant because it has direct ties to adult service &roups such as the
Kiwanis Clubs. We even have programs at the elementary level.

We have a junior BETA program. Membership in the Junior
BETA is contingent upon scholarship, citizenship service, leader-
ship, and character, and these young people in the sixth, seventh,
and Zﬁhth grade give many, many hours of service to their schools
as well as their communities.

There are also hospital volunteers that our students participate
in, and many of them take pride in working with the needy and
yet most of them are needy themselves. There are churches and
other organizations which provide outlets for volunteers to work
with the needy, such as soup kitchens where students prepare and
serve meals, food drives, clothing drives, toy collections.

They work with genior citizens, both in nursing and private
homes, and they work in day care centers, in playgrounds, and at
summer camps. It seems to me that we need to provide the oppor-
tunity and the young people will do the rest. We do not have to
mandate,

Once they are involved, many of them are on the road to a life-
long commitment to service, that not only helps others but adds
meaning to those who promde the service. It also helps to build
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confidence and self-esteem in their lives and they might not other-
wise have these attributes as a result of this.

As I talk before you today, I am reminded of one student and I
view many, whose scholarship application service inicorporated the
following: Volunteer service as a hearing impaired student at an
elementary school. This student is proficient in sign language and
this student also was an office aide, newspaper staff, political cam-

aigns three hours per day, did canvassing and was an interpreter
or those who did not understand the language, as well as tutoring
elementary school students, peer counselors, and also hoespital vol-
unteer.

That is one student and I see many of those. One of the things
that our elected officials can do to promote and publicize velunteer
activities, is to use them as examples of what our students are
doing that is right.

Qur constituents have news letters and speeches and voiunieers
of the month and awards. What we really need to do is show-case
and highlight the successes, highlight the contributions that young
people are making and let us negate some of the negative publicity
that they receive.

Now I would like to focus on certain aspects of a proposal by the
national service plans. Because of the varied and sometimes con-
flicting pr~visions of the bills now before you, NACA, and that is
our national acronym, our executive board recently approved a
policy that contains the following five Frovisions that should be ad-
dressed in a final omnibus view and 1 will cite these and expand
upen a few points.

Present student aid programs should not be weakened to fund
national service proposals. Funds should supplement, not supplant
programs, such as Pell Grant, Stafford, and college work study.
Over the years these and cother programs have been the corner
stone on which students of ability, but not limited means, have
gained entrance to higher education.

No one program can be right for all students. A variety of ap-
proaches such as service before, during and upon completion of a
course of study, should be included. This should be an option, not a
requirement, for financial aid.

Many educators have expressed grave concern about the poten-
tial for interrupting the educational continuum of young people.
Inherent, in at least one of the bills now before you, most vulnera-
ble the at-risk learners. To require extensive service before enroll-
ment means that many would never begin postsecondary educa-
tion.

The distinct needs of the older part-time students should alsc be
addressed in a flexible Bmgram, because this group is a larger com-
ponent of our student body this year. For you, who are not strong
academically and who enroll in a naticnal service plan before they
enter higher education, support pregrams, such as tutoring and
academic and admission counseling are needed.

Students who participate in a service program between high
school and college regardless of their academic qualifications will
be deprived of the services of school and college admission counusel-
ors. Some provisions should be made to fill this gap.

215




213

To insure that a program serves the mutual best interest of our
country and our students, the merits of establishing a pilot pro-
gram to facilitate its fine tuning certainly warrants consideration.

Mr. Chairman, my entire professional career has been spent in
the Chicago Public Schoo) System, as a classroom teacher, and as a
high school counselor. I have been able to observe at close range,
the behavior and careers of students, and the impact made by vari-
ous policies on students and on the system.

A large number of students in Chicago schools come from fami-
lies at and below poverty levels. When mere survival has wp prior-
ity, in many instances the resulting pressure on the teenager takes
the form of choosing between contributing to the families’ survival
and continuing his or her education.

I have, however, consistently counseled students to remain in
school at all cost. This counseling has not been empty rhetoric. It
has involved assisting them in finding parttime employment at
various work study programs. We are not always successful and ad-
mittedly we do not win all the battles. We find the students enter-
ing the world of work without a high school diploma to a life of
minimum wage jobs or welfare.

The national association of college admission counselors has no
opposition to our problems, with efforts to motivate citizens to care
about and contribute to society, through voluntary service.

What we do object to is when such service becomes a barrier to
higher education. When service i¢ ingrained in the young, step by
step, continued participation in public service organizations will be
something that comes with maturation.

I share the position of my association, which asserts that the
education system will never see most of the low and moderate -
income students who are forced to take a few years off to perform
mandatory public service. This position is corroborated statistically
oy the National Center for Education statistics in their recent
study, and you have heard those statistics already this morning.

Also, if a national service plan includes a voucher for a down
payment on a home instead of a grant for tuition, pressured to
choose a dwelling, instead of an education would prevail in many
low income families.

Given the critical shortage of low t0 moderate income housing in
this country, it is not surprising that for many the thought of
owning a house or an apartment would be too great to resist. It is
our prediction that more vouchers would go for housing than for
education. At best this is a short term risky solution to a complex
problem.

Mr. Chairman, the demographics portend a school population for
the year 2000 composed of significant numbers of minority and low
income students. Many will be first or second generation Ameri-
cans whose families do not have a knowledge of how our system of
higher education works.

This brings into sharp focus the role of pre-college guidance and
counseling and working with students ang their families to show
them how to tap into the system that serves millions of students
each year.

The last thing that we need is an interruption of this education
continuance. What we do need is young Americans in productive
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and meaningful careers while we recognize that not all high school
students go directly to college. We believe that this should be an
option.

Even now we hear stories about soldiers who cannot operate so-
phisticated ¢quipment and weapons, about factory workers whose
training has not kept up with technology, and about white collar
workers who do not have second languages at their command, a ne-
cessity for trade and commerce in the world market.

The bottom line is that we need to education our students more
intensivelv and for more years than ever before, and this should be
a contiuuous process, not one with a interruption.

There are a number of bills before you and they contain ele-
ments that you can combine, in a final piece of legislation. Mr.
Martinez, Mr. Bonior, Mr. McCurdy, Ms. Morrela, Mr. Garcia, Mr.
Panetta, have excellent provisions, which when melted together
rithbﬂl]lme of the administration’s proposals, will give us an excel-
ent bill.

In summary, the National Association of College Admission
Counselors stands behind a form of service that is supplementary
to existing student aid programs, offers a variety of optional service
experiences before, during and after postsecondary education, and
might include loan forgiveness in return for performing work vital
to the national interest.

It does not inferrupt the educational continuance, especially for
at-risk students, provides tutoring, counseling, and admissions help
to enrollees, treats equally all types of students from all classes of
society, including all ages, from the elementary school student to
the senior citizen, and includes a pilot program. I thank you, it has
been my pleasure.

[The prepared statement of Regina Manley follows:]
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Regina E. Manley

Regina E. Hanley, M.A., NCC, Coordinator, Post Secondary Guidance,
Chicage /ublic Schools, & native Chicagean, completed her elementary
and seci:idary education in the Chicago Public Schools and earned both
a Bache!ors Degree in Health and Physical Education, and a Masters
Degree in Guidance and Counseling from Northeastern Illinois
Univez;ity.

She is immediate Past President of the Illinois Association of
Collene Admission Counselors, and has been active in numerous
profrssional and community organizations. She was the ¢Organizer and
firnt president of the Secondary School Counselor Council of the
Chi.:ago Public Schools. She served on the College Scholarship
Se:vice Division Governance Committee of the Mid-West Region of the
Cr:llege Board from 1985 to 1987.

%he is currentiy serving on the advisory boards of the I1lincis Math
Science Academy; University of Illinois at Chicago, Minority
Engineering Prograw; De Pgul University, Counselor Articulation
Board; and Chicago State University, Graduate School of Counseling
Education.

Her community involvement embraces membership in the Women's Board of
Mercy Hospital and Medical Center on which she served as Treasurer;
and membership on the Chagall TapestryY Committee Which was successful
in bringing to Chicago the last work of the artist. Her commitment
to the committee took her to France for a personal visit to the
artist's home and studio.
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The Key £lub is most important bacause it has direct ties to
adult service groups such as the Kiwanis Club.

Hospitals

There is a wide variety of volunteer jobs performed by young
people that are vital to the smooth running of our hospitals.
Work With tbe Needy

Churches amnd other organizations provide an outlet for volunteer

work with the needv such as soup kitchens, where students

prepare and serve meals; food drives; clothing drives; toy

collections;: work with senior c¢itizens both in nursing and
private homes; at day care cenrters, &t playgrounds, and at

summer Camps.

It seems to me that We need to provide the opportunity and the
young people will do the rest. Once they are involved, many of them
are on the read to a life-long commitment to serviece that not only
helps others but that adds meaning to those who provide the service,
It also helps to build confidence and self esteem in lives that may

otherwise lack these attributes.

One of the things that cur elected officials ¢an do to promote
and publicize volunteer @ctivities iS to use them &s examples of what
our students are doing that ig right, Constituent newsletters,

speeches, and "volunteer of the month” awards are a few ways in which
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to do this. My office yill certainly cooperate in this effort--just
call on me.
Now I would like to focus on certain aspects of proposed

national service plans.

NAGAG SERVICE RESOLUTION

Becanse Of the varied and sometimes conflicting provisions of
the bills now before you, NACAC's Executive Board recently approved a
policy that contains the following five previsions that should be
addressed in a final omnibus bill. T will cite these and then expand

upen a few of the points,

i. Present student gzid programs should not be weakened to fund
national service proposals. Funds should Supplement and not supplant
programs sych as Pell Grants, Stafford Loans, and College
Work-Study. Over the years, these and other programs have been the
cornerstones on which students of ability but with limited means have
gained entrance to higher education.

2. No one program can be right for all students. A variety of
approaches such s service befores; during, and upen completion of a
course of study should be included. 4nd, this should be an option:

not & requirement for federal financial aid.

19-864 0 - 89 - &
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3. Many educators have expressed grave concerns about the
potential for interrupting the educational continuum of young people,

inherent in at Jleast one of the bills now before you. Most

vulnerable are the "at-risk"” learners. To reguire extensive service

before enrollment means that many would never even begin
postsecondary education. The distinct needs of the older part-time
student should also be addressed in 8 flexible program because this

group is a larger component of our student bodies each year.

#. For youth who are not strong academically and who enroll in
a national service plan before they enter higher educarion, support
programs such as tutoring, and scademic and admission counseling are
needed. Students who participate in a service program between high
schopl and college, regardless of their academic qualifications, will
be deprived of the services of school and college admission

counselors. Some provisions should be made to fill this gap.

5, To ensure that a program serves the mutual best interests of
our countr¥ and our Students, the merits ©f establishing a pilot
program to facilitate its fine tuning, certainly warrants

consideration.
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INTERRUPTIRG THE CONTINUUM

Mr. Chairman, my entire professional career has been sSpent in the
Chicago Public School System. As a classroom teacher and as a high
school counselor I have been able to gbhserve at close range the
behavior and careers of Students, and the impact made by various

pelicies on the students and on the system.

A large number of the students in Chicage® Public Schools come
from families at and below the poverty level, where meTe survival has
top priority. In many instcances the resulting pressure on the
teenager takes the form of choosing between contributing to the
family's syrvival and continuing his/her education. I have, however,
consistently counseled students t© remain in school at gll cost.

This counseling has not been empty rhetoric. It has inveolved
assisting them in figding part-time employment and various work-study
programs. When we are not successful, and admittedly, we do not win
all the battles, we find the students entering the work world without
a high school diploma to a life of minimum-wage jobs or welfare.

To exacerbate the problem with & requirement demanding a period
of public service as a prerequisite for eligibility for financial
aid, in my judgement, can only be characterized as further limiting

5
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access of this group to higher education. This seems to contradiet
the country's established public pelicy with regard to educatien,

which is explicit in tbe very existence of financial aid programs.

The National Assceiation of College Admission Counselors has no
oppesition to, or preblems with, efforts to motivate citizens to care
about and contribute to society through veluntary service. What we
do object to is when such service becomes a barrier to higher
education. When serviece is ingrained in the young, step by step.
continued participation in public service organizations ill be
something that comes with maturation. I share the position of my
Association which asserts that the education system will never see
Tost of the low- and moderate-income students who wyere forced To take
a few years off to perform mandatory public service. This position is
corroborated statistically by the Natrional Center for Education

Statistics in a recent study on college completion rates.

Also, if a national service Plan includes & voucher for a down
payment on a home instead of & grant for tuition, pressure to choose
a dwelling instead of an education would prevail in many low-income
families. Given the eritical shortage of low- to moderate-income
housing in this country, it is not surprising that for many the
thought of owning a house or apartment would be too Sreat to resist,

and it is our prediction that more vouchers would go fer housing than
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for education. At best, this is a short terms risky golution to a

complex problem.

Mr. Chairman. demographics portend a school population for the
year 2000 composed of significant numbers of minority and/or
low=income students. MYany will be first or second generation
Americans whose families do not have a knowledge of how our system pf
higher education works. This brings into focus the role pf
prectllege guidance and courseling: working with students and their
families to show them how to tap into the system that serves millions
of students each vear. The last thirg that we need is an

interzuption of thigs education continuum.

what we do need is young Americans in productive and meaningful
careers. While we recognize that not all high school students go

directly to college: we believe that this should be an gption. Even

nows we hear stories about soldiers who can't operdte sophisticated

equipment and weapons, about factory yorkers whose training has not
kept up with technology, about white collar workers who do not have
second langrages at their command, & necessity foy trade and commerce
in the world market. The bottom line is that we need to educate our
students more Intensively and for more years than ever before and

that this flow should not be interrupted by mandatory service.
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CONCLUSION

Mr. Chairman, there are many usSeful and necessary volunteer
organizations now operating in the country. In every commuhity, and
on most campuses there are various opportunities for citizens of all
ages yho want to contribute in some way. I have seen first haud the
usefulness of these programs to those whe serve and te those who are
served. We see nothing wroRg with schools granting credit for such
activities. or with building a service component into courses of
study, should the institution s© desire. We ®RcOUrage the practice
of federal loan forgiveness after leaving school if the person is
employed in areas of national shorrvage such as practicing law or
medicine in depressed urban areas ©r poor rural counties, teaching in
such communities, counseling migrant workers and their families, or
working in our forests and parks, to pame & few. Many positive
reselts can come from these activities that Will last a lifetime.
RedQuired participation, however, should not be & condition of our
financiasl aid programs.

A number of the bills before you contain elements that can be
conbined in a final piece of legislation. Mr. Martirez, Mr, Bonior,
Mr. HcCurdy, and Mrs. Horella a8l1 have excellent Provisions which,

wiien melded together with some of the Administration's proposals,

Wwill give us an excellent bill.
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In summary, the National Association of College Admission
Counselors stands behind a form ©¢f service that is:

1. Supplementary to eXisting student aid programs;

2. Offers a variety of optional service experiemces before,
during and after postsecondary educations and might ipclude loan
forgiveness in return for performing work vital to the pational
interest:

3. Boes‘got interrupt the educational conitipuum, especially for
"ar-risk" students:

4, Provides tutoring, counseling and admissions help to
enroliees;

5. Treaats egually 411 types of students. from all classes of

society;

6. Includes a pilot program.

Thank you.
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Mr. WiLrtiams. Thank you. For questions, Mr. Petri.

Mr. Perri. I would like to thank both you, Dr. Stewart, and Ms.
Manley, for your testimony, and for telling us about—we hear a
lot, sometimes not so complimentary about the Chicago schools
system and its problems, and you cannot gloss over any of the chal-
lenges faced by big city schools, but its good to hear the other side
of the story.

I appreciate your testimony. I have a question I'd like to ask you,
and it gets into the area that seems to so often happen when we
pass with the best of intentions legislation, and there is something
called the law of unintended consequences that comes into play,
and we make things worse or We cause other problems rather than
making things better.

What is going through my mind is that here you have all sorts,
as you have mentioned, both of you, especially Ms. Manley, all
sorts of organizations and young people at the high school level
and at the college level participating already in a broad range of
voluntary activities.

Now, if we set up a Federal program to support and pay some
people doing these activities, if we are not careful, might we not
end up turning some people off from voluntary giving their time
because the fellow or girl down the hall is geiting paid to do what
they have been doing for nothing and they will say, “Hey, come on,
why should I continue to volunteer. I'm only going to do this if I'm
paid to do it,”” and we will have ended up helping a few people par-
ticipate in what were traditionally voluntary activities, but now
become paid activities.

They are not really giving of themselves. It has been re-charac-
terized as a job, rather than a giving, and other people will say
“Well, this I'm not going to do, because why should I do it and give
up my time when the next person is being paid to do it.” Suddenly
you put aside something because people are conniving to get this
monley rather than figuring out how to give their time most effec-
tively.

It could overall be very counter-productive if not properly admin-
istered. Could you comment on that? We don't have enough money
to pay all the people who are doing everything veluntarily right
now, and the result of paying some might discourage others.

Ms. MANLEY. Yes, I would be happy to comment on that. First of
all, the high school students who are volunteering in the high
school now, do not receive high school credit. This is a voluntary
effort on their part. Some of them will receive only service points,
but what is more important to them is that recognition.

First of all, we work with young people at the high school level
because we want them to be well rounded citizens. We want them
to recognize that they have to make a commitment to society. They
are making that recognition already. .

If we now negate what we have tried to do from Head Start up to
now and to tell them that you must become well-educated,
must prepare, you must make a contribution to society, and w en
they have taken that initiative and involved themselves in extra
currlcula.r activities and given of their time and semce and now
we say, “Here, we will pay you a little bit for this,” that negates
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what we have been trying to build of them in terms of their char-
acter, and that goes against what we have tried to do thus far.

What we nesd to do is join forces, collaborate and see how we
can form a national service plan that will be productive, that will
not negate what we are trying to do with respect to educating our
young people in this country, but yet we will reward those who
have taken that initiative, because if we do that, that’s a motiva-
ticnal factor.

We all like “warm fuzzies,” as we say in the counseling profes-
sion. We like those good strokes. When someone tells you you have
done a good job, you know how it makes you feel. If we do that to
tlt}e young people, you would be surprised to see what can come out
of it.

Mr. PeTRI. Just one other comment and you ¢an both alluded to
this. I think just by way of comment, you mentioned how impor-
tant it is to highlight and show appreciation for efforts. I think our
last three presidents, each in their own way have continued to do
that. Mr. Carter, certainly with volunteerism is his continuing in
his private role and President Reagan having young pecople and
other people, the unsung heros of America, as he called it, and
President Bush talking repeatedly about a thousand points of life
and model schools, searching for ways to try to show appreciation
and provide leadership by example.

So, I hope—do you think they ere at least trying to move in the
right direction?

Ms. MaNLEY. I see some effort.

Dr. SrewaRT. I think that these efforts are very encouraging.
Again, however, the emphases on volunteerism, I think is very im-
portant. Ancther unintended consequence—legislative action might
be the reinforcement of a growing stigma that is attached to com-
munity service.

So often we read in the newspaper that, and unfortunately, it
has been happening with public officials, ull too often. When found
guilty of something, they are immediately assigned a community
service, to work off how many hours it might be open. So often now
its seen as something that is punitive and not as positive.

I think the emphacis remaining on the voluntary side of it will
encourage the positive image that we want to create.

Mr. WitLiaMs. It is an interesting concept, Mr. Stewart, taking
public officials who are found guilty of viclating some law and re-
quiring them to serve two years in the Congress might be——

Dr. STEWART. I think that is a great honor, sir.

Mr. WiLLiams. We do too. Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Hayes. Thank you Mr. Chairman, I do not have any ques-
tions. We have been benefitted by excellent testimony from the two
witnesses. The last concept that you expressed might be worth
trying though.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Owens.

Mr. Owens. I really do not have any questions. I congratulate
both witnesses. I think their testimony should be very useful. Just
one comment, pariicularly to Ms., Manley, who was quite detailed
and is obviously very involved and close to the students at a very
impressionable age.
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Some of the message that the Nunn/McCurdy Bill sends down,
getting through to the students that there are people who feel that
to give them a higher education for nothing would be a great inju-
rious act for the nation. Do they feel any of that kind of that
charge or threat seeping through and do they react to it?

Ms. ManwEY. Yes, the students as well as some of my colleagues
are very concerned about the proposed legislation. It is difficult for
many of them now to have access to higher education. If you are
interrupted and they have to give service prior to going into educa-
tion, it negates all that we have tried to do thus far, and now in
our state, we are very concerned now with the loan portion in the
college financial aid package.

We are concerned with that loan indebtedness. Many of them are
graduatinﬁ with large bills and its creating a very difficult situa-
tion for them to pay those loans back. If we could find a way to -
forgive some of that, that might be helpful, because these are the
students who are very, very poor, who frequently sometimes have
very difficult times earning money to put the extra money in if
they need to get tc college and do the kinds of things to do.

'I}lrlere is a lot of concern in our comiaunity with respect to that
proposal legistation.

Mr. Qwens. Thank ﬁou.

Mr. WiLuiams. Ms. Unsoeld.

Ms. UnsozLn. No questions.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Fuster.

Mr. Fuster. Mr. Chairman, I do not have any questions, but I
would like to thank both witnesses for their fine testimony, and I
would like to say that on the basis of my own experience with
higher education for almost two decades before I came to Congress,
I could subscribe the central points of their statements verbatim.
Thank you. )

Mr. Wniuiams. Mr. Stewart, I believe in your testimony you
noted that the college board began almost 93 years ago. During
that time, as I understand it, the board has been aggressively seek-
ing better ways to smooth the transition from secondary to postsec-
ond education for American students. The students I have
talked with about this legislation expressed as one of their two
major concerns, the other %l:ing financial, that the Nunn/McCurdy
legislation might create a delay on their entry into college, and
that would so disrupt the transition that many of them believed
they would never go to college.

Now in one way that seems to indicate to me that perhaps
moving from high school to college is more a matter of momentum
than motivation, for some, I think it was for me, but none the less,
surely the college board has considered that difficulty, because you
have given yourselves that primary charge of working through the
transition for these students. Would you comment on your
thoughts or the college board’s thoughts, with regard to that possi-
ble effect of that delay time?

Mr. StewarT. Yes, sir. There is something to the momentum ar-
gument and it should not be minimized. I have a feeling that many
of us just kept going because we were going and thank God we did.
First let me say, I think Ms. Manley putn%er finger on one of the
' major problems, particularly for low-income students, many minor-
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1t3;‘ stl:i:lents for whom college wﬂl be the first college experience in
a fam

The delay could be fatal. They need support, they need encour-
agement, they need to keep going and to be well prepared for the
college experience. They are often wanting to go to college not sure
of the benefit or the payoff that college will offer and the delay
might well see them moving off and gently into jobs, dead-end jobs,
of indebtedness because of a house purchase or whatever.

It is also, I think, a matter though of the nature of preparation
of college. It is awfully helpful and meaningful that senior year in
high school to know that you are going into college, and that is the
pot of gold, if you will, at the end of the rainbow, that you are
taking courses n algebra and trigonometry and calculus or English
or history, because you are building these steps.

They are pieces that are being put under you as you prepare to
go into college. If you are preparing to go into a two-year hiatus, I
think there would be indeed a negative reaction, and a negative
impact on motivation.

The high school-to-college transition, which is the college board’s
reason for being, is a natural progression. We see the close linkage
between high school and college. We also know that in the next
century, if not by the end of this century, there will be very few
jobs of any meaning in this country that do not require at least one
year of college. We would hate to see young people disadvantaged,
further disadvantaged in many instances, by not making the leap,
if you will.

So the college board is committed to bridges, bridges through our
financial aid services, bridges through our assessment programs,
bridges threugh our counseling and guidance programs, because
crossing that bridge, even if a student needs further maturation in
an affective sense, but getting that student over that bridge cogni-
tively and we]l prepared for college work, is very critical at that
point in a student’s life. So, I would say push ahead. Thank you.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Thanks to both of you. You have been very help-
ful. Thank you.

Mr. Stewart. Thank you.

Mr. WiLLiams. I will ask the members of our third and final
panel to join us here: Mr. Meisel, Mr. Azcarate, Ms. Taylor, and
Ms. Lynch. Ladies, I understand that you are both current stu
dents, is that correct?

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes.

Mr. WitLiams. Identify yourselves for me. We do not have the
name plates in front of you so——

Ms. LyncH. Genevieve Lynch.

Mr. WiLniaMs. You are Ms. Lynch, all right.

Ms. TavLor. I am Martien Taylor, a senior at Yale.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Let’s begin this panel in hearing from our two
students first—Ms. Lynch, why don’t you proceed.
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STATEMENTS OF MS. MARTIEN TAYLOR OF YALE UNIVERSITY:
MS. GENEVIEVE LYNCH OF THE VOLUNTEER ACTION COUNCIL,
UNIVERSITY OF RICHMOND: MR. FRED AZCARATE, PRESIDENT,
U.S. STUDENT ASSOCIATION: AND MR. WAYNE MEISEL, CAMPUS
OUTREACH OPPORTUNITY LEAGUE

Ms. LyncH. I am here today representing the University of Rich-
mond and the Volunteer Action Council, which was formed two
years ago by myself and a fellow student. We began our work three
years ago by working a year in the field to understand the needs
that were in our community so we could bring them to our campus.

We started the movement because we saw a potential of all our
fellow students. We knew it was in our hearts, and we knew that
other students had that as well. We began networking students
through agencies to fit their talents, time and interest. We allowed
others to join to share their ideas, dedication, and dreams. Qur
strength and numbers have increased, increased considerably in
the last two years.

The volunteer action council is recognized on campus as an im-
portant, independent and strong organization, and a place where
people can invest what comes naturally to them, and take owner-
ship in. This year we now include 17 agencies which we work
through 20 program coordinators, who network students into these
specific agencies and over 150 weekly volunteers. We have many
one day in advance. In one specifically, “You Are the Difference
Day,” we completed 817 hours in one afternoon, among all the dif-
ferent students out in the community.

The Volusiteer Action Council has come to understand that if
students are given the chance to express and use initiative and
create With their own wills, programs will grow and community
service will prosper. This is the essence of youth service.

I have seen that the influence and energy of students is an un-
tapped resopurce which simply needs the channels as well as sup-
port from each other, and those that convey their belief in funds.
The Volunteer Action Council has accomplished great things,
through student leadership, commitment and energy, encouraging
and organizing agencies and through individuals and groups who
show their support and belief in our work, through needed funds.

Our efforts have often been rekindied and increased throughout
this type of support since it enables us to see our drzams come
alive and truly understand the good we are accomplishing. I recent-
ly have been fortunate to work on a project named Virginia Cool,
which is an outreach of the Campus—OQOutreach Opportunity

e.

This is a dream on the state level, in which we are submitting a
grant to the Dupont Foundation so that we may network statewide.
The fact that we are considered for the project proves our capabili-
ties to create a viable program. As I said before, the initiative in-
cludes networking community service projects statewide.

The process is still in consideration. We have not heard back, but
the efforts look like they would do much good for this service in
the commonwealth and has already added much motivation and
excitement to the students who are able to work on it.
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Students need only the chance to show the good they can accom-
plish. We have no strings attached, with nothing to prove. Students
are dreaming with clear visions and goals, and to do and have the
cagabilities to begin valuable projects and see them through.

rograms are needed that will allow students to feel a part, feel
they can contribute and take ownership of. Students are willing to
take on the responsibilities of proving themselves as leaders and
active citizens. Students and their efforts do not flourish with pro-
grams that ask for something in exchange.

This only stunts creativity, gives them distorted vision of their
ideas and work. The individual’s will to see great things happen,
thus is diminished. Youth must be invested in. Their input and
energy remain untapped resources which is too bad, since they are
the most valuable resources alive today. Youth only need the
means to grow, to give, and to act. We are serving now. We do not
ask for recognition of our work, only the support and belief that by
taking ownership, we may gain respect and make things happen.

For myself, all this has proven my place in the human service
field. It has made me believe in myself and my potential to add
worth and make progress in the service field. I have been and will
continue to dedicate all of myself to these efforts. Through being
given the chance to prove to myself and others the value of human
sell:'lvice, it has become clear that I will continue my work long after
college.

There are many people whose potential and value will not be
found, simply because they were not given the chance to see it by

dreaming and being a part. Youth deserves the chance to develop
this within themselves, while our community needs us to happen.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Genevieve Lynch follows:]
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To accomplish 9reat thinds ve must not only act but also dream. not only

plan but also heliesve.

With this in mind: the Volunteer Action Council at the University of
Richmond was founded twd y®ars ago with the initiative, sner%¥. and dedication
of two students. I was one OFf these students. Our dreams were very simple and
carried out with much responsibility. enthusiasm, and success. We saw & need
ang decided to Eill i, Our dedication was go & cause, and our drive cagme fron
within u$. This enabled u; to start 2 movement on our campus and pie into the

nat ional movement which Gave us added motivation ang direction.

our program is gifferent £rom many programs aropund the country in
operations: while in theory we all have a common bond. The Volunteer Action
Council prides jyself on student leadership and involvement. We function on

the time, devotion and commitment 9f students. Qur strength E9r twe Years has

come £rom this and we do nor see it ending in the near future. We are g9aining

suPPort and numbers 45 each Ssemester cPens and closes. We have seen Qreat
things come from our work: znd have learned a very imPPctant fact: thae if
students are Given the chance to exPress &nd pse their innate initiative and
create with their own wills: programs will gtow in strength and pumbers. This
Eact is very necesary t9Q understand the movement ©f Youth service. 5Students
need yo be given gne chance to dream: to be 9iven ghe SUPPOrt and belief of

others around them. create something which the¥ can take part in. make it work
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and esxpecially take ownershif of. There would be much more invelvement,

acconplishment and progress in the area of communit¥ servlce in our ceuntry.

Qur program is working, through student's eEforts. These studants saw Eor
themsglves a need and gseized the moment., We were most Fortunate to have access
t0 ijndividuals who believed in gur dreams and pore importantly in us as
studentss leaders and active, viable citizens. The¥Y reco9nized cur €¢Eforts
with Fynds, which were given Ereel¥: as ap =xpression of their gsupPort and
belief in pur programs. This helped our PrOdrams grow in size anad
effectiveness, noe tO mention the helP it Yave us as it indrzased our
motivation and excitement. Students work with a drive and enthusiassm which can
be measured throudh yolunteer hours, successful programs: and all those in need
we touch. The Volunteer Action Council was Eormed with the idea that anyone
can get involved and find a Place in the community where they feel they can
contribute the mozt. This has given our council considerable prosperity with
all the individuals we petwork into the community. Becauss W@ are students: we
set an example apnd provide and promote a clear channel for other students to
follow. We £ind that We are constantly aPProached by Interested Individuals
who fipd it very easy to identify and approach us. We try tO make it very
clear that communlty service is very much a part of us and what e, as student;
and sctive citizens stand for, Community gervice is an activity we don't have
to do and thus sre able to give ourselves freely apd wholeheartedly. This
makes us feel 50 good and makes us feel important, as- wgll as proud of
gurselves, the community we serve and the country we live ix. We have made
great strides on pur campus and in our community through 17 agencies., 20
Pro9ram coordinators, and 150 weeklY wolunteers. pur sPeclal events have

included up to 265 people in ane day, contributing Bl7 hours of community
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servicer and colleceind 1200 aluminum cans. Our Pro9rams deal with diFferent
concerns ran9iny £rom AIpS wictimsr animals, and the homeless: t& BOy's Club,

Children’s Hospital, and ethe Association ©f Retarded Citizens.

The program has 9eown in magnitudes and for us as students We undecrstand
that we have been mosSt fortunate to have pad the chanCe Lo dreams make a
difference, and be a part of a cause which challenges us and 9ives us pne

energy t& 96 forth with determination. 1 have been mpse Eortunate to have had

this exPerience and have seen thg bensfit in 5¢ Mmany ways for myself. my

community and ali those who have joined the Volunteer Actipn Council. These
individuals whe have joined the Volunteer Action Council have shown undsniable
commitment, and are able tg find Eor themselwves: as well as ghose they serve.
80 much joy and rewarding experiences. Our work ang efforts are 9rowing every

day with flourishing motivation and force.

1 have been mést fartuynate to have dreamed on the stake level of community
service as well. I, along yith two studentss wrotes A Jrant tO set up a netwark
of all community service efforts in phe State of Virdinia. We gere encouraged
by COOL (Campus putreach Oppottunity Leagus) apnd the Jesse Ball DuPont
Foundation Lo submit a grant. They undecstopd our invelvement and believed
that we& weie most capable of por only dreamings pye forming and actually
Puteind a viable Program to9ether L0 imPlement state-wide. This kind of
suppost enabled #s to grow and learn ln ways we did not ghink possible. 1
gave usg an enlightened sense Of ourselves and a Jreater appreciation and

understanding E&r phe extent of cur work.

The interaction with ehis type of work glves students the aeeded
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recagnltion Of their significance and allgws them to further themselves and ‘a1l
Prodrams the¥ believe in. Students are dreaming substantiall¥ and do have the
capabilities to see them through. They need tp be given the chance t0 see then
through. They need t¢ bg Given the chance tC be a part: and express
themselves, not in exchange Eor somethinY, since this may distort their vigion
of service and their role. We need programs that allow Stidents to Play their
Part where they see fit and where they Eeel comEortable. Students need to be
Given the time to create and see EOr themsellves their caPabilities in the area
of community service &8 well as take ownership. Students must Eeel the
respongibilicy, the supPort and belief right from the bedinnind, this in turn
will enable incredlble jinitiatives, with clear jdeals and sclid means as vell
as ends. Studenks are giving of themselves and are willing to work Eor the
betterment of their community. TheY need clear channels throudn which they ecan
work, channels that are not two vays. which ask Eor something back. because
this only takes awa¥ from the efforts and stunts creativity and the individual
will to gee it happen. Our Youth, their inPut and enecgy are untapped
resources vhich yhen Y9iven & chance, may prove to be the most waluable resource

alive toda¥.
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Mr. WiLuams. Ms. Taylor, before you begin and because I have
to relinquish the chair for a few moments and I hope my friend,
Congressman Qwens, will take the chair for me, I have some con-
stituents who are in the other room here and I have to go, but let
me before you begin because I do not want to miss an opportunity
to ask both of you a question.

Ms. Lynch, you have well-stated the desire of you and I think
many young people to be involved in service to their fellow citizens.
One of the pieces of legislation we are considering would say to you
or apy young perscn, you may not be included In this, but any
young person who cannot afford to attend college, you are required
to provide that service to the country, you are required to, in effect,
w?lrk for the government in order to earn grants or loans to attend
college. .

It is that element in the legislation that many of the witnesses
today have questioned. Would both of you speak to that? Are you
concerned about that? Do you tend to be supportive of having to
earn your way before you are provided with the student financial
assistance benefits or do you think this is a type of entitlement
that really ought to be earned by young Americans?

Ms. LyncH. T do not see a need to earn. I think the dreaming
that they do earns them that. I think it is an important fact to con-
sider the needs for financing for educational purposes. I have a
problem with asking to serve for something else. I think it takes
away from their own initiatives and their own dreams. [ think that
is asking for something in the way of service.

Mr. WiLLiams. Ms. Taylor?

Ms. TayLor. Actually, if I could split your question up into two, I
think the bill addresses two aspects. One is whether you can get
something for nothing, an education. We have heard many wit-
nesses today that say, no, drafting of certain population to pay for
their education just 1sn’t equitable.

The second thing that the bill claims to focus on is establishing
national service and you don’t establish a sense of national service
by drafting a certain population to do it. That is not, you know, en-
couraging national service. That is imposing national service. So, I
would say that the bill fails on both accounts and I can tell you
f;l-)%m speaking with other students that they are not too happy
about it.

Mr. WicLiams. Well, Ms. Taylor, why don’t you proceed with
youtx_"eguestions and I appreciate the panel’s patience while I inter-
rupted. )

Ms. TAYLOR. M{ name is Martien Taylor and I am a senior at
Yale University. I come to you as one of the many thousands of
students who have committed time after schocl, on weekends, and
over vacations to volunteer in the community.

Since high school, I have tutored kids and worked with homeless
people. There are students like me all across the country. In the
fall of 1987, I and students from 60 different campuses, coordinated
a national commitment to serving the homeless people in our com-
munity.

Last year, I tock a semester off from school to travel across the
country t0 examine and write about the different ways in which
students have responded to the needs of the homeless. From New
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York to California, I learned that student response has been sensi-
tive, creative, and timely. When students from the University of
Pennsylvama realized that there was no local soup kitchen to serve
lunch to the hungry and homeless, they decided to open their own.

Faced with the difficulty of finding a building in which to house
their program, they had the bright idea of renovating a bus which
they now drive around Philadelphia, feeding the hungry. Nearby at
Haverford College, students extend the benefit of their job hunting
skills to train and help homeless people find employment of their
own.

Organizing students across the country, I have seen how the com-
munity service movement has grown in the past few years. Stu-
dents not only serve, but they lead in the struggle against hunger,
homelessness, illiteracy, and environmental poliution. At Yale,
since 1980, the number of volunteers has quadrupled.

Two thousand, two hundred people, about half of the student
body volunteered their time in New Haven. This increasing student
commitment may seem in Congress with the media stereotype of
college students as apathetic and materialistic. You may not have
noticed us. Qur movement has grown slowly, one student at a time,
one campus at a time.

Qurs 15 a movement characterized by a firm belief that lasting
change comes through personal interaction. You begin to combat
illiteracy when a child learns to read through the care and pa-
tience of a volunteer’s commitment.

We believe in effecting national change by grounding our actions
in the understanding and sensitivity that come from personal rela-
tionships In the community. Two out of three Yale volunteers work
one on one with New Haveners through big brother, big sister, tu-
toring and job training programs.

We are not only affecting the lives of others, but are profound-
ingly changing our own lives. Volunteering is a mutually, empow-
ering experience, but this experience cannot be coerced. It must be
cultivated from student initiative.

A sense of civic responsibility is not created by a bureaucracy. It
will only grow by encouraging individual student leadership. The
Nunn/McCurdy Bill by making a two-year civilian or a military
service stint the price of college tuition changes the definition of
service from the process of helping others to a chore one must ful-
fill before going to college.

Community service becomes a price you pay, not a lesson you
learn. The bill won’t encourage a universal spirit of service because
it will only affect those who cannot afford to go to college. The
Nunn/MeCurdy bill creates a poverty draft. Community service be-
comes the privilege for the rich, but a punishment for the poor.

In addition, a community of people cannot be used as a training
ground for citizenship and enlisting students to clean up parks and
repair houses is one thing, but losing thousands of reluctant un-
trained volunteers to learn on people is pot only irresponsible, but
is dangerous.

Experimental learning in the chemistry lab is far different from
interacting with the homeless child or a person with mental dis-
abilities. You do not create a healthy sense of civic responsibility

344
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by focusing on quantitative questions like how many young people
should serve and how long we should serve.

As the number of students involved in the community has
grown, we ourselves have begun to focus not on the volume, but
the quality of our service. That is, after all, the fundamental ques-
tion, how shall we best serve.

We need to be sensitive to how service affects those who are
served. A bad volunteer is far worse than no volunteer at all, and
finally, a true commitment t0 national service isn't imposed on us,
it ig created by us.

The movement has grown thus far based on the value of individ-
ual responsibility to the community. As I had the opportunity to
see the very best programs, the most effective, the most enriching
are those initiated and run by students. The government’s role is
not to impose opportunities upon us, but to create them for us.

We want your help and your cooperation, but not your mandate.
The government should provide more Federal funds for work study
Jjobs s0 students can pursue community-oriented employment while
in school. Also, by expanding loan deferral and forgiveness pro-
grams, those who are faced with heavy student loans, but who have
the commitment to serve, can follow their hearts upon graduation
and not give into the needs of their pocketbooks.

The government’s role is to integrate service into our lives, to
make a lifetime of service economically feasible for us all. Only
then will a life committed to service he afforded the notability that
it deserves. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Martien Taylor follows:]




240

testimony of Martien Taylor, Yale *389
Wednesday, April 19, 1989

Commnittee on Education and Labor
0.5. Hovee of Representatives

My name is Martien Taylor and I am a senior at Yale University. 1 come
te you ag one of the many thousands Of students who have committed time
after school, on weekends and over vacations to volunteer in the
community. Since high school, I've tutored kids and worked with

bomeless people.

There are students like me all across the country’ in the fall of 1987,
1 and students from sixty different campuses coordinated a pational
commitment t0 serving the homeless people in our community. Last year,
I took & semester off from school to travel across the country to
examine and write about the different ways in which students have
responded to the nNeeds of the homeless; from MWew York to Californiar 1
learned that student response has been sensitiver creative apd timely.
When students from the University of Pennsylvania realized that there
was no local soup kitchen to serve lunch to the hungry and homeless,
they decided to open their ewn. Faced with the difficulty of finding a
building in which to house their lunch program, they had the bright idea
of renovating a bus which they now drive around Philadelphia, feeding
the hungry. Hearby, at Haverford College, students extended the benefit
of their job~hunting skills to train and help homeless people find

employment of their own.
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Organizing students acrpss the country, I have seen how the community
service movement has grown in the past few years. Students not only
serve, but lead in the struggle against hunger, honelessness,
illiteracy, and environmental pellution. At Yale, since 1980, the
number of yplunteers bas quadrubled -- 2,200 people, about half the -~
student body, volunteer their time in New Haven. This increasing
student commitment may seem incongrudus with the media stereotype of
college students as apathetle apd materialistic. Youp may not have
noticed us; our mcvement has grown slewly, one student at a time, pne

campus at a time.

our's is a movement characterized by a firm belief that lasting change
comes through personal ipteraction. You begin to combat illiteracy when
a child learns to read through the care and patience of a volunteer's
commitment. We believe in effecting national change by r:ounding our
actions in the understanding and sensitivity that cone from personal
relationsnips in the community. Two out pf three Yale volunteers work
one-on-one With New Hrfveners thrcugh Big Brother/Big Sisiter, tutorimg

and Jjob traiming programs.

We are pot only affecting the lives of others, but are Profoundly
changing cur ¢wn lives. Volunteering is a mutually empowering
experience. But, this exPerience cannot be coerced. It must be
clutivated from student ipitiative. A sense of civic responsibility is
not created by a bureaucracy. It will only grow by encouraging

individeal student leadership.
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The Nupn-McCurdy bill, by making a two year civilian or military service
stint the price of college tuition, changes the definiton of service
from the process of helping others, to a chore one must fulfill before
going to college. Commmunity service becomes a price you pay, not a

lesson yOou learn.

The bill wen't encourage a universal spirit of service because it will
only affect those who cannot afford to go to college. The Nunn-McCurdy
bill creates a POverty draft. Community service becomes the privilege

for the rich, but a punishment for the poor.

In addition, a community of pecPle canhot be used as a training ground
for citizenship. Enlisting stydents to clean up parks and repair houses
is ope thing, but loosing thousands of reluctant. untrained volunteers
to learn “on™ people is not only -irresponsible but dangerous.
Experiental learning in the chemistry lab is far different from

interacting with a homeless child or a persen with mental disabilities.

You do not create a healthy sense of civic responsibility by focosing on
quantitative guestions like how many young people should serve and how
long we should serve. As the number of students involved in the
community has grown, we curselves had begqun to focus not on the volume
but the yuality of ocur service. A&nd that is, after all, the fundamental
guestion: How shall we best serve? We need to be sensitive to how
service affects those who are Served. A bad velunteer is far worse than

no volunteer at all.
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finally. a true comuitment to national service isn't Imposed on ws. It
is created by us. The movement has grown ;.hus far based on the value of
individual responsibility to the community. As I had the opportunity to
see, the very best programs -- the most effective, the most enriching --
are those initiated and run by students. The govermment's role is not
to impose opportunities vpon us, but to create them £Or us. We want
your help and cooperation, not your mandate. The government should
provide more federal funds for work/study jobs so students can pursue
community-oriented employment. Alsc, by expanding loan deferral and
forgiveness programs, those who are faced with heavy student loans but
who have the commitment to serve can follow their hearts upen graduvation
and not give into the peeds of their pocketbooks. The government's role
is to Integrate service into our lives —- to make a lifetime Of service

economically feasible for us all. Only then will a life committed to

gervice be afforded the nobility that it deserves.
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Mr. Owens. Thank you. Mr. Azcarate.

Mr. AzZCARATE. Thank you. I would like to thank you, Mr. Chair-
man, and the other members of the committee for the opportunity
to appear before you to discuss the issue of national service. My
name is Fred Azcarate and I am president of the United States
Student Association.

We are the largest and oldest national student advocacy organi-
zation in the country representing over two million students on dif-
ferent campuses nationwide. Today, 1 would like to provide the per-
spective of those most likely to be affected by passage of any na-
tional service initiative—students and young people.

USSA is opposed to any national service program that will link
the reczipt of student aid to national service. We believe the Con-
gress created the present need-based student aid system to give stu-
dents the opportunity to attend institutions of postsecondary educa-
tion.

All of you here today in the Congress as a whole recognize that
by investing in financial assistance for students who would other-
wise be unable to afford college, the entire nation would benefit.
Student aid awards are already failing to keep up with the increas-
ing cost of living and tuition.

ny of the national service bills, by creating uniform education
benefits, regardless of individual need to students performing serv-
ice, will channel even more funds away from need-based aid.

Whenever the government uses student aid as a tool to achieve a
specific agenda, it is manipulation of our low and middle income
students to take certain actions while those fortunate enough to
attend college without Federal assistance remain exempt.

The various national service proposals are based on cerfain as-
sumptions, assumptions about our student youth population, about
the nature of our current student aid system, and how best to meet
the unmet social needs of our country. Today I would like to ques-
tion some of those assumptions.

There is a lot said about my generation. All too often by those in
another generation and they say that we are apathetic, that we
only care about our economic self<interest, that we have no desire
to serve anyone but ourselves.

Well, I am here to today to say that those pat analyses which
attempt to pigeon hole my generation as a root of American apathy
are simply untrue. The reality is that many students and young
people are already engaged in service to their zampuses, communi-
ties, and the nation as a whole. .

A recent survey published by the American Council of Education
and the University of California at Los Angeles found that 43 per-
cent of incominﬁ first-year students had volunteered in the last
vear. A 1985 Gallup Poll showed that 18-24 years olds volunteered
at approximately the same rate as 50-64 years olds.

These figures point to the fact that students and young people
are already devoting substantial and effort to serving the needs of
society. I am sure as we have already heard from Genevieve and
Martien what students are doing and what they are doing on the
campus by volunteering their time, I think students and young
people are also involved in activities traditionally not considered
service that do provide a service to our country.

250
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Many students are working to combat apathy and involve ever
greater numbers in the political life of this country. For example,
every year students and young people by the thousands work in
various non-partisan voter registration efforts.

This past fall USSA coordinated a 35-day bus tour that involved
students in voter participation activities in 37 states. USSA, our
member state student associations, and student governments edu-
cate students in the skills of citizenship. By doing so, we hope to
help make our democracy work for all the nation’s citizens.

Many of the national service inijtiatives are predicated on the
belief that the volunteers will be drawing from the pool of youth
who have just finished high school and are immediately enrollin
in postsecondary education. The assumption that our colleges an
universities are solely comprised of 17 and 18 years old fresh out of
high school is outdated.

Forty percent of all undergraduates in 1986-87 were over the age
of 24. Thirty-nine percent of all students attend school on part-time
basis. We can no longer assume that students are a monolithic
group. Many students may be older. They be heads of households
or single parents.

It is not that these individuals have no desire to volunteer. Many
of them simply cannot serve on as large a scale as some of the gerv-
ice bills would have them do that we should qualify for certain edu-
cational benefits.

Now, proponents of this certain legislation that tie student aid to
national service assert that the current student aid system has
become dysfunctional. Dr. Charles Moskos, often referred to as the
“godfather” of national service, has time and time again pointed to
declining African-American and Latino rates of enrollment to illus-
trate the problems with our current Federal financial aid system.,

Well, the problem is not in the programs themselves, but how
their funding has failed to keep pace with the rising cost of living
and tuition over the last decade. Not only that, but what aid does
exist has shifted dramatically from grant to loan-based aid and I
am not telling you anything you don’t already know.

Qur current financial aid system works. It just needs to be better
funded. A prime example of the underfunding of our Federal aid
grograms are the TRIOQ programs. These programs are specifically

esigned to meet the needs of those students most atrisk, low
income, first generation and students with disabilities.

Students who participated in Upward Bound and special services,
Just two of the TRIQ programs, are more than twice as likely to
Earn college degrees as other non-participating low income stu-

ents.

Unfortunately, these highly successful programs have never been
funded to reach more than 10 percent of the eligible population. A
recent Gallup Poll shows the relationship between the educational
attainment and volunteerism. Only 25 percent of individuals with
some high school education volunteer, while over 63 percent of all
college graduates volunteer to help society.

Turning our backs on existing need-base financial aid is clearly
the wrong way to promote a life long commitment to service by our
citizens. USSA is strongly opposed to any service initiative that
favors military service over community service.

i
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Proposals like the Citizenship and National Service Act that pro-
vide more incentives to enter military service either by providing
greater pay while in service or greater educational benefits raise
questions of equity.

First, it is very likely that those from more disadvantaged back-
grounds would offer military service simply because it would pro-
vide greater benefits. Second, there are those who would be prohib-
ited from military serwice. Qlder students, %gys, lesbians, people
with disabilities, and single parents would denied substantial
access to the full benefits of the program if military service was
emphasized.

roviding enhanced benefits for a particular type of service con-
veys the message that we as a country value that service more
than the other types of service. I don’t think we want to say it is
more important to serve in our armed forces than it is to teach our
youth to read or help provide for our homeless and hungry.

For that matter, we must be careful not to favor one type of com-
munity service over another. Another concern that we have is one
of cost. It seems odd that we would make these programs, in es-
sence, entitlements when we are not yet sure if they will work.

If the approximately gix million students who are currently re-
ceiving some type of Federal financial aid were to perform national
service under the Nunn/McCurdy Plan and were eligible for a
$10,000 educational housing benefit, the program would cost about
$60 billion.

At the $24 thousand benefit level, it would up the cost to $144
billion and, of course, these are the extreme cases but they do not
take into account training, placement and overhead cost to admin-
ister the t};)rog'raun.

These figures den’t take into account the <ost for loan programs
that will remain in place to address financial need unmet by
vouchers. Qur challenge is to create a National Youth Serwice
policy that allows our youth to reach their potential by giving
them the opportunity to serve and not by forcing them to serve
through economic coercion.

I would recommend a four-step plan for creating a National
Youth Service policy: research, evaluation, pilot program imple-
mentation and ongoing development research. I urge the creation
of a National Commission on Service charged with the corapilation
of al] the current information available on national service.

The commission would also conduct further research ia areas
where data is lacking. Evaluation. The commission could evaluate
existing ?rog'rams, initiate ongoing discussions with a broad
number of individuals and organizations. We need to talk to those
that currently serve and those that are served by these programs.

Youth and students need to play a role as do educators in the
creation of any national service program. Third, pilot program im-
plementation. We need to test our ideas in the field by creating
small, easily manageable pilot programs that can serve as models
for future expansion and ongoing development.

Periodically, we need to reeva%uate the program to ensure that it
is fulfilling its stated purpose. As we examine the issue of national
service, I believe it is important to think about what the goals of a
national service policy should be.

2 5 =
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It seems that much of the controversy surrounding this issue
does not stem from the merits of e~rvice. There is a broad consen-
sus that community service by people of all ages should be encour-
aged. The problem is that we may be trying to do too much.

If we want to encourage youth to serve, let’s find out where they
are serving now and help those programs to develop. If we want to
end hunger, homelessness, and illiteracy, we must create jobs, build
affordable housing and fund education, and if you want to provide
postsecondary educational opportunity, let’s increase funding for
the programs you already have on the books.

I don’t mean to say that our volunteers don’t make a difference.
Of course they do and the rest of my fellow panelists here have
shown that they do, but we must remember that service cannot be
the answer to all of our societal ills.

I thank you for involving students at this stage of the discussion
on national service and I hope we can continue a dialogue on this
important issue. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Fred Azcarate follows:]
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1 aPPreciate the opportunity to appear before you today
to discuss national service, an issue that has recently
received quite a bit of attention.

As president ¢f the United States Student Association
(USSA)} I rePresent the oldest and largest pational student
advocacy orBanization, representing over 2 million students
on different camPuses across the country. Today I would
like to present the views of my organization as they relate
to the issue ¢f National service and hoPefully Provide the
persPective of those likely to be affected most by rassage
of any national service initiative - students and Young
PeoPle.

National Service or Mational Servitude?

One veryY disturbing aspect of many of the proposed
national service initiatives is the linking of student
financial aid to the Performance of national service.

Ussa is opposed Lo an¥ national service ProBram that
would link the receirt of student ajid to national service.

_We believe that Confress created the Fresent peed-based
student aid s¥stem to give gtudents the opportunity to
attend institutions of postsecondaryY education., All of ¥ou
here today and rongress as a whole recognized that by
investing in financial assistance for students who would
otherwise be unable to afford collefe; the nation would

enjoy numercus returns.
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In 1iBht of current federal budgetsary constraints, You
and man¥ other members of ConBress are struggling te fund
student aid and other importan; postsecondary education
programs adequatelyY. Student aid awards are already failing
to keep up with the increasing costs of livinE and tuition.
Many of the national service bills, by EBranting uniform
education benefits reBardless of individual need to students
performing service, will be channeling even more funds away
from need-based aid.

TY¥ing student zid to purposes other than postsecondary
education is an ill-fated PolicY. Whenever the Eovernment
uses student aid as a tool to achieve a8 specific agenda: it
is manipulating low and middle income students inte taking
certain actions while those fortunate encuEh te attend
colleBe without federal assistance remain exemPt.

National Service ProPesals like the Nunn/McCurdy
leBislation are based on certain assumPtions about the
student/youth Populations the nature of our current student
aid s¥stems and how best to meet the unmet social needs of
our countr¥Y. Teoda¥ I would like to question some of those
assumptions.

The Mvth of Student/Youith Avathe

There is much said about my Eeneration {all too often
by those in other Henerations). Man¥Y say that we are
apathetic, that we onl¥ care about our economic self-
interest: and that We have no desire to serve an¥Yone but

curselves,
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I am here today to say that those pat analyses which
attempt to pigeon hole my Zeneration as the root of American
apathy are simPly untrue.

Hany of the sponsors of current national service
initiatives claim that the imPetus for these programs is the
desire to mobilize my generation to meet the pressing
militar¥ and social needs of our society. The reality is
that many students and young PeoPle are already engaged in
service to their campuses, their communities, and the nation
as a whole.

A recent survey published by the American Council of
Education and the University of California at Los Angeles
found that 43 Percent of incoming first year students had
volunteered in the last Year. A 1985 Gallup Poll showed

that 18-24 year olds volunteered at appProximately the same

rate as 50-64 year olds. All of these figures point to the

fact that student= and young PeoPle are already devoting
substantial time and effort t¢ serving the needs of society.

And how are students and young peobPle serving? Young
Peoble and students are involved in such volunteer
activities as assisting the homeless, teaching others to
read and working with people with disabilities., I am sure
that my colleagues testifying here today will elaborate on
how students are currently volunteering.

Students and young peoPle are also involved in
activities traditionally not conslidered service, that do

Provide a service to our nation. Many students are working
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to combat aPathy and involve ever greater numbers in the
Political life of this countr¥. For examPle, every year -
students and young PeoPle by the thousands work in various
non-partisan voter registration efforts. This past fall
USSA coordinated a 35 day bus tour that involved students in
voter ParticiPation activities in 37 states. USSA: our
member state student associations, and student governments
educate students in the skills of citizenshiP. By doing so¢
we hoPe to helP maike our democracy work for all the nation's
citizens.

The Myth of the Traditjonal Student

Man¥ national service initiatives gre predicated on the
belief that the volunteers will be drawn from the Pool of
youth whoe have Just finished high school and are immediately
enrclling in Postsecondary education. The assumPtion that
our colleges and universities are solely comprised of 17-18
year olds fresh out of high school is outdated. Forty
Percent of all undergraduates in 1986-87 yere over the age
of 24, Thirty-nine percent of all students attend school on
a part-time basis.

We can no longer assume that students are & monolithic
group. Man¥ students may be older. fhey may be headsg of
households or single parents. It is ppt that these
individuals have no desire t© volunteer. MHan¥ of them
simpl¥ cannot sei1ve on as large & scale as some of the
service bills would have them do if they ywish to qualify for

certain educational benefits.
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The Current Federal Role ip Posisecopdary Educatjon
ProPonents of legislation that tie student aid to
national service assert that the current student sid system

has become d¥sfuncticnal. Dr. Charles Moskeos» often
referred to as the "godfather" of National Service, has time
and time afain Pointed to declining African-American and
Latino rates of enrollment t¢ illustrate the problems with
our current federel financial aid s¥stem. The problem ie
not in the programs themselves but in how their funding has
failed to keep pace yith the rising cost of living and
tuition over the last decade.

In addition, the aid that does exist for Poataecondary
education has shifted dramatically ¢rom grant to loan hased
forms of assistance. In 1975. Zrants comprised over 80
percent ©f all financial aid. By 1987 grants cowmprised less
than half ¢f all student financial aid.

The Department of Education has estimated that 5-6
million Students currently receive zome type of federal
student aid. Nearly half of federal aid is in the form of

Pell Grants. Over 46 Percent ¢of the Pell Grant funds go to

students with anmual familY incomes below $6000, and

aPProximately 82 Percent of the funds go to atudents with
familY incomes not exceeding $15,000 annually. oOne third of
Pell Grant reciPients are students of color and half are

self~supporting.
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Cur current financial aid s¥stem works. It juat needs
to be better funded. A prime exanple of the underfunding of
our Federal student aid proframs are the TRIO Programs. As
You know, TRIO proBrams are sPecial Proframs for students
from disadvantaged bhackgrounds. These Proframs are
specifically designed to meet the needs of those students
most at risk, low income, first Zeneration and studentg with
disabilities., Students who participate in UPward Bound and
Special Services:; twe ©f the TRIO proframs, are more than
twice as likely to earn collefe degrees as other non—
participating low-income students. Unfortunately these
hi2hly successful Prof€rams have never been funded te reach
more than 10 percent of the eligible population.

A recent Gallup Pell shows the relationship hetween
educational attainment and volunteerism. Only 25 percent of
individuals with some high school education velunteer, while
over 63 percent of all colleRe Eraduates volunteer to help
society., Turning our backs on existing need based financial
aid is clearly the wrong way to promote a lifelong
commitment t© service by our citizens.

The Un-Enrolied

Althoulh I am here todayY to speak as a representative

of thoese enrolled in colleges and universities I think that

it is important to briefly talk about the impact that a

national service polic¥ might have on those who do not go on

te pursue & PostsecondaryY education. It is unclear to me

that &8 voucher for $10,000 would pe ehocugh of &0 incentive
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to accebPt suybsistence level wafes and foref€o higher
earnin€s, The reality is that national service ma¥ not be
an option for many of our un-enrolled. ManY may not be able
to SupPort themselves and their dePendents on low national
service wag€es, We need to devote time to develop programs
that will trul¥ reach out to our un—-enrelled ¥Youth.
Other Concernsa

USSA is strongly oPPosed to an¥ service initiative that
favors military service gver community service. ProbPosals
like the Citizenship and Nationsl Service act that provide
more incentives to enter military service either by
Providing€ Ereater Pay while in service or greater
educational benefits raise questions of equity. First, it
is ver¥ likely that those from more disadvantaged
backgrounds would opt for military service simply because it
would provide €reater benefits., Those from pore Privileged
back&rounds would have wider oPtions: assuming the¥ had more
resources 1o further their educations. Secondly, there are
those who would be prohibited from military service. Older
students, gays, lesbians, people with disabilitiess and
single parents would be denied substantial access to the
full benefits of the program if military service was
emphasized.

Providing enhanced benefits for a particular type of
service conveys the messafe that we as a countr¥ value that
service more than other types of service. I do not think we

want to sa¥ that it is more imPortant to Serve in our armed
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forces than it is to teach our ¥outh to read or help provide
for our homeless and hungx¥. For that matter, we must be
carefyl not to favor one t¥pe of communit¥ service over
another.

Another concsrn that we have is one of cost. It seems
odd that we would make these Proframs, in essence:
entitlements when we are as ¥Yet not sure if the- will work.
IT the aPProximately¥ six millisrn students who warrently
receiving some t¥pe: of federal finaucial aid were to perform
national service uynder the Nunn/McCurd¥ Plan and were
eligible for a $10,000 educational/housing Lenefit the
profram would cost about $60 billion. At the $24,000
benefit level it would up the cost to $144 billion. OF
courser these fifures deal with the extreme case but they do
not take into account training€» Placement and overhead costs
to administer the profram. These fi~ures also do not
include the costs for loan ProEBrams that will remain in
place to address financial need unmet b¥ vouchers.
Recommendations _for Action

Our challen€e is to create a National Youth Service
Policy¥ that allows our youth to reach their potential by
giving them the opportunity to serve and not by forcing then
to serve. 1 would recommend a2 four step plan for creating a

National Youth Service policy: Research:, Evaluation, Pilet

Program Implementation and Ongoing Development.
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1. Research- I found a wealth of information on this
igsue while I was Preparing my testimony. I also
encountered some holes in the current body of Knowledge on
this subject. I would urge the creation ©f a National
Commission on Service charged with the compilation of all
the current information available on national service. The
commission would also conduct further research in areas
where data iz lacking.

2. Evaluation- Next the commission could evaluate
existing programs and initlate ongoing discussions with a
broad nur*er of individuals and organizations. We need to
talk to t. ise that currently serve and those that are served
by these program3. Youth and students need to play a role’
as do educators to ensure that any national service program

* targeted toward Youth and students will convey benefits over

and above any monetary remuneration.
L 3. pPilot Preogram Implementztion- We need to test our
) ideas in the field by creating small, -easily manageable
pilot programs that ¢an serve as models for future
expansion.

4. Ongoing Development- Once we find something that
works we would be free to eXpand it. Periodically we need
to re~evaluate the Program to ensure that it is fulfilling
its stated purpose.

Conclusion

As we examine the issue of national service, I believe
it is important to think about what the goals of a national
service policy should be. It seems that much of the
controversy surrounding this issue does not stem from the
merits of service. There is a broad consensus that
community service by people of all ages szhould be
g encouraged. The problem is that we may be trying to do too

much.
1f we want to encourage youth to serve, let us find out
g where they are serving now and help those programs develop.

If we want to end hunger, homelessness and illiteracy, we

must create jobs, build affordable housing and fund
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“education. And if we want to provide Postsecondary
educational oPPortunit¥ lets increase fundins for the
Programs we alread¥ have on the books. I don't mean to ga¥
that our volunteers don’t make a difference, of course they
do, We must remember that service can not be the answer to
all of our societal ills.

I thank You for involving students at this stage of the
discussion on national service: and I hoPe we can continue &

dialogue on this imPortant issue.
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Mr. Owens. Thank you. Mr. Meisel.

Mr. MEeiseL. Congressman Owens, it is a pleasure to be here. I
had the honor several months ago of testifying before you on the
reauthorization of VISTA which I believe ;s a major piece of the
whole youth service program.

Mr. s. You are the only one in the country who thinks

that.

[Laughter.] :

Mr. MgiseL. Well, let’s talk afterwards. I am with an organiza-
tion, COOL, the Campus Qutreach Opportunity League, a national
effort that works to promote and support student involvement in
community service and an organization which provides a platform
for young people to take leadership in this service movement.

Today is a homecoming for me of sorts. It is a homecoming in
one sense hecause I just returned here several hours ago from the
People’s Republic of China where I spent three weeks working with
the All China Federation on the issue of youth service.

You may find it inferesting that they are asking many of the
same questions and struggling with many of the same issues. It is
also a homecoming for me in another sense because six years ago, 1
came to Washington, D.C., after I graduated from college, filled
with the impatience of youth and the idealism of youth.

I was In search of a way to promote and support the whole idea
of youth service. I was encouraged to study national service, but
left six months later, discoura and realizing that national serv-
ice would not happen at the Federal level at that time.

I went on to develop and work on developing local programs at
campuses across the country. I learned something from all of that,
that movements are not born in Washington, D.C. By the time they
get there, t..2; have already happened. Today I am both excited
and apprehensive.

I am excited because the le, especially the young people
have brought thi$ movement ac?( to D.C. I am apprehensive be-
cause we are at a crossroads and I only hope that we rise to the
occasion.

The panels before me have suggested that there has been a real
negative stereotype about young people. I encourage you to take a
closer look. Idealism is the nature of young people. I will say it
again. I always say it twice because people do not believe it. Ideal-
ism i$ the nature of youth.

Two of my heros, Ms. Taylor and Ms. Lynch are testimony to
that. Robert Kennedy once said youth is the clearest mirror oty our
performance. This quote suggests to me that rather than blame
students, we must realize that we have failed to develop and imple-
ment a successful youth service policy.

In our efforts to understand today's youth, we must believe in
them and realize their desire and need to serve. Once we under-
stand this can we move forward in developing effective policy. This
country 1s in desperate need of an effective youth service program.

Young people are in desperate need of being challenged and sup-
ported in their efforts to serve. In creating policy, I would like to
make five recommendations that I hope you will consider. One, we
glelefl toldevelop a comprehensive understanding of youth service at

evels.
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Two, we need to support the development of local programs at
the grassroots level through local grants. Three, we need to provide
training and technical assistance for the support of local programs
and for local and state leaders at the student, academic, adminis-
trative and community level.

While it may seem a simple thing to develop a community serv-
ic:egrogram, it takes skill, expertise, and sophistication. Four, we
n to ensure youth leadership and youth ownership. We must
mandate youth ownership and youth leadership both at the local
and national policy level.

I would encou the creation of a national task force with at
least 50 percent of the makeup of young people to help us, and
guide us through this policy. You cannot have a youth movement
with youth leadership. It will not work. We are dependent on the
youth’s creativity and energy.

Youth leadership provides authority among students and it es-
tablishes creditability amongst our elders. Five, we must establish
quality controls, demand excellence, have high expectations, and
hold people accountable. Too often I have seen schools support
service initiatives when Federal or foundation money was avail-
able, but then reduce those programs once that money had stolilped.

Too often I have seen well-meaning efforts by groups who have
good intentions but are not willing to make the necessary commit-
ments to have a successful initiative. National service has been on
the platform on the agenda of American people for over 50 years.

In the abstract, it has brought support, but very guickly, when-
ever we begin to talk about the issue, the constituency quickly di-
vides, divides over issues of whether to be mandatory or voluntary,
should it be connected to the military, how shouaid it be connected
to job training, and in this instance, how does it relate to educa-
tional aid.

As a result, we have had a confused and, therefore, a failed
policy on national service. We have been unable to design and ar-
ticulate that policy and as a result, have not gained the support of
the public or policy makers.

This failure has meant that this countr{ has not had a youth
service program, yet, we have incorrectly blamed young people for
that. For many in our failure of developing a national service pro-
gram, is a result of people’s inability t0 understand what national
service is.

National service is first and foremost a spirit. Once we under-
stand that, we need to develop programs in response to that. Na-
tional service is a call to service. The last person I have seen to
invoke that was President John Kennedy who challenged young
people, who believed in young people, who needed young people,
and made young people feel needed.

Having done this, President Kennedy went on to develop pro-
grams. Today we need to develop a comprehensive youth service
program, not run by the Federal Government, but supported and
championed by it. National service needs to be a four-part pro-

am.

The first part is the school-based program, programs that are in-
volved at the high school and junior high level. The second part is
the college-based program. The third part is the corps programs

. o S

G2

3



261

that we see in San Francisco Conservation Corps or the City Volup-
teer Corps in New York City.

Finally, as you will be happy to know, Con man Owens, it is
the individual placement wlinich I see VISTA as playing a major
role in providing opportunities for young people to serve the way it
once did twenty years ago.

To be successful in our policy, we must challenge all young
people and create opportunities which enable all young people to
serve. Each area neeg’ to be part of the whole program. They are
all connected to each other.

Where We often get into trouble in our struggle with national
service is that we look only at one program. With a limited out-
look, we create an unclear 1!Elbcolicy and this leads to ﬁrogram failure.
The litmus test for any policy or program on youth service is that
it challenge and support young people to serve.

It must be founded on a belief in youth people and a commit-
ment to them. A problem that I have with many of the bills before
Congress now op youth service is that they do peither. I feel this is
especially true with the Nunn-McCurdy Bill. This bill does not
" challenge students. It does not inspire young people.

Instead, students view it as negative and coercive. I do pot be-
lieve that the authors of this bill consulted with any young people
because I have not met one person, young person, that thought the
bill was a good idea and many of them are offended by it. To create
effective policy, one must listen, investigate, and work with those
people that it is going to mostly affect.

or does this bill support young people. It is not creating oppor-
tunities, but instead, trading educational support for service. I,
myself, do not want to be associated with that at all. If you want to
support youth service, please do so. Any effort which you will sup-
port and will help make that happen, we need.

If you want to reduce aid to education, then go ghead and do
that, but don’t do it in tying it to service. For many of these rea-
sons which I have mentioned and because of the negative image of

outh service that many have deveioped, especially young people,
ecause of the Nunn-McCurdy Bill, I see it as the single most dam-
aging act in the past five years that has worked to undermine the
movement and undermine the work that I have been involved in.

In conclusion, I would like to suggest that we need a broad defi-
nition of service, that we need to create real opportunities for
young people to serve. We need to create a clear policy. We need to
zet youth involved to meet the needs of our nation.

e need to prepare America for the future. We need fo support
youth leadership for today. We need Federal involvement and we
need o show America and the rest of the world that the American
dream, the American challenge, and, yes, the American hope is
still alive.

My own fear is that if we fail to create an effective policy, we
will blame Eoung people. Remember this, if it doesn’t work, it is
because of bad policy, not because young people are bad. Thank
you.

M+, Owens. Thank you. Ms. Lynch and Ms. Taylor, or perhaps to
all the panelists, first of all, I have a problem with the way commu-
nity service is defined. I have a problem with defining the needs of
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certain parts of our population as belonging in the category of com-
munity service, rather than hiring the 1Iirﬁ;)ple necessary to meet
those needs, but without getting too technical, let’s take tutoring
and helping the homeless. :

Do you see enough volunteers coming forward to meet the need,
anywhere near close to the need from your campuses? What per-
centage of the people on your campuses §et involved voluntarily in
providing this kird of community service?

Ms. Tavior. As I mentioned before, at Yale, at least, that type of
one-on-one volunteering is the most popular. Two out of three of
our volunteers or two-thirds of 2,200 people are involved in that
one-on-one kind of tutoring.

I would say that——

Mr. OwENs. So, two-thirds of what?

Ms. Tavror. Of 2,200 of our volunteers total. I cannot do the
math in my head at the moment.

Mr. Owens. Two thousand two hundred is the size of the student

body?

1\%5. Tavior. No, it is the number of volunteers we have out of
over 5,000 member student body.

Mr. Owens. It is close to half volunteer——

Ms. TavLor. Yes, it is a little under fifty percent. In my semester
off when I was traveling to other campuses, I saw that, perhaps,
the most popular programs were those one-on-one programs: tutor-
ing, particularly since in cellege you are focusing on learning, so it
seems a logical choice to send that learning out into the communi-
ty and because homelessness has become such a terribly visible
crisis in the '80s, homelessness.

What I have been excited about is not only that the students
have been so willing to help, but that they have led in the struggle
and that they have started programs on their own initiative. 'lshey
see ten people being turned away from a soup kitchen and then the
next week, they are out there handing out sandwiches.

They see beds being discarded by the university, and the next
week, they are out there collecting them to distribute to people
who are living in substandard housing. We compiled a book of all
the different kinds of programs that students had developed to
meet the needs of the homeless and it included about 25 program
models with suggestions for many more and over 2,5C0 copies of
that book have been distributed into student hands.

So, that type of volunteering is very popular. Sadly. to say, that
it need be so popular, but it is.

Mr. Owens. Ms. Lynch?

Ms. LYNCH. I have seen through the work that the Volunteer
Action Council has achieved a need for students to find their own
talents and through diverse divorce themselves from the campus
and organize themselves and take a responsibility that sometimes
the umversitﬁ does not give them.

I, m , have worked with rape victims and I have found a
great talent within myself and I have talked with a lot of students
who have gained great respect for themselves and, yes, a one-on-
one is something that works incredibly well and people keep
coming out to see where they fit and we constantly have people
looking for that for themselves.
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M;' Owens. What percentage of students on your campus volun-
teer?

Ms. LyncH. We have a population of 2,500 and I would say we
have at least one-third throughout.

Mr. Owens. About one-third?

Ms. LyncH. Yes.

Mr. Owens. Mr. Azcarate, is the pattern across the country the
same when you leave the Ivy League schools where the heavy pro-
portion of middle income students; do you find that the volunteer
rate is high in state schools and other schools across the country?

Mr. AzcaratTe. I think you do. I think that where the programs
exist, there are students volunteering. We have to take into ac-
count though that 61 percent of students are also working to put
themselves and help put themselves through school.

I mean, when we talk about fostering opportunity to volunteer,
we have to foster development of this campus, this program, so
that people who don’t have to work, people that don’t have to hold
two or three jobs, they have that kind of opportunity.

Mr. Owens. I hope you understand I am playing the devil’s advo-
cate, put myself in tge place of those people who support Nunn-
McCurdy, who say that we have lost that spirit and there are a lot
of needs that need to be met out there by volunteers and they are
not being met, so we have to have a mandated youth service pro-
gram in order 10 meet those needs. Mr. Meisel, you said Nunn-
McCurdy is the single most damaging act of the last few years in
terms of the spirit of volunteerism.

Do you want to elaborate on that and address yourself to the
question that I just put, the charge that is being made that most, a
large proportion of students, are not volunteers and America dces
not have a spirit of volunteerism anymore and doesn’t even want
to pay taxes, so we can hire people, sc they have all of these things
that are put in the category of community service and which now
are not getting done?

Mr. MEISEL. I think there are & couple of issues and one is that,
we talk about community service and how do we define that and
that has been a problem that has flagued the industry of volun-
teerism, community service, national service forever. .

One of the things that I had challenged this commitiee and this
United States Congress to think of is having a broad definition of
what community service is. Community service is not just volun-
teering. If you look up the word volunteering in the dictionary, it
never says, “I will do something for free.” It says, “I will do some-
thing out of my free will.”

When people talk about, oh, it is only—we are talking about vol-
unteering where you don’t get paid anything. That is a very, I
think, classist and racist way to look at service. There are a lot of
students, particularly minority students, that have to work for
their education.

What we need to do is create opportunities for all different kinds
of people to serve. That might mean that people need work study
money. It might mean that they need a small stipend, but if a stu-
dent is working, a minority student that is on work study is work-
ing at a boys’ and girls' club five hours a week and there is another
student, a white student, that does not need or does not have that
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kind of work study allotment, all those people are doing national
service.

I think it is unfortunate and I think it is very detrimental that
we make those distinctions. We have to have a broad definition of
what community service is. If it means—it has nothing to do with
people’s spirit, whether they want to serve, it is whether—are they
able to serve and what we need to do is create policies which
enable and challenge those people to get involved.

If we do that, we will come up with an effective program.

Mr. Owens. Thank you. Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Haves. Mr. Chairman, I would like if Mr.—pronounce your
name, Fred, what is it?

Mr. AZCARATE. Azcarate.

Mr. Havss. Azcarate. Identify your school from whence you grad-
uated for me, please.

Mr. AzcaRaTE. State University of New York at Bigleton.

Mr. Haves. All four of you, I want to compliment you for your
testimony. There is no question about it and not only your testimo-
ny, your involvement in the areas of concern to me personally and
to members of our committee here.

Some of you are either attending, graduated from schools that
are conceptionally very prestigious. Yale University, I know is one
that has always been viewed as one of the top institutions. Harvard
being another one and certainly my obvious guestion is, have you
been benefactors or are you currently recipient of any student aid
programs?

r. MEISEL. I just finishing paying off my last student loan about
three months ago. '

Mr. AzCARATE. No, I am not at this point.

Mr. Hayes. You made mention, Mr. Azcarate, of a question that
has been a very—deep concern. In 1975, I think it was in your
statement, 80 percent of the students were recipients of a grant
program.

Now, some years later, last year or year before last, we find that
it has been switched over now, benefactors of student loans which
they had no resources to repay in the beginning which was known.
Yet, this has been used by some of the members of this body of
which I am a part.

There is a reason for reducing Federal aid because of the default
rate on student loans. Do you think that is by design rather than
sincerity and really trying to help students who need help?

Mr. AzcaraTe. Well, I am not going to question the motives of
any of the members of this body.

Mr. Haves. Are you a future politician?

[Laughter.]

Mr. AzcaraTE. But it is clear that when we set up our need-
based financial aid system, that we wanted our grants to go to our
neediest students and when our loan programs benefit our low and
middle income students, when we switch the priorities in that, in
the funding of these programs, we have lower income students who
should be getting grants to begin with, getting loans and then sad-
dled with enormous debts coming out of higher education or not
even entering higher education because they didn't believe that
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they could ever get out of the debt that the student’s loans have
put them in.

So, I think if we look at where our policy—how it started and
went back to that and refunded it back to those levels, we would
have a lesg of a problem with our loan indebtness at this point.

Mr. Haves. Do you have a comment on this?

Mr. Meises. I &Link what is interesting is that I think the stu-
dent loan program, people graduate from college, they don’t think
they owe their country anything, they owe the bank and the[\i
spend the next five or six years paying back the bank and I thin
that you are right in the fact that I never saw Pell Grants as an
entitlement.

I saw them as scholarships and I think that a lot of people are
viewing these Pell Grants, as they are the reason why students are
ungrateful because we are handing things out to them.

Mr. AzcaraTe. I think that also that a lot of unfortunate people
have the notion that higher education only benefits the individual
that is receiving that education and, yet, it is clear that an educa-
tion citizenry is like the cornerstone of our democracy.

If you want an effective democracy, I think we want an educated
populous and that is why that I think that is a philosophy behind
ourteneed-based financial aid system, behind bhaving our grant
system.

Mr. MEseL. I would just add that to have that educated democra-
cy, we need to provide opportunities for young pecple to serve and
so, along with that aid-base, we also need to have opportunities for
service and what is so divisive about the Nunn-McCurdy it trades
one for the other and puts friends against each other.

Mr. Haves. Which is a partial answer to my final question, Mr,
Chairman. Am I correct in assuming that each of you see the
Nunn/McCurdy proposal as a detriment rather than a help to the
economic and disadvantaged? Am I correct in assuming that?

Mr. MESEL. I tried to make that clear.

Mr. Haves. You did. You made it very clear. 1 wish it was possi-
ble that the other 433 members of this House of Representatives, of
which I am a part of, had an opportunity to witness the testimony
that I witnessed today from you students here.

I said 433 because we have one vacancy to be filled, I think, in
the state of Wyoming.

Mr. Meises. Well, if you can arrange it, we will all show up.

Mr. OweNs. Ms. Unsoeld?

Ms. UnsoeELp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think that the group
of us that are here are here bhecause we believe in young people
and maybe that is what kept us here to the end of the meeting and
that has certainly paid off Eecause this has been an inspiration.

I would like to say that young people not only can challenge us,
but also lead us and I think you have done some of that teday. I
personally am here as a politician and in the Congress because
about 20 years ago, my eldest at about 16, when we were frustra-
tion over something that needed to be improved in society and he
finally turned to his parents and said, “Okay, mom and dad, what
are you going to do about it?”’

How do you meet that kind of a challenge. So, keep on your chal-
lenging us and your inspiring us and I am awfully pleased that in
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a few years, you are going to have many of the responsibilities be-
cause I know you will carry them out very, very well. Thank you
for being here.

Mr. Owens. I also want to thank you and assure you that al-
though we cannot arrange for all the members to be here, the next
best thing is to get your testimony on the record——

Ms. Tavior. I am sorry. I forgot to mention at the end of my tes-
timony, that I wanted to submit a declaration that was put togeth-
er by representatives from eight different universities on their
views of community service.

Mr. Owens. Without objection, it will be entered into the record.

Ms. Tavror. Thank you.

[The material referred to follows:]
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A DECLARATION FROM PHILADELPHIA
By students representing the sight vy League universities
April 9, 1989

Whiie we meet in Philadelphia. declsions and assumplions are being .
made in Washington about national youth service, without any significant
Input from youth. In order to develop an effective national servigce
program, the interests and opinion: ot those who will serve must be
considerad. Because thase proposals will affect our generation so
profoundly, we cannot afford t¢ remain silant.

We therefore declare:

= That a national service program should be created to
promote, ancourage, and aupport publlic and community service.
The fedaral govamment needs to implement a national sorvico
program that meets the nesds of a broad spectrum of the Amarican
citizenry. Curfently, our country recognizes the potential of pubiic
service as a vehitle to confront the manifastations of our many sociai
problems. However, national service should exist as a supplement te, not
a repiacement for, comprehensive goverament pelicy that involves long-
. term solutions thet attack the causas of sodlal iiis.

= . That mandatory natlonal service wlli have dstrimentsl
effecta on the qguality of service provided and will Hkely prove
infeasible to Implement. .
Obvicusly, an Increase In effective public service would be B
desirable. If the most productive method of increasing quality public
sarvioe Involved & greater recruitment of participants, mandatory
recruitment would be the best answer. However, poilcies that mandate
sorvica will inevitably generate resentment and lead to a weakening of
the commitment to public service programs. Alse, disgruntled
participants are likely to transfer thelr negalive feslings to the psopls
whom they are supposed to be serving, thereby ehactively undermining
the very purpose of public servica. Therafors, discussion of public service
policies should include an examination of the effects of programs on their
intendod beneficiarles. Moreover, policymakers should realize that the
currgnt system of volunteer placoment does not have the capacity or
ability to accommodate the iarge onslaughit of public servants that would
result from mandatory service requirements. Among those who parform
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public servige, there is litlle doubt that quentlly ecannet answer
qualitetive questions.

» . That this progrem provide tinanclel Incentlves - such
s eduoationsl stipends or housing vouchers « comperable to
the Incentlves offered to those engaged In military service.

We rocognize that active mllitary recruitment currently provides
young people with substantial monetary Incentives In the form of
stipends. However, we belleve It Is Imperative to create an equal
commitment to voluntary civillan service through equel student stipends
and oqual financial incentives. Equal Incentives recognize end establish
that community service Is as Important as service in the ermed forces.

+ Thet the focus of the federal work-study program must
return to Its original Ideel: allowing students to serve ¢3 =
resource to the community, rether than @3 a gource of cheep
labor tor unlversitles.

We belleve thet the current work-study program has lost sight of its
original Intent. The work-study provision was designed to provida for
axperisntial learning on the part of financlel aid students through
community service. Unfortunately. many universities use work-study
funds to employ cheap labor on their campuses. We roefuse o accept
indentured Servilidy, neither through the proposed termination of need-
based finencial aid, nor through the continued use of financiel ald students
to subsidize cafetere labor costs. Resurrecting the original concapt of
work-study will provide en opportunity for the students to gein en
important educational experience, while fostering a sense of S
responsibility to the 2smmunity of which the college Is a pert. It is time
we moved finencial eid students out of the dining halls and back into °
public service. :

» That an educated cltizenry is sssentlal to & democratic
society and that service, therefors, must not be a prerequisie
for lmportent need-based flnanclal eid.

It is necessary to enable voluntears to mest the costs of higher
education without making service & praraquisite for federal eid. We
encourage programs that would provide stipends or vouchers for part.time
valunteering. We realize the enommity of student loan default, but the
proposed Incentives would allow students feceiving financial aid to
participate in public service without being forced to work to pay for
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. school Instead. vouchers should be versaliles, radesmable for nrot only
education and vocational training, but alse tor a down payment on a home.

+« That we siiminats economlc barriers, euch as debt
burden, to pubdlic service activitle$ and caraers.

At present, a disincentive exists Tor students to enter public service
after gracuation. For loan recipients. this disincantive becomes nearly
Insurmountable. The students are encumbered by substantiai loans which
require them ta seek high-paylng employmant opportunities rather than to
enter public servica. There must be an equal opportunity for all students
to enter public sector careers as opposed to engaging in short-term
commitments to public service. Loan deferment and loan cancellation of
Guaranteed Student Loans are therefore necessities in eliminating
barriers to and providing equal opportunities for engaging in public
service. Such programs of deferment and cancellation aiready exist for
Perkins Loans, and should be expanded to include more financiai aid
students with the GSL. Substantial funding for restructuring student
federal aid will enable more students to enter communily service careers.

« That In order to work with, Inetead of on, communities,
public service prolecte must be inltlated and developed by the
people whose livas are directly atfected by the services.

- When soclal programs ara Imposed by distant policymakers on
Capitol Hill, there is little opportunity for self-empowerment, and there
exists a possibility of serious harm, Goverment resources can be used
most effectively by community-defined secvice projects that develop
community-defined needs. When the govemment and other outside grotps
- no patter how good their intentions -- insist upon applying their own
solutions to problems in & community, the massage extended is that
people must trust their liv-4 to strangers.

Through national se:vice, the problems arising from socio-sconomic
inequity can be addressad from a community perspective. We propose a
national service vrogram which emphasizes working with, rather than on,
the communities involved. Glven this framework, demonstration grants
would be awarded to local organizations. and priority would Be given 1o
organizations which are representative of ihe cormunily, Community, as
defined here, includes the people aftectad by the programs. Any
intiiatives arigsing from outside the communlly must have support end
input *rom local schools and neighborhoods in the process of planning and
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implementation. Spacial considaration should be glven to prograr.-
already in existence, although new Initiatives should also be encuuraged.
To sensitize supervisors and voluntsers to tha udnique identity of
each communily, mandatory training should take place before and during
the service project. The training should be facilitated by members of the
community’s secial welfare agencies. In order to achieve quality training
programs, a suificient allocation of government funding must be provided.

+ That a nonprofit, federally chartered {rust be created to
Implement thess proposals for national service.

In order to protect the Indspendence and integrity of implemented
propesals, special attention must be pald to the source of funding.
Thecefore, we call for the creation of a foderally chartered trust to
coordinate voluntesr activilies natlonwide and to serve as a clearinghouse
for information on communily service. A diverse board of trustees should
be created and charged with the trust's administration. The board would
receive public and privale monies and distribute these funds o the
programs under their ausplces. Both the federal government and private
corperations must play major roles in funding sustainable community-
based sarvice organizations.

« Thet there I3 a great need for community Setvice.
Nevertheless, 1t is imparatlve 1o Investigate the strengihs and
weaknesses of volunteer programs,

Belore we osxpand communily service efforts, we need 1o consider
thoughttully the impect which service has on both the volunteer and the
communily involved. We fear that some efiorts do have the potential tor
harm. Voiunteering IS not easy: it requires training, support, supervision,
and reftaction. There has not been sufficient reseai. In these areas.
idareaver, there IS also a need {or ongoing evaluation of communily sarvice
oroqrams.  Universities are unigquely qualified to contribute actively to
the body of knowledge in this fleld because of their capacily for research
ind the prevalance of voluntears on thelr campuses. A government
concernad with national sr-vice should encourage and suppor the
formation of linkages between universities and their communities.

As studsnis of the eight Ivy Leagua universities we have come
together to present a unified position rogarding national service
fegisiation. FRepresanting communily service organizations. campus
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governments, financial aid advocacy groups, and newspapers. this broad-
based group sgeks o voice studen! concsrnt on the most prominent
educalion issve facing the 101st Congrass, an Issua which dirscily
affects us. While we cannu! claim lo represent the intsrests of all
studenls, tha eforementioned concepls raflact the growing commitment
to public service on campuses fpday.

Reg Brown Yals
Elizabeth Butrick Columbia
Margaret Chen Yale
Plerrs Dorancy Fenn
Kathy Duify Corne!!
David Qartner Brown
Mark Gordon Yalo

Kim Guida Dartmouth
Nimrod Hacker Penn
Michael Johnson Harvard
Sandy Kandel Yaie
Shannah Kurland Srown
Randall Lane . Penn

Liza Lavado ’ Darthmouth
Hans Nesseth Princeton
Philllp Cren Cornell
Theresa Ragzek Columbia
Mary Rotchiord Brown
Edee Saar Brown
Weridy Shimelman Brown
Susan Shons Dartmouth
Theresa Simmonds Penn

Vera Smith Penn
Kenny Steinman Dartmouth
Gwen Tuson Pann
David Walsh Corneil
Andrew Weaver Princeton
Philip Wider | Penn
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Mr. Owens. All your testimony, of course, will be on the record
and I hope you realize that this is a very serious matter. Whereas
most of the members of this panel agreed with you, there are a lot
of people who don't agree, witness the fact that we have had a situ-
ation where there is a shift from more grants to less grants and
more loans. The people on this committee fought very hard to keep
it more grants and to have greater amounts of money appropriated
for Pell Grant.

We lost. The idea that everybody should pay their own way led
to more loans being made available. That same notion is very

+ strong here in this Congress when it comes to certain groups. We

didn't hesitate last summer to provide drought relief for agricul-
ture business who gross up to two million dollars in income.

They rapidly approved that and rapidly there was no red tape.
The money has almost all been speint by now. We are going for-
ward to entertain a proposition, a bill from the president which
calls for $157 billion bail out of the Savings and Loan Associations.

These same people have great difficulty in understanding what
you said, Mr. Azcarate, that education is at the heart of our nation-
al security effort. We need the students, we need your talents, your
brainpower more than you need us. The nation needs it.

That basic piece of reasoning, common sense, we can’t get
through—I haven’t been able to get through yet—so we are going
to need you. We are going to need you to mobilize other students
and other people who minds have not been infected with this
notion that suddenly we want to make everybody pay their own

way.

".{he country cannot afford to give up anything to anybody in cer-
tain categories and it is a serious problem. Your testimony will be
very useful. I hope you understand that there is a need to spread
the word out there. :

I you look at Nunn-McCurdy—the notion of it lzas done damage,
the enactment of it is not so far fetched. They are pushing it from
an interesting angle or it is basically, it seems to me, an educ.tion
bill. It is in the category of education. It is the armed services
people who are pushing it and they have a lot of power.

Just look at our national budget and you can viwlerstand how
much power that people who are related to armed services have. I
fear that power in ways in which that power may be used to push
this notion on us if we don't fight it ana understand it very clearly.

So, your effort being here today and testifying is very important
in the fight against it. We appreciate it. Thank you very much.

The subcommittee meeting is adjourned.

[Whereupon, the subcommittee hearing adjourned at 12:56 p.m.]

[Additional material submitted for the record follows:]

Arge
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STATEMENT OF FREDERICK S. KLINE, PRESIDENT, SQCIETY FOR EXCELLENCE
INEDDCATION FOR THE UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

EE E
APRIL 19, 1989

Mr. Chalrman and members of the committee, wé are pleased that the varlous bilis
involving national community service zecognize the importance of encouraging volunteer
action, Of all the activitles conpidered, a concentraied effort is necessary to greatly
expand tutoring services. Tutoring is an effective use of time for students of all sges.
Tutoring can prevent students from falllng behind and being placed In a special education
clasa. The cost to taxpayers is more than doubled by placing students in speclal education
classes needlessly. Students with consistent attendance can achleve basic skill levels
equivalent to the corrent national average for reading, arithmetic and composition for
twelfth grade stedents at the completion of the elghvh grade, with the beoefit of tutoring,

College students who obtain ﬁ]rants should be regulred to tutor during the school year and
receive academic credit. College stodents who are not eliglble for granis can also recsive
academlc credit for wtoring and be compensated considerably above the minimum wage.
Flexlble scheduling can be arranged to allow sufflclent time to study for examinations apd
prepare term papers. Adequate compensailon of college students is necessary wo provide a
large pumber of capahle wutors during the hours 2 captlve audlence can be reached in the
publlc sehools, After school and weekend tutoring programs alone are not sufficient 9
educate our cltizens at a level to keep America competitive In a world market., Retired
teachers, other senor chilzens and businessmen can 2lso be invaluable resources as (wors.

Tutoring wlli also expand the eligible pool of young people 1o voluntesr for service In the
active apd reserve components of the Armed Forces. Duwe to current low educational
standards, less than 10% of the graduates of some high schools achleve 2 score on the
Armed Forces Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) required for eniistment. In additlon
to tutoring, an expansion of the authorization for Jumior Reserve Officers Training

Corps (JROTC) unlts from 1600 to 3000 or more is in the natlona] inerest as many [ROTC
units already perform community sexrvice.

Students who participate in the high school program for three years are eligible to enlist
in the Armed Forces at 8n advanced pay grade of E-3, on a full or part time hasis. Most
students and barents sre ynaware of JROT C benefits because their high school lacks the
program or Particlpation s not encouraged. ” This must bz remedled becavse many
students whose parents’ Incotne is too high for ap educational grant can fipance their
college edocation by benefite avallable through the Armed Forces, while learning a
marketable skill that can be used in civllian life.

The monthly subsistence allowance for college ROTC students should be increased frow.
$100 o $250. This increase shouid accompany a requirement to tutor during the school
year and receive academie credit also. Every effort should be made to match tutors with
individuals they can benefit the most. Students who are not comforwable tutoring can perform
alternacive natlonal service. Thank you for consideration of our statement.
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TESTIMONY BY JULIE PLAUT AND KIM GROSE OF THE
STANFORD PROJECT ON NATIONAL SERVICE
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES' COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
HEARING ON NATIONAL SERVICE
APRIL 19, 1989

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee and Staff, we are
Julie Plaut and Kim (Grose. undaergraduate students at Stanford
University and members of the Stanford Project on National Service.
Active in direct community service and this public policy issue for
the past three years, we began the Project in September 198% under
the auspices of the Stanford Public Service Center.

Stanford and our University President Donald Kennedy have
been at the forefront of the college communily service moverment.
calling for all studentis t0 become active in the community. Qur own
experiences and data from our survey of 1000 undergraduates have
given us a perspective on the issue of nationai service that we fesl
is important to the current legislative debate. We are grateful for
the opportunity to share with you the Project's views.

GOAL OF A NATIONAL SERVICE PROGRAM:

The goal of any national service program should be to meet
community needs by increasing participation in comenunity service.
While not compelling service, a program should seek to produce more
aware and socially responsible citizens.

We agree that national service is a good thing and that
everyone should be involved. National service should not focus
solely on students nor should it create a two-tiered System of
citizenship where some participants are forced fo serve out of
financial necessity while others who are more financially secure
have greater freedom to choose whether or not to participate. The
govemment should encourage all young people to get involved in
their communities and support the grass-roots effort nationwide to
provide ample opportunities for young people to serve.

Contrary to many widely-held beliefs that the '70's and '80's
generation is self-centered and materialistic, young people today

!
s
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are engaged in communily service in all areas of social concem,
fram literacy to homelessness to conservation. For example, over
60% of the undergraduate students at Stanford volunteer in the
community. More are not active in their communities because of
structural barriers, not because they lack the interest and
motivation. The most severe of barriers are financial disincentive.

In addition to this portrayal of students as self-serving. the
present framing of the pational debate reverses a two-hundred-year
U.S. tradition: that public education is a public good in itself, and
not a privilege. Taken together these two images present a
generation that must be compelied to serve in order to receive an
education. Not only do we believe this is not true and not good
public policy. but our own experlence and data support this belief.

While local organizations have sprung up all over the country
to address the growing social needs, they cannot do the job alone.
The federal govemment needs to take the leadership role of this
movement by giving financial support to maintain existing programs
and enhance the development of new ones, as well as helping build an
American Service Ethic that would instill in citizens the value of
social responsibiiity.

Data included in this report are taken fram results of a March,
1889 survey of 1000 randomly selected undergraduates. The
information used in this testimony are only preliminary results;
final data will be available in late May.

Some relevant statistics on the student population as a whole
include the fact that almost 70% of Stanford students are on some
form of financial aid (whether student loans, scholarships, grants,
or employment). Furthermore, over §0% of the entire student body
participates in voluntary public service activities.
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OUR SUGGESTED CRITERIA FOR ANY NATIONAL SERVICE
LEGISLATION;

Any aeducational benefits earned through national sarvice
programs should supplement. not supplant, current programs of
nead-based aid. The present system is designed to provide equal
aducational opportunities to all citizens in accordance with the
historical precedent of educational opportunities for all Americans.
Any mandatory or inflexible service program would sariously
undermine this principle. Current proposals favoring an entitlement
program, where the poor must "earn™ the privilage of an education
and pay back any federal financial aid they raceive, raverse a two
hundred year tradition of valuing education itself as a public good to
which everyone should have access. In addition, the finking of
financial aid to service as the only form of aid for college
perpetuates the inequalities that exist in this country by creating a
two-tiered system. Those needing aid would be forced to postpone
coliege for two years in order fo serve, whareas the wealthy would
be able to choose to attend college right away or to serve.

Among the students we surveyed, a national service program
linking financial aid to service was generally acceptable, as long as
it i bl { aid i not tt !

There was overwhelming support for a voluntary program which
would be one form of financial aid: 89.5% of all respondents
supported the idea, while only 1.4% opposed it. (Of those studants
currently holding loans to pay for their education, 92.5% supported
the plan and none opposed it.)

However, there is ovarwhelming opposition o the idea of any
national servica program being instated as the only means of
receiving financial aid. In response t0 any possible plan making )
servica the only form of aid, only 6.2% supported the idea, whereas
63.8% opposed it. Of those who did support the plan, 92.3% have no
student loans. Of the students who do have loans, 77.6% oppose this
type of proposal. A national service program designed on the quid
pro quo of financial aid for service creates a two-tiered system of
citizenship. As we believe our survey indicates, students who would
be most impacted by such a program find this inequality is
extremely undesirable and counterproductive.




21

As for a2 mandatory national service program, 81.0% of the

" students surveyed opposed it, and only 3.3% supported it. The goal of
any national service program should be to meet community nesds by
increasing participation in public service. and not to compel service.

Opportunities for service should include a variety of oplions,
including work before, during, and after college, and on both a full-
and pamt-time basis. This would allow all young people to
participate in the program at their own convenience, whether they
are in schoo! full-time, pari-time, or not at all.

Students' needs and desires differ according to their various
responsibilities and situations; the type of service program they
would support does so also: in our survey, when asked to indicate
when they would most likely wish to serve, 62.4% picked "pan-
time/ summer/ weekend public service work during college,” while
25.7% selected “fulltime public service work for one or two years
after college.," and 6.7% chose “fuli-time public service work for one
or two years before college.” A national service program should
consider the individuals' needs and plan accordingly, allowing enough
flexibility to accomodate them.

3. The program should be consirucied to suppor existing, local

ni 1

ithout displaci ; ; T
comolox new hurgaucracy,

Community needs can best be assessed and addressed at the
local, grass-roots level. Already existing today are a number of
youth service corps and schoolbased community service programs
that should be strengthened and expanded. Caution should be taken
to support their efforts, and to avoid displacing current workers
when expanding existant service programs. The federal government
should thus encourage [ocal initiatives to combat community
problems and prevent the crealion of a huge bureaucracy.




Historically, curriculum control has been a state and local
power. No national service program should disregard this tradition
by making funding for service-learning projects available only to
those institutions giving academic credit for them. Although public
service does have many potential links with classwork, it should be
left t0 local decision-makers to determine to what extent they will
alter the curriculum. We must insure the maintenance of
educational institutions’ autonomy.

IN ADDITION. WE STRONGLY RECOMMEND THE FOLLOWING: ”

5. 1) hould add i ial disi . : i
service,

Severe financial disincentives exist which prevent or limit
young people’s involvement in public service work. When asked
whether financial constraints had affected their post-graduation
plans, 49.5% of all students responded that they did have some
influence. The most commonly mentioned concern was the
repayment of student loans.

Final results of the survey will include data on how these
financial concerns have specifically affected students’' post-
graduation plans, such as whether they limited possible career or
employment opportunities. They will also inclyde empirical
evidence on how and to what extent financial pressures prevent or
limit participation in public service while attending college. It is
clear from the respondents’ statements already, however, that
financial burdens are a major limiting factor in public service
involvement. .




279

6. The oroaram should be tied in with yoward maobiitv bv_offering
iucational - e i i -
credits,

Any national service program should not be focused solely on
college students, but should include the “forgotten half,® those
young people who do not finish high schoal or who do not go on to to
college. A program which offers such diverse compensations such as
vocational training and housing credits will help to increase their
skills, employment opportunities, and self-esteem.

7. The proaram should include some type of component that would
train or educate participants for service work prior to andfor

Because the primary goai of any national service program is to
address community needs, an effort must be made to prepare
volunteers so they can combat probiems as effectively as possible,

There are currently no real models to show how a national
service program might work. and any legisiated program should be an
experiment which could then be expanded and fmproved upon with
further legislation.
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April 19, 1less

Congrassman Augustus Hawkins

Chairman, Educatien and Laboer committee
V.8, House of Representatives

2181 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

0on behalf of the 830 member colleges in the National
Apsociation of Independent Colleges and Universities (MHAICU}, I
applaud your leadership on the issus of natienal/community
service, MNAICU has an interest ip working with the Congrass en
this important gffort. To that end, we convenaed a task force to
study the issue and to submit a report on the elements that sheould
be included in future lagislation. That rePort has been approvad
by our Board of Directors, ang is attached. Gene Sofer, of your
staff, has sufigested that the report could be submitted for the
hearind record.

While we did net have the copportunity to testify at today's
hearing, we hope that a menber of gur task force will be asked to
de So at any future hearings Planngd on this issue,

Thank you again for your centinued concern about all issues
facing higher education.

Sincerely,

NNl

Rlchard F. Rosser
President

_ ges Congressman Payx Williams

{ﬂmﬂ] 122 C Streel, MW, « Sulte 750 « Washindton, 0.G, 300042190 + 20M3a7.7512 » FAX 203628 2511
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NAICU POLICY OH MATIONAL/COMMUNITY SERVICE

Indapendent colleges and universities are as diverse as the nation
iteelf. They include major rasearch univarsities, historically black
collegas, traditional liberal arts institutiens, church-related and
women's colleges, two-yaar colledes, and scheools of law, engineering,
and buginess. This extracrdinary diversity offers students a Yeal
choice in the type of aducational experisnce that will best serva their
interests &nd aspirdations. Long-standing public pelicias, court
dacisions, and tax-axemption policies at all lavels of government have
recegnized the distinctive nature and role of nonprofit institutions of
higher education in serving the citizenty and the public interest.

For nearly 400 years, independent colleges and upiversities have
begen imvolved in community sarvice, dating from the founding of Harvard
tollege in 1636. The actual foundation of many NAICU institutions is
based upon valpaes that prompted a gpirit of volunteerism and gervice to
society from the vary beginning. These pregrans have expanded
congiderably over the years. Such & record affirms veluntearism and
compunity service to be essentially an expression of our nation's
philanthrepic spirit. The spirit of philanthropy and volunteerism is
reflected in many ways in the campus anvironment and in students®
lives; one important manifestaticn ¢f that Spirit is the multitude of
community eervice activitiee in which our studsonte are engagad.

HAICU mewber schoola (now numbering in excass of 800) and their
students are actively involved in community service projecta. These
prejacts range from feeding the homeless, to assisting the elderly, to
teaching disadvantaged children, to woxking in service programs at the
national and international levele. Independent colledes and univer-
egitias encourage community service not only as an integral part of the
educational procass, but also as an integral part of the individual
student's life and valuas.

A fundamental mission of indepandent colleges and universities is
to rmurture values in gtudents so theY can, in turn, formulate opinions
and act on these values in their own lives. Traditionally, we have
endeavored to lead our students to understand that, as & result of the
banefits they gain from & college education, they have a ceorkespending
Tesponsibility teo the larger gociaty. The banafita received and the
corresponding ragponsibility are not npeasured in terms of dellars but
rather, in terms of a mors humane society and a stronger nation.
Independent institutions of higher educatior try to ingtill values in
students and prompt a Epirit that will allow us to realize our mission
as ingtitutions that serve important public purpodes. Ae a result, our
astudentg recognize the importance of gervice to gociety as well as the
importance of eQual opportunity for all individuals reagardless of race,
f0x, Age, Jdisability, or secloeconcmic status.
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Independant c¢olladges and universities work hard to ensure that

. studante have accese to those institutions that best meet their
sducational aspirations. The majority of independent institutiens
attempt to assist every qualified studant in need of financial
assistance who wants to enroll. Unfortunatsly. as higher education
costs at all eollegee and universities inerease, and as federal funding
decresses, independant colledes, in particular, must nee significantly
mora instituticnal funds for student aid. In additien, the trends in
funding have resulted in an imbalance batwaen grants and loans, forcing
students t¢ incur ever larger debts. There is perhaps no greater
threat to ths spirit of voluntgeriss than a future populated by
generations of heavily indebted college graduatas.

Althougl fedaral student aid Programs are far from perfect, they
do help to provide students, especially minorities a.d those cf limited
income, with important educational opportunities, whan supplemented
with state, institutional, private, and self-help funding, exieting
etudant aid rrograms allow students accees to higher aducation and
cholice amony institotions, which would otherwise not be the case.
Highar aducation leaders and policy makers ghould work toward inproving
the effactiveness ¢f these programs while also bringing grants and
leans into better balance.

1 recognition ¢f the historical federal role in national/commy-
nity owrcvice programs (such as Peace Corpe and VISTA): in response to
HAICD'e support for the continued opportunities provided students by
existing student aid programs! and in view of our historic commitment
to and ongeing support for community eervice programs, NAICU, thers-
forg. supports inclusion of the following recommendations in any
federal legislation on national/community service:

1) In order to ensures that adegquate and meaningful opportu-
nities are available for individuals involved in sarvice
programs, legislation sheuld begin with demonstration
prejacts to test the feasibility and underetand the
implications of proposed programs. Projects that pass the
teat ghould be expanded in later years.

2) Tha underlying principles of sarvice to society, equal
opportunity, and access to and choice among institutions of
higher gducation. should serve as the basie for any fgderal
pelicy on national/cemmunity service. Iegislation must
provide equal opPportunity for all participante, regardless of
race, sex, ags, disability, or sociosconomic status.

1) The deeision to participate in natiopal/compunity serviece
must be gehuinely voluntary.

- D
e
e

%,

BERIC |

. PAruiiText provided by R




283

I3 &

4}

5)

&)

K

8)

9)

1o}

Q
E l(:‘ 19-864 0 -~ - 10
e i

-

Any naticnal/community service legislation must suPplement,

net substitute for, existing federal need-basad student aid

programs., Such legislation must guarantee access and cheice
for low-inceme and mineority students.

Any legislation enacted must be flaxible encugh to provide a
variaty of Youth service cpptrtunities before, during, and .
after collede, and on a part-tima or full-tima bagis. *

Although oppertunities for national/communitY Gervice should
be available to ocut-of-school Youth, lejyislation should be
crafted to encourage gtudents te completa their high scheel
education. With regard to out-cf-schocl Youth, legiglaticn
should provide a literacy compenent and should also encouraga
attainment of a high school diploma or General Egquivalency
Diploma (GEp) certification a= a central part of tha Eervize
program.

.-ﬂ-‘ . .

If college or university enrcllment ie an integral part of
the national/copmunity service program, any legislation
enacted should encourage degree cempletion.

The use of existing service organizations and structurse nt
the naticnal, state, and local lavels should be the corner~
gtone of any organization or structure created by federal
legislation. HNew programe should not displace existing
service programs, such as those operated by educational
1nstitutgons and religicus denominations. One way of
racegnizing existing programs is by providing grants to those
crganizations to refine or eXpband e2uych programs.

Vvolunteers must be properly traired and programs should
include an educational component, in corder teo ensure
meaningful service oppertunities as well as satisfactory
performance. 7In addition, ecelleges should work with
community and eiate programs, as we)l as in the development
of federal legislation, te ensure 4n adeguate number of
service opportunities.

In crder to overcome finzncial cbstacles to a full-time

service experisnce, a swrvice stipend to cover living

expenses during the Period of service should be provided. In
addition, for those who have incurred federal student loans,

monthly Payments for such loans $hould be forgiven during a

pericd of full-time service. .

o0
ey
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11} A post-service Iinancial benefit should be available to all
inajviduals who complate a period of national/communit:
gervica, The benefit must supplement, not replace, existing
tedaral nasd-based student aid programs. In datarmining
allowable usa of benefits, funding that encourages

participation in postsecondary education should be the
highest priority.

As the many national/community service proposals before the
Congress ara considerad, MAICU will urge inclusion of the aboye recom-

mendations in a bipartisan consensus bill that mepbers of Congress and
the administration could support and anact into law.

April 14, 19a89

A A FuliText provided by ERIC
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JOINT HEARINGS ON THE ISSUE OF NATIONAL
SERVICE

THURSDAY. JUNE 28, 1989

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuscoMMITTEES ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY, AND VOCa-
TIONAL EDUCATION; POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION;
HumaN REeSOURCES; Serect EDUCATION; AND EMPLOY-
MENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CommMiTTEE ON EDUCATION aND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittees met, pursuant to notice, at $:40 a.m. in Room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F. Hawkins
[Chairman] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Williams, Martinez, Owens,
Hayes, Lowey, Poshard, Jontz, Petri, Gunderson, Bartlett, Bal-
lenger, Smith and Neal of Massachusetts.

Staff present: Eugene F. Sofer, budget counsel; Richard P. Jerue,
staff director, Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education; Eric P.
Jensen, staff director, Subcommittee on Employment Opportuni-
ties; Jillian G. Evans, legislative analyst, Subcommittee on Select
Education; and Beth B. Buehlmann, minority education coordina-
tor.

Chairmean HawkINS. Good morning. I want to welcome you to a
joint hearing of five subcommittees of the Education and Labor
Committee on the issue of National Service. The subcommittees
are: Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational Education; Human Re-
sources; Postsecondary Education; Employment Opportunities; and
Select Education.

I want to briefly note some concerns of mine. First, I am very
leery of tying Service to Student Financial Aid programs. Second, I
want to insure that Service is accompanied by training and educa-
tion, where necessary. Third, I want to insure that any service bill
leaving this Committee has strong antidisplacement provisions as
well as other labor protections.

Finally, in an era of budget restraint, I would not want to see a
large Federally-supported Service program that drains scarce re-
sources from other existing high priority programs.

The purpose of today’s hearing is to hear from organized labor
about how to protect the rights of full-time workers while simulta-
neously encouraging the impulse to serve; to explore the concept of
service as a component of an educational straiegy aimed at reach-
ing at-risk students and reinvigorating schools and communities;
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imdlto learn about innovative programs at the local and state
evels.

We had invited and hoped to have Admiral James Watkins, Sec-
retary of Energy, appear on the Administration’s behalf. Unfortu-
nately, the Admiral was called out of town and no substitute has
been provided.

I hope that the Administration will have an opportunity to dis-
cuss its YES proposal before the Committee at some future time.

We have several panels of witnesses, but may I first yield to any
of the other membere of the various subcommittees who may wish
to make a statement at this time.

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Hawgins. Mr. Williams.

Mr. WiLniams. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your opening com-
ments and particularly your expression of a leeriness abcut tying
students’ benefits to service. The Committee which I chair, the
Postsecondary Education Committee, will not vote out a bill that
ties service to berefits.

That is, we will not change the traditional student aid system to
such that we require the service in front of the benefit. We believe
that the current em of trying to make Postsecondary Education
available, accessible, to all Americans, whether they agree to work
for the government or not should continue in place.

We have done a review of the votes in our Committee and the
approach which would tie service to benefits cannot pass our Sub-
committee, Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Any others?

Mr. BARTLETT. Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Bartleit.

Mr. BarTLETT. Mr. Chairman, I will just brieﬂy say that I very
much was heartened last week by President Bush's announcements
for what appears to be a very rational and sensible proposal to en-
courage service by young people.

The young people in this country are serving in volunteer roles
throughout the country and the length and the breadth of the
country in a great deal of ways and it appears to me that fiom the
outline of President Bush’s proposal, we ¢an find some ways to en-
courage that without stultifying it with bureaucracy.

It does seem to me that the proposal that we are having a hear-
ing on again today which ties student financial aid to so-called vol-
untary service was never voluntary, probably not service was a
non-starter in the beginning, so I am glad to see that one which
had been proposed by some in Congress, not on this Committee,
never got off the ground and doesn’t appear to be getting off the
ground today.

I look forward to Governor Kean’s commission report on the spe-
cifics of the Bush proposal and look forward to considering that le-
gitimate service proposal in this Committee. Thank you.

Chairman Hawkins. Mr. Martinez.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I beg the Committee’s
indulgence while I express some frustrations about the situation
concerning youth in our country. I picked up a paper, it was actual-
ly yesterday’s L.A. Times, metro section.
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Thirty-nine percent of California’s high school students are drop-
outs, 39 percent, and more interesting than that to me was that
two school districts in my Congressional district, Azusa, and El
Rancho, have higher than 50 percent dropout rates.

It is not as if we did not know how to change all this because
there are model programs out there that are working right now,
and those models that are working are changing the attitudes of
the young people.

They are making a difference at least to those that they reach.
The problem is, they are not reaching sufficient numbers of youth.
Qur system isn’t reaching people young enough to keep them from
becoming frustrated with their situation in school, or situation in
life. As a result, these frustrated people become dropouts from high
school, but worse, they become dropouts from life and it is a waste.

We do our studies and cur reports, as Mr. Bartlett has alluded
to, and still nothing happens. We had a report, ‘“The Nation at
Risk” and I haven’t seen any great changes since that report came
out. There has been some changes and attempts.

Last year's HR. 5§ was an attempt to rectify some of the wrongs
and try to move things in a better direction or the right direction
for youth, but it isn’t enough. It always seems like our effortg for
youth are just piecemeal and band aid.

You know, jt is funny—when we want to find the appropriations
and monies for certain things like MX-missile and dePense we can.
And the defense really is to safeguard us from the threat from
some foreign power. But meanwhile, in our communities, we have
citizens, honest, decent citizens, who are scared to go outdoors be-
cause of the gang activities and the amount of crime and drugs in
their communities and the threat to them from these things.

Many young people have no alternatives. They get into that be-
cause there are really no alternatives. We have seen situations
where an alternative has been provided, government has moved
away from that.

problem is that we really are not reaching enough youths,
even with those programs of success we have out there now.

In Oakland and San Francisco, which we visited as a subcommit-
{ee, we saw where there were young people in those programs that
would rather be in those programs looking to a job that might start
out at minimum wage, but with the prospects of eventually earning
a much better salary and a standard of living that would make
them keep on in that direction, rather than get involved in drug
incidents that they have been involved in before.

So, it works. The problem is that it takes us a long time here in
Congress to debate this issue and to find the appropriations to
expand this existing progran:. Those programs that are suceeding
now often have major corporatione involved.

In the city of San Francisco, Chevron is very deeply involved and
they make a difference by expanding the guidance to potential, eli-
gible recipients. I think if we were to pass a youth service bill that
incorporated all of the things that the chairman talked about and
mandated education because, once a young person starts to succeed
and finds out they can succeed, there is no stopping our youth.

The problem is that youth often never get that first chance to
succeed and I think it is time that we move in a more expeditious
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manner in Congress to resolve these problems and really do some-
thing about it and put some money where our mouth is. Do we
reat.’lll_y mean what we say or do we say things just to appease the
public. :

I think many times we say things to appease the public and we
pass things out that really don’t address the problem to the extent
that they should simply because it makes us feel good and we can
go back to our districts and break our arms patting ourselves on
the back when in actuality, we really haven’t addressed the prob-
lem to the extent that it needs to be addressed. I am just very frus-
trated by the very slow progress that we make towards providing
young people in this country with a better alternative than drugs
and crime.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Matthew G. Martinez follows:}
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STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ
HEARING ON YOUTH SERVICE, JUNE 28, 1989, é175

MR. CHAIRMAN, § WISH TO COMMEND YOU AND THE RESPECTIVE
CHAIRS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEES SPONSORING TODAY'S HEARING ON
YOUTH SERVICE. THE TIME HAS FINALLY COME FOR YOUTH SERVICE TD
CONSTAERED SERIDUSLY AS A PRIURIIY LERISLATIVE AND POLITICAL
15SUE.

THIS COMMITTEE HAS BEEN AT THE FOREFRONT FCR YOUTH SERVICE
LEGISLATION FOR THE PAST © YEARS, BEFORE T BECOME SO POLITICALLY
POPULAR. TODAY, WE FINALLY HAVE THE ADMINISTRATION AS WELL AS
BOTH SIDES OF THE AISLE IN THE HOUSE AND SENATE READY TO ENACT
A BROAD BASED YOUTH SERVICE LEGISLATION.

IN A SERIES OF HEARINGS HELD BY MY SUBCOMMITTEE FROM 1985
UNTIL THE FIELD HEARING I HELD IN LOS ANGELES JUST LAST FRIDAY,
AN OVERWHELMING SENSE OF URGENCY HAS BEEM CONYEYED TO US THAT
UNLESS WE IN CONGRESS AMD THE ADMINISTRATION DO SOMETHING
[MMEDIATELY, WE WILL LOSE A WHOLE GEWERATION OF YOUTH TO
IDLENESS, DESPAIR, RELIANCE, AND DIRECTIONLESSNESS. WHILE THE
ADMINISTRATION IS CALLING FOR THE "BELLS TO RING IN HEARTS" OF

QUR NATION'S YOUTH TO GIVE OF THEMSELVES, THE ALARM BELL HAS BEEN}
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RINGING NON-STOP IN QUR PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS THAT FAILURE
T0 DO SOMETHING IMMEDIATELY TO TARGET OUR YOUTH WILL RESULT IN
_DISASTER FOR THE FORGOTTEN HALF OF OUR NON-SCHOOL YOUTH.
FEDERAL LEADERSHIP IS ESSENTIAL T0 EXPAND THE EXISTING ARRAY

OF STATE AND LOCAL PARTNERSHIPS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEEN PROVEN
SUCCESSFUL IN A NUMBER OF COMMUNITIES. YOUTH GENERATING
MOTIVATION AMD ACTIVITIES [N A MYRIAD OF WAYS TO HELP THEIR
COMMUNITIES, AND ULTIMATELY HELPING THEMSELVES. iS A SOUND AND
EFFICIENT SOLUTION TO SHORTFALLS AND CONCERNS IN OUR SOCIETY.

| AM PLEASED THAT THE ADMINISTRATION HAS FINALLY SHOWN THEIR
COMMITMENT TO YOUTH SERVICE AND TO WORKING WITH CONGRESS TO FORGE
A CONCRETE BILL IN THIS CONGRESS. THE ROAD AHEAD TO FASHIONING
THE BEST COMPREKENSIVE APPROACH TO THE YOUTH SERVICE MISSION WiLL
BE DIFFICULT. BUT I HAVE FULL CONFIPENCE THAT CHAIRMAN HAWKINS
WILL BUILD A SOLID WORKING CONSENSUS OM THE BILL. THEREFORE. T0
CONGRESS AND THE MEMBERS OF THIS COMMITTEE, I SAY LET US PUT
ASTDE OUR RETICENCE AND POLITICAL POSTURING AND HAMAER OUT A
YOUTH SERVICE BILL FOR OUR COMMUNITIES THAT WE CAN ALL BE PRoUD

OF. THANX YOU.

zzggr;
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Chairman Hawkins. Thank you. Any furiher statements? If not,
we will proceed into the hearing. We are delighted to have our first
panel, two outstanding authorities in the field and dear friends of
the committee: Mr. Albert Shanker, President of the American
Federation of Teachers and Mr. Gerald McEntee, President of
AFSCME

We will call on you in that order, gentlemen. May I say to you
that any prepared statements will be entered in the record in their
entirety. We would appreciate hearing from the highlights of your
prepared statements.

Mr. Shanker, we are delighted to call on you first.

STATEMENTS OF ALBERT SHANKER, PRESIDENT. AMERICAN
FEDERATION OF TEACHERS; AND GERALD Mc¢ENTEE, PRESI-
DENT, AFSCME

Mr. SuaNKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity. I
am Albert Shanker, President of the American Federation of
Teachers. Qur organization represents more than 700,000 elementa-
ry and secondary school teachers, paraprofessionals, other school
personnel, college faculty, state employees and health care profes-
sionals.

Sitting next to me is Greg Humphrey, Assistant to the President
and responsible for legislative activities.

I would like to thank the committee for your efforts in terms of
promoting the kinds of programs which we are discussing today. It
is really long overdue. &me of us have been trying for a period of
20 years or more to promote the notion of national service and we
are happy to see that this issue is now one which is not only under
very wide discussion within the country, but where we are getting
close to the point where something may actually happen.,

I do have a written statement which I will not read and I do,
however, want to say, Mr. Chairman, that with the points that you
made at the very beginning, I leaned over and Jerry McEntee and
I both said, “Well, then, why do we need to testify; we agree with
every thinaiehe just ‘said,” and those are the points that we came
here to make.

So, I will, therefore, not go through this testimony except to say
we very strongly agree that we should not move on the notion of
national service and trade that off for cashout, existing programs
which help youngsters to get into higher education and to complete
their work there.

That would be really a disaster. There is no reason to do that.
There is no reason why the national service shouldn’t be an addi-
tional component in our life and not some kind of a trade off or
something, another very worthwhile goal.

I would just like to address one or two of the issues before us. I
believe that with the problems facing our schools, we will never
take care of all those issues and problems strictly in terms of em-
ploying more people, in terms of having all that we need to have in
terms of paid staff.

Yes, we need more and we press for those things, but there are
things that will always need to be done on a voluntary basis. Quite
a few of the programs which are moving in schools which deal with

H
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mentor Programs are extremely important, programs which in-
volve older students helping younger students, programs where
people in business or industry or other professions have skills to
share with people in the schol;{s

Take certain areas that are in great shortage now such as math
and science teachers. I single them out because they are widely
publicized. There are other areas too if we were really to mave, for
instance in foreign language instruction, we would find that we
don't have very many teachers in that area.

There is no way of instantly creating enough math and science
teachers. This is a pipeline problem. It starts in the elementary
school. You have o give kids an adequate background there and
then in high school.

It will take at least 20 years if we start working today; 20 or 30
years befora we start seeing an adequate number. Between now
and that time, the only way to provide adequate education for a
large number of our youngsters is to agk for industry in the profes-
sions to share some of their talents, to bring some people who have
expertise in these fields into the schools.

at is extremely important. This is not just a nice thing to do;
it is an essential thing to do. We are not going to solve this prob-
lem. We are not going to get enough people in the next generation
in these fields unless there is some kind of sharing of the talent
that we now have,

I would like to underline a second aspect of this and that is, the
relation of other institutions and the opportunity of students in
school to have experience in those institutions whether it be at
some work places, whether it be in other public institutions.

There are some very interesting experiments that have taken
place in the last ten years that indicate that quite a number of kids
who can’t learn how to read and write very well using normal
school methods, that is, having a teacher stand there and talk to
them and giving them workbooks, that if you first give them some
base of experience, it becomes much easier for them to read those
things that deal with the experience that they got.

There was a famous Navy experiment where they found that in
order to read certain repair manuals to fix electronic equipment,
you needed 12th grade reading ability, but if they had some young-
sters who were working in those repair shops for a year and they
got to know what was a resistor and what was a transistor and
what was a capacitor and what a circuit was and everything else,
that having that experience enables those youngsters to read those
same manuals even though on a test, they only scored sixth grade
reading ability, so that part of what is being talked about in these
proposals could become a very effective type of educational tool.

e realize that the proposals under conSIderation are very, very
broad and we would support broad gfo sals. We are especially, of
course, interested in the way in which these components can im-
prove the effectiveness of public education within the country.

I would like to make one final remark and that is on the ques-
tion of whether there should be required public service in (Ligh
schools which a number of reports and a number of communities
have moved on.

205k
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I would prefer that these things be left to states and localities
and I also prefer that the notion of service not be one separate
course which you would do once in your three or four years in high
school and get it over with.

That is almost contrary to the notion of public service. I would
like to see an awareness and a consciousness of public service
throughout our educational system, so that if the youngsiers are
studying science, they might decide to take on a project where they
reach out to the community and make them aware of certain dan-
gers within the community.

If they are studying natural life and find that there is some
danger of some particular species of birds, that they can do some-
thing about—that is, the whole notion of doing something that is of
public service should be something that naturally grows out of all
of the other things that you are doing and not something which is
neatly compartmentalized into one course you will take throughout
your 12 years of education and get it over with and feel that “well,
now I have satisfied all of the service I have to give and that is all
over with.”

We note with interest and approval the President’s statement
the other day—the notion of establishing a voluntary network of
help is a good one. We look forward to seeing some of the specifics
and some of the details on that, but there is nothing in the initial
presentation of the proposal that would lead us to be negative
about it.

We look forward to further details on it and we believe that we
will be able to support it, but it is narrow and we think it probably
ought to move forward along with some of the other proposals or
aspects of the other proposals that are before you.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Albert Shanker follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ALBERT SHANKEDR, PRESIDENT
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS, AFL-CIO
BEFORE THE
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION ARD LABOR
UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REFRESENTATIVES

June 28. 1939

Mr., Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am albert Shanker, president of the American Federation of
TPeachers. The AFT represents more than 700,000 primary and
secondary school teachers, paraprofessionals and other schot’”
employees, college faculty., state employYees and health care
professionals. #e appreciate the opportunity to present the
AFT's views opn this important issue.

The issue before this Committee, the expansion of our

natiocnal commitment to community service., is an important matter

to the AFT. We commend Mephers ©f thig Committee, as yell as
othar Members of Con9ress. who have recognized that this is an
area that would benefit from federal attention.

The AFT strongly supports the concept of national and

community service. Our members entered their respective
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professions because of a belief in publi¢ gervice. AFT members
frequently see the benefits of community service, On a daily
basis, volunteers: often parents, work in guyr schools and make
them better places for their own and others’ children.

Over a quarter a century age, President Kennedy said we
should ask what we could de for our country. This challenge,
which served as a beacon for national and community service to
an entire generatien of Americans, is in need of renewal today,
with the establishment of the Peace COrpS: VISTA and ACTION:
millions ©of people both here and in other parts of the world
have been enriched and have benetited by the work and ideaiism
@f those who responded to President Kennedy’s challenge.

The time has come to reawaken the spirit of service to
nation and to community once again. In doing so, however. we
ask that any new legislation take inte account the changes in
American society that have seccurred since the 19s0's, AnY hew
program must ba careful to farve out & role for naticnal and
community service that is consistent with other concerns of our
country.

Several of the bills before this Congress represent an
excellent approach to establishing a positive community service
program. Scme of the proposals encourage schools and community
bagsed agencies to develep self-sufficient local prejects te
create hew oppertunities feor students and gut-of-school youth to
serve their communitiss. oOthers would create service
opportunities for citizens of all ages, allowing weekend,

part-time and vacation service. oOne propesal would encourage

<
it

[
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adults to volunteer in schools, forging partnerships between
schools and other groups. Other proposals wyould provide
educational benafits supplementing existing need-based aid. All
of these approaches have promise. They offer 4 real opportunity
for our youth to obtain or continue their education, to enter
the world ©f work and t& provide a service to their country.
While the AFT strongly supports the ¢oncept of national and
compunity service, we amphatically oppose any program that would
condition student eligibility for financial assistance on the
performance of community., national or military service. Further.
we must be careful not te create any program yhich would, in
atfect, displace low-wage and low-skilled workers. Community
service should complement the work of reguiar public service
employeas. Any new initiztive must avoid displacement of
existing workers. |
The AFT is troubled by The Citizen and National Service Act
introduced by Representative MeCurdy and Senator Hunn. That
bill would cash out existing federal student assistance prograns
and make national secvice the sole basis on which students would
Qualify for federal financial assistance. Rather then serve as
a beacon for young people to contribute to their community, this
approach could reduce educational opportunities instead of
increasing them. The AFT has supported ihe $.I. bill for
Vietnam Veterans and the new G.I. bill recently enacted by
congress. Gur Union believes that the nation should raward
thoge who have served in the military apd in civilian capacity

for their contribution. However, cashing out e¢ritical student
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assistance programs in order to pay for past service is a flawed
approach.

While Wwe commend Represaentative MeCurdy and Senator Nunn for
helping to bring this issue tc naticnal attentinn, we oppose
dismantling a proven system of support £or students in higher
education. The new G.I. Bill, existing student aid programs and
new assistance from community service should all have a place in
the array of programs that serve our nation’s educational,
military and service needs.

Because this bill would deny fipancial assistance until
naticnal service has been completed, the net effect would be to
establish mandatory service for all students vno need federal
assistance t© pursue higher education while high sechool
graduates from higher-income families would enjoy greater access
to collage because of artificially reduced competition. with
the rising costs of a collage education, the number of low-and
middle-income Students who will ke in a position to attend
college without financial aid wil) continue to diminish. Recent
studies bave found that studants’ chances of obtaining a higher
education are better if they enter college immediately after
bigh school. AFT strongly Supports efforts to provide
non-traditional students with opPortunities for higher
educxtion. It would be a mistake, howaver, to build a new
barrier Yo college attendance after bigh school for low-and
middle-income Aperican youtb.

While the current student aid system is not perfect, it has

assisted millions of students who ptherwise Would not have been
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zale to attend college. We recommend that any national service
program that provides benefits be structured so that all who
wish to pursue their education and perfolm gervice after College
be allowad to dedicate their accrued benefits toward retiring
their educational loans.

It is no secret that at this jumture, Congress does not
have the mohey to devVelop and implement a comprehensive
community service Program.

In the absence 9f resources for a comprshensiVe program. AFT
believes that new legislation should give school-based Commuhity
sarvica Programs a high priority. Much has beenh made of our
nation’'s staggering budget and trade deficits. Recent studies
by the Hational Assessment of Educational Progress alsoe

demonstrate 2 massive national education deficit. Qur country is

" behind virtually all of its competitors in the most critical

educational skills of its youth. The number of at-risk and
cut=of~school youths is growing. youth unemploYMent remains

high, and the educational skills our nation will need to Compete

in the 21st Centuf¥ are lacking even in our high school

graduates.

Any school-hased service program should aim to: (1)
encourage students and adults to participate in school and
community service activitiest (2) enhance educaticnal
achievementt and {3) contribute to the skills and productivity
of youhg pecPle about tO enter the work force. Each program
should also have a compohent targeted at students who nead help

nost.
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In Structuring suych a program, saveral issues naad to be
addressed. First and foremost: I would encourage the expansion
of axisting school-based programs which have proven to be
successful. Many successtful programs are operating throughout
tha country and thousands ©f students are engaged in a wide
range of activities, including tutoring othar students and
adults, public servics work in hospitals., libraries and senior
citizens centers. others voluntear tO man "hotlines." helping

youngsters in crisis or chaecking in on "latchkey” children.

Other progfﬂms are targeted for at-risk youth. including many

conservation corps programs. AFT locals in several cities
maintain educaticnal assistance hotlinas for parents and
stuaents in need of help with school work. Thara is no reason
why this work cannot be axpanded to include Young peopls yho
have the capacity to help other students.

The issue of whathar community service should be voluntary
or a mandatory requirement for students sasking to graduate from
high school should he left to tha schools and to edycators who
must detarmine how such & program should fit into the scheol’s
primary educational mission. Schools should be encouraged to
implement such programs and several of the proposals hafore
Congress will help in this regard. If community service
programs are to be offered for academic credit, it is imperativae
that program content in developing the curriculum for such
programs h&et the standards applied to other preograms providing
academic credit. A community service course, along, would bae of

littls value to studentg. It is only whan suych courses are
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connected with a student’s othar eXPerisnces within the school
and within the community that the goals of school-based sarvice
prodrams will be realized.

As you examine the various options fgor school-based
prnjicts. one approach that should be examined is the so-called
Sarvilet Project in Praesident Dush’s community service proposal.
A% I understand that proposal it ancourages business and other

groups to donate the gevices of talented Personnel- Schools

axperiencing shortages in certain areas - for example:. in math,

science and languages - would benefit from skilled volunteers.
While this type of sharing yill not relieve the shortages of
gralified personnel the schools now face, it can help in the
short run.

Students, parents and membars of the public and private
seactor should ba encouraged to Volunteer; and schools should
develop programs aimed at establishing teams to work in these
shortage areas. A team approach will be needed since Many
pecple who are qualified in specitic subject matters will not
have the teaching skills to affactively pass their knowledga
oh. Members ©f the business community e¢:1d help develop
programs aimed at improving a student’s skills in the target
area through local service projeacts. In the last several years,
the AFT has entered into some VeryY exciting and innovative
projects with the private sector, and I am convinced that thae
resources ©f the business community can help solve some of the

problems faced by schools with personnel shortages.
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in & school-based community service program, the issue of
training is alse important. Velunteers will need to work with
experienced teachers in order to take paximum advantage of the
time and skills being volunteered. The challenge here is great
as there is presently very little in the way of training fer
programs of this type.

To summarizer & national gervice program should contribute
to the skills and productivity of Yound people entering the work
.force. It should remove, not add, barriers to students who want
a higher education. Educational benefits which are linked with
voluntary service should be viewed as an addition to and not a
replacement of student financial assistance programs. Congress
should encourage school-based programs which enhance and support
programs that are already underway.

Hational service legislation that enhances educational

achievenent and workforce productivity can be an important

element it efforts to better mect some of the needs ©f students
and improve the educational and job skills of at-risk Youth.

We believe that it makes good sense to focus community service
legislation on just a few achievable but important goals. This
legislation is a good place to bedin the process of

concentrating our efforts on the most pressing needs.
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Chairman Hawxkins. Thank you, Mr. Shanker. The next witness
is Mr. Gerald McEntee, President of American Federation of State,
County and Municipal Employees. Mr. McEntee, we are delighted
to have you with us today.

Mr. McENTEE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I would
also, before I begin, like to congratulate the chairman and other
members of the Commitiee for their determination and leadership
on the child care bill, an issue of great interest of so many Ameri-
cans and the work and the effort that you put in before yesterday
and yesterday was, indeed, monumental and will be locked back on
as a major step in trying to do something about the care of chil-
dren in America. On behalf of our Union, we want to thank you
and congratulate you.

I am the president of AFSCME. I am accompanied by Charles M.
Loveless, Associate Director of AFSCME's Department of Legisla-
tion and we appreciate the opportunity to appear here today on
behalf of AFSCME which represents more than one million, two
hundred and fifty thousand employees of state and local govern-
ments and non-profit agencies across the nation.

represents people who serve the public. Our members
are child care workers, laborers, sanitation workers, clerks, gecre-
taries, teacher aides, school crossing guards, hospital aides. librar-
ians, fawyers, and social workers.

By the very nature of their jobs, they have an ingrained sense of
community service. For almost a decade now, the value of public
service has been denigrated by many politicians at all levels of gov-
ernment.

Morale among government employees all scross the country has
plunied in the face of a vicious cycle of both program cutbacks
which produce unmanageable workloads and anti-government rhet-
oric which condemns public programs and employees as ineffective.

Wa are gratified, therefore, to see in the current dialogue about
voluntary service, a renewed appreciation of the value of communi-
ty service. It is time to turn away from the self-centeredness of the
last decade and to rediscover the virtues of civic responsibility
toward our neighbors and toward our community.

Nonetheless, we urge you to proceed cautiously with volunteer
service legisiation. While there is no real consensus on what com-
munity service means, two principal objectives appear to run
through many of the proposals now pending before Congress: (1) ad-
drmemﬁng unmet domestic needs; and (2) restoring a faltering civic
spirit.

The apparent appeal of using a community service program to
meet unmet social needs is obvious. Qver the last eight years, Fed-
eral aid to state and local governments——

Chairman Hawgins. Mr. Mc Entee, I am sorry for the interrup-
tion, but there is a vote in the House and I t}u;{( that it would be
quicker if we take a recess at this time, a five-minute recess, so the
members may vote and then return immediately and continue on.

I hope this will be the only recess. It is a very silly one, as you
know. It is just a vote on approving a journal of yesterday. Nobody
has read it and yet, we are called upon to approve it.

This is our national service, I guess. A five-minute recess.
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Cha'rman Hawxkins. The Committee will come to order. Mr.
McEntee, you may continue. We again apologize.

Mr. McENTEE. E‘hank you very much, Mr. Chairman. The appar-
ent appeal of using a community service program to meet unmet
social needs is obvious. Over the last years, Federal aid to state and
}ioclel;l governments declined by some 45 percent in terms of 1982

ollars.

On the face of it, it seems convenient to provide a labor pool of
young people for community service programs while simultaneous-
ly achieving other policy objectives such as conditioning Federal
student aid on community service, providing job training for the
disadvantage and creating opportunities for young people of differ-
ent sociceconomic backgrounds to learn from each other, indeed, by
working together.

However, it must be emphasized that these objectives cannot be
comfortably and successfully combined if the primary goal and
major effect of community service is to fulfill unmet public needs
with unpaid workers or workers who receive a mimmal stipend
without regular employee status.

It is not realistic to expect relatively untrained, {ransient type
workers to provide the same quality of public services previoﬁy
provided by trained employees working in a stable employment en-
vironment. In addition, a large scale, Federal financed community
program almost certainly will displace many entry level jobs in the
state and local government and non-profit sectors if it sets up un-
limited service positions in local agencies.

While national gervice proponents insist, and sincerely intend,
that volunteers would only do work no one else is doing, there in-
evitably would be a very strong incentive, given the fiscal crunch
at the state and local government level, to cut back on employed
positions and use volunteers to meet local needs. Indeed, we believe
there is a very strong potential for displacement of lower-wage,
lower-gkilled entry jobs.

The implications of job displacement go beyond what some might
characterize as the special interest concerns of a union represent-
ing public and non-profit workers. Our research department recent-
ly completed a study which as included with our written statement
graphically shows which demographic groups would be most ad-
versely aftected by a large scale community program.

Our study is based on Equal Employment Opportunity Commis-
sion report forms snbmitted to the EEOC by state and local govern-
ment employers. The EEQC report forms break down the state and
local work force into eight basic job categories.

Based on the skill level required for performing these various
jobs, it is likely that the vast majority of community service partici-
pants would be channeled, would be channeled into the lowest paid
job categories and the EEOC data clearly indicates a trend of in-
creasing dominance in these positions by minority workers.

Consequently, it would be minority groups who stand the most to
lose from a large scale community service type program and this
should come as no surprise. Based on our own AFSCME member-
ship service positions such as day care, home health care, nurses’
aides and park maintenance are becoming increasingly dominated
by women and minorities.

311
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Employment within state and local government historically has
served as an entree into the labor market and the path out of pov-
erty for Blacks, Hispanics and other minority groups. To reduce
the number of paid jobs within government is to reduce employ-
ment o Fortunities for these groups.

Of of the national community service proposals pending
before Congress, H.R. 660, the Democratic Leadership Council pro-
posal introduced in the House by Congressman McCurdy, is likely
to have the greatest negative imr[tgact on paid employment, given
the nature of the work to be performed, the intended size of the
program, and the way assignments will be structured.

The DLC plan closely resembles the public service employment
program under CETA. The delivery system is similar and so is the
type of work which participants would perform. A critical differ-
ence, however, is that participants would have nc employment

rights.

%Nell, H.R. 660 deoes include some anti-displacement to protect
current workers. These provisions are considerably weaker than
those contained in most of the proposals which have been intro-
duced by members of this Committee.

Certainly it stands to reason that it would be counterproductive
to say the least. To have a direct effect of Federally subsidized vol-
unteer service program would have to displace many thousands of
low-wage workers in the pnblic and non-profit sectors.

We have been and will continue to work with the members of
this Committee to make sure this dees not occur. This is not to say
there is not an important place for a Federal volunteer service pro-
gram. There is.

In our view a more limited community service program which fo-
cuses on developing a commitment to helping others without finan-
cial rewards is considerably better than a program which is driven
by the need to create massive numbers of service positions or
which is intended to address other public policy matters.

QOur central goal should be to awaken a sense of responsibility
and commitment that is freely given and which young people in
Earticular will carry with them throughout their lives. We should

e}llp them find the seif-esteem and pride that comes from helping
others.

We support the concept of service and the programmatic struc-
ture found in several of the proposals which have been introduced
by members of this Committee. In particular, we enthusiastically
support the proposal to set up school-based programs that include
mandates for an educational component and student involvement
in the development of projects.

The schoci-based plan advocated by several members of this
Committee would not involve the expenditure of massive amounts
of funds that would further squeeze other vital domestic programs.
Indeed, by structuring the Federal programs as a catalyst for the
development of self-sufficient local projects, its proponents have
found a way to avoid increasing pressure from the Federal budget
and squeezing out other vital domestic programs.

With strong anti-displacement programs—a regquirement for
clearly defined projects—and time limits on participation, we be-
lieve such a program could make a valuable contribution to society
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without further damaging the morale of the millions of people
whose work it is to service the public.

We thank the chairman and the Committee for the opportunity
to present our views on this matter of utmost concern to state and
local governments and, indeed, to non-profit workers and would
like to help the Committee in their deliberations and we are pre-
pared to answer any questions.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Gerald W. McEntee follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and memberg of the Committee, I am Gerald
McEntee, president of the american Federation of State, County
and Municipal Employees (AFSCME). I ap accompanied by Charles M.
loveless, Agsociate Director of AFSCME's Department of
Legislation. We appreciate the opportunity to appear here today
on behalt of AFSCME Which represents more than 1.2 million
employees of state and local governments and non-profit agencies

across the nation.®

AFSCME represSents people who serve the public. Our members
are child care workers, laborers, sanitation workers, clerks,
sacrataries, teacher aides, school crossing guards, hospital
aides, lihrarians, lavyers and social workers. By the verY nature

of their jobs, they have an ingrained sense of community service.

For almost a decade now, the value of public service has

been denigrated by many political figures at all levels of
government.. Morale among government employees all across the
country has plunged in the face of a vicious cycle 3f both
program cutbacks which produce unmanageable workloads and anti-
government rhetoric which condemns public programs and employees

as ineffective.

We are gratified, therefore, to see in the current dialogue
about national service a renewed appreciation of the valre of
community service. It is time to turn away from the self-

centerednass of the last decade and td rediscover the virtuas of
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civic responsibility toward our neighbors and community.

Nonetheless, we urge you to proceed cautiously with
community service legislation. While thera is no real consensus
on yhat community service means, two principal objectives appear
to run through many of the preoposals now pending before Congrass:
{1) addressing unmet domestic needs: and {2) restoring a

faltering civic spirit.

The apparent appeal of using a community service program to
maet unmet Social peeds is obvious. Over the last aight years,
federal aid to state and local governments daclined by 45 percent
in 1982 dellars. On the face of it, it seems convenient to
provide a labor pool of young people for community service
prugfamslwhile simultanecusly achieving other policy objectives
such as conditioning federal student ajd on community service,
providing job training ror the disadvantaged and creating
oppertunities for young pacple of different sociceconomic

backgroumds to learn from each other by working together.

However, it must be emphasized that these cbjectives cannot
be comfortably and successfully combined if the primary goal and
major effect of community service is to fpulfill unmet public
needs with unpaid workers or workers who receive a minimal
stipend without regular employee gtatgys. It is not realistic to

expect relatively untrained, transient workers to provide the

- 316"
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same quality of public gervices previously provided by trained

employees working in a stable enployment environment.

In addition, a large scale. federally financed community
sarvice program almest certainly will displace many entry level
jobs in the ciate and lecal government and nen-profit sectors if
it sets UpP unlimited service positions in local agencies. while
national service propenents insist, apd sincerely intend, that
volunteers would only de work no one else is doings there
inevitably would be a very strong incentive, given the fiscal
problems faced by state and local governuments level, to cut back
on employad positions and use volunteers to meet local needs.
Indeed, We believe there is a very strong potential for

displacement of lower-wage, lower-skilled entry jobs.

The implications of job displacement go beyond what some

might characterize as the special interest concerns ©f a union
representiqg public and non-profit wcrkers. .The AFSCME Research
Department recently completed a study graphically showing which
demographic groups would be most adversely affected by a large
scale community service program. It is set forth below as

Attachment "A".

Our study is based on Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) report forms submitted to this agency by state

and local govermment employers. The EEOC report forms divide the
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state and local workforce into aight job-categoriss:

efficials/adninistrators, professicnals, technicians, protective
service, paraprofessional administrative support: skilled craft

and service/maintenanca.

Bagsed on the skill level required for parforming these
various jobs: it is likely that the vast majority of community
gervice participants would be channeled into the three lowest
paid job categories: administrative support, paraprofessional and
service-maintenance. The EEoc data clearly indicates a trand of
increasing dominance in these positions by minority workers.
Consequently, it would bhe minority groups who stand the most to

lose from a large scale, community gervice Provjram.

This should come as NO surprise. Based ON OUr OWN member-
ship, service positions such as day care, hohe health care,
nurses' aides and park maintenance are becoming increasingly

dominated by women and minorities,

Empleyment within state and local government historically
has served as an entry into the labor market and a path out of
poverty for Blacks, Hispanics and cother minority groups. To
reduce the number aof paid jobs within government is to reduce

employment opportunities for these groups.

of all of the national community service proposals pending
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bafore Congress, H.R. 669, the Democratic Leadership Council
(DL2) proposal introdiced in the House by Cohgrassmah Dave
Mecurdy, is likely to have the greatest hegative impact onh paid
employment, given the hature of the work to ba performed, thea
intended gize of the program and the manner in which assignmenhts
will be structured. The DLC plah closely resemblaz the public
service enployment prodram under the Comprehensive Employment and
Training Act (CETA)., The delivery system is similar and so is
the type of work which participants would perform. A critical
diffarence, however, is that participants would have neo

enploymant rights.

H.R., 660 includes anti-~displacement protections adopted as
part of the Family Assistance Act which was enacted last Year.
While H.R. 660 does include Scie provisions to protect current
workars, thesze provisions are considerably weaker thanh those
contained in H.R. 1947, introduced by Cohgressman Major Owenhs,
H.R., 2591, introduced by Congressman william Ford, ®.Rr, 717,

introduced by Congressmen Matthew Martinez and Leon Panetta, and

H.R. 1408; introduced by Congressmah Pat Williams., We are

attaching a description of the provisions we believe are

necassary for any such velunteer service program ih Attachment

L1 U

However, we must emphasize that stronger anti-displacement

prévisions will not by themselves prevent displacement. Program




stTucture is agually important. The relationship between
program design and displacement was recognized toward the end of
CETA when Congress limited participation in the program to 1a
months and required that at least half of the funds ba used to
establish projects instead of paying for individual assignments
to state and local agencies. The objective was to differentiate
the CETA program from the traditional Services provided by local
agancies. By wayY of contrastr H.R. 660 lacks the project

appreoach and allows Up to two years ©f gervice -—- a Peried of

time that is longer than Mmany youny workers stay in regular jobs.

Even if the structure of H.R. 5§60 was revised. the sheer
size of the program would create lnevitable pressures to displace
existing jobs. States would have to create at least 500,000
positions: a1l of them lacking employment status and benefits for
the participants,

Moreover, the legislation's requirement that most faderal
educational assistance be linked o civilian or military service
would result in low-income students {(who may ke most in need of
assistance %o gain access t© post-secondary education) feeling
forced into service or being penalized for not belng abhle to
sarve, This clearly raises a conflict with the traditional
American values of access to and egual opportunity for post-
secondary education. It also ignores a democratic society's need

For a well-educated and trained citizenry.

195-864 0 - 89 - 11
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A more limited community service program which focuses aon
developing a commitment to helping others without financial
rewards is considerably better than a program which is driven by
the need to create massive numbers of service positions or which
is intended to address other puklic policy matters, ©Our central
goal should be to awaken a2 Sense of responsibility and commitment
that js freely given and which young people, in particular, will
carry with them throughout their lives. We should help them find

the self-esteem and pride that comes from helping othars.

We support the concept of service and the programmatic
structure in the proposals which have heen introduced by
Congressten william Ford and Major owens. The Ford and Owen
plans woqld sat up school-based prograﬁs that include mandates
for an educational component and student involvement in the

development of projects.

Imporantly, Cohgressteh Owens' and Ford‘s bills do not
propose the expenditure of massive funds that could further
squeaze other vital domestic programs. Indeed, by structuring
the faderal program as a catalyst for the development of self-
sufficient local projects, Congressmen Ford and owens have found
a way to avoid increasing pressure on the federal budget. With
strong anti-displacement protections, a regquirement for clearly

detined projects, and time limits on participationr thaeir
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proposad programs could make @ valuable contribution to society

without further damaging the morale of the millions of pecple

whose work it is to service the public.

We thank the Chairman and the Committee for the oppertunity
to present our views on this matter of utmest concern 0 state
and local govermments and non-profit workers. We would be

pleased to anwer any gquastions at this time.
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Aruntoxt provided by Eic:

Nationwide, the proportion of women and minority males
employed by state and local governments has increased
betwaen the years of 1973 and 1985.

of the eight EEOC-designated job categories (officials/
Administrators; Profaessicnals: Technicians: Protective
Service; Paraprofessional; Office/Clerical} Skilled Craft:
and, Service/Maintenance), the three lowest paid tend
to be doninated by women and minority workers: office/Cle-
rical; Paraprofassional? and, Service/Maintenancae.

Among nine large representative cities (Chicago., Detroit.
Houston, Los Angeles. Memphis, New York Ccity,Philadelphia,
San Antonio, and San Jose) males ~- white and minority -
- predominate in the total weork forces while minority
famales predominate in the two lowest paid job categories:
Office/clerical and Paraprofessional.

Jabs in Service/Maintenance, the third lowest paid job
category in state and local govermment work forces, are
‘held by minerity males in numbers disproportiocnate to
their representation in the nine city work forces.




A ruiToxt Provided by ERIC

The United states Ecqual Employment Opportunit¥Y Commission
summarizes a sample of the raports it receives from state and local
governments in a publication titled M

M, Such a report was publ;shed in 1973 and
then, most recently, in 1985, Some of the comparigons in these
reports follow.

FROM 1973 TO 193%, THE PROPORTION OF EMPLOYMENT OF MALES AND WEITE
MALES DECREMSED, WHILE THE PROPORTION OF EMPLOYMENT OF WOMEN AND
MINORITY MBLES INCREASED.

GROUP 1973 1985 DIFF
White Males 54.7% 45.7%
Black Males 7.5% - §.9%

Hisp Males 2.3% 3.2%
Asianlnales 0.3% 0.8%

Total Males 65.23% 58.5%
White Fems 27.1% 29.5%
Black Fems §.2% B.7%
Hisp Fems 1.0% 2.0%
Asian Fems 0.3% 0.7%
Total Fems 34.7% 41.2%

TOTAL
REPORTED 3808538 4741508

{(Sea Chart 1 and 2 attached.)
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BOTE IN 1973 AND IN 19685, THE THEREE LOWEST PAID JOS CATEGORIES WERE
OFFICE/CLARICAL, TPARA-PROPESSIONAL, AND ZERVICB/MAINTEMANCE,
ACCORDING TO THE BEQC REPORT.

WOMEN PREDCMINATE IN PARA-FROPESSIOMAL AND OFFICE/CLERICAL
CRATEGORIES.

In 1973, 65.4% of para-professional positions reported were held
by women. In 19585, 70.8% of para-professicnal jobs waera held by
wopen. Of all women in the jurisdictions included in the report,
15.8% in 1973 and 13.3% in 1985 held para=-prefessional jobs.

In 1973, 84.55% of vffice/clarical Positiona reported were held by
women. In 1985, §7.8% of office/clerical jobs were held by wemen.
Of all women in the jurisdictions included in the report, 45.9% in
1273 and 39.3% in 1985 haeld office/clerical positions.

tver ona-half of all the women working for jurisdicticons included
in the repert held either para-professional or clerical positions.

{See Chart 3 and 4 attached.}

MINORITY MALES ARE DISPROPORTIOMATELY REPRESENTED INH THE
SBRVICE/MAINTENANCE CATBGORY.

In 1973, 27.5% of service/maintanance jobs wera held by minority
males, although minority males were only 10.6% of the total work
forces included ' in the report. In 1985, 131.6% of
service/maintenance jobs were reportad as haeld by minority males,
while minority males wara only 13.2% of the total work forces.

In 1973 47.4% of all minority males reportad as working fer statas
and local govarnments held sarvice/maintenance positions. In 198sS,
35.5% of all minority malaes still held service/maintenance
positions.

{See Chart 5 attached.)

MALPES ARE QVER-REPRESENTED AND FEMALES ARE UNDER-REPREBENTED ~ A8
COMPARED TO THEIR REPRESENTATION WITHIN THE CIVILIAN WORK FORCE -
WITHIN THE WCORX FPORCES OF NINE REPRESENTATIVE CITIES: CEICAGO,
DETROIT, BOO3TON, LOB  ANGELES, MEMPHIS, HNEW YORE CITY,
PHILADBLPHIA, SAN ANTONIO, AND SAN J0sBE. (Data on these specific
cities were provided ¢to the AFSCME Research Department by
cfficials of the jurisdictions in tha form of the mast current ERQ=
4 Report forms.)




New York City
San Josae
Datroit
Houston

Los Angalas
Philadelphia
Jan Antonio

Chicago

Hemihis

_ Memphis
chicago

San Antonic
Los Angelas
Houston
Philadelphia
‘San Jose
Datroit

Hew York City

REPRESENTATION OF FFMALES

CITY

20.63%
21.0%
22.4%
23.5%
24.9%
27.0%
26.7%
28.9%
32.2%

CIV WE/FCE
45.1%
45.1%
42.9%
43.3%
43.8%
46.0%
42.5%
44.9%
45.0%

(See charts 6 through 14 attached.)
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WHITE PEMALES TEMD TOQ BE SEVERELY gNDER-REPRESENTED.

REPRESENTATION OF WHITE FEMALES

CITY CIV WK/FCE % OF REP
8an Antonio 5.7% 315.4% 14.4%
Datroit 5.5% 315.4% 15.5%
Chicago 7.6% 13.5% 22.6%
Houston 8.3% 14.0% 24.43%
Las Angales 8.5% 13.5% 25.13%
Naw Y&rk city S.1% 310.8% 29.53%
Philadelphia 11.2% 316.8% 30.4%
Mamphis $.9% 26.3% 316.9%
San Jose 17.5% 33.8% 56.7%

PLACK MALES AND BLACK FEMALES TEND T0 BE REPRESENTED ABOVE THEIR
INCIDENCE IN THE CIVILIAN WORK FORCE WITHIN THE SEVEN CITIES ¥OR
WHICH CURRENT BLACK CIVILIAN WORK FORCE DATA IS AVAILABLE.

: Wmm
7 - . CITY CIV WK/FCE % OF REP
New York City 14.2% 10.7% . 132%
Memphis 34.6% 20.4% 169%
Chicago 19.3% 10.5% 184%
Houston 20.1% B8.7% 244%
Los Angeles 15.8% 4.8% 329%
Philadelphia 27.6% 8.13 3403
Detroit 41.3% 9.1% 4553
4




BER]

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC
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BLACK FEMALE REPRESENTATION
€ITY CIV WE/FCE % OF REP
Maemphis 10.7% 17.8% 60%
chicago 11.7% 9.9% 1168%
Loa Angelas 7.6% 4.5% 155%
Houpaton 12.5% 8.0% 156%
Naw York City 18,9% 11.4% 165%
Philadelphia 15, 2% B.3% 183%
Detroit 22.8% 8.7% 262%

(Sea Charts 15 through 21)

RISPANXC MALRS AND FEMALES TEND T0 BE REFPRESENTED BHELON THEIR
INCIDENCE IN THE CIVILIAM WORK FORCE IN THE SIX CITIEH FOR wHICH
DATA I3 REPORTED. HIOPANIC WOMEN ARE UNDER-EEPBESENTED IN ALL SIX
CITIBS, HISPANIC MEN ARE UNDER-REFRRUENTED IN FOUR CITIES AND IN
TNO -« OAN JOSE AND SAN ANTONIC - THEY ARE REPREOXNTED OVER THEIR
INCIDENCE IN THE CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE.

CITY  CIV WE/FCE % OF REP
New York City 6.3% 10.5% 60%
¢hicago - 3.8 5.5% 69%
Los Angeles 13.5% 18.8% 72% .
Houaton 9.7% 8.6% 78%
san Antonio 47.0% 28.2% 1663
San Jose 15.8% 8.0% 1573
5
9 ‘f" L
d ol I._}
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REFRESERTATION OF HISPANIC FEMALES

cITY CIV WK/FCE
Los Angeles 4.0% 11.7%
chicago 1.2% ' 2.9%
Haw York City 3.7% 7.9%
Houston 3.3% 5.8%
San Anton i-;.a 13.7% 19.0%
San Josa 4.5% 5.2%
(Above based onh data found in Exhibit I)
WHILE THE NUUMBER OF WOMEN IS WELL PELOW THEIR REFRESENTATION IN THE
iy o 2000 Toscs Of CIB oy crIve Sy sapemime

WORK yoRCE IN THE TNO LOWEBGST PAID JO9 CATEGORIBA: OFFICE/CLERIGAL
AND PARA-PROFESSICHAL.

Naw York City

Datroit
Philadelphia

. San Jose 3532

Los Angeles ' 354%
San Antenio 363%
Houston 364%
Chicago 402%
Meaphis 405%

OF A TOTAL OF 44070 OFPICR/CLERICAL POSITIONS IN TEE NINE CITIES,
3020 (6.9%) ARE HELD BY MALES, %028 (20.5%) ARE HELD PY WHITE
FEMALBS, 21337 (48.4%) ARE HELD BY DLACK PEMALES, AND 4929 (10.5%)
ARE HEID EY HISPANIC FEMALES.
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WONEYN ARE OVER-REPRESENTED IN DPARA-PROFPESSIONAL FPOSITIONS WHEN
CONPARED TO TH® REFPRESENTATION OP WOMEN IN THE CITY WORE FORCES.

New York City 50.7% 32.2% 157%
San Jose 50.0% 26.7% 187%
Manmphis 42.4% 20.6% 206%
Philadaelphia 56.1% 27.0% =08%
Los Angeles 49.0% 23.5% 208%
betroit 71.8% 28.9% 248%
San Antonio 57.8% 22.4% P11
chicago ' 64.5% 21.0% 307%
Houston " 78,0t 24.9% 313%

oF A TOTAL OF 854% PARA-PROFESSIONAL POSITIONS IN THE NINE CITIES,
1069 (12.5%) ARE EELD BY WHITE FEMALES, %304 (32.8%) ARE HELD BY
BLACK FPEMALER, ANMD 631, (7.6%) ARE HELD BY HISFANIC FEMALES.

WITH FPEW mma THE REPRESENTATION OF WHITE, BLACK -AND
HISPANIC WOMEN IN OFFICE/CLERICAL AND PARA-PROFESSIONAL Johs IS
WELL ABOVE THE REPREIENTATION OF BACH GROUP IN THE CITY WORE FORCE.

&t oF WOMEN IN OFFYCE/CLERICAL POSITIONS AS
COMPARED TC REP IN CITY WORK FORCE

WHITE BLACK HISPANIC
GITIY O/CL CITY Q/CL CITY 9/CL

Chicago 7.6 26.5 11.7 51.3 1.2 5.7

Datroit 5.5 11.0 22.8 71,0 .2 .6

Houston 8.3 22.4 12.5 52.0 3.3 14.2

Los Angeles 8.5 23.3 7.6 29.4 4.0 17.5

Memphis 9.9 43.6 10,7 39.9 =-0= -0=

) New York City 9.1 15.6 18.9 53.5 3.7 10.2 .
PhiladelPhia 11.2 34.8 15.2 46.3 4 1.0
San Antenie 5.7 11.3 2.9 9.0 13.7 61.0

San Jose 17.5 58.3 1.4 5.7 4.5 18.6




¥ 0P WOMEN IN PARA-FROFESSIONAL POSITIONS
AS COMPARED TO REP IN CITY WORK FORCE

WHITE BLACK HISPANIC
£ITY p/p CITYX p/P CITY 2/P

chicago 7.6 16.9 11.7 43.2 1.2 3.6
Detroit 5.5 14.8 22.8 55.0 .2 1.7
Houston 8.3 6.0 12.5 50.0 3.3 16.0
Los Angeles 8.5 18.9 7.6 14.1 4.0 8.0
Memphis 9.9 20.1 10.7 22.3 =-0=  =0=
New York City 9.1 11.2 18.9 31.2 3.7 7.6
Philadelphia 11.2 10.7 15.2 44.7 4 .3
San Antonio 5.7 10.8 2.9 11.4 13.7 35.3
san Josa 17.5 '23.3 1.4 6.7 4.5 10.0
THE THIRD LOWEST PAID JOB CATEGORY IN THE MNATION'S CITIES IS

SERVICE/MAINTENANCE, A JOB CATEGORY THAT IS DISPROPORTIOMATELY MALE
AND, IN PARTICULAR, MINORITY MALE.

MALE MALE .

% SV/MNT % IN CITY

IN CITY WK/FCE
Houston 84.9% 75.1%
Memphis 92.0% 79.4%
San Antonio 90.3% 77.6%
Los Angeles 91.9% 76.5%
Chicago 95.8% 79.0%
san Jose 88.43% 73.3%
Detroit gg,0% 71.1%
rPhiladelphia 90.3% 73.0%

Hew York city 95,.0% 67.8%

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC
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PERCENT OF MALES pY RACE IN SERVICE/MAINTENANCE POSITIONS
AS COMPARED TO THEIR REFRESENTATION IN ERCE CITY WORK FORCE

WHITE BLACK HISPANIC
CITE 3/M CITY S/M CITY S/M

Chicago 55.2 55.8 19.3 34.8 3.8 s.0
Detroit 28.4 12.2 41.3 74.8 6 .8
Bouston 42,9 9.2 20.1 54.0 9.7 16.9
Los Angeles 41.0 22.4 15.8 42.6 13.5 24.1
Mamphis 44.8 12.2 34.6 79.6 .00 .
New York City 46.1 60.5 14.2 24.2 6.3 9.9
Philadelphia 43.7 15.5 27.6 72.2 1.3 2.2
San Antonic 24.4 4.9 5.9 8.2 47.0 77.0
San Jose 49.1 37.1 2.5 3.3 15.8 43.1
NINORITY MALES TEND TO DBE CLUSTERED IN gERVICE/MAINTENANCE

POAITIONS WITHIN THE CITY WORK PORCES 1IN PERCENTAGES GREATER THAN
WHITE MALES.

PERCENTAGE OF ALL OF THE MALES OP BACH RACE WITHIN CITY WORK PORCE

THAT ARE FOUND IN SERVICE/MAINTENANCE POSITIONS.
‘ WHITE BLACK HISPANIC
Chicago 17.8% 31.8% 23.0%
Detroit © 1D.5% 43.7% 22.0%
Houston 2.9% 37.2% 24.1%
Los Angelas 7.8% 38.6% 25.5%
Memphis 7.8% 62.8% -0~
New York City 16.3% 21.2% 19.4%
Philadeiphia 5.9% 43.8% 28.9%
San Antonio 3.4% 23.5% 27.4%
OF A TOTAL OF 45523 SERVICE/MAINTENANCE POSITIONS IN THE NINE

CITIBB, 17,308 (38%) ARE HELD BY WHITE MALE3, 19,072 (41.9%) ARE
HEELD py BLACK MALEZ AND 5292 (11.6%) ARE HELD BY EISPANIC MALES.

ERIC
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EXHIBITS attached inclunde:
Exhibit T = Represantation pf all groups in nine cities.

Exhibit IT - Represantation of groups in 0ffice/Clerical
jobs.

- Reprasantation of groups in Paraz-Profes-

Exhibiv IIT
sional jobs.

Exhibit IV - Representaticn of 9roups in Service/Mainten-
ance Jabs.

Exhikit Vv -~ Representation of Blacks in nine citias.
Exhibit VI - Represantation of Hispanics in nine cities.
Exhibit ¥IX - Representation of females in nine cities.

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC




CONCLURIONG

WITHIN S3TATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, TWO OF TEE LOW2aT PAID J0B
CATEGORIES ARS OFFICER/CLERICAL AND PARA-PROYESSIONAL POSITIONS.
POSITIONS THAT FALL WITHIF THIS CATEGORY- ARE HELD BY WOMEN. WHERE
THERE ARE SUBZTANTIAL NUMBERS OoF MINORITY WOMEN WITHIN THE CIVILIAN
WORK FORCHE, THEN THE OFFICE/CLERICAL POSITIONS ARE DOMINATED BY
NINCRITY WOMEM.

SBRVICH/MAINTEHANCE FOSITIONS ARE A STRONGHOLD OF MINCRITY MALES
WITHIN STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT WORE FORCES. IN CITIES IN
PARTICULAR, MIWORITY MEN FPREDONINATE WITHIN THIS - JOB CATEGORY,
WHICH I3 THE THIRD LOWEST PAID CATRGORY. .

OUR AMNALYSIE OF NINE MAJOR U. 8. CITIES SHONS THAT WEILE WHITE

NALBS ARE MATNTAINING THEIR REPRESENTATION WITHIN THESE WORK FORCES

AND WHILE MINORITY MALES AND MINORITY FEMALES ARE INCREASING THEIR

gmsmuon, WHITE PEMALES APPEAR TO BE DECREASING IN REPRESEN-
TION.

IText Provided by enic [N




Chart 1

REP OF RACE,’SEX IN EEOC SAWMPLE
1973

White Males (55.0%)

Aslon Hales (0.3%)
Hisponle Moles (2.3%)




Chart 2

REP OF RACE/SEX IN EEOC SANPLE

White Males (4‘5*9”)

Asign Femoles (0.7%)

|
Hispunic Fems (2.0%) 225 :

Black Females (8.7%)

Aslon Males (0.8!?
Hispanic Males {3,27%)

Black Lales (89%)
13
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Chart 6

CRICAGD
Males and Fembles kv CTty Workforce

CHICAGOD
Uales and Femoales In Chillan Workforce:

Fomalea {45,1X)
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Chart 8

HOUSTON
Malwe ond Fenclew in City Weddorce

Males (75.1%)

HOUSTON
licise i Females In Chillon Workfores
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Chart 9

LOS ANGELES

Males cnd Femcles In Clty Worktores
LOS ANGELES

Maies and Females In Civifian Workforre

Fenoles {23.5%)
Frmaes (433%)

Q

A ruimext providsa by R

EE




340

Chart 10

MEMPHIS
Vsien cnd Fi Lo Iy Clty Worid,

o5
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Chart 11

NEW YORK CITY
Licies and Femcies [n Gty Workf

NEW YORK.CITY
Mohes and Females In Clvilan Woridores
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Chart 12

PHILADELPHIA
Males and Females In Clty Workforce

Femoloa {27.0%)

PHILADELPHIA
Nales and Females Tn Chillan Workdorce

Famoles {46.0%)
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Fernales (26.77%)
Males .ond Femalee 1a Chvillan Workforcs
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Chart 17

HOUSTON
Bocks and Others In City Workdarce

HOUSTON
Bocke and Otham in Civiiton Workforce
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Chart 18
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| chart 19

MEMPHIS
Botia and Others by CRty Warkitree

MEMPH!S
Hocka and Othere In Chvlon Woridorce
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NEW YORK CITY

ol cd Othvers In Chvillon Waorkforce
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NEW YORK CITY
Hacks and Cthvers in Clty Warldorce
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Chart 21

PHILADELPHIA
ERackn ond Otwem In Clty Werldoren

PHILADE! PHIA
Hlocian ond Others in Chvilon Roriforge
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ATTACHMENT “B®

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ANTI-DISPLACEMENT PROVISIONS
Submitted by the

American Federation of State, County
and Municipal Employees

A. Maintenance of Effort Relating to Programs

1) States must certify that activities do not dupl;cate and
are in addition to activities otherw;se available in the local
arex.

2) To avoid contractlng out services to non-profit groups:
Non-profits can conduct activities which are the same or similar
to those performed by state of local governménts ig the same area
only ag long as the state or local governmepnt maintains its
effort as measured by the criteria established in the anti-
displacement rules. (See below)

B. Anti-Displacement Rules, Relating to Individual Assignments

1) Enrollees shall not displace any currently employed worker
or pogition.

2) Enrcllees shall not be placed in a position which is the
same or gubstantially equivalent to a position from which someone
else is on layeff.

3) If there is a reduction-in~force through attrition, the
employer cannot assign enrollees to do work previously performed
by ragular employees.

4} Promotional rights of regular employees must be protected.

5) Enrcllees cannot be assigned to any department. agency or
organization if the number of unsubsidized employees performing
substantially equivalent work has dropped below the level that
pravailed in the calendar quarter preceding enactment of the act.

£) Enrollees cannot be assigned to any position if the rate of
increase in the number of regular employees who perform
substantially equivalent work or who are in the same government
agency or dePariment has been leas than that for all such regular
enployees and agencies and department in the 24 month pericd
preceding the calendar quarter in which the application is
submitted.
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2
7) Grant recipients must maintain employment data necessary
to determine compliance with the anti-displacement rules.
8) There should be an expedited complaint procedure to
resolve allegations of displacement by interested parties,
including labor organizaticns.

€. Labor Onion Participation

1) ¥Ho assignment or project shall impair existing contracts
for services or collective bargaining agreements.

2) oOnions should be given advance notice of 90 days and their
concurrepce required when assignments are made in work which ia
aimilar to bargaining unit work. .

3) There should be labor union membership on local committees
which develop local service projects and local unions should be
encouraged to help supervise. them.
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Chairman Hawxins. Thank you, Mr. McEntee. Apparently, you
seem to favor school-based programs as being the least threat to job
security as well as the most effective from a cost point of view.
Could you elaborate on that? Would it be possible, for example, to
correct the Nunn-McCurdy Bill so that it might fit into that par-
tic..lar category?

Mr. McENTEE. I guess we are somewhat concerned in the McCur-
dy program as well with the huge stipends, the huge budget alloca-
tions, the huge stipends that are involved in that particular pro-
gram and are much more interested in a more limited type pro-

m.
gr%‘he larger stipends, the more possible the displacement of work-
ers. We see some of the programs where the young people would go
to work and be paid wages that are comparable to our people work-
ing on essentizally the same kind of work, or in essentially the same
kind of work place.

That, we think, would present a very gerious problem to ocur
people out in the field.

Chairman HawkiNs. Even if you had a anti-displacement provi-
sion, do you think——

Mr. McEnTEE. Well, you know, Mr. Chairman, in the beginning
and we have heard this before, and have heen through so many
programs like this before in terms of anti-displacement provisions
and everybody in the beginning is very well meaning.

They look at anti-displacement that if somebody is laid off in a
particular area, well, we are not going to bring in somebody and
paid them a stipend to do that job or put them into voluntary type
programs.

We lived with this somewhat through the CETA program where
we had some isolated problems, but also did some very good things,
but we had people in the beginning—CETA was supposed to be a
limited program to give people employment training.

We ended up having people on CETA for five and six and seven
years. We remember and are constantly reminded of welfare
reform and workfare and everybody of a meaningful mind to see
the fact that they won't replace people presently on the job. They
won’t do the work of low-level, entry-level type public sector work-
ers and what we saw happen was that maybe nobody was auto-
matically, or directly replaced, but we saw pecple leave the job.

They resigned or they retired. They were attrited out in some
way. That job wag never filled by an entry-level type public sector
worker and what we found out were those jobs were filled by
people on welfzre and in CETA, a similar type experience, so we
try out for serions and responsible displacement language, pbut it
also doesn’t overcome some of these other problems.

Chairman Hawrins. Mr. Snanker, you correctly pointed to the
need to address teacher training. Have you any specific model or
suggestion as to how we may best approach that particular prob-
leril?, especially in terms of involving private industry and individ-
ual’

Mr. SHANKER. I think that there are several connections that can
be made here. I' think first is to look for areas of shortage like
math and scierce where we know that there is no short-term way
of increasing the supply. This country has just not produced

375




366

enough math and science people to satisfy ithe needs of industry
and the schools and the military.

So, even if you raise salaries ir the schools, private industry
raises them a little bit more because they are not about to go out of
business on this. I think that programs which would encourage pri-
vate businesses or individuals on some sort of a shared basis—now,
one way of doing this would be to provide some program which
would take college students who do not intend to be teachers, but
who just graduated, and to provide something which, perhaps,
would reduce their obligation on their loans.

If for a period of years before going into some other field, a field
that they intend to go to, they would provide this service. I think
you can take people who are already working, decide that they
would like to start working tomorrow for business, but it may be
possible to use them on some regular part-time basis in schools.

They might be able to come in a certain number of—three after-
noons a week. Business has some interest in this in the long run
too because if they take all of the math and science people and not
planting any gseeds for the future, it is in their self interest to not
only allow and encourage employees to do this, but to provide some
recognition within their own frame of advancement.

I think that there are other areas here and that has to do with
mentorship programs. I think this is especially valuable with mi-
nority students in high schools. Many of them feel that they can't
make it and to have minority students who have made it, and who
perhaps overcame some of the same doubts and difficulties, but
somebody who is now in college or somebody who has graduated
and is now in some occupation or profession, to provide some kind
of way in which they can have a relationship with one or two or
three or four youngsters in high school to say that these are the
problems we face and I did; you can do it.

I think that kind of an approach is extremely—we don’t cali that
teaching, but it is teaching ali right. I think that is a second very
important thing. I think a third one which would clearly not result
in displacement and which school districts are not likely to do on
their own is to provide extensive tutorial work for youngsters in el-
ementary and secon:dary grades, tutorial work and homework help
work and this could be students who are enrolled in college.

It could he students in high school helping younger student- - v it
could be some who have already gone out into the work place.
Now, this actually supplements the activities of teachers, but it
makes it possible for the school vo be more successful by providing
some of the kinds of help to youngsters whose families have the
wherewithal go out and hire tutors; they find ways of providing the
special help to their kids and this is the way of providing those
SﬁWiceS to youngsters whose parents couldn’t afford to provide
them.

Chairman Hawgins. Thank you. Let me check with our members
here. We have a little different vo¢2 this time. Understand, -we are
dividing up the work here. Two of the members have questions.
They will take charge of the Committee. The others will vote and
then come back in time for those remaining to vote so as to contin-
ue-on.
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Again, we apologize, but T think that is best. Mr. Petri, I think,
wanted to ask a question and Mr. Martinez will take the chair.

Mr. Perri. I will be very brief. We want to give Mr. Martinez a
chance to ask his guestion and I think that we have ahbout five
minutes total before we will have to go as well, but I would like to
begin by thanking both of you, Mr. Shanker and Mr. McEntee, for
your concern and your testimony and for the leadership that you
are generally providing in education and in community service.

I always enjoy meeting with your members in my & .trict; and
responding to their questions. I do have one question, I guess to
you in particular Mr. Shanker and that is, this idea of voluntary
service or community service is one that is widely promoted felt
not only through religious groups, but through all sorts of other or-
ganizations—boy scouts, you name it, big brothers and big sisters
and the like, and the teachers are very active in many of those or-
ganizations as volunteers themselves.

In my district in Manitowoc, for example, the school hoard has
decided that in order to get a high school diploma, as part of their
training, students are required to devote a certain number of hours
to community service. ]

That is not prescribed and they are not paid for it. It is up to
them to go cut and find it and I think teachers and other organiza-
tions in the community help identify opportunities for service that
kids can plug into.

There is always sort of a rush before graduation because some of
them have neglected it. I guess my question is, how widespread do
you think that is? Have you heard about this in other areas? Do
you think this is something that teacher organizations, PTAs and
other educational organizations might experiment with on a volun-
tary basis in different situations and types of schools across the
country before we get into any sort of national Federal Govern-
ment legislation?

Could you just comment or: letting people do it at a local level on
4 required but on a voluntary non-paid basis?

Mr. Suanker. I think those programs are very good. There are
some of them. They are not as widespread as they should be. I
would say that you can find them in lots of places, but certainly
not the majority or they are probably under five percent of the
kids ul: this country involved in programs like that, probably even
smaller.

I don’t gee that it is one or the other. I think one of the things
that ought to be part of public service provisicn is to create some
kind of networking and recognition for. I think in many of those
programs just the fact that they are recognized will bring other
volunteers and I personally have some problem with the notion of
compulsory voluntary se-vice or reqguired voluntary service.

I am not against required or compulsory service when it is abso-
lutely needed, but I think we can create encugh of an atmosphere
so that happens. That is quite different from trying to target cer-
tain special needs and schools, especial’y since we are talking
about school-based programs here in which we are trying to bring
in college youngsters or people who are already in the job market;
that is adults who volunteer for that kind of work.
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Much of that could be done on a voluntary basis, but many of
those people—if we want to make sure that we take care of some of
these needs, I think some of the incentive programs that are being
talked about here are worthwhile.

I would be in favor of very widespread recognition and network-
ing of all of these high school student programs, would encourage
that. On top of that, I would stiil have some incentive programs
which would encourage people to do things that are needed in
schools, but which are not being done and are very unlikely to be
done by paid professionals.

Mr. MarTNEZ. Thank you, Mr. Petri. I have a few questions, but
I would like to make a couple of statements first. I come from local

overnment and I come from local government at a time when
-Prop 18 was passing California and we right away saw a shut-off of
the monies from the state that we used to depend on to provide a
lot of the service at the local level.

Then and now in Federal Government, I realize the huge budget
deficit has caused us to cut back funds that are coming from the
Federal Government. I really don’t see in the foreseeable future a
return of any of these monies through these localities. And yet,
these localities are stuck with problems that they have with their
infrastructures, even sometimes with just simple jobs like cleaning
up a playground area,

Where I am, I might be a little paranoid about the issue of dis-
placement of lifetime workers. I realize that I have a responsibility
beyond pavasuocia and not be so concerned about displacement of
workers as long as we take care and make sure that there are
measures in the youth service law that do not allow displacement
to occur.

In this regard, J would like to address the question to Mr. McEn-
tee. I think we have worked, and I guess you know, very closely
with Mr. Loveless on H.R. 717 to make sure that there are provi-
sions in the bill addressing non-duplication and non-displacement.

In Section 409 of H.R. 717, it says, “funds provided pursuant to
this Act shall be used only for activities which do not duplicate and
which are in addition to, those programs that are in addition to the
programs and activities which are otherwise availalne in the local
area. States still certify that the proposed projects do not duplicate
ongoing programs.”

That brings me to the point. A lot of work, work that would be
done by these volunteer young people would be work that isn’t on-
going. There is a difference between work that government hires
their regular personnel to conduct that are ongoing, maintepance
programs and safety programs and every thing else, that are ongo-
ing, but there is other work, definite other work that can be identi-
fied as not ongoing that the regular personnel doesn’t even have
time to do.

We make sure in the bill that if that kind of work is done, it is
done under the supervision of one of those full-time people. But the
question I would like to ask is, there are 55 plus youth service corp
programs now operating in the United States.

Have you ever had a comp’aint from many of them about job dis-
placement?
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Mr. McEntTEE. Yes, we have had some and particularly from our
people in Minnesota. We are even inclined, Fmean as a national
union to sort of embrace this concept of conservation corp, but our
people in Minnesota with the relationships that they have had in
this particular area are deadly oppose te it, so we have had some
problems and we thank you, as you stated, that Chuck Loveless is
working with you and your staff in terms of some of this language.

We don’t have problems with areas where you want to put young
folks where that area of so-called work is not being performed now
.and there are a lot of them. We would rather see young folks come
in and read to patients, seniors, rather than cleaning bed pans or
sweeping floors in a particular hospital or institution.

We would rather see them in the children’s ward decorating it
and making it a better place to be, organizing sports activities for
iroung people, buddy systems for “at-risk” teenagers. There are a
ot of things out there that are not being done, not being performed
by ﬁublic sector workers and we essentially don’t have any problem
with those areas.

It is my understanding that the language in your bill also talks
about where you would have specific projects that if, in fact, it was
a union representing those folks that the union would be involved
in the discussions and the sign off in terms of the specific projects.
That is extremely helpful. That is very helpful to us, so where this
can be demonsirated, we don’t have any problems.

Mr. Marmingz. In the areas where you have had complaints,
where there any procedure for grievance by the unions or any pro-
cedure to——

Mr. McEntEE. No, not in the areas where we have had com-
plaints, not particularly in the state of Minnesota, and that is why
we have also had discussions of having a grievance procedure, a
mechanism to deal with the possible problems in these areas.

Mr., MARTINEZ. And you are aware that in the bill, 717, there are
those %/Irocedures for grievance?

Mr. McENTEE. Yes.

Mr. MarRTINEZ. You know, in the centers that I have visited snd I
have visited a few now, the local unions, the locals, are involved in
those programs and they are very supportive. I have asked them
specifically about that and they are very supportive. So the union
can be a big part of the youth service movemer: to take the re-
sponsible action to make sure that a lot of these youth have that
second chance in life if they work for a youth corps program like
this, that they wouldn’t otherwise have.

Let me ask in the area of education, which is one of the big con-
cerns that I have. I showed the news article of 39 percent dropout
statewide in California and over 50 percent dropouts in my district.
In these youth corps programs that we envision in H.R. 717, there
would be education enhancement and career counseling so that
even after obtaining a high school diploma, if they are part of this
program, that they at least get that remedial skill that they need
to go on to some other employment, a more beneficial employment,

0 you see any problem with having youag people who have al-
ready dropped out of high school, and are now in one of these pro-
grams time, getting an education that would give them the
equivalent of a high school diploma and using in some cases teach-
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ers that are regular teachers in another school, if they volunteer
their time for that instruction?

Mr. McEnTEE. That is a very good question and 1 was all set to
answer it or give a shot at it until you hit the last couple of sen-
tences, but I think that should—I would like to defer to my brother
from the American Federation of Teachers.

Mr. MaARTINEZ. Mr. Shanker?

Mr. SHANKER. | don’t have any problem with a voluntary pro-
gram of that pature. I think you do—again, we have had teachers
mn programs that deal with literacy, voluntary programs after
school deal with that. We have a lot of them involved in great
books, discussion groups, all kinds of voluntary activities of that
sort.

I think you may just be rubbing against a displacement issue
there on some of these programs that are there for high school
equivalency programs as to whether these would be a displacement
of those. I would have to take a little closer look.

I share your concern with the dropout issue and might say that
it might even be worse on the fif'ures thatﬁyou suggest. There are
quite a few places that measure dropouts. How one measures them

is rather interesting and lots of places—well, take a school, let's
say, that takes in 1,000 kids and only 35 of them three years later
end up getting a diploma, but most of the rest of them waited—
they didn’t leave the school till they were 18.

’lél,mse who don’t leave before thev are 18 are often not counted
as dropouts, even if they have no diploma and haven’t passed any
subjects, or very few subjects, so you might—I think the dropout

may—while the figures are alarming-—may give us an over opti-
mistic picture and that instead of dealing with dropouts, we ask
ourselves the question, what percentage of the entering kids end up
getting diplomas, it may actually be much worse.

You may end up not with 34 percent dropouts, but you mcy end
up with 10 percent earning diplomas which is a huge, huge prob
lem and in spite of all the attention that has been paid to it, I don’t
think that most of the American people know how serious it is.

Mr. MarTingz. I agree with you, Mr. Shanker, and another
aspect to it that nobody really measures is the number of kids that
do Sget high school diplomas that are functionally illiterate. The
U.S. Army spent millions and millions of dollars bringing recruits
for high school graduates up to a ninth grade reading level just in
order that they might receive training. S¢ I think the seriousness
of the problem goes deeper than the study revealed.

Thank you. I have to rush off to vote and I will turn the chair
back to the chairman.

Mr. 83anker. Mr. Chairman, I have to—I am going overseas and
if I don’t go in a few minutes, I won’t go.

Chairman Hawrins. With the permission of the other members,
I su t that we allow Mr. Shanker to go, not that we are trying
to ﬁe rid of you, Mr. Shanker, but——

i:l. SHANKER. I have asked for permission. I thank you very
much.

Chairman Hawkins. I think you can gracefully retreat at this
time.

Mr. SHANKER. Thank you.

Loy oy
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Chairman HAwkins. Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smrra. Actually, I was going to have a question for my old
friend who is headed for Europe. I would just as soon as go to
Europe, but I think I will do something that is maybe a little
unfair, but ask the other two gentlemen to comment on the same
subject and it is sort of inside the educational issue, but I think it
touches on your lives and your job here today.

Mr. Shanker in his testimony touched on twe, I think, fundamen-
tal important areas where community service can have mere worth
than simply the fact that it gets done and somebody is served as a
result. First is the issue of integrating community service with the
academnic program in high school or in a junior high school so that
young people are told in the coin of the realm that serving people
i5 educational, that it is important and that it links with the things
that they de in school, in other words, giving credit for it.

The other is the idea that we would have community service pro-
grams that would bring in some organized way ouiside resources
into the school to supp%ement the teaching capacity, the resources
that are already in the school. I was wondering if we could hear
just your reaction, your responses to those two ideas and any con-
cerns of ideas that you might have about how we might proceed.

Mr. McEnNTEE. I think in our statement, we do direct attention to
that and we are very much in favor of it and support in all the
bills the school-based programs that do those things and go beyond
it, so I think even taking this opportunity to speak for Shanker as
well, I think that we would embrace those.

Incidentally, he is going to Australia, not Europe, so you might
want to reconsider going with him.

Mr. Smrte. I haven’t never been either place, sir. I would be
hal{sﬁy to flip a coin.

. McCENTEE. Australia is a long way away.

Chairman Hawkms. Mr. Owens.

Mr. OweNs. I have no questions.

Chairman Hawkmns. Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Haves. Mr. Chairman, I got here late. I just want to ask Mr.
McEntee if he could elaborate on a statement on his first page,
third paragraph. It says, “For almost a decade now, the value of
public service has been denigrated by many political figures at all
levels of government.

“Morale among government employees all across the country has
plunged in the face of a vicious cycle of both program cutbacks
which produce unmanageable workloads and anti-government rhet-
:iric W ich condemns public programsz and employees as ineffec-

ve.

Can you elaborate on that just a little in specific terms?

Mr. McENTEE. Well, in specific terms, yes, we have lost at the
level of state and local government. Fremendous amounts of re-
sources that used to come through the Federal Government as
more of a partnership. Remember both major pieces of the revenue
sharing situation went to—lost at state and then lost at the local
government level.

When you go over the other Federal Government allocations at
state and 1 government, not just revenue sharing programs, but
all kinds of other programs, I don’t think there is anybody, any
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question in anybody’s mind now in Washington, D.C., that the do-
mestic side of the budget has been cut and the defense side of the
budget dramatically increased in terms of dollars and resources.

So, we can provide {ou with a whole lot of specifics in terms of
loss of resources in dollars, but we think it goes way beyond that.
We think it goes way beyond that to a psychology that has been
stirred up, brought about in this country since really the ear'lg'
1980s, and maybe even before—maybe even under the Carter Ad-
ministration, but nurtured very well by the Reagan Administra-
tion.

Government is bad, public sector work is bad, public employees
at whatever level whether that be a mayor or members of Con-
gress, the Senate, or a hospital aide or a sanitation worker, if you
work for the government, there is something wrong with that,
there is something bad about it.

I have never seen—and all you have to do is ask so many Federal
Government workers that you see around this town, and our own
people out in the field as well, I have never seen the morale so low.
Public service at one point in this country was civil service, a good
and decent profession.

It was good to be a fireman. It was good to be a cop. It was good
to be a trashman, all those kinds of things, people who live in the
neighborhood and the communrity, just like everybody else. That
has all been torn down. At least our folks don’t feel that way any-
more.

They don’t feel good about themselves and much of that has been
nurtured by politicians. Reagan was very successful in that particu-
lar area and because of his success, that was amplified and used by
governors in campaigns and mayors and everybody else.

You saw the report of Mr. Volcker, the former chair of the Fed-
eral Reserve Board, in terms of Federal Government and problems
and what it is all about. You see top technicians; you see the lead-
ership of NASA leaving, you know, which in so many ways repre-
sents in a single photo the future of the United States and all of
these situations and all of these feelings of lack of self-esteem and
self-worth and respect come out of political campaigns.

We think that it has to be changed and we think that a national
volunteer program like this, at least accepts and begins to raise the
level in this country that government isn't so bad and public sector
work isn’t so bad. .

Mr. Haves. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I see the red
light is on; I respect it.

- Chatrman Hawxkins. Mr. Gunderson?

Mr. GunpersoN. No questions.

Chairman Hawkins. That concludes the questioning. That you,
again, Mr. McEntee. We appreciate your appearing before the com-
mittee and we also thank you, Mr. Loveless, for appearing also.

Mr. McENTEE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and thank the mem-
bers of the Commitiee.

Chairman HawkiNs. The next panel will consist of Mr. John
Briscoe, Director of PennSERVE and Ms. Laura Lee Geraghty, Di-
_ rector of Minnesota Office on Volunteer Services.

Will those witnesses please be seated. Mr. Briscoe, we will hear
from you first.
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STATEMENTS OF JOHN BRISCOE, DIRECTOR, PENN-SERVE: AND
LAURA LEE GERAGHTY, DIRECTOR, MINNESOTA OFFICE ON
VOLUNTEER SERVICES -

Mr. BriscoE. Chairman Hawkins, ladies and gentlemen, and dis-
tinguished members, I want to thank you for this opportunity fo
share with you some of our experience in Pennsylvania with youth
and community service.

Chairman Hawgkins. Mr. Briscoe, may I indicate to you that the
ranking member of the Committee on my right side here, Mr.
Goodling, had hoped to be here, but because of some hospitalization
could not.

He asked me to convey to you his regrets and also he gave you
all the clearances I think you need for anyone appearing before the
Committee and we are delighted on his behalf to welcome you to
the hearing this morning.

Mr. Briscog. Thank you very much. We are pleased to be so well
represented on this Committee as having a distinguished member
from Pennsylvania.

Chairman Hawkins. You can verify that.

Mr. BriscoE. My name is John Briscoe and I direct PennSERVE
which is the Governor’s Office of Citizen Service. PennSERVE was
launched by Governor Robert Casey in November, 1988, to “ask
and enable all Penusylvanians to engage in community service.”

Youth community service is a topic that is in much rhetorical
favor these days. Last week, President Bush called on all Ameri-
cans and all institutions to make service central to your life and
work. A host of studies and reports on America’s youth and educa-
tional programs have urged that community service become an ex-
pectant part of growing up in America.

From Ernest Boyer's “High School” to the W.T. Grant Founda-
tion’s “Forgotten Half,”’ most recently the Children’s Defense Fund
has come out with a study of service and just this last week, the
Carnegie Council issued a report called “Turning Points on Middle
Schools” with a strong urging that community service be part of
education.

Public/Private Venure which is a research and demonstration
organization with years of experience in evaluating and designing
prograrms for at-risk youth, recently described youth corps “as close
to the state-of-the-art of model as now exists in youth program-
ming.”

Here in Congress, I am told, there are some 22 bills in one form
or another. Mr. Chairman, we are looking to you and your col-
leagues to craft a bill that backs up pronouncement with program.
It is time to move from talking about youth service to providing
the concrete national leadership that will make it happen. It is the
time for social invention and clearer public policy.

What advice can we bring you based on our experience in Penn-
sylvania? Let me suggest a couple of ctories that may give you
some ideas why we believe this is so important. In Pittsburgh last
June, a 100 failin%seventh graders, 25 each in four schools were
invited to join the OASES program.

These students were at the very bottora of their class; they were
mostly minority. During the past year, they went half-time to regu-
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lar school and halftime to an intensive community service pro-
gram. They rebuilt a YMCA; refurbished classrooms; built play-
grounds and a mock trail room. In June of 1989, this month, 18 of
them were on the honor roll.

At Chestnut Ridge High School in rural Bedford County, an in-
novative principal challenged the Honor Society to take on a truly
important community service project some three years ago. Today
the Bedford Country Literacy Council is operated by the students
of the Chestnut Ridge High School.

Educational quality assessment scores at the school have gone up
44 percent during those three years.

t Wissahickon High School, a suburban high school near Phila-
delphia at which some 65 percent of the students go on to higher
education, 95 percent of the 55 students enrolled in social 1ab go on
to college. These students spend 300 hours in community service
during their senior year.

Over the last five years, the state of Pennsylvania has invested
some 50 million dollars to hire 8,000 young people to serve, earn,
and learn in the Pennsylvania Conservation Corps.

For every dollar we invest, we get back a §.31 in completed
projects. All of these youngsters were unemployed when they en-
tered the program; 52 percent of them were high school dropouts;
40 percent were on some form of public assistance.

One month after they completed the program, 72 percent of
them were either fully employed, back in school, or in the military.
I suggest there is a lot of interest in youth community service be-
cause yonth community service works.

Martin Luther King told us: “Everyone can be great because ev-
eryone can serve.” We know you can be great if you do it; what if
you don’t?

Well, a 10-year study by the Survey Research Center at the Uni-
versity of Michigan came to the following conclusion: “Men who do
no volunteer work were two and a half times as likely to die during
the course of the study as men who volunteered at least once a
week.”

Since Senator Kennedy has already seized the rhetorical high
?round with his “Serve America” Bill, and the President has his

,000 points of light, I offer for your consideration “Volunteer or
Die” as the title of your forthcoming bill.

Seriously, those of us involved in youth service believe that com-
munity service has a message for those interested in restructuring
our schools and strengthening the institutions that serve youth.

We believe that youth service can transforim societies’ perception
of youth. Youth can be part of the solution, not part of the prob-
lem. Youth, even those commonly viewed as losers, can become
winners.

My friend, Jim Kielsmeier from Minnesota, calls community
service the Trojan Horse of school restructuring. Community serv-
ice brings with it active learning, teachers as leaders and coaches,
not founts of information, the teaching of higher learning skills
and teamwork and above all, learning that it engages youngsters in
the process.

It treats young people as workers and responsible citizens. What
do we conclude from this experience to help guide your legislation?
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‘Pirst, that legislation should build on existing a.nd growing net-
work of youth commumty service programs.

We don't have to invent the wheel of youth semce, but we have
to make sure that there are spokes for every kind of youth. The
element that distinguishes current youth community service move-
ment from its predecessors is its ability to make servers out of
those who were pre\nously clients.

Poor, minority, “at-risk” youth have in them the wherewithal to
provide important community services and to reap the benefits and
personal selffworth of community approval that go with it, but
such programs are not free; they demand strong leadership and
tight organization.

The youth serving in them are probably going to have to be paid
or stipended. If community service is fgomg to complete with Mac-
Donald’s, with serving as the lookout for a crack dealer, it is gomg
to have to offer some form of compensation which leads to my
second recommendation.

Let us use the principles of community service to revitalize exist-
ing programs and tap their resources. The $600 million that we
spend on summer youth employment and training programs can,
we believe, in Pennsylvania be better spent on summer youth corps
and 400 of our 25,000 summer youth in Pennsylvania this summer
are in corps programs.

Already Chapter II of the Omnibus Education Act has a provi-
sion for “‘projects in community service” introduced, I understand,
lé):)ogtllr distinguished member from Pennsylvania, Congressman

Ing.

The SSIG program and Work Study were originally intended to
promote community service; the community service provisions
could well be strengthened.

The third community service reaches across traditional organiza-
tional structures and departments. Its promulgation demands lead-
ership, flexibility, and public/private partnerships, and I urge you
to consider and create a national founggtion, perhaps on the model
of the Smithsonian or the President’s YES to American Foundation
to administer this initiative,

Fourth, community service demands strong community organiza-
tions to act as partners. Funds should be included to assure train-
ing and support for these organizations.

Fifth, and finally, I urge you to volunteer the Governors into an
important role in this legislation. Community service can also be a
Trojan Horse of a comprehensive youth policy at the state level
and Governors should be urged to use it to this end, creating their
own analogues to the national foundation. -

In closing, I would like to suggest the advice of one of my favor-
ite philoso J:-hers, Yogl Berra, who said, “When you come to a fork
in the road, take it.”

Communlty service can be studied to death. The forks in the
road are many. We believe that we know enough to act. With your
leadership, we believe that a bill can be shaped that will move us
all ahead, allow us to learn and move ahead again.

Thank you very much.’

[The prepared statement of John A. Briscoe follows:]
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TESTIMONY

Committes on Education and Labot
U.5. House of Representatives
Washingcon, DC
June 28, 1989

by
John 4. Briscoe
Ditectot. PennSERVE: The Governor's Office of Citizen Service
333 Market Stteet
Hatrisburg.s PA 17126-0333
{717 787-1971

Community service 1z an effective means of ralsing self-esteem, curting
drop~out tates and aiding in the difficulc kransizien from school to wotk
. by 8iving Youth direct career znd citizenship experience.

Governot Robert P. Case¥
Qctober, 1988

Resolvad: That the State RBeard of Education believes progtams of community
service should be an integral pat: of education at all levels and stromgly
urges scheols, colleges and universities to institute ot strengthen
community service programs 80 evetyY student is encouraged co serve and
patticipate in volunteer service.

Pennsylvania

State Board of Educacion

Januaty 12, 1489
Chaitman Hawkins. ladies and gentlewmen. ! wanc to thank you for this

opportunity¥ to shate with ¥ou some of our sxperience in Penmns¥lvaniz with youth

and community service.

My name 1& John Briscos. I ditect PennSERVE: The Governor's Qffice of
Citizen Service. PernSERVE was launched by Governot Robert Casey in Novembet

1388 to “ask and enable all Pennsylvanilens to engage in community service.™

R
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Youth community service 1z a topic that fs {p much rhetoxical favox these

days.

* Last week President Bush called "all Amexicans and all institutfons.
large and gmall. to make service centzal to youx life and woxzk. 1
urge all pusiness leaders t© consider community service jn hizing,
compensations apd prowotion decislons. I call upor nomn=profit and
service groups to open your doors to 2l? those who want to hel?,
Irrespective of age. backBround, ©f level of axperience. And leaders
of high schools end colleEess I urge you co upheld the values of
community service and 3¢ encourage students. facultys and personmel

to serve others."

A host of studics and rePorts on America's youth and educational
PIORTANS have urfed that compunity servite become an expected part of
gsowing up fn America. From Ernest Boyer's Suggestion In High School
that 4ll students complece a Carnegle Unit of community service, to
the W. T. Grant Foundation's usging in The Forgotten Hall that all
youth == and parzicularly poor and at risk youth —-- be asked to
gserve, to the Carnmegte Commission's recently xeleased zeport on the
Middle Schools which calls for comunlty gervice, these 1s 2 growing
consensus thar every younB person be asked and enabled To e¥Perience

the sxhileration and power of Servifig her communicy.
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* The Children's Dpfense Funds Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Clearing.

house recently wrote:

"The exParience gained through service can make a lasting
difference, glving young PecPle @ sense of pyurpPose and a reazon

te remain in scheool, strive te learn and avold too-early pregnancy.”

* Pyblic/Private Venure, 2 rescarch and demonstration organization with
years of experience in evalugcing apd designing programs for ac-risk
youth recently described youth corps “as close to a state-of-the-art
model as now exists in youth Programming. They tie toBether the
strands of werk experience, educacion, cighe supervisions visihle
productivity, mentoring and saclal suPPorss that sgem tO be necessary
if ac=risk youth are o prepare for guccessful particiPacion g

American economic ang civic life.”

* Ac rhe seate atd lacal level Governors and ma¥ors == including
particularly my own Goveynor. Rebert C2sey, and oy colleague, Laura
Lee Geraghty's Gevernor Rudy PerPich == have launched malor iniriarives
thar seeks In Robert Casey's Phrase "to make community service the

cotmon expectation of all Pennsylvwanians.™

* Here in Congress rhetfe ares I am told, 22 separate bills relating to

youth service.
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; Hr. Chairman, we are looking to You and Your colieaSues to crafr a bill
that backs up Pronouncewent with ProSram. It L5 time ro move from the ralking
abour youth communiry service T¢ Providing ¢onctete rational leadership that

will make 1t happen. It is time for goeial invention and publit policy.

President John Kennedy backed up his call for serwice —— his ask not yhat
your ¢ountry can do for you tipe -- with the social inventivensss of the Peace
Corps. It is once sgain the time for seocial inventiveness. Rheroric and calls
for gevrvice are a’l wery well ....ipdeed the¥ ere more thap well they are
imporrants but wirhout organiratiens rhat ssk and rescurces to make them work

the rheroric will soon fade.

In Pennaylvaniz Governor Casey has given PannSERVE 4 double mission -— 1o
ask and to enable all to Seyva. We are here today to talk about empabling.
VWhen ° - begin to move féom broad ¢alls te service to specific legislarion, ghat

shew,  _ Lde us?
Let me suggest three srories as a Partial answer:

DASES: In Pdrrsburgh last June 100 faillng 7th Eraders == 23 eath in four
schools == were invired to Join the QASES program. These srudenrs were at
the borrom of their class. During the past year rhey wenr 1/2 tioe 1o
regular school apd spent 1/2 of the day 15 an ilntensive community sarvice
program. They rebuild Parr of a TMCA: they refurbished Tlassrooms; they
tyild playgrounds and & mock tril room. In June 1989 18 of chem were on

the honer roll.
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Chestnur Ridpe: At Chestnur Ridge HiEBh Scheol In tural Bedford Gounty an
innevarive Principal challenged the Honor Society to take on 8 cruly
impotrant comunity service projece some three yeats ago. Today che
Bedford County Literacy Council 15 operared by the students of Cheserue
Ridge High Schopl and educational quality assesswment scotes at the schoot

have gone up 4%,

West Philadelphia Improvement Cotps: In Philadelphia a Project thac

brings together college srudents, organiced ehrouBh 8 seminatr at the
University of Pennsylvanias high scheol end middle school students. union
members from the Building Trades Gouncil of Fhiladelphia and a community
orBanizatiop has succeeded in turning ehree echools inco community schools,
They have created school Bardens and Playgrounds. complerely rafurbished
an abandoned house and {owProved artendance. Four youn®, black men from
this program are entering the carPanters apPrenciceshiP Program this

month.

Hissahickon Righ School: AT Wissahicken High School = & suburban high
schools at which abeur 6571 of all seudenes go on io higheT education, 957
of the 55 students encolled in “sccial lab™ geo ro college. These students

sPend 300 hours in combunity service during thely zanlor year.

The Pennsylvania Conservation Cotps: In thr past 5 veats the State of
Pennsylvania has spent eser $50.000,000 to hire 8,000 Foung people to

serve, earn and learn in the pennsylvania conservation forPs. For every

dollar we have invesced we have goeeen $1.31 pack ip completed projects.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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All of these YounBsrers were unemPloYed when they entered the progroms 52%
of tham were high school drop-ourss 402 yere on some form of public
assistance. Une momth after the¥ comPleted the ProBram 723 of theo were

either fully enPloyed. back in school or in the military.

1 suggest thar there is & lot of interest im youth community gervice

becauss youth community service works.

Marzin Luther King told us: "EverYonme can be great because sver¥one can

serve "

Perhaps that's why & 10 Year study by the SurveY Resezych ConTer at the

University of Michigan came ro the following conelusion:

"Men who did te volunteer work were 2 1/2 timeg as llkely o die during

the courre of the study as men who volunteered at least one a week."

Since Senaror Kennedy has alread¥ seized the ehetordcal bigh gzound in phe
Senate with his "Serve America™ pii)l 1 offer for your consideration "VYolunteer

ot pie" as the title of Your legislatiom.
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Beriousl¥, those of US f{nvolved In youth gervice belicve that community

service has a message for those interested in restructuring sthools and strength-

'
ening Che institurions that setve Youth. We believe that youth service can

ttansform societies perception of youth. Youth €an be part of the solution,
not part of the problem. Yguth == evan those commonlyY viewed as losers can

become winners.

My friend in Mionesora, Jim Kielsmeler calls community¥ service the Trolan

Horse of scheool restructuring.

School restructuring recoumends:

Adtive Learning and suggests thar tradfitional modes of passive, memory

pased learning sioply sre ineffecrive foT many students. Community

setvice 15 above all an active form of learning.

School restructuring recomdends:

Teachers as leaders and gpaches rather than sources of information.

Communigy¥ setvice depands that teachers coach, et lecture.

School restructuring recommends:

Teaching higher order thinking skills and team wotk. In a well ordered

compunity sgrvice program highet order thinking, problem solving and

teamwork are refuited.
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But above all schocl restructuring talks gbout learning thar engages
youngsters 1o Lhe process, that rrears kids ax verkers and responsible citizens.

Conmunity service does 411 of those.

What do we conclude from this experdence that con help guide your leRislation?

First,: leglslation should puild o0 the exisring and Browint network of
Youth communitY service srograms. We don't have to invent the wheel of
youth gervice, but we do have to wake sure thar there are spokes for every

kird of youth.

Perhaps the element that distinSUighes the current Youth community scrvice
movement Erom its sredecessors fs its ability to make servers out of those who
were previously called clients. Poor. minmorftys “ar-risk” kids have In them
the yherewithall to provide Ifmportant community service® and to reap the
benefits in Personal self-worth and commualgy aPproval that go with it. But
such programs are not free or cheap. They demand strong leadership ang
organization. The Youth serving fn thew are going co have to be paid or
stipended. 1f community garvice 1s £2108 to compete with MacDorald's or with
serving as look our for a crack dealer. it I3 20ing to have to offer 50me s0rt

of comPensation.

This observation leads go oy d r dations
- & -
ﬁOrx
SCGO
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Let us use the printiples of communicy servite to revitalize existing
programs. The $600,000,000 that we gPend on summer yourh ean: We helieve
in Penns¥lvania be better Spent on summer youth torps and 400 of our
25,000 summer Youth parciciPants are i eorPs this summer. aAlready
Chaprer 11 of the Omnibus Education AST has a Provision for “proletes in
tommunity service" introdveed: 1 understand by ConBressman Goodling. The
§SIC program and Work Study ar the tollege level were ovifinally intended
to promote tommundicy serviee; the tommunity servite Provisions should be

strengthenad.

Thied, tommunity service reathes ptross traditiomal organizational grructures
and departments. It's promulBacion demands leadership. flexibilicy, and publit/
private partnershiP. T urge you fo treate a patfonal foundation: perhaps an
the model of the Smithsonian Inscicution or the Presidentc's YES to Amerita

Foundation to administer this infciative.

Fourth: tommunity servits depands Strong community organizations to att as
partnera with schools and ryadiricnal youth serviting prgamiracions. Funds

should be intluded to assure training and support for communicy organizarions.

Fifth and Finaily., T urge you £0 volunteer the Governors into an important
role in this legislation. Community servite tan be a Trojan Horse of comPrehensive
Fouth Polic¥ ap the state level apd Governors should be urged fo ysze 1t o fhis

end, treating their own analogues to the mational foundation proposed ahove.
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In closings I would like to offer the adviec of my favotite philosopher

Yogl Berra who once said “then you come to a fork in the Toad, take 1t."

Community sexrvice gan be studied to death,

The forks in the road are
wany, We know enough to gor,

with your leadershipP, we believe thet 8 bill

can be shaped that will move us all ahead, aliow us to learn from the experience
and move agein.

Thank you.
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Chairman Hawrins. Thank you, Mr, Briscoe. Ms. Geraghty, you
are next and we look forward to your testimony.

Ms. GEraglTY. Thank you. My Chairman, Subcommittee mem-
bers, I want to thank you for the opportunlty to comment on this
important and timely topic of a national policy on youth communi-
ty service.

I am Laura Lee Geraghty, Director of the Minnesota Office on
Volunteer Services, a division of the State Department of Adminis-
tration. Qur office provides statewide leadership and service to
Minnesota’s volunteer community.

Since we were established in 1975, our agency has worked to ad-
vance volunteerism to advocacy, training, and education. Volun-
teerism is a vital force touching the lives of thousands of volun-
teers in Minnesota and throughout the country.

Minnesota has a long-standing tradition of youth involvement in
community service and volunteerism. Still, the last few years have
seen an explosion of activity aimed at expanding youth community
service in the state.

Key actions that have resulted in this expansion are, number
one, strong leadership from Governor Perpich who, along with
other state and local leaders, sees service as an integral part of the
education of our youth and the health of our communities.

Second, partnerships between educators, leaders of traditional
youth orgamzatlons community agency representatives, involved
youth and other stakeholders who are willing to work cooperatively
toward a unified vision of youth community service; and thirdly,
introduction of legislation and funding mechanisms which facilitate
and support youth community service in a variety of settings.

Governor Perpich has been a strong supporter of youth commu-
nity service efforts both in Minnesota and nationally. Through his
position as Chairman of the Education Commission of the State, he
is promoting mentoring and youth community service nationally.

The Minnesota approach to youth cominunity service has been to
address four distinct components which collectively provide for a
comprehensive program.

The first compoenent is school-based programs. At the initiative of
Governor Perpich, the State Board of Education is expected to
make Minnesota the first state in the nation to include commumty
service as part of the school curriculum.

A proposed rule is expecied to be finalized in August. The Minne-
sota-based National Youth Leadership Council, in cooperation with
the Department of Education, is developing training for school staff
to assist in curriculum development.

Private sector support for this training is coming from such orga-
nizations as The Pillsbury Company and the Blandin Foundation.
Legislation passed in 1987 allows school districts to levy 50 cents
per capita for youth development plans which may include youth
community service.

In the last legislation session which just ended, an additional
provision for 25 cents per capita specifically for youth community
service was added. This latest legislation also allows school districts
to award up to one credit towards graduation.

The second component of our programs are programs through
postsecondary institutions. Minnesota Campus Outreach Opportu-
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nity League, what we call M-COOL, was formed in March of 1987,
and has already identified or developed over 15 campus community
service programs in Minnesota.

Recent legislation allocated funds fo provide modest matching
grants to postsecondary institutions, for campus community service
projects.

Those grants will he emphasizing student involvement as tutors
and mentors. Funding was alsc provided for state-wide coordination
and training of campus-service leaders.

The third component, and one that I think is very important, is
the preparation of community agencies. Qur office—the Minnesota
office on Volunteer Services is addressing the special needs of com-
munity service organizations in which the student volunteers will
be involved.

These organizations will need assistance in adapting their pro-
gl(;ams to meet the unique needs of students or youth volunteers.

me of those unique needs may include shorter placements, more
extensive su%erv".ision, greater structure in the program, and rela-
tionships with educators.

In order to insure that youth have productive and rewarding vol-
unteer experiences, agencies will need assistance in assessing
agency capacity to involve youth volunteers, training on how to
work with youth volunteers, assistance in making program adapta-
tions to accommodate youth and follow up in adaptive services.

I think we need to be concerned that just because youth may be
available for volunteering, that they may not be appropriate for all
organizations.

e fourth component of our plan is full-time service programs.
Minnesota has a conservation corps under the administration and
executive control of the Commissioner of Natural Resources.

It provides priority for employment of youth, who are economi-
cally, socially, ph]y;sical]y, or educationally disadvantaged. Included
are summer youth programs and year-round adult programs with
provisions for remedial education.

A funding increase was received during the recently ended legis-
lative session of that program.

The above initiatives have been possible only because of the coop-
erative efforts of many individuals and organizations. Leadership
has come from many sources. In addition to the Governor’s strong
and visible leadership, some of the strongest and most efiective pro-
Eg;lents of youth committee service are youths themselves, you can

t articulate the many benefits that they derive from their in-
volvement.

I axn really pleased that we will be hearing from some youth this
morning.

I have also been representing Governor Perpich in a series of Na-
tional Governors Association meetings, discussing a national com-
munity service pelicy. That policy includes opportunities for adults
o serve.

The draft NGA policy will be presented to the governors in late
July for their action. Stuce this action was develoi?ed after a great
deal of input and discussion from representatives from many fields
and a variety of states, I urge you to review this policy before
making your recommendations on a national policy.

L3 X o
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In closing, I would like to say that I support strongly the forma-
tion of a National Youth Service Policy. America was built on a
tradition of mutual health and volunteering. It was volunteers
who, individually and collectively, settled this country, raised
barns, built our first roads and libraries, originally developed our
educational and social service system, fought for women’s suffrage
and civil rights, and looked after those in need. Today, despite mas-
sive government and non-profit programs designed to meet our
needs, we still rely heavily on volunteers.

We value the assistance provided and treasure the opportunity to
participate. Volunteerism and citizen participation is not only our
right, but I believe an obligation in a democratic society.

In fact, I could not help but face an irony as I was very deeply
moved by the recent actions of our youth—the youth in China,
fighting so desperately for demoeracy, and, yet, here in this coun-
try, where we have democracy availabie to us, and we know that
volunteering and citizen participation is one of the ways in which
we most eloguently live that democracy, that we do not always
take the time to nurture it or to even appreciate it.

I think that what we have seen happen across the ocean is a real
lesson to us. We need to nurture it in our own youth. As adulis we
have the responsibility to provide the vision and leadership leading
to the continuation of the rich tradition of service and the
empowerment of our youth.

You can do this with a strong National Youth Service Policy. I
wish you wel] in your deliberations and believe that your decisions

will have a profound 1mpact on the future health and vitality of
this country. Thank yo
[The prepared statement of Laura Lee Geraghty follows:)
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WRITTEN TESTIMONY

Laura Lee Geraghty, Director
Minnesota Office on Volunteer Services
Deparbuenl ol AdieisLleation

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING
HOUSE CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABODR
NATIONAL YOUTH COMMUNITY SERVICE poilcY
June 28, 1989

Mr. Chairman, Sub-Committee members, thank ybu for the opportunity to comment
on the imporiant and timely topic of a national policy on yauth community
service,

1 am Lauvrs Lee Geraghty, Director of the Minnesota Office on Volunteer

Services, a division of the state Department of Administration. The office
provides statewide leadersnip and service to Minngsota's volunteer community.
Since we were established in 1975, our agency has worked to advante volun=
teerism through advocacy, training and education. Volunteerism 15 a vital

force, touching the lives of thousands of Minnesotans. We work to ensure that
votunteerism will continue to flourish and bring ftc rich rewards to our people -
and our communities.

Today, the demands for voluntéers are continuing to increase and the make-up of
our volunteer community must continue to become more diverse If we are to meet
the chatlenges and opportunities which Minnesotans face, Young people involved
in youth community service represent a significant population within our
volunteer community.

Minnesota has a long-standing traditioa of youth involvement in community.
service and volunteerism,  5ti11, the last few years have seen an explosion
of activity aimed at expanding youth community service in the state,

key actions that have resulted in this expansion are:

1, Strong leadership from Governdr Perplich who, along with other
state and local leaders, sees service as an integral part of the
education of our youth and the health of our communities;

¢. Partnerships beiween educators, leaders of traditional youth
organizations, community agenC{ representatives, involved youth and
other stakenolders who are willing to work cooperatively taward a
unifieg vision of youlh Community service; and

3, Introduction of 1egisiation and funding mechanisms which facili-
tate and support youth community service in a variety of settings.

Governor Perpich has been a strong squorter of youth community service
effarts both in Minnesota and nationally. Through his pasition as Chairman
af the £duCation Commission of the States {ECS}, Governor Perpich is promoting
mentoring and youth service nationally. He has made a mentoring program
through Lampus Compact a top priority of his &CS chairmanship. Co-founded

by 125 un1ver51tg presidents across Amerita, the Campus Compact program pro-
motes mentoring by university students of younger, aterisk children. Gever-
nor Perpich has broadened the focus to include student mentors at the high
school level. He has set an ambitious goal of fostering one million mentars
in communities across the natien.
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In Hinnesota Governor Perpich has eéncouraged youth community service by:
convening groups of stdkeholders to develop plans for a comprehensive youth
community service effort; asking the State Board of Edueation to include
comunity service as & part of the school Curriculum; Initiating legisiation
that provides the Tunding and structure to implement youth community service
programs in school-based settings, in colleges and among community agemcies;
and publicly recognizing successful community service programs by comducting
an 3nnual Youth Service Recognition Day and by visiting schools and volunteer
sites,

Governor Perpich has adopted the follewing position statement, which 1ndicates

his approach to deveioping comprehensive programs which meet the varying needs

of ail youth,
*1 supgort the concept of expanding opportunities for community service
for a1l youth, This expansion should involve & variety and continu-
um of optionat programs which will be appropriate for, and attractive
to, all youth from diverse backgrounds and at differing ages. These
programs should fnclude choices of part-time service opportunities for
K-12 students and cOllege studeats, and both full time and part-time
opportunities for those delaying college/post-secondary education ar
not seeking any post-secondary education. Programs should be
developed to ensure that community agencles are adequately prepared
to effectively involve youth and €nsure that no youth are excluded
from participaton in some program.

Youth community service programs must serve to expand learning
increase self-esteem amd create an ethic of citizenship!conmunity
seryice In our youth, while meeting growing community needs, Planning
for such programs should include representation from the varfious
groups which will be affected by the programs, including youth,
educational institutions, volunteer leaders, community organizations
and state agencies expected to administer the programs.”

In an effort to coordinate and focus these various programs, the Governor
requested that a staté policy or frameéwork be developed. This work résulted
in a policy statement "Youth Community Service - The Minnesota Vision™ (see
attached],

With Governgr Perpich providing the vision and encouragemert, leaders from
education, government, corporations, youlh programs, social service agencies
and elsewhere have been warking cooperatively to develop plans to involve all
youth in community sérvice. As a result, programs and propoesals have been
developad dealing with a wide variety of aiternatives.

The Minnesota approath to youth community seryice has been to address four
distinct components which collectively provide for a comprehensive program.

A. Schosl-Based Programs
At tne nJL18tive of Governor Perpich, the 5State Board of Education
ts expected to make Minnesota the first state in the nztion to

include community service as a part of the school curriculum.
A proposed rule is expected to be finalized in August.

The Minnesota-based National Youth Leadership Councit, in
cooperation with the Department of Education, is developing
training for school staff to assist in curriculum development.




Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

391

Private sector support for this training ts coming from such
organizations as The Pillsbury Company and the Blandin Foundatfon.

Legislation passed In 1987 allows local school districts to levy 50
cents per capita for youth development qluns, which can include
youth cosmunity service. As of last fall, 16% of Minnesota's
s¢hool districts already had some form of district-wide Youth
Community Service pro?ram in place. Legislation passed last month
provides for ap additional optionadl school district levy

of up to 25 cents per capita specifically for youth service. This
legisiation aise allows schopl districts to award up to one credit
toward graduatien.

Programs through Post-Secondary Institutions

Winnesofa Campus Outreach Dpportunity League {M-COOL) was formed in
March, 1987 and already has identified or developed over 15 campus
community service programs 1n Misnesota, In response to the
Governor's “"Partners in Learning” initiative, the emphasts in

these Programs is the creation of Campus-based tutoring and mentor-
ing partperships with local elementary and secoadary schools.

Recent legislation allocated funds to provide modest matching
grants to post-secondary institutions for campus community service
projects emphasizing student involvement as tutors and mentors.
Funding was ajso provided for statewide toordipation and training
of campus service leaders,

Preparation of Community Agencies
ur offite, the Winnesofa UTTice on Yolunteer Services, 1s
addressing the special needs of Community service organizations in
which the student volunteers will be involved. These orQanizations
will need assistante in adapting thejr programs top meei the unique
neegs of student/youth volenteers (i.e. shorter placements, more
extens {ve supervision, relationships with educators). In order to
ensurg that youth have productive and rewarding volunieer exper-
tences, agengies will need:
- assistante 1n 3ssessing ageacy capacity te involve youth
volunteers;
= training on how ¢ work with youth volunteers;
- assistance in making program adaptations to attomodate
youth; and
- follow-up ang evaluative Services.

The Minnesota Dffice on Yolunteer Services, as the statewide leader
and service provider to the volunteer community, ts providing
training and technical assistance to these commuaity service organ-
izations and agencies.

Futl Time Service Programs in Minngsota

Finnesoia has a Conservation Lorps under the administrative and
executive control of the Commissioner of Natural Resources. It
provides priority for empioyment of youth who are economically,
socially, Physically or educationally disadvantaged. Included
are summer youth programs and year-round adult programs with pro-
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visions for & remedjal education component. A funding increase was
received during the recently-ending legislative session.

Yet another legislative proposal woulgd have made grants available
to provide education ang training to targeted youth through
programs which would result in youlh gaining work experience while
renabilitating or constructing residential uaits for the homeless.
Whiie this proposal was not passed, ft is 1ikely to be
rg}introduced and would result in further expansion of full-time
efforts.

The above iaitiatives have been possible only because of the cosperative efforts
of many individuais and organizations. ieadership has come from many sources.
In agdition to the Governor‘s strong and visible ieadership, some of the
strongest and most effective oroponents of youth community seérvice are youth :
themseltves who can articulate the many benefits they derive from their lnvoly-
ment, Traditional youth servite organizatioas {i.e. Girl Scouts, Campfire,

4~H, YMCAs', Red (ross) are participating in planning and are sharing their ex-
pertise on youth development. Other private sector organizations providing
leadership include: the National Youth Leadership Council; Minnesota Campus
Outreach Opportunity League; Campus Compact; National School Volunteer Program/
Minnesota; Minnesota Community Education Association; the Commonwealth
Initiative of the H.H. Humphrey Iastitute of Public Affairs at the University
of Minnesota, and; the newly formed Minnesota YOuth Service Association - a
statewide coalition of educators and citizens, inclucing youth, designed to
promote youth community service.

The state agency partners in this effort jaclude: The Departments of Education,
Natural Resources and Jobs & Training, the Higher Education Coordimating Board,
State Pianning Agency and the Minnesota Office on VYolunteer Services, 2
division of the Department of Administration.

As a result of this leagership and coordination, Mianesata has developed a
unique, comprehensive madel for youth community service that 1 believe can De
replicated elsewhere in the country.

The momentum for Youlh community service in Kinmesota continves to grow. [t is
evident that our youth want to Searn and embrace the value of citizenship and
service, It s also evident thal there are Many community needs that youth,
with proper preparation aad supervision, can meet. Youth community service
melds these twe needs and creates & vital new resource.

I have been rePresenting Governor Perpich in a series of Hational Governars'’
Association (NGA) meetings discussing a nationdl Community service policy,
including opportunities for adults to serve. That group identified several
principies for & natfonal policy on community service which shoula:

1. Promote a strong partnership between federal, state, and local -
governments as well as with the voiunteer and business i
communities to emphasize the importance of tommunity-wide
involvement.

2, Recognfze the multitude of existing state and local programs and seek
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to expand and enhante their capabilities.
Encourage creativity and diversity through a1l tiers of service,
incTuding elementary and secondary Schools; college campus,
part time; full-time compensated; and part time community based
programs.

4. Include endugh assistance to enable individuals and programs Zo
achieve their goals.

The draft NSA policy will be presented o the Governors in late July for their
action. Since this policy was developed after a great geal of input angd
discussion with representatives from many fields in a variety of states; I urge
yog to review the final pelicy before making your recommendatinns on a natijonal
poticy.

1 would also reccamend that any national initiatives:

1.  Involve youth in the planning process {for they can best articulate
their own needs and interests).

2. Involve agencies and organizations that will be working directly with
youth volunteers.

3, Ensure that community service opportunities provide rewarding and
product ive experiences for our youth.

4. Provide vision and encouragement, put the flexibitity to respond to
local needs and priorities.

1 applaud your efforts to review the myriad of models and poteantial Components
for a national youth service :u.iZy. With all the ideas and data available,
tet us not lose site of the ract that we want to strengthen our Communities and
nation, while providing meaningful educational and work experiences for our
youtﬂ ’

As a result of community service, increased numbers of youth will:
-Manifest the ethic of voluntary service;
.~Better understand their responsibilities as citizens;
-Experience the satisfaction of service ano greater self-esteem;
-Apply practical skills
-Gain mlti-cultural and intergenerationzl experience;
-Reflect on what they have learned as a rasult of their service

activities;

~5how @ positive attitude toward Yearning;: and
-0isplay a betier understanding of the job market.

Also, as a result of youth communily seryice:
=Youth continue to volunteer once theéy become adults; and
=¥oluateers meet more community neecs,

In ciosing. I subport the formation of a national youth service policy and
encourage you to develop appropriate mechanisms which w1ll provide a wide range
of community service opportunities which will meet the needs of diverse
populations of youth at varying ages.

Americe wds built on a tradition of mutual help and volunteering, [t was
volunteers who, individvally and collectively, settleo this country, raised
barns, built the first roads and libraries, originaily developed our educa-
tional and social service systems, fought for women's suffrage and civil
rights, and Yooked after those in need. Today, despite massive governmeént and
nenprofit programs designed to meet our needs, we 5till rely heavily on
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volunteers. We value the assistance provided and treasure the opportunity te

O
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participate. Volunteerism and citizen partitipation 1s not only our right, but
an obligation in a democralic socCiety,

However, we Cannot assume that the value of giving will automatically be
cantinued. We need to nurture this participation and easure this Involvement
for future generations. As aduits, we have the responsibility to provide the
visfon and eadership leading to the continuation of the rich tradition of
servite and the empowerment of our youth, You can do this with & strong
national youth service policy.

I wish you well in your deliberations and believe that your decisions will have
a profound impact on the future Realth and vitality of our country.
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Chairman MarTinez. Thank you.

My first question is to you, Ms. Geraghty. Earlier we heard from
the President of AFSCME. AFSCME is quite concerned about the
displacement of workers, as naturally he should be. There is reason
to.

Many times in the past, through Federal programs, there have
been workers who have lost their job because that local govern-
ment entity, decided that it would be cheaper for them to use the
Federal monies in the p provided by the Federal Govern-
ment to subsidize those needs that tiiey had, by using supplemental
workers rather than retain full-time people on their staff.

I understand there is a very definite and real concern there,

We heard that he has had one complaint in the 55-plus youth
corps programs that are existing now. Before ¥ ask the guestion, I
want to relate my own feeling that with 55 youth corps centers,
and growing, from a short few years ago, they must be having a
tremendous amount of success and meeting a tremendous need
that is out there, both from the aspect of the young people who are
developing pride in themselves and pride in their communities, and
from local governments fulfilling unmet needs.

I don’t think there is any question, if they are growing that rap-
idly, that youth corps are a great success. Evidently, Mr. McEntee
indicated that there had been some complaints about Minnesota’s

am.
rg%ll-ﬂd you tell us what the problems were, and was there a reso-
lution of those problems?

Ms. GEraGHTY. The major problem has been with the full-time
stipend programs. The other three components that I talked about
in terms of our program are a comprehensive program, really have
not been involved.

CME in Minnesota is very concerned about the potential dis-
placement in full-time stipend programs. It has been an issue that
frankly has been the last issue resolved in the last two contract ne-
gotiations for state employee AFSCME contracts in the last four—
our contracts last two years, but the last two sessions of that, that
has been the last point that has been settled.

I really believe very strongly that what we need is some kind of
a grievance procedure or some way to resolve that kind of an issue.
I Ifio not see volunteerism and unions as being adversarial relation-
ships.

Those of us who have spent a life-time and devoted our lives to
volunteer services, and volunteer 8dministration, are just as con-
cerned about the displacement of workers as our representatives of
our labor organizations.

We do need a mechanism that helps us resolve disputes. At
times, what happens is that, as soon as there becomes a conflict,
one ends up—both parties end up becoming more conservative
rather than finding a common ground, and I think some kind of a
mediation process is needed to resolve those kinds of disputes. I
would strongly recommend that that kind of provision be included
in a national policy.

Chairman MarTiNEZ. We do have it in H.R. 717. That’s Section
4190, Grievance Procedure, and it allows for filing of complaints and
a redress to those complaints, and a full investigation by the ad-

460



396

ministrative secretary or the assistant director, and where it would
lead to a mutual resolution.

In the places that I've been to, and the youth corps centers that |
have visited, unions are involved in those programs. And the local
unions—not the nationals, but the locais—are very much in sup-
port of those programs, and T do not find that it is a real displace-
ment threat to any worker.

Was there any actual worker displacement in a case in Miuneso-
ta, or was it just a situation that was feared, and, as a result, pre-
cautions were taken by contract negotiations to provide protection
against it?

Ms. GeragHTY. To my knowledge—and I will check on this and
get back to you—But to my knowledge, there was no actual dis-
placement of workers. It is more a philosophical issue and the po-
tential of that, I think that they are concerned about.

Chairman MARTINEZ. You know, there are those that are goi:f
to say, if these programs are springing up as rapidly as they are all
over the country, what is the need for national legislation?

One of the things that, in coxsideration of answering that ques-
tion—and I would like to ask both of you—Mr. Briscoe and Ms.
Geraghty, too—what percentage of youth are you reaching? What
percentage of the eligible population are you reaching? How many
would you like to reach? How do you envision this bill helping you
expand that participation?

Mr. Briscok. I believe the national figures are that only some-
thihg like 50,000 youth in any given year have the experience of a
youth corps program, which is a tiny, tiny, tiny fraction of the total
number of youth.

There is some indicstion in Pennsylvania, we have had 8,000 go
through. We know that six percent of the dropouts in Pennsylva-
nia—high school dropouts—end up in corps programs. We would
certainly like to have that option open for all dropouts to have
cerps much more widely spread, so it is an option.

There are 22,000 dropouts per year in Pennsylvania, so that gives'
you some kind of a figure to shoot at. We would like to have some-
thing like 15,000, 20,000, positions open each year, to invite people
to come into. You begin multiplying that, to get some kind of na-
tional numbers, at least a couple of hundred thousand oppertuni-
ties nationwide.

When we get that, we don’t know where we go from there.

Chairman MarTINEzZ. Thank you.

Ms. GEraGHTY. I would like to address that question by taking a
looking again at a whole range of options for our youth, and not
just the full-time service corps model. I think that that is very im-
portant, but I would love to see the day when we have 100 percent
of our youth involved in some kind of activity. Perhaps not every
year, but throughout their educational years, that they are taking
a look at, and have the ability to become involved.

I would love to see us workins: with kids in the youngest grades,
in kindergartens. We have s. . wonderful models of programs
where first graders are workiny rith the nursing home across the
street and going and visiting, an:’ " . '~ing them to read letters and
visiting with the elderly.
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We have wonderful programs that involve junior high students.
We have wonderful programs that involve senior high students and
college students. Also, the corps programs, which I think attract a
certain population.

What I think is necessary with the national policy is that we de-
velop a wide-range of community service opportunities that attract,
that provide incentives, and that meet the needs of students at
varying ages, and in various economic backgrounds, and with vary-
ing needs; and that we not loock at one program, or say that one
program is more important than the other, but that we develop a
comprehensive plan, that involves all youth, and that we are very,
very careful that, in doing that, we not develop any kind of a pro-
gram that, in fact, discriminates against some of our youth.

That was a very deep concern as we talked in the National Gov-
ernor’'s Association meetings, that we need to be careful, that we
are not doing that either by the incentives that we develop, or by
limiting the kinds of programs that are available to youth.

Chairman MaArTiNEZ. H.R. 717 does two things, that you have ad-
dressed.

One, it does provide local flexibility for local communities to
decide what their best program needs are, and develop programs
around those needs.

The other thing it does is that it provides for a matching grant
and leverage for grants. In other words, the programs that would
be accorded the highest priority are those that would be able to
gain the support of corporations in their areas to come up with dol-

Is.

The more dollars they put up and the local governments and
communities put up, the more dollars would come from the Federal
Government, so that there is an incentive for corporations to get
involved.

We try to make this as hest we can as to suit the local needs,
number one; and to provide as much money as we can to the pro-
grams themselves.

I am going to have to rush to vote, because I missed the last vote.
I do have some other questions that I would like to ask of both of
you. We will submit those questions to you in writing, and we will
leave the record open in order that you might respond to those,
and we might submit them for the record.

With that, I thank you both for appearing before us today, and
you are excused, and we will hold the next panel until I get.

Short recess for about five minutes,

[Recess.] )

Chairman MArTINEZ. We are back in session. Let me call the
next panel. Todd Clark, Constitutional Rights Foundation from Los
Angeles; Michae]l Jones, graduate of Fremont High School, Los An-

" geles; Carol Kinsley, Springfield, Massachusetts Public School; Mi-

chelle White, Springfield, Massachusetts Public School; Sandra
O'Strander, student, Springfield, Massachusetts Public School; Gail
Kong, Executive Director, New York City Volunteer Corps; Profes-
sor Ira Harkavy, Director of Community Oriented Policy Studies,
University of Pennsylvania,

Mr. Jones, I understand you are from Gus Hawkins' District. If
Gus Hawkins were here—he could not be here because he had to
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attend the leadership meeting—but he would have welcomed you
in the proper manner. I will welcome you in his stead.
Why don’t we start with Mr. Clark? -

STATEMENTS OF TODD CLARK., CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS FOUN-
DATION FROM LOS ANGELES; MICHAEL JONES, GRADUATE OF
FREMONT HIGH SCHOOL, LOS ANGELES: CAROL KINSLEY,
SPRINGFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS PUBLIC SCHOOL; MICHELE
WHITE, SPRINGFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS PUBLIC SCHOOL:
SANDRA O'STRANDER, STUDENT, SPRINGFIELD, MASSACHU-
SETTS PUBLIC SCHOOLs GAIL KONG, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
NEW YORK CITY VOLUNTEER CORPS; PROFESSOR IRA HAR-
KAVY, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY ORIENTED POLICY STUDIES,
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLYANIA

Mr. Crazrk. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We appreciate the inter-
est that you and the committee are taking in this whole issue, and
are delighted that we could be here from Los Angeles to talk ‘with
you, since our Los Angeles Program insiudes six high schools that
are part of Chairman Hawkins’ district. The young man who is
with me this morning has been a memkher of one of those programs.

I might also say, by way of background, that I taught for ten

ears in Asousa, s0 if you have time after the session, I would be

PPy to give you some theories as vv why Asousa is such a high
drop out district, but I will certainly ge on to say that I, too, read
the article thzg'fyou commented on earlier in your remarks, and
find that a perfect example of the enormous preblem of youth
alienation that we face, especially in the urban areas of America
today, not just in California but all over the country.

I think if we looked at high schools like the one that Michael
represents, we would see not only figures like 39 percent, but fig-
ures more likely to approach 60 percent and higher.

It is clear that we must not only deal with that problem of alien-
ation, but we must also deal with the issue of values that kids have
with regard to self and others, Teaching the basics has been of
great concern to us over the past few years.

One of the basics, t0 make this country successful, is the basic of
commitment t0 service and to work to help others. The program
that we have in Los Angeles, I think, illustrates that young people
are able to, and willing to, and are eager to work to that end.

I represent the Constitutional Rights Foundation, which is an
unusual community based organization, dedicated to civic educa-
tion of which we believe community service is a part. CRF has ex-
isted in Los Angeles for over 20 years, we have a prominent Board
of Directors, headed by Allen Rothenberg, of the firm of Manate,
Phelps, Rothenberg, and Thorpes, who has just been elected Fresi-
dent of the California State Bar Association,

Other prominent Los Angeles legal and business figures have
been supportive of our work for many years. We also work nation-
ally in 44 states with a number of other programs that deal with
such areas as delinquency pi -vention and law-related education.

In the community gervice area, we have been active for nine
years now. For the past five, we have had support from the Ford
Foundaticn, which has provided money from their urban poverty
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program to give us an opportunity to work with students at rigk in
22 high schools.

The definition of “at risk” gives us some concern. We are defin-
ing it to mean largely all young people who are students in urban
high schools, which are part of the larger problems of general
youth alienation that I referred to earlier.

In the program that we operate, 2,500 youth leaders have in-
volved over 55,000 students in providing literally hundreds of thou-
sands of hours of service over the last five years.

Just in terms of the leadership group alone, in an annual sense,
we are talking about something in the neighborhood of 63,000
hours of service that we would value at the present minimum wage
at something like $211,000.

That doesn’t include all of the volunteers that the leadership stu-
dents get involved. These young people work—again, intercity stu-
dents, they work for no money and for no credit.

I would also like to make the point however, that, while our pro-
gram in Los Angeles may differ somewhat from the programs that
will be described of the sort that Carol Kinsley has developed so
wonderfully in Springfield, we are strongly comiitted to the
notion that community service should permeate the curriculum,
should be a strand in every young person’s education in this coun-
try, from kindergarten through their formal education, and should
not be an add-on or a separate movement, but an imporfant and
integrative factor in everyone’s education.

What kinds of service are we talking about? ] think John Briscoe
gave illustrations that are appropriate to Los Angeles as well.

I might just give you a few examples from a list that we put to-
gether of projects that were done in the six high schools in Chair-
man Hawkins’ district during this year.

I have a list of about 25. I will just read a few of them.

Planting trees to help turn Los Angeles into an urban forest.

Ongoing visttation with senior citizens at convalescent homes.

Tutoring children in after-school latch key programs.

Teaching adults how to read as a part of literscy programs.

Performing earthquake prevention skits in elementary schools
for younger children.

The obvious kinds of things:

Painting out graffiti.

Working on campus beautification, and so forth.

.The range is almost endless. All of us who are involved in pro-
grams either of the type that we run or others, can give you long
lists of solid and impressive accomplishments performed by kids.

I would like to make six observations, based on our experience,
about service programs.

First, I believe school is the place where service programs should
start. If service has to be dealt with explicitly, and I think it does,
school is the institution that has the students, and oftentimes the
last institution that has the students, and, therefore, the one that
has the greatest opportunity to develop a sense of service as a part
. of their academic and social development.

A second: Programs of service in school should never be targeted

programs.
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I do not believe it is ever the case that we ought to say that these
are special programs either for an elite and special group of volun-
teers, or for troubled young people.

Te do so, would be stigmatize, and I fear, if we stigmatize these
programs, we will run_into the problem that we already have to
face in the minds of many young people, where they hear that the
courts often sentence people to do “community service for bad be-
havior” and wonder if it can also be something that they can do as
good behavior.

Stigmatization is something we ought to be very careful to avoid.

Third, we need to make it, to build service programs on the
notion that kids are grod, positive, young people who want to be
connected to our society, who want to do good things, and who are
not being involved in service programs specifically to avoid getting
into trouble, although I think there is an element that we can talk.
about at Jength.

Which service programs do provide almost automatically an op-
portunity fei participation, which is a good thing for young people
and which might often lead to a kind of behavior chat takes them
away from possible problems in their communities.

Kids began as essentially good, positive, and committed young
people, who need information and skills, so that they can become
engaged in service.

Fourth: Programs can help meet the special needs that we have
all identified.

Again, not to repeat what has already been said, but I think it is
very important to point out that this is not an effort to displace
anyone. It is an effort to deal with many of things which we, at one
time—and I think you said it yourself just a few minutes ago—at
one time, cities were able to take care of many of their own needs,
which are now not being taken care of, because of problems with
funding.

Five: I think it is important to make the point that kids benefit
most from service programs. Whatever we say about the value to
society in solving unmet needs, and as important as that may be, it
is the server that I think earns the greatest benefit from the serv-
ice.

Six: All service programs are not equally effective,

There are certain characteristics that have been identified that I
will not take the time to go over at this time that are included in
my written statement, that make for a more effective service pro-
grams than others.

Simply sending young people into the community to serve and
then toting up a number of hours in the counselor’s office, without
involving the students, and really selecting or planning, or deliver-
m% service to areas that they know is important, or without actual
reflection on the service, which is a very important element in
making service useful, does not have the same power as programs
that do include those elements.

I would like to make a jew recommendations to the committee.

Obviously, you would not be having the hearings if there was not
growing interest in this area, and incentives, indeed, are needed.
Any group of educators that I have talked to can identify all of
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those things which they are expected to do, and society continues
to add to that list, as we are here today talking about doing.

However, if we are going to add to that list, service as an impor-
tant element of education, then we need to provide financial incen-
tives to make it possible for schools to experiment with and start
service programs, which they then ultimately will be expected to
continue and to support with their own money.

I think we certainly should support President Bush’s effort, the
Kennedy effort, and the effort here with 2591, to implement pro-
grams which are comprehensive in scope, and assume that ele-
ments of omnibus provisions are developed and included there,
broad-based, and comprehensive pregrams.

I think it is also important that, as you on this comraittee consid-
er reauthorization of a number of different pieces of legislation,
both this year and in the future, that you think through ways in
which service can be integrated and infused in those programs.

Certainly, there are places, for example, it seems to be in the Vo-
cational Educational Act, which I believe you are working on this
session, to integrate something about non-profit organizations and
service careers.

You find if you talk to curriculum pecple that nothing has ever
been said to most young people in the schools about anything ap-
proaching volunteerism or careers that are available for people in
the voluntary sector. ‘

“These are invisible career opportunities as the schools presently
exist. As we all know who are here today, there are a great many
career opportunities in gservice and non-profit work, and kids ought
to know about that.

I think the Job Training Partnership Act certainly has many op-
portunities to provide service as a principle focus of what young
people do under the terms and conditions of this Act.

I think, alsc, the proposed H.R. 717, which has an opportunity in
it for part-time service, needs to be passed and implemented as
quickly as possible,

I have taken far too much time, but I could not resist the oppor
tunity. I know you want to talk to Michael and hear what he has
to say, but it is not often that I have a chance to get on the record
with concerns that I have as a program manager.

I might also say that our national effort is to try to link pro-
grams throughout the country that are werking in the pre-collegi-
ate level. We have a publication, which is in your packet, called the
Youth Service Network, which is distributed nationally.

When you have a chance to lock at that publication, you will see
a great many things called for there, which describe what people -
are doing, and ways in which they are doing it that we thing corre-
spond to effective programs.

I would like now to introduce Michael. Michael graduated from
Fremont High School last year.

[The prepared statement of Todd Clark follows:]
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Statement of Mr. Todd Clark. Education Director, Constitutiomal
Rights Foundation, Los Angeles, California on "Serve-America: the
Service to America Act of 1989.%

In my comunityr kids drop out of gechool because things
in the family go wrong. I've seen kids, even my Eriends. get
invalved with gang-bangers and Arugs. This leads nowhere =
except maybe dezth or jail. There is mo l1ifFe, no future - a
lifetime of sufferamg. I think Arugs and g9amgs are a waste
of time. We have to offer kids something else instead.

Michael Jones, Premont Bigh School. Los Angeles
Community Service Volunateer.

America's urban areas are riddled with problems. Most
serions in centinuing alienation of young pecple who represent a
great national treasure being decimated at an accelerating rare.
Our schools are vital ipstitutions in the struggle to reverse
this trend. Im addition to teaching academic basics, instilling
civic values must once again become & Eocus for the school
curriculum. Public education was first created po build social
cohesion and suppert for our political and ecomomic system.

Young people must be linked to our system at the community level.
actively working ko improve the lives oF their friends and
neighbors.

The adolescent years are profoundly difficult for many young
people. Throughout Los Angeles. youth of every ethnic backgqround

and income level, wno might otherwise be lost to our society, are

showing that they can make a difference. In Chairman Hawkins

Congressional Districte six of the high schools are involved in
the Youth Community Service program of the Conmstitutional Rights

Foundat ion and the Los Angeles Unified Schaool District.
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By developing academic skills and making a commitment to service.
these Young pecple also make a commitment to themselves. their
sechools and their eommunities. For some it is an alternative to
dropping out or joining gangs. For others, e€Specially young
Latino and Asian immigrants, it provides a welcome introduction
to the American way of life. For all. it builds confidence and
provides experience ghay will last a lifetime.

My name is Todd Clark: I'm the Education Director of the
Constitutional Rights Poundation in Los Angeles. I am a
secondary school educator with a specialization in phe social
studies and am the former president of both the California and

the National Councils for the Soeial Studies.

What is che Consitutional Rights roundation?

The Constitutional Rights Poundation is a comnunity-based
organization that Ffor 26 years has beep working with the schools
in Los Angeles. California and the pation iP an effort to sSupport
and strengthen the preparation of oyr young people for
citizenship. We are non-partisan and are governed by a 45-
member LOS Angeles volunteer Board ©f pirecters drawn from law.
business and the community that supports open inguiry and debate
on all public issues. We have small. self-governing offices in
Chicago and Orange County, California. Our funding comes Erom
the Los Angeles: Chicago and Orange County communities apg relies
heavily on contributions from lawyers. law firms and businesses.

In addition, we are Funded to carry out special programs by
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various foundations and governmedl agencies. We SPONSOr many
different programs that stress student interaction and
involvement in the classroom: gchool and community. These
programs draw more than 2,500 volunteers annually from the legal
and busingess communities., and range from a statewide high school
mock trial program that involves 350 Califormnia high schools and
communities to the Youth Community Service program that I will

describe today.

Youth Community Service

We became interested in community involvement activities Eor
students in the early 1570's, and sponsored a large school-based
program for students that involved extensive interaction with
professionals and agencies from the justice system.

In 1981 we began our first community service program in
which we designed and tested basic organizational. training and
program implementation features that Characterize our approach to
community service.

Recognizing the potential importance of setvice to at risk
youths we expanded the program in 1984 to provide inner-city
students with opportunities to serve their communities. Funding
for this effort has been provided by the Urban Poverty Program of
the Pord Foundation. Each vear. the Los Angeles Unified School
District has gaken on a larger share of the costs. During the
five years of tne expanded programs hundreds of community

agencies and groups have been involved. Rearly




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eric

406

2,500 students have volunteered for and been trained to serve in
leadership positions for projects and continuing activities
involving over 55,000 student volunteers. Working under the
supervision of teachers at each of 22 senior high schools.,
students learn skills needed to identify community needs., design
projects or continuing programs to meet those needs and recruit
volunteers to assist them. The leadership group alone
econtributes nearly 63,000 service hours a year, which we value at
over $211,000, bused on the current minimum wage.

The program. which includes an educational component for
teachers and séudents. is now offered a5 a voluntary after—school
activity. Students receive neither money nor course credit for
their work. It is our objective to expand thé options for
students and provide opportunities for elective course credit as
well as to implement an instructional unit in high school
government classes. We encourage and yould like to see Lhe jdea
of community service and the service ethi¢ taught about.,
discussed and implemented throughout the curriculum and at every

grade level.

Service Actlvities

Students design projects which provide service to the
elderly, the homeless. the s¢hool. the neighborhood and other
students, ard assist a vast array ©f communlty groups in

implementing their own programs. So far this year just in the

hntey
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‘'six high schoois in Chairman Bawkins district projects have

included:

o pianting trees to help turn Los Angeles into an urban forest

o sponsoring events for children with sickle celil anemia
ongoing visitations with senior citizens at a convalescent home
tutoring children in an after-school latch key program
teaching adults how t® read as part ©f a literacy program
working with the Red Cross on weekends for blood drives
putting on a picnic for battered and abused children

o performed earthQuake prevention skits in schools

¢ registered voters ©n the high school campus and in the

community

o helping junior higb students carry ouk conservation projects

o providing anti-drug information to elementary school children

o spending time with homeless children

o painting out graffiti

o leading a monthly one-hour clean-up campaign invelving an

entire high s~hool

o sponsoring community clean-up prejects

© adopting a communhity wall to keep graffiti-free

© tutoring children in reading

o putting on a Hailoween carnival at a shelter for battered and

abused children

© put on Halloween safety skits




Program Impact

This program was evaluated by the UCLA Center for the Study
of Evaluation and judged effective in developing a group of
skills based on the activities reguired of the students., as well
as a strohg commitment to service, increased feelings of
effectiveness, confidence and positive bonding with adulks and
the school. There were also suggestions that school attendance
and performance improved. Verification of these latter effeces
would require further research.

As a result of our experience wikh this and other programs.
we have encountered and succesSsfully covercome many common
preblems schocl-based service programs must address. Our staff
has learned much and is eager to share this information with
others who are just beginning to develop programs ak schools

throughout the nation.

answers te Six Questions

Reflecking on cur experiences in Los Angeles and drawing

upon the work of others, I would like to make six points of

{1) Wby Should Schoels Offer Service?

Voluntary service puilds strong positive bonds between
America's young people and the institutions and traditions of our
society. We must explicitly teach the value of service to our

youth as a part of the school curriculum if we e€xpect broad-based
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involvement in community service by adults. It is tpo impertant
a matter to be Jefy to chance.

{2) Whe Should Serve?

All students, tegardless of ability er past scheol
performance, should be encouraged te participate in school-based
community service. School service programs pave special value
helping youth newly arrived in the United States apnd from lower
socio—economic groups te develep strong positive bonds to our
society. Students can help provide opportunities that link them
positively with their sepeool. Such programs develop social
cohesion as volunteers Erom a broad range of socio-economic
backgrounds learn to york together. Community service programs
also give young people the opportunity to return something to a
society which has provided so much t© them a5 & birthright of
citizenship.

{3) Do students Care About Others?

Youth have an ippate concern For others and 2 desire to
improve their communities. The€Y have the willingness and the
capacity to help Fulfill America’s umnmet needs —= such as
tutoring the under-educated and "at risk” youths assisting the
elderly and the disabled and implementing projects to improve our
neighberhoods and our environment. Our schools can and sheuld
help stimulate and channel the positiwve spirit of cur youth to
serve athers. They can provide structured and supervised
opportunities for students to identify needs and learn to design

and carry out prolects that meet those needs as well as to

o
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reflect on the importance of service to cicizens of a free
society.

{4) What is the Value of Service to Society?

Millions of dollars of volunteer time can be provided hy
young people taking part in school programs offered as classes
and after school activities. Adult velunteers, working with our
youth and serving as role modelss can contribute millions of
additional dollars worth of service. Modest financial incentives
can encourage the creation ©f service programs involving youth as
the "muscle" to solve continuing school and community problems.

School-based Programs create adults who actively support
society and a society which actively supports our schools. They
provide us with ¢itizens confident ir their abilities., aware of
their responsibilities, and compassiconate toward others == the
cornerstone of a healthy, prosperous nation. -

{5) What is the Value of Service to Youth?

Our experience as well as other research demonstrates that
service programs stimulate intellectual development and academic
achievement by increasing motivation, providing a learning style
different from traditiopal school, stimulating greater retention
and helping students learn higher order reasoning/problem-solving
gskills. Youth community service programs have a powerful impact
on students from all seocic~economic groups. They huild self-
esteem, teach leadership and organizational skills, develop a
strong sense Oof community as well as respeonsibility, social

bonding, and improved relationships with peers and with adults.

%
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In addition to providing useful servicer research shows that the
provider develops a strong commitment to service and the skilla

needed to function effectively in the community.

{6) What are the Characteristics of Effective Erogramns?
Not all service programs are effective. Research conducted

by Diane Hedin and Dan Conrad from the Center f£or Youth
Development and Research, University of Minnesctar ecncludes that
there are S8ix egsential elemenes to effective community service
programs:

1. Community service must meet genuine needs: involve
tasks which both the students and the community deem worthwhile;

2. Community service must have real conseguences, where

others must be dependent on the students' actions:

3. Community service must present significant challenges:«

placing students in new roless in new environments. Calling on
new skills in situations that stretch their thinking both
cognitively and ethically;

4. Community service must require significant pgrsongl

responsibility and decision-making, where the srudents are in a

raal sense "in charge;”
5, Community service must involve gpllaborative effort
with gdults and/or peers:

6. Community service musL provide Systematic reflection on

their experiencess including extensive and ongoing discussion and

written analysis,

19-864 0 - 89 - 14
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Hational Activity
During the past five years, we have witnessed & dramatic

increase of interest in school-based service. We have received
hundreds of regquests for program information. Since our direct

interest is in encouraging growth of the K-12 school-based

" sectores wWe are working with a number of program sponsors to

create a pational communications network for this important
group. With a small grant from the Ford Foundation: we publish a
national newsletter for K-12 school-based programs to use for
sharing information and ideas.

We also enthusiastically suppart the Bush initiative and the
proposal by Senator Kennedy and his "Serve America” legislation.
We endorse and work with the conservation corps and colleges.

All American young people are an important resource and should
have the chance t0 help meet our nation's needs.

We endorse the jintent of the Title IV of 5.650 which calls
for the design of a comprehensive federal service strategy. We
alsc urge you to examine €xisting legislation now being
considered for authorization such as the Vocational Education Act
and the Job Training and Partnership Act and include enabling
language that will make youth service part of those programs.
Pennsylvania, under the leadership of Harris Wofford and John
Briscoer has already shown that creative leadership can make a

difference in the use of Title II, B, Summer Youth employment
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money nnder the JTPAr but this committee must institptionalize
service a3 appropriate for use of existing dollars.

Last yéar community service was included in the
reauthorization of Chapter II of the Education and Secondary
Education act., Chapter II should also include language which
encourages service for all studentsr kindergarten through twelfth
grade,

Other legislation being considered such as the Panetta Bill
#HR717r which would Support part-time programs with a portion of
appropriated fundsr zhould be approved this year as a part of a

comprehensive effort to stimulate service for youth,

Youth service should become an explicit but integrated part

of all appropriate federal programs. It can help teach basic
skills incleding language: it socializes young people in
mainstream American values) and it is a theme which shoyld be
emphasized throughout American life and encouraged whenever
possible by government at all levels.

All American young people should and can help meet vital
needs in human and environmental services. Every student who

wishes to serve should have the chance to do so.

Constitutional Rights Foundation
601 South Kinsgley Drive

Los Angeles, CA 30005

{213) 487-559%0

June, 1989
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Chairman MarTINEZ. Mr, Clark?

Mr. CLARK. Yes?

Chairman MARTINEZ. Before you do that, the Chair is going to
exercise a_prerogative here. We have a fellow colleague with us
who would like to introduce his Massachusetts constituency, and
he probably has a hectic schedule, as all of us do, so I am going to
ask Mr. Jones to move over to where this young lady is on this
side, and then would the young lady come over to the other side?
Could we separate that chair where the young lady is going to sit,
a little bit, to allow Mr. Neal.

Congressman Neal, we welcome you to the committee. We would
& to give you the oppertunity to introduce your constituency at

is time.

Mr. Near. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and distingnished mem-
bers of the committee for the gracious manner in which you have
received us this morning.

My role here is to introduce three of the principle reasons for the
success of Community Service Learning in the city of S%ringfield.

As you probably know, Bill Ford and I are sponsors of H.R. 2501,
which is the House version of Senator Kennedy's Serve America
legislation. In some measure, we can make the argument this
morning that what has happened nationally has been modelled
after a program that we inaugurated in the City of Springfield
while I was maggr. .

Community Service Learning in the City of Spri.r%ﬁeld takes
place from kindergarten through the twelith grade. Programs of
this magnitude, however, only succeed with enormous enthusiasm
from the staff.

The administration, the teachers, and the students have made
this, in my judgment, one of the most outstanding initiatives that
has taken place in the City of Springfield in many, many years.

Carol Kinsley, who was a founder of the program; Michelle
White, who has done extraordinary work as a teacher in the
Springfield Public Schools, and Sandra O’Strander, who is one of
the reasons that the program is so successful.

They are among us this morning to point out the “highs” be-
cause there have been no “lows” in this initiative. I am very confi-
dent that in this session of the Congress, that, at least from the
House side, some version of community service learning will be ap-
proved. Certainly, the President, while he has a different version,
and Mr. Smith of Vermont, have demonstrated extraordinary in-
terest in this initiative as well.

I believe that in this Congress, there is going to be some sort of
legislation supporting community service learning, and, with that,
I thank you for the generosity of your time, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you, Congressman Neal. With that,
we will return, then, to Mr. Jones,

Mr. JonEes. First, sir, I would like to thank you for letting me
have this opportunity—— .

Chairman MarTinez. Oh, excuse me, Mr. Jones. You had gtarted
to introduce him. Would you like to do that?

Mr. CLark. I was going to add to what I said, that Michael was
involved for several years in our community service program at
Fremont High School. He graduated last year. Qur program has

4319 ..




415

become a tradition in his family. He may mention that in his state-
ment.

He presently works for Pep Boys, which those of us from Califor-
nia know to be a very well-known auto supply organization in
Southern California.

I might say publicly, and thanks to Michael, that he comes from
a very difficult part of Los Angeles and a very tough high school,
and Michael single-handedly kept our community service program
going at his high school, which is the reason we selected him to
come here today.

Michael?

Mr. Jones. First of all, I would like to thank you, sir, for letting
me having this opportunity to speak, and to all of the committee,
and all o the rest of the members of the House.

My speech is on the Impact of Youth Service.

Hi, my name is Michael Jones. I graduated from Fremont High
School last year in Los Angeles. For two and a half years, I was a
member of Fremont’s Youth Community Service, YCS, a program
sponsored by the Constitutional Rights Foundation.

I joined because I heard how YCS helps people, and, most of all,
our schools and communities. In- my community, kids drop out of
school because things in the family go wrong. I have seen kids—
even my friends—get involved with gangs and drugs. This leads no
where, except maybe death or jail. There is no life, no future, a life
time of suffering.

I think drugs and gangs are a waste of time. We have to offer
kids something else instead. Community Service can help students
feel good about themselves, by keeping them active in school. YCS
is taking a big step to help students get away from gang-bangers.

I brought my friend, Sam, into the program. Sam was on the
verge of Joining a gang. He did not. I talked him into joining YCS
instead, which he did, until he transferred into another s hool.

Volunteering is the way to find out what is in the community
and to do something about it. When I joined YCS, there were few
members. This made me frustrated because there are so many stu-
dents at Fremont High. I realized that having a few members is
not bad at all. More important, is that they are willing to get out
and help someone in the community less fortunate than ourselves.

As a new YCS member, I was nervous about speaking in front of
a group. Slowly I began to share my ideas, and in my senior year, I
was selected president of our YCS group.

YCS gave me the opportunities to learn and practice skills I did
not do In my classrooms. I learned about leadership and coopera-
tion, how to organize, plan, and run meetings, make and follow
agendas, how to publicize events, recruit volunteers, being creative,
and solving problems.

I found out about what my community needs and how to make
things happen. As President of the group, the message I tried to
get across at our YCS meetings is to have commitments. This is
i.rl?ty important, especially when you try to accomplish your goal in

e.

Having a goal is useless unless you have commitments to follow
through and be competent that you will succeed.

420 ..
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- I wanted to get as many students to join as possible, so we could
expand and do more projects. As the weeks went by, I saw more
tn(:e_m_bers. We reached out to more students and encouraged them

oin us.

e brought Black and Hispanic youth together. We learned
about teamwork. As a group, we studied the community to find out
what needed to be done. Volunteer projects I have participated in
and helped start, include: Campus beautification, helping with stu-
dent elections, assisting the impact in their anti-drug campaign by
selling “Say No to Drug” buttons, hosting as a speaker for the
DARE Program, organizing a school-wide food drive with over 300
students donating food cans, painting out graffiti during wipe-out
weekend, which involved 1,000 kids through out Los Angeles.

Handing out water to runners at the Marathon; playing beat
ball with the blind children from the Braille Institute; collecting
clothing for the homeless.

These activities were, at the same time, fun and educational. I
easpecially like playing with blind children. It was an opportunity to
experience the good feeling that comes from deep inside the heart.

We learned that service sometimes involves taking risks. During
wipe-out weekend, 20 Fremont YCS volunteers painted out graffiti.
Many students were afraid to paint because of the £ members.
Many students did not even want to paint across g'?;] street from
their own schools. Some of us painted anyway. I felt sad for those
who were too scared to paint, but I understood.

YCS introduced me to all kinds of people from different back-
grounds, religion, and color. I made friends througk YCS. More
schools should have community service programs so students can
learn what I learned. Kids have a rough time up there. I see it
daily where I live. They peed programs like YCS. Schools need a
lot of activities to keep kids off the streets.

Teachers need to let kids know they care, and that they are
reall%;oved. Since high school graduation, I have been working at
Pep Boys Auto Parts Store, stocking auto parts and saving up to
buy a car, because I don’t have one.

I am interested in electronics, and would like to some day work
for ITT or Rockwell. I still volunteer. I have taken ideas from my
YCS experience, and planning projects through my church where I
am an active volunteer.

I am also a member in United Posse, a positive neighborhood
group. Recently, I joined the YCS Alumni Association, where I will
assist with conferences, leaderships, retreats, and helping Fremont
YCS groups during the next school year.

My activities at Fremont inspired by sister, Terry, to join. She
has geen active for three years, serving as president this last year.
My brother will start at Fremont next year, and will most likely
join YCS, too.

I can say Youth Community Service has developed my desire to
involve myself more with the community. I try to teach myself to
care and to help others. I feel good helping people out, and now I
know that I have faith in the young people, and the young people
can make changes for the better.

YCS shows you the need for people to unite to help our schools
and communities. If we do unite, there is nothing that cannct be
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accomplished. YCS teaches each member to be concerned with the
world of today and to make it a better place for the next genera-
tion.

[The prepared statement of Michael Jones follows:]
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Statement of Mr. Michael Jones, Student Volunteer, Graduate of
Fremont High School. constitutional Rights Foundation, Los
angeiesr california

The Impact of Youth Service

Hit My name is Michael Jones. I graduated from Fremont High
School in Los Angeles last Year. For two and a phalf years I was a
member of Premont's Youth Community Setvice {(¥CS), a program
sPonsored by the Constitutional Rights poundation. I joined
pecause I heard nhow ¥YCS helps people and most of all our school
and community.

In my community. kids drop ocut of school because things in
the family go wrong. I've seen kids, even my friends. get
involvad with gang~bangers and drugs. This leads nowhere =~ except
maybe death or jail. There is no life, mo futute -~ a lifetime of
suffering. I think drugs and gangs ate a waste of time. We have
to offer kids something else inst-ad.

Community service can help students feel good about
themselves by keeping them active in school. YCS is taking a big
step to help students get away from gang bangers. I brought my
friend Sam intc the program. Sam was on the vetrge of joining a
gang. He didn't. I talked him inte joining YCS insteads which he
did wntil he transferred to another school. Volunteering is the
way to find out what's in the community. and tc do something
about it.

When I joined YCS there wete few members. This made me
frustrated because thete are so many students at Fremont High. I

tealized that baving few members isn't bad at gii. More important




420

is that they are willing to get out and help someone in the
community — those less fortunate than ourselves, B

As & new ¥CS member I was nervous about Speaking in front of
a group. Slowly I began to ghare mY ideas and in my senior year I
was elected president of our ¥CS group. €S gave me opportunities
t0 learn and practice skills I didn’t do in my classes. I learned
about leadership and cooperation: how to Organizer plan and run
meetings., make and follow an agenda, how to publicize events.
recruit volunteers, being creative and solving problems. I speak
better now. I found out ahout what my community peeds and how to
wmake things happen.

As president of the group, the message I tried to get across
at our ¥C€S me¢etings ig to have commitment. This is wvery important
espacially when you try to accomplish your goals in 1ife. Having
a goal is useless unless you have commitment to follow throuwgh
and be confident you will accomplish it.

i wanted to get as many studepnts to join as possible so we
could expand and do more projectis. As the weeks went by I saw
more members. We reached out to more students and encouraged them
to join us. We brought Black and Hispanic youth together. we
learned about teamwork.

As a groupr We gtudied the community to find out what needed
to be done. Volunteer projects I participated in and helped stzr-t
include:

* Campus beautification projects

* Helping with student elections

ﬂ!w
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Assisting the Impact program in their anti-drug tampaign by
selling "Say Ho to Drugs™ buttons
Hosting a speaker from the DARE Program
Organizing a school-wide food drive with over 300 students
donating food cans
Painting oyt graffiti dnring WiPe-out-Weekend, which involved
1,000 kids thronghout Los Angeles
Handing ouk water to cnoners at the L.A. Marathon
Playing Beep-Ball with blind children from the Braille
Institute ©n weekends
Collecting clothing for the homeless.
These activities were at Lue same time fun and educational.
I especially liked playing baseball with blind childrenr it was
an opportunity to experience the good feelings that cope fram
deep inside the heart.
We learned that serviee sometimes invelves taking risks.

During Wipe~Qut-Weekend, 20 Premont ¥YCS volunteers painted out

graftiti. Many students were afraid to paint because of the gang

members. ManyY students did not even want to painkt across the
street from the school. Some of us painted anyway. I felt sad for
those who were too scared to paint, but I understood.

YOS introduced me to all kinds of people from different
backgrounds. religions: and colors. I made friends through YCS.

More Schools should have community gervice programs so
students can learn what I learned. Kjds have a rough time out
there. I gsee it daily where I live. They need programs like YCs.

Schools need a lot of activities to keep kids off the streets.
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Teachers npeed to let kids know they carer and that they are
really loved.

Since high school gradvations 1 have been working at Pep
Boys auto stores stocking auto parts gpnd saving up to buy a car,
peécause I don't have one. 1 am interested in electronies and
would like to someday work for ITT or Rockwell.

I still volunteer. 1 have taken jideas from my ¥CS experience

of initiating and p-anning projects to my church where 1 am an
-

agtive volunteer. I am also a member in United Posse, a positive
neighbarhocd group. Recentlyrs I joined the ¥CS Alumni Association
where I will assist with conferences. leadership retreats, and
helping Premont's ¥CS group during next school year.

My ¥C3 activities at Premont inspired my sistgr Terry to
join. She: has been agtive for 3 yearsr serving as president this
last yeur. My btrother will start at Fremont next year and will
most tikely join ¥CS, too.

I can say Youth Community Service has developed my desire to
enroll myself more with the community. I Ery to teach myself to
care and to help others. I feel good helping people out. Now 1
have faith in myself and that young pecple can make changes for
the better.

¥CS ghows you the need for people to unite to help our
schools and community. Tf we do unites there is nothing that
cannot be accomplished. ¥CS teaches each member to be concerned
with the world of today and t©O make it a8 petter place For the

next generation to come.




423

Chairman MagrTiNE2. Thank you, Mr. Jones. Let us then go to
Carol Kinsley.

Ms. KmisLey. Thank you Congressman Martinez, Congressman
Neal, thank you, and the staff.

It is definitely a privilege to be here today to present testimony
about Community Service Learning, which has become very much
a part of our lives in Springfield in the last year and a half.

We have really worked together as a team in Springfield, putting
together Community Service Learning. administrators, teachers,
and children, as Congressman Neal has indicated, have put togeth-
er a process whereby children learn about community service as
part of the educaticnal programn. We have been able to truly inte-
grate community service into the curriculum areas.

You heard earlier Mr. Shanker talk about the possibility of doing
things like this. We have had the opportunity to do it in Spring-
field, and it has worked in incredible W?&ws.

I would like to thank Congressman Neal for initiating this pro-
gram, and also to recognize what he saw was needed before other
people saw this as part of a national movement.

He saw that our students needed to gain a stronger sense of citi-
zenship and responsibility, and he recognized the need could be
met by involving students. You have heard this testimony, but we
began talking about this in Springfield in 1986, I believe it was.

As a young persen, he had been inspired by President Kennedy,
and he believed the new generation of youth needed to have that
opportunity to hecome involved in service. He provided strong lead-
ership for the effort in Springfield, and our nation is fortunate now
;(]) have him here in Washington, providing leadership on a nation-

basis.

One of the first things that we did in Springfield, to develop our
Communily Service Program, was to develop a mission statement,
which rezlly has driven the program. I would like to insert this tes-
timony, because I think it does have many of the aspects of the
goal!zl and objectives of what a community service learning program
can do.

The program in Springfield is developed to have students develop
an awareness, understanding, and appreciation of community, the
value of citizenship, and the responsibilities of the individual to
help others benefitting the community.

In all of our efforts, clearly, the purpose is to encourage in all
students a lifetime of applying habits to strengthen the communi-
ty, and enrich lives of all of its members.

We asked an 1l-year-old boy recently if he thought elementary
students should participate in community service, and his clear,
simple response became a text for our program. What he said he
was, “Yes, if you begin service when you are young, it will become
a habit.”

We read about that in a lot of the literature that is out on com-
munity service—the habit of the heart, the habits that can be de-
velc;ped, and here a young person felt that and said that spontane-
ously.

In Springfieid, as I said, the program is really part of the cur-
riculum areas. We have done things such as expand existing serv-

423
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ice programs, such as the canned food drives, which you probably
all remember participating in when you were youth.

What we are doing is, acknowledging the students’ effort, and
providing them with a sense of meaning and understanding of
what they are doing. Really, it is helping students learn by doing,
connecting, learning with what they are doing.

We have lots of outstandintg rincipals, but one of them, Virginia
Anderson, is the principal of 8hestnut Street Junior High School.
Her ohservation about community service—she runs her program
as a middle school concept, and what she said is, “I think what
community service learning has done for us is tied together all
those things we wanted to teach our children about caring for each
other, about a sense of belonging in their school and community. It
brings in the students’ own sense of history and develops a sense of
ownership, responsibility for our building and community, and
eventually our country.”

Unexpectediy, one of the things about tommunity service learn-
ing is, you do not always know what the outcome is going to be
when you begin a project, and the same thing is true about the
entire program.

Unexpectedly, Community Service Learning has found itself at
the center of defining a way to restructure the way learning takes
1Efllace. gim Kelsmyer, in the State of Minnesota, calls it the “Trojan

orse.

What it really means is, rather than passive classroom learning,
we provide active engagement to take place, and the theme or the
activity is the service, then the curriculum areas all can play a

part.

Students learn content area and skill-building through their ac-
tivities.

An exalél_ltple is, I think, thousands of letters have been written in

the Springfield Public Schools this year as part of the writing proc-.
ess, as part of the language art program; that they have been writ-

" ten to people, asking for food for the homeless; they have been

written to elderly people, sharing their thoughts and ideas.

One class wrote their memories of their childheod, and people
from the Jewish Nursing Home received the same assignment, and
th% came together and shared them.

e writing process has been a very, very important part of Com-
munity Service Learning.

In mathematics, students with the food drives have developed
graphs and wall charts to track what they have done, so, again,
they have reinforced some of the math skills that they have done.

One of the most exciting things that we have had happen this
ivear-and it just was completed—is, a group of eight teachers and

ut together resource activity units around themes, such as the
elderly, safety, environment, homeless, hungry, and citizenship.

These units will demonstrate to other teachers, how service
learning experiences bring the various curriculum areas together
to produce activity learning engaging students in learning.

t we have found is it enables teachers, it empowers teachers.
We have heard teachers say that over and over again. As they
become involved in service projects, they demonstrate leadership
capabilities in the development of the activity learning projects.
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They have seen the value of helping students become involved
and connecting meaning to what they are learning.

It also builds cornmunity. We have heard about the at-risk stu-
dents, who need support. This helped them. It builds within the
schools, the neighborhoods, and cities.

This year, we have had over 49 organizations that have become
part of our Community Service Learning Program. It builds self-
esteem among students. Students who accomplish a task for others
feel better about themselves.

A recent survey conducted by the research department in our
school system indicated that teachers are extremely positive about
what Community Service Learning does.

Comments' include: “Children have come to learn there is a
world outside their own. Doing is the most effective way to learn
about citizenship.”

Students have said, “What I liked was the feeling I had when I
saw the good things we had done.”

Based on the need, the potential impact on education, and the re-
sults of Community Service Learning, I urge and encourage this
committee to forward Community Service legislaticn to the House
of Representatives.

The 60 million students in the country will benefit, and ultimate-
ly we all benefit.

I want to thank you very much for the honor and privilege of
participating in this testimony today.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Carol Kinsley follows:]
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Statement of Carol Rinsley
Supervisor, Community gervice Learning

Springfield public schaols 7

Springfield, Masgachusetts

Submittec to the Education and Labot Compittee
of the House of RePresentatives

F
In support of House 8411 259%

June 28, 1¥8%

MY name {g Carol Rinsley, the gsupervisor of Community
Service Lesrning iR the Springfield public Schools in
Springfield. Massachusetts. I am Dlemsed to have the
opportunity to present testimony for the Houge Bill 2591 and
want to thank the members of Congress fot inviting me here.

During the past year and 3 half, I have been responsible
for planning and coecrdinating community gervice learning in
Spr}ngfield's forty schools, serving some 23,000 students.

We are an urhan school system, the second largest in
Kassachusetis, with & gehpol population of 66% minority and
40% white. W%orking together., with dozeng of administraters.
teachers., and students. a process has developed for Students.
kindergarten through twelve, to bacome more involved in their
home . schuol. and comrmunity, serving athets. Ny time sPent
in this posi.lion has be=n the most enriching peried in my
career, a5 I have seen the amazing results that can take
place when roung people begin to reach out beyond themselves
to others. My testimony jg based on "belng there® and seelng
the effect &f community service learning on young pecple.

The Springfisld Program was initiated by Congressman

Richard E. Neal. then., the Mayor of Springfield. He
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recognized. Be-_.i2 the povement gained national tecognition,

that our &tudents needed to gain a stronger ienss of

citizenshlp and tesponsibility; and he recognized thae this

need could be © by invelving students in tne community. As
a young perscn, he had been inspired by Pre-‘“Yant Rennedy;
and he belie' -~ the new generation of youth needed to have
the opportuni to become involwved in servire. He provided
strong leader p for the effort iR springfisid. and our
nation is fo- atz to have him providing leadership on a
national leve

The inte. - 3f the Community Service Learning Program in
springfield i. :o develep in students an awareness.
uvnderstanding and appreciation of community. the value of
citizenship, - the responsibilities of the ipdividual to
help others., rfiting the community. In ..1 out efforts.
clearly. the "pose is to encourage in all: students a
lifetime 0f - 7ing habits to strengthen the ccamunity and
enrich lives ~1ll its membexs.

Recently . aleven yegat old boy wag acked if he fsit
elementary s1  "~%s ghould participate in community sectvice
learning. Hi .ear, simple response becam. 2 text for us
and respeonds ~he stated purpose of g.n. 2591. He said.,
“yes, if you in service when you are young:r it wiil become
a habit." At '~ eleven, the tesponse came trom his heart.,

not from resac  Robert Bellah’s. Habits of the Heart.

In Sprir 2ld, each school is asked %> conduct sarvice

preiecis by - jra%ing sommunity setvice isarnine into the
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-, ficulus ateas. iZ 13 dene through a practical pragram
of study and community involvement. It expdnde an the

¢ 3ting service prolects such as the canned food and
clotning drives whicn students have been conducting for
decades. It acknowledges the students’ @fforts and provides
them with a genge of meaning and undarstanding. Students

br-..e anoaged in servi_ - activities and learn by doing.

Vicginia Ander. .. ihe principal ¢of chestnut Junior High

¢ .col, recently obsccved: "I think what [Community Service
Le¢ .7ning) has done f.r us is tie together all those things we
wtnted t0 teach our childron about caring for asach other.
abaut a sense of belonging in thelr school and community. It
bi-ngs in the student’s own sense of history and develops a
sense of ownership. respensibility for our building and
c~m~munity, and esven*al'y., eur country.,”
what we have d. .2 . Springfileld iz a&n example of part

A grassroobs aff~rt that is emerging in Vermont,

+.3ylvania, Washi..gtzs, Minnesota, Maryland and other

.i3%, At the samg t:me, we hear our national leadership.

-+dent Bush. Sen’ :or ®e~nnedy, and a hogt of congressmen
B .-.at. «2f youth surv.ze., Educational reform leaders are
al=g recommending that =tudents become involved in service
a ‘:vities. The Grenk Zcnmission’s report, The ForQotten
#... and the recent la...egie Corporation's report, Turning

- :nes: Preparing Auericzan Youth for the 21st Cehtury, hoth

= :ramend student irvelvement in service. With these reposts

sther wriktings, such as Albert Shanker's column on




PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC

429
"Wonder ful Ideas” in the January 8, 158% N.¥. Times
suggest thas when students become engaged in learning, they
hecome motivated learners.

UnexPectedly. community gervice learning has found
itself at the center of defining a way to re-structure the
way learning takes place. Rather than pastive classroom
learning, it provides a way for active engagement to take
place. The teacher hecomes a facilitator of information
assuring that academiec integrity is occcurring ard that
content area is learned. Teanwork and cooperative learning
takes place.

Communi ty service learning provides a way to unify
teaching and learning. The cencepts: skills:, and values
learned in readings language arts, mathematics. social
studies, and other subjects can be applied and reinfarced
with a service project. ror examPle, & traditional
non-perishable food drive was expanded to include curriculum
areas. In language arts, children wrote letters to their
parents about the fcod drive, wrote stories apnd poems aboul
geod nutrition, wrote reports about geod nutrition, 1In
mathematics, students dsveleoped a large wall g@raph to chart
the progress of the drive. In music, a special Bong was
written for children te sing. In social atudies, classes
discussed the PRIDE concepts of good citizenshiP throughout
the project. In health, students attended grade level
programs about Qocd putrition, and students divided the

non-perishahle food icems or food pictures into the four




basic food groups. *n art., children made collages, mohiles
and poeters ahout the drive and good nﬁi!!tioﬂ!"?hey also
illustrated storiez or poems related to the unit. When the

starLf person from Open Pa=~try received e food, he

. N e )
commended the children for thelr effnrts and .fplained the

meaning of giving to the homeless and hungry.

Walter Hoinoski, the teacher, suggested that the
learning expéiience can bhe used as a teaching unit for
continuous learning and 1dentified the ways the community
servic; learning project increased the students’ knowledge:

1. awareness of the responsibilities each citizen has -

to help thoze in need.

the gelf-esteem of each child wag enriched by
helping gthers and accomplishing goals.

the children became more aware of good mutrition and
the importance of a halanced diet,

the feeling of a spirit of cooperation working for a
common good permeated the school.

the cooperative effort of parents, teachers,
studants, community agencies and administration were
successfully accomplished and documented.

A group of eight teachers and I have just completed a
curriculum writing workshop, funded by our business Sponsor.
Milton Bradley Company. As a result, the school system will
SO - £l
have a geries of resource activity unitg based on the themes
of environment, safety., slderly., homeless and hungry. and
citizenship. The units will demonstrate to other teachers
how gervice learning experiences bring the various curriculum
areas together to produce activity learning engaging students

in learning and helping gain them gain a sense of self worth

by doing for others, bringing a feeling of joy and
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undecrstanding o the learning expsrience.

Accivity learnlng is not new., (Ralph Tyler wrote about
it in 1949) however, it hag been put an the back bucner in
schoels becaunse of pressures from the state and others to
produce quantifiable rest results. What gecvice learning
doets is provides a connection with reality and educates the
whole persom.

Community sgervice learning BUILDS. It enables teachers.
As they become involved in service projects, teachers have
demonztrated their leadership capabilities in the development
ot ac€1vity learning projects. They have geen the value of
helping students become involved in connecting aesning to

what they are learning.

It builds community. It builds within the schools.

nelghborhoods and city. Relationships have developed berween
citizens’ councils and schoolsr parents and s¢hools: between
the eldecrly and gtudents:; between junicr high schoel students
and elementary sctudents/ among teachers.

It builds sslf eeteem among students. Students who
accomplish & task for others feel better 2bout themselves.

A tecent survey: conducted by the Research Department jin
the school system: indicates that teachers are extremely
positive about community service learning. Comments includs,
"children have come to learn there i8 a warld cutside theirc
own." "Doing is the maost effective way to leatn about
citizenship.® A sample of student responses in the survey

included, "How happy people 9et when others helP them.”




" hat T liked was the feeling I had when I saw the good
thinge we had done.” ' \

paced on the need, the potential impact on education an&
wne results of community eervice learning, I urge and
encourage the Committee on Education and Labor to forward
B.R. 2591 to the Eouse of Repressntatives for Dassadge. The
60 million students in the United States will benefit, and.
uLtimately,‘we all benefit.

I want to thank you a1l for 9iving me this opportunity
to share Sp:ingfield's community service learning experience

with you.

.1'[EI{\V
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SPRINGFIELD TOWMNSHIP SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL
MONTGOMERY COUNTY Principal
Josoph P. Schwaorts, Ed.L
Ass Principal
VA01 €. PARER MILL RO AD FRONE. 215.733.5030 Rosamatis Retacca
FROEHHEIM. P& 12010 Atfilatic Olcactor
Mariin Marshy

June 26, 1989

U. 5. House of Representatives
Education and Labor Commitice
2181 Rayburn H.O.B.
washington, D.C. 20513

Attention: Gene Sofer
Dear Members of the Education and Labor Committee:

This is @ letter in support of The Service of America Act of 1989,
Springf leld High School has had a community Service program for twenty
years. Each year academically eligible Seniors are excused from classes
for the last three weeks Lo participate in educational and service Projects
throughout the community. This year because of our grant from
PennSERVE (Pennsylvanta’s community Service agencty) we were able to
provide students with the opportunity to work with the bomeless in
Philadeiphia.

In cooperation with the Philadelphia Commijtee for the Homeless at
802 North Broad Street, a Leam of gight students and on2 teacher worked
each day distributing mail, cigthes, food and other Supplies to homeless
people. In addition to mastering the necessary tasks, the students also
learned to communicate with Paople they might have passed by on the
street,

In education today we often speak of “at-risk” students and mean ihose
who are disadvantaged. But students from middie class backgrounds such
as students (rom scheols 1ike SPringfield High School can also be
considered "at-risk.” Unless schoo!s devise ways for Students to interact
with peoPle who come from backgrounds different from their Own, the
“risk” is that they might never come in contast with them.
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Volunteering their time and effort 1S of benefit te both those who
receive the service and those give it. AS one of our students said, “Being
seventeen | didn't think there was much that | could do ghout
homelessness. Now ! know there 15" Another $aid that if tne School did
not have this Program she would not have thought of volunteering, but now
that she has done it once she would be more willing to do it again.

How proguctive it would be if we could devise way5s for our students to
work with others, students and non-students in productive service [0
needy people. | have to believe that this would be PerSonally beneficial as
well 3s good for sociely as a whole.

| have enclosed @ CoPy of the booklet gescribing the Program ang its
operation. We also have a rifteen-rminute videotape that includes footage
of the students working at the Philadelphia Committee for the Homeless.
If you are interested in having a coPy of it, piease let me know.

Very truly yours, %
G G

Rosemarie Retacco, Ed. .
Assistant Principal

S

“rederick J. Colvin
Director of the Living and Educational
Experience Program
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LIVING EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE PROGRAM HANDBOOK

Table of Coptepts

PUrPOSE. ..o e e
Objectives

APPICALION PrOCOOURES....ce e s et tisssss st esenssmassrassamens

How to Qualiiy........

Siudent ReQuirements for
RemMaining i the Programi... s

Teacher SPONSOr RESPONSIBINILICS. s e eesene e
Community Sponsor Responsibilities

LEEP Coordinator ResPonsibilities

Directions on HOw tO WIite @ Proposal. .o cossesssensss

Agreement and Appiication Forms

PROGR A COORDINATOR: M. Frederick J. Colvin
TalePhone 233-6034
233-6030
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PURPOSE
In accordance wilh the educational Phitosophy of the SPringfield
TownshiP school district, the Living Educational ExPerience Program is
established to Provide, "a variety of additiona) activities and experi-

ences through which each student may pursué individual interests and

.discover his ability ror Jeadership.”

The program is designed to give students an insight into the working
world by providing the oPPortunity {0 use the businesses angd non-profit
agencies of the community tp broaden their education, to learn skills
which are integral to a specific industry or service anc t& develoP
vocational interest.

OBJECTIVES

. To provide real work experience that will Permit the student to aPply
skills that have been learned in school.

. To subPiement the formal education of the student with skills that are
unique to @ particuiar job.

. To permit the student to discover and expiore vocational interests.
To encourage the student {0 seek involvement in the community.

To exPand the educational value of the school curriculum through the
inclusion of facilities and personnel not available in the high school.

. To allow the student to participate in an experience which will aliow
him {o use his own judgement and skill.
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APPLICATION PROCEDURES FOR ACCEPTANCE INTO
THE LIVENG EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE PROGRAM

i. Three coPies of the apPlication and ProPosal must be combPleted and
turned in to LEEP Coordinator on or before April 21,

2. The application must be signed by the student. the Parent, and the
community sponsor.

3. The aPPlication and attached proposal will be presented to the
evaluation committee ror aPProval or rejection.

The criteria for judging ProRosals will be:

a. Must be a valid educational exPerience, i.e., the Student must
learn something from the experience. Non-educational
experiences will not be accepted.

b. Must De a bonafide non-Paid eéxperience that reduires four weeks
release time from schoal.

€. Must be 2 ProPosal substantiated by the student’s inierests.

4. Upon acceptance into the Program, the student and parents will be
notiried.

S. A letter, together with a copy of the signed application and Proposal,
will be sent to the community sPponsor.

HOW TO QUALIFY FOR THE L!VING EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE PROGRAM
1. You must attend the orientation meeting.

2, You must be in the twelfth grade, passing 2L subjects, and have a
2.0 average.

3. you must find your own communily sponsor who agrees to provide a
program Of spund educational value five hours a day. five days a week,
not inciuding lunch, Tor the four weeks duraticn of the program. No pay

dERIC

JAruiToxt provided by ERIC
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is permitted.
. You must have parental permission.

- You must submit an apRlication and Probosat in triplicate as outlined
in the LEEP apptication procegdures.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS

. Students of the senlor ¢lass are given a grouP orientation and
application materials are distributed.

. Students seek and obtain a community sponsor. LEEP coordinator
will have a list of former sPonsors and leads which will be furnished
selectively o students on 2n individual pasis according Lo interest
and suitability. :

. Student makes formal application. This application together with a
proPosal staling the reason for undertaking the project, and tnhe
activities connected with the Project myst be submitted in TRIPLICATE
to the LEEP committee.

. Review of all applications will be made; high priority will be given to
the educational value of the project.

. Contact wili be made with each community Sponsor for final
verification and understanding of the Project.

. A list of al| accepted students will be Published and all teachers will
notify the LEEP ¢oordinator if any student on the 1ist is in danger of
failing to meet graduation reguirements.

. Parents will be notified.
. All accepted students will attend a final orientation.

. At the orientation meeling. students will receive a sign-out sheet
which must be signed by all subject and homeroom teachers, librarian,
guidance counselor, and nurse indicating approval and verifying that all
obligations have been met. These Sign-out Sheets must be returned to
h rdi [ Wi i

informatjon to be given to the communitv sponser on the first day of
LEED.
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10. The student will be required to report to the school at times and
places agreed upon by the faculty sponsor and himself, In addition,
the student will keep a DAILY LOG and PrePare 2 WRITTEN REPORT
based on his experience.

11, The student will be visited on the Project 1gcation by thz teacher
Sponsor.

12. On the last day of LEEP the student will Present his 109 and written
report to his teacher sponsor.

13. Final evaluation will be made by the teacher Sponsor based upon
interviews with the student, weekly progress sheets submitted by the
community sponsor and the successful completion of ail requirements.

PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC
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STUDENT REQUIREMENTS FOR REMAINiNG IN THE PROGRAM

. The student must keeP 3 daily 109 and PrePare a written report.

. The student will be required t0 have clothing abProfriate for the job.

. The student must assume full resPonsibility for being present at the

times, dates and places for all meetings, work sessions, seminars
and individual conferences designated by the teacher sponsor.

. The student must be on time and regular in atiendance on the job and

notify both the emPloyer and LEEP coordinator if he will pe absent. In
the event of an absence, 3n absence note Signed by the Parent must be
mailed to the LEEP coordinator.

. The student must provide his own means of transPortation to and from

the job site.

. The student will rePort Problems of any 50ri, developing because of

project, directly to the teacher sponsor or to the Program coordinator
25 s00n as possible.

. The student must attend a {ina) group meeting at a designated time

and piace to turn in the written report and log in addition to filling in
an evaluation form.

. The student must aiways be aware that he or she is & rebresentztive

of 5pringfield High Schoel and must conduct himself in Such a manner
as to bring credit to the school.

. At no time may the student be in the building without authorization.

. The student must be working the required hours and not receiving any

pay.
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TEACHER SPONSOR RESPONSIBILITIES
. Wil assist in the task of evaluating student proposals,

Will call employers during first week of program Lo ascertain that
student is attending.

. will act a5 a liaison between community sponser and the sChool.
. Wil visit each student on Project location.

. Will maintawn a file on each student.
. Wi hold 'meetings with students when necessary.

Will keep the coordinator advised 0f Problems with students as they
arise.

. Wil notify the LEEP coordinator of the successful comPletion of a
project and make a notation on permanent record card of each assigned
student.

. Will fill in a summary and évaluation form at the end of the program.

. Will have two days rieased time In which to make S visits per day.
Student load will be based on number of visits reQuired and
accessibility of 1ocation, but will not exceed five vists per day.

CLASSROOM TEACHER RESPONSIBILITIES

. Notify the coordinator if any student listed for the program is
ingligible due to failure in a course or has outstanding obligations.

Check the LEEP list against Class 1ist to make sure each LECP sepior
signs out.

EI{ILC

P i 15~-864 0 - 8% - 15




PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC

444

COMMUNITY SPONSOR RESPONSIBILITIES

The community slionsor wilt agree to Provide an oPPortunity ror the
student which will require five hours a day for five days a week for
the duration of the Program.

. The community SPon Sor will sign 2 weekly Progress sheet Provided by
Springfield High School. This sheetl will indicate attendance,
punciuality. comments, etc.

.

The community Sponsor will meet with the teacher sponsor at least
once during the Program.

The community sponsor will communicate all absences to the LEEP
coordinator.

The community sponsor will contact the LEEP coordinator concerning
any problems encourtered by oF with 2 student or Problerns with ihe
program 1tself.

The community sponsor will fill in 2 final evaluation form on the
student and the Program.

LEEP COORDINATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

PrepPare a2nd have printed orientation pamPlet and apRlication blanks
fer distribution ai senior assembly.

. Advise students and answer questions.

Evaluate student ProRosals with help of committee.
Publish tist of accepted students and notify faculty.

Notify parents and students.

. Held a meeting of 211 LEEP students Prior to start of projects.

Prepare information packet to be sent Lo community sponsor.
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. Make final decision concerning withdrawal of student from Program
ana notify faculty of any student withdrawn from program
immediately.

Track down problems and handie difficulties.

Assist In visitations to community sponsors.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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How TO WRITE A LIVING EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE PRDPOSAL

In order for your application to be condsidered, a proposal of your project
must be submitted. This proposal should be neatly typed (3 copies).

USE THE FORMS.
i. REASON FOR UNDERTAKING THE PROJECT

In one to three paragrabhs, state your reasons for undertaking the
project, and indicate why the project is an important one.

ACTIVITIES

List the activities in whith you will be engaged on your Project.
BE SPECIFIC in telling what you will be deing. T your Project
includes research, indicale the methods you will yse,

. EDUCATIONAL OUTCOMES

Indicate how you exPect to benefif from the Successiul completion
of your projecl.

If you need further helP with the preparation, you are urged to ask a
{aculty member for assistance.

Make THREE coPies of your proRosal and attach one to EACH of the THREE
copies of the LEEP application and agreement.

IMPORTANT YOUR APPLICATION, PROPOSAL AND AGREEMENT
(THREE COPIES OF EACH DOCUHENT) MUST BE IN
THE HANDS OF THE LEEP COORDINATOR ON OR

BEFORE APRIL 21.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




PREPARE THREE COPIES OF THIS PROPOSAL

| LRI
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LEEP APPLICATION

PROGRAM BEGINS: PROGRAM ENDS:

Name of Student Date

please Print
Homergom and room number

Homergom Teacher

Home Address

Street Address

City State 2ip Code

Home TelePhone

Community Spornor.

Please Print the pname of the Person

Name of Business Or Agency

Business Address

Street Address

City State Zip Code

Business Telephone

HOURS OF ATTENDANCE FROM: T

Be fpecific — Give Exact Hours

WORK TIME MUST BE AT LEAST S HOURS A DAY,
S DAYS A WEEK, NOT INCLUDING LUNCH.

MAKE THREE COPIES OF THIS APPLICATION




Q
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The student agrees to assume full responsibility for being Present at the
times, dates and Giaces for all meetings, work sessions, seminars and
individua) conferences designated by the teacher sPonsor.

The student agrees to maintain a diary and notebook summarizing his
learning activities and Progress.

The student agrees to write a report based on his experience.

The student agrees not to accePt Pay for any work Performed under this
program.

The community Spensor agrees to confer Wil teacher SPonsSor or other
schoot of(icials concerning the Prograss of the student and the evaluation
of the work and performance.

The community sPonsor agrees to Titl ‘n 2 Tinal evaluation sheet on the
student.

The parent agrees {o provide necessary transbortation,

The parent agrees o relieve the School of the responsibility for accidents
which occur of f the school Premises.

This agreement may be modified By the mutual written consent of the
sponsors and student.

Failure to adnhere to this agreement will be considered a breach of good
{alth and grounds for terminatfon of the agréeement. IT the Student fails to
fulfill the terms of the agreement, he will be expected to return to
regular classes, make up the work missed, and be responsible for taking
apprupriate examinations.

SIGNATURES:

STUDENT DATE
PARENT OR GUARDIAN DATE
COMMUNITY SPONSOR DATE
LEEP COORDINATOR DATE

HAVE THREE COPIES OF THIS AGREEMENT SIGNED
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Chairman Martinez. Thank you, Ms, Kinsley. Ms. White?

Ms. Kinsiey. Before I close, I want to share with you a poster
that a fourth grader and her family designed, and then we had
printed, courtesy of Milton-Bradley, our sponsoring company,
which shows Community Service Learning depicted.

Of course, it is in the form of a flag, but it has the symbols of all
the different kirnds of things that students can do in service.

It says, “Helping hands, touching hearts, feed the hungry, house
the homeless, clean the air and the water, stop crimes and drugs,
love and Yeace for all people together.”

We will leave that with you, and others as well for people who
are interested in having them, and also brochures describing our
program.

airman MarTivez. Thank you very much.

Ms. KivsLEY. Yes.

Chairman MARTINEZ. It sounds like a great poster for naticnal
service.

Ms. Kinsiey. It is wonderful, and the fact that a student and her
family did it together, I think is very special.

Ms. WHITE. It is quite an honor for me to be here, representing
the teachers of the world. Most of my teachers would consider this
a miracle, because I was the kid who sat in the back of the room
and never raised by hand because ! did not have the confidence.

What has happened for me, being involved in community service
for the past year and a half—and I have to thank Congressman
Neal for this, because he has given me the courage to speak out for
what works for children in the classroom, and I am very happy to
say that to you people in the education committee, because you
need to hear it. ‘

We lLave to do some things in our classrooms that keep children
in school.

T have listened to a lot of people talk about dropouts. We see the
statistics of when the kids actually walk out the door, because they
are of age. We are losing our children in kindergarten and in first
grade. They cannot drop out. They have to stay in the classrooms.

Some classrooms are very stimulating and exciting, and some
classrooms really need more hands-on activities. That is what Com-
munity Service Learning provides for the children in our country—
hands-on activities, relevant to what they need to learn in life.

It brings life into the classroom, children respond to it in a way
that has been incredible for me to see as a teacher.

I thought it was okay for me to sit in my classroom and do won-
derful things with my children—and it was. But when I had the
opportunity to be a resource teacher and to go to all of the elemen-
tary schools in the City of Springfield, Massachusetts, there are so
many children out there who need to have the same opportunity.

Qur kids, kindergarten on up, and, of course, before that, but es-
pecially when they get to school, if they are just given the opportu-
nity to be nice to somebody else, they will do it, because they are
born naturally caring.

We have to give the'.: that opportunity in our classrooms. We
just cannot sit them down and say, “Open to page 45,” and expect
them to learn. It is not workin%:‘ ur kids are telling us that when
they drop out of school, when they commit suicide at 12 years old,




when we have children having children. We have to take a look at
how we are educating them, and what kinds of activities we are
providing for them at school.

I have to respond to the untapped—in fact, I read the bill on the
way in this morning, and I have to congratulate Carol Kinsley, be-
cause I realized what a phenomenal job she has done, lg)uI;I;ing this
1;:‘i'ogram together so that it actually works in the public schools,

indergarten through 12th grade. Please come to Springfield, Mas-
sachusetts, because it does work.

She is an incredible woman, and I told her that, because all year
long, working together, I do okay speaking, but Carol says, “Mi-
chelle, we've got to write it.” I said, “Carol, I can’t write it. This is
about taking action and doing things that work. Elementary school
teachers do not have time to write 1t, they just do it.”

On the way in this morning, I saw the value of the written word,
and I had to thank her for that. She is an inspiration to me, just as
Congressman Neal is an inspiration to me as a teacher. What a
challenge he has given to me as a teacher, as far as community
service goes, and just getting kids involved in education.

We have to provide role models for our children. Do you want
your kids to go into teaching? Put good teachers in front of them in
the classroom. All this untapped—I wish I could remember what
you said—the untapped resources we have available in our chil-
dren. Never mind in our children. We have wonderful, creative, dy-
namic teachers, who should not be doing paper work. They should
be engaging kids in activities that work for them.

Mr. Sopher and I had this conversation one time about too much
paper work. He asked me if the Federal Government should fund
community service in the schools, and he said, “You'll have to have
accountability, and you'll have to do all these other volumes of
things,” and my mind went, “Oh, my gosh, I know what that
means to a teacher. More paper work.” So I said, “Absolutely, but
send the gecretaries along to do it so the teachers can work with
the kids and involve them in learning, never mind writing pape»s.”
I know the value of the written word now.

Self-esteem. There is no way I can describe to you what hap-
pened at the school I taught at last year, which was 83 percent His-
panic—89 percent minority. All I kept hearing was, “They can’t do
it. These kids are going home to terrible homes. There is graffiti,
there is mess.” Congressman Neal even told me—we had a parade
right down one of the side streets, and he said, “I never thought I'd
see it in this area.”

I heard so many times that they can’t do it. I said, *Qjve them a
break.” If we change our attitude about what our children can do
and give them the opportunity to do it, they will shine. I don’t care
how old they are. I am taiking to you people right here. It’s not
about age. It's about what's in your heart and what you want to
acooml!l)hsh.

Michael, I have to commend you, because if you are the only

persen in your class who continued that program, it only takes one

g:rson to take the leadership role, and to stand up for what they
lieve works, so don’t ever stop doing that.

That is the kind of attitude we need to instill in our kids. Com-
munity Service Learning does it. i focuses on positive things, it in-

3 6
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vites the community into the classroom. At Lincoln School, we did
not have a PTQ, we hardly had anything there, and we worked

ve .

F(’thunately, what we did have was wonderful teachers, who
were willing just to get back in there and keep doing things with
the children.

Half way through our project last year, the president of the Citi-
zen’s Council came to our school because he heard that wonderful
things were happeninﬁ there. That is how %ou get people to come
into school, in a non-threatening way. Somebody said, “Community
Service was threatening.” Or maybe I heard that wrong.

At the end of our project last year, we had 46 people join up for
the PTA, which was unheard of. This year, they had 30-something,
which is doubled. That is how you get people into the schools in a
non-threatening way. Provide activities that are fun and that wel-
come people to work together as a community.

It brings life back to the classroom, as I said. It encourages kids
to work together as a team, and be part of the solution. Like Todd
said, instead of part of the problem, our children are capable of
doing it, and we have to provide them the opportunities to do it.
; I will just say one more thing, because it is probably time is up

or me.

What we have been doing in the elementary schools, and you
probably do it many places around the country. I am just going to
take the canned food drive for an example.

Usually, this is the way it used to be. You say, “Bri.nf in the can
of food,” and the kids would bring in the can of food, if they could.
They had no idea what they were doing. The cans of food would be
there, piled up in the halls, and the kids didn’t know where they
were going, and who was going to eat it.

This is where the community service comes in. When you ask
them to bring in food for the food drive, then you teach them who
is going to eat the food, or what is going to happen to it, or what
are the places in your area that can use the food.

Then you actually let the children give the food to the people.
You can do it two ways. You take them to the shelter, or you can
invite the people from the shelter into the schools to thank the
children, acknowledge the children. Let them see that what they
are doing, that caring is okay. That is how you build self-esteem in
f(;.h.illctl:lren. At least, that is one way that we know works in Spring-

ield.

After the children give the food, you talk about it in the class-
room. What did they experience as they saw these people, or as
they gave them the food? That is when you internahze it, that is
when our learning becomes valuable to children. Please bhelieve me,
if séou are nice to children, you get back what you put out with
kids. You get back what you put out.

Every teacher, and everyone who is involved with children really
needs to remember that, because they will do anything for you, if
ou encourage them and support them, and praise them, and ac-
owledge them, and give them opportunities to be givers, they
will do it.
Then we don’t have to spend billions of dollars on programs to
fix things up. If we start when kids come to school in kindergarten,

ey
5%
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and instill, and they feel this in their heart, the values are there,
we won’t have—1I really do not think we will have all the fix-it pro-

ams.

We have the kids there. They are a captive audience, all day. If
we do good things in our classrooms, this world is going to change,
and we won't have to spend a lot of money doing things to repair
it.

Thank you very muca. It has absolutely been an honor to be
here,

{The prepared statement of Michelle Lazarchick White follows:]
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Statament of Michele Lazarchick White
Resaurce Teacher, Community Service Learning
Springfield Public Schools
Springfielad, Masgsachugetts

Submitted to the Education and bWUOM Committee
of the House of Representatives

T
In suppert of House BiTIl 2591

June 28, 198%
My name is Michele Lazarchick White and I am =z teacher in
the mnﬁmwamnmwm Public Schools in Springfield, Massachusetts. I
am honepred and grateful to have the oﬂvounnumﬁw to present
testimony here today.

As a2 teacher I baelieve it is my respensibility to engage
the students I work with in learning experiences that matter.
Children must be offered opportunities to develop attributes
such as integrity, responsibility and caring for others. In
having a sznse of purpose, there i= a sense of knowing who yon
arel

buring the past year and a half, I have been involved with
the Community Service Learning program in our school system.
First, as an elesmentary classroom teacher acting as building
rapresentative tc coordinate service activities within my
school. And then, as a Resource Teacher servicing the 30
elementarxy schools in our systam. An exciting and rewarding
challenge! 3ne that I would wish for every teacher. I have
had the opporiunity to work with dynamic and dedicated teachers,
enthusiastic children, thirsting for knowladge, and adminis-
trators who have the huge reaspousibility of getting it all to
work in a way that best serves our children. An awesome task!
What I learned from the gtart is that it takes teamwork, sharing
of ideas ard suppor:t and encouragement to cregate a positive
atmosphere within our classrooms that allows all of our children
et learn and exparience success.

Q
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Wk 17 = gfeen and axperience’ as a @mmunity Service

teacher is ¢ way to bring life to thd. _c'l:ggr';ﬂ;m?amﬁldren
and teachers, working toge*“er to make wha€ we are teaching in
schoo! Lsiev At to raal life. aien Congressman Richard 2. Weal,
then, the Mz or of Springfield., vigorously sugdested that our
schools implamer* _pnu,. .. seozvice asg paﬁ‘;thé ‘eurriculum--

I wondered-- “at more <ar a teacher do! But the challenge was
once agi. « .epted ard rasults a-e outstanding!

Community Service Learning providas opporturnities for young
people {.ad .a) to view themselves 38 © tors “to society.
Good cit:ze. .iip traits bzcome part 6??3 BUrSSn*through action.
Young peopl can develo? self worth: gignificance,diqnity and
respons. .il ; as theY become committed to the Positive values
of help 1w i earing about others.

Commans 2y Service orifers students a chance to discover,
develop and lisplay their own unique talents and skills. We
all have th.n, and we must be encouraded to express and act on
the ver. be . that is in ns. Community Service offers all of
our ¢hi_3r¢ the oopertunity to succeed.

Co. -sk. Y Serviee., as it is integrated into the currieulum.
offers ... T us the opPertunity to work together as a team go
solve B - s in some cases:s before they occur. The focus is
on taki ; -izive action te bnild community within the school
and ext ~3&. : bevond in @ much more meaningful way. Sonme
people - dare £ think that Community Service is FUN1 It
allows © esf.cience and internalize the joy of significant
partie’ *akt: . in the world. There is nothing more mwotivating
than & %' ’

Co. -y Serviece has something to offer all of us and
that is #. '+ i2 erucial thar we offer it to our children as
soon Af =zl inter school. For some children it will be the
most M i iul experience of their life--for some teachers it
will e Dow . and enable them to take a stand for what works in
the ¢l =5~ .m, £or who knows better than a Qood teacher. For
some iv wi mear ergadement in activities that bring us all
togect - a spirit ©f cooperation that truly invites us to
partic "=* in education in a way that works for each of us.
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’ Community Sexvice Learning offers us an opportunity to renew
a sense of pride in ourselves. our schools. our community which
in turn ¢reates a better world for all to share.

Thank YOU Condressman Neal for the oppPortunity you have
givan gach ¢f us to make citizenship a habit of the heart. I
thank You for the personal challende you have preseénted tg me

~

as a taacher.
I wish to thank all af you for invitint me hara todaY.

and I urde vou to carefully consider the benefits of involving
our schools in Community Service Learning!

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Chairman Martinez. Thank you, Ms. White,

Just a brief comment before 1 move to Mr. Owens.

What you are saying, in a sense, is it is easier to educate and
motivate than to incarcerate.

Ms. Wmre. I will write tbat down.

Mr. MarTiNEz. Mr. Owens?

Mr. Owens. Mr. Chairman, I want to apologize to the two mem-
bers of the panel who have not spoken yet, but I have a very im-
portant meeting that I am late for, and I have to leave.

I was trying to wait to acknowledge Ms. Kong, who may not re-
member me, but I think when she first came to work for the city at
HRA, ! was a Commiss’~ner in one of the agencies and met her
then. It is nice to see Gail Kong.

I also want to state that these two panels—this panel and the
previous two people—are among the most inspiring and informa-
tive of the many witnesses that we have heard in tbis effort to
review the situation with respect to Youth Service and to prepare
for this very important legislation.

I want to thank the members of both 1!l)anels. I had a couple of
questions for Mr. Briscoe and Mr. Geraghty, but I got in too late.
You had gone onte the next panel.

I will pose the question for this panel as well as the previous two
persons.

That is, we have an agency that was established under President
Nixon, called the “ACTION Agency,” which is supgosed to be an
agency to coordinate volunteer services, sponsored by the Federal
Government, supported by the Federal Government.

Within the ACTION Agency, there is a very famous program
called VISTA--Volunteers In Service To America.

Mr. Briscoe made the revolutionary statement before that we
ought to build on what exists already, and ha proceeded to give us
some examples, but he did not mention either ACTION or VISTA.

I would like for you to consider and respond in writing, if you
can, what your impression of ACTION and VISTA is and what role
they may play in the future.

As you enumerate your individual efforts that are going on in
high schools and various other organizations, it gseems to me that a
supportive organization at the top, which supported existing ef-
forts, would be very much welcome. Action started out doing that.
Action had a large program of discretionary grants that went to
volunteer organizations that existed already. Is that obsolete? Does
it have a role now?

Also, I would like comments from both groups on the President’s
proposal to set up a foundation, which would rely very heavily on
private donations.

At the Federal level, you have an organization which ig going to
be soliciting charitable contributions, Is this counterproductive?
Does that mean we are competing with the organizations out there
already, that are trying to get contributions from the general
public and private sector? Or ig that good to have the Federal Gov-
ermment go into the business of soliciting from private donors, in
order to help facilitate what he calls the thousand points of lights,
and what you have been presenting here this morning, I guess the
President would consider some of those thousand points of lights.

5
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I do not like the phrase, but we must recognize the fact that
there are all of these efforts going forward, which are certainly ex-
emplary, and I would not like to see some massive program of the
kind that Senator Nunn is proposing, or even Senator Kennedy is
proposing, that ignores the fact that there are so many programs
that exist already which are doing a great thing.

I would like your responses to that in writing. Again, I apologize
for having to leave, but I want to thank you for being very inform-
ative and inspiring.

Chairman MarTingz. Thank you, Mr. Owens. You have heard
the questions, and we will leave the record open so that you might
respond to them in writing.

Let me just elaborate on what Mr. Owens is saying as far as the
huge bureaucracies and the Federal Government’s listing funds
rather than local communities soliciting funds on a local basis.

You usurp the local government’s ability to control locally and to

rovide where it is most needed, based on what they see as their
gefinite needs. I think the Federal Government has & role of pro-
viding the mechanism by which loecal communities can themselves
initiate action. That is important, as national leaders, that we
accept that role and responsibility and do that. I don’t think we
should be usurping local authorities and local judgments in decid-
ing what is best for their particular communities.
erefore, I see that our role is much like H.R. 717, as much as
designed in yours.

Qur bill addresses more the definite age group that does not en-
compass younger children in elementary schools, but I think that it
is never too young to start. I know that some of the lessons that I
learned at a very young age, still guide me and I maintain today,
and sets a pattern for a lifetime, so I think that is important.

As we receive the testimony, I want you to keep in mind that the
urpose of these hearings is to receive that testimony, so how we
inally develop that legislation in order to serve and to reach out to

the test number of people is what we end up doing.
ith that, I would like to go to Sandra.

Ms. O’STRANDER. Thank you. My name is Sandra O’Strander,
and I just completed fourth grade.

Lincoln School, where I attended, has a great Community Service
Learning program, which I think builds good citizens.

Every Friday, some students who have been helpful, get chosen
as a good citizen. They receive a surprise at the office, then at the
end of the month, all of the good citizens go to a pizza party. This
makes students try harder to be a good citizen.

At Lincoln School, we do the following community service activi-
ties.

We put together food drives for Prospect Street Shelter, Babies
%re Future, Ghundara Center, Jefferson Nash Shelter, and Grey

ouse.

The Director of the Ghundara Center came to Lincoln School for
the food. He thanked us and told us how the food would be given
out. He also suggested that if any children needed food, they could
come and get some.

During art time, the third graders made cards and flower baskets
for- the elderly at Baste Medical Center. Reaching out to the neigh-
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lé%rho%d church, the third graders picked up trash at St. Thomas
urch.

During English time, the first graders wrote stories to the elderly
people in the Baste Medical Center. At Halloween, we learned
about fire safety.

For the service project, we made safe treats, which we gave to
the children at the neighborhood hospital. A safety patrol was
formed as a result of the safety project. It turned into a good citi-
zen patrol, to find students who are doing good things.

These good citizens attended a pizza party at the end of each
month. The community became involved by their willingness to
donate pizzas. With Our Good Citizen Patrol we encourage to take
place in each school.

During art time, the second graders and third graders made
Christmas ornaments for the Ni‘;rch of Dimes. We gave party
favors and treats to Mr. Mays to share with the other firemen.
This is our way of thanking them for teaching us about fire safety.

Our Good Citizen Patrois also brought May Day flowers to the
Independence House for the elderly. We did all these things with
our great teachers’ help. This made us very proud, and the people
that received these things very happy, especially the elderly people
felt happy because most of them are very sick, and probably their
children and their children’s children moved away. What if you
were an elderly person and nobody came to visit you? It would be
pretty lonely.

After we delivered the flowers, we received a letter from Inde-
pendence House. It said: “On behalf of the residents of Independ-
ence House, we wanted to thank you for the beautiful May Day
flowers. The colors are so bright and cheerful, and they look profes-
sional. They are very pretty. There are flowers for sale in the
stores not as nearly as lovely as yours. Please come back again.”
That’s the end of the letter.

I am so lucky to be able to go to school like I can. The teachers
and the principal are so great. I hope that the law for service is
passed so that other children can help others.

You know, it doesn’t cost much. All you need is your heart.
Reach out and cheer people up.

[The prepared statement of Sandra O’Strander follows:]

»
-
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Statement of Sandra Q'Strander
Former Fourth Grade Student at Lincoln Schoel
Springfield Public Schools
Springfield, Massachusetts

Submitted to the Education and Lahor Committee
of the House gf Representatives

In support of Housae Bill 2591
June 28, 1989

BULLDING GOOD CITIZENSHIP THROUGH COMMUNITY SERVICE

My name is Sandra O'Strander and I just complefed fourth
grade. Lincoln School, where I attended, has a great
community secrvice learning program which I think builds good
citizens.

Every Friday some students, who have been helpful, get
chosen a5 & good citizen. They receive a surprise at the
office. Then, at the end of the month, all the geood citizens
go to a pizza party. <This makes students try havder to be a
good citizen,

At Linetoln School, we did the following community
service activities:

1. We put together a food drive for: Prospect Strest
Shelter, Babieg Our Future, Gandara Center. Jefferson
Ave., Shelter, and the Gray House., The director of
Gandara Center €ame to Lincoln Schoal for the foed. He
thanked us and told us how the £f0od would be given out.
He also suggested that if any children needed food the¥

could come and get some,
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buring act time, the third graders made cards and flower
baskets for the elderly in Baystate Medical Center.
Reaching put to the neighborhood church, the third
graders picked up trash at 5t. Thomas Church.

puring language time. the first graders wrote stories to
the elderly people in Paystate Medical Centsr.

At Halloween: we learned about safsty. FOr the service
project, we made safe treats which we gave to the
children at the ncighborhood hospital. A safety patrol
was formed a8 a regult of the safety project. It turned
into a good citizenship patrol to find students who are
doing good things. These 900d citizens attended a pizzs
party at the epd of each month. The community became
involved by their willingness to donate pi2zZas. The idea
of the good clitizen patrol will be @ncouraged to take
place in each school.

During art time, the second graders and third graders
made Christmas ornaments for the March pf Dimes.

we gave party favors and treats to Mr. Mays to share
with the other Eiremen. This was our way of thanking

them for teaching us about fire safety.

Our good citizen patrols alse brought May bay flowers to

the 1ndependence House for the elderly. e did al)
these things with our great teachers’ help. This made
us very proud and the people that received these things
wer: very happy¥. Especially the eiderly people felt

happy because most of them were very sick and probably
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. *heir chi’Iren and theic childeen’s children moved awiy.
what if v - ware an elderly person and nobody came to
visit you? It would bLe pretty lonely. Aftec we

liverg’ » flowers. we feceived 2 letter from

Sderendd .. 2 ﬁause. It said, "On behalf of the regident
S Imdepe :ace Houge, we wanted to thank you for the
~eaptiful "ay pay tlowers. The cgolors were so bright and
heetful, and they lock pcofessional, They are wery
Ltetty, v le are flowers £07 gale in Btores not as
uearly as  svely as yours. Please come back again.“
That'e the =pd of the lattar.
I'm 50 lucky to be able to go to a gchool like Lincoln.

The =-achers arn’ the principal acre so great! I hoPe that the

law fc 1 service i% Passed so ©ther children <¢an help cothers,

You ki, it d- 1'% cest much, all you peed is AEART!

£
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KCh%irman MARTINEZ. Thank vou very much, Ms. O’'Strander. Ms.
ong?
l\lig. KoNa. Thank you, Congressman Martinez.

My name is Gail Kong. I am the Executive Director of New York
City’s Volunteer Corps. It is a full-time service corps. We have 500
corps members, and we were started five years ago by Mayor Koch
as a demonstration program.

Tre purpose of his initial commitment was to test whether or not
natlonal service could work in an urban area, nd we are most
widely known for having experimented in completing human serv-
ice projects.

I appreciate this opportunity to testify, and I have submitted a
longer statement for the record.

The comments that I wan! to make this morning are in three
areas.

First, I want to convince you that young people really need na-
tional service or some form of commumty service to make a transi-
tion to a productive adult life. That service must be relevant to the
needs of young adults.

Second, while service should start in school, as you have heard
this morning, full-time service programs do offer a special opportu-
nity. Something that is distinctly different.

'i‘il:l':;.rd, I want to make some comments on President Bush’s pro-
po

In my 15 years of public service, it seems that everyone has an
ample supply of ideas and attitudes about kids, what is wrong with
them, what is great about them, how to fix their problems, lest
they become a burden to society.

Alyssa is a 19-year-old city volunteer. When she Jomed our pro-
Eram she and her baby brother, and her mother were living in a

otel for homeless families. She describes herself as not being very
productive at the time.

What does Alyssa need and what do we need from Alyssa? The
answers to these questions are inherent in the mission of the City
Volunteer Corps and National Servic:.

Young people, especially those who are falling behind, need an
opportunity to make a change. They want to be tested, and they
are not sure what they want for their future. They are attracted to
the City Volunteer Corps because it is tough, because it is high-
spirited, and i’ tests them.

It instills a sense of responsibility and sacrifice. Everyone wears
our uniform, rich or poor. They must successfully complete rigor-
ous residential training, attendance rules for service and school are
enforced, and you must be drug-free to join.

Because th ey often do not know what kind of work they want to
do, and because they are not educationally ready, we promise vari-
ety in their service projects.

When Alyssa finishes her year of service, she will have vastly in-
creased her experience with different supervisors, travelling
beyond the boundaries of hor .own neighborhood. She will have
worked side-by-side with youth fron. different backgrounds.

At the same time, we do not want Alyssa or any of her peers to
postpone education while they are in service, so we have a full
range of educational programs, from English as a second language,
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and Basic Ed, to GED, College Prep, and College Credit-Bearing
courses.

Some say National Service would take young people out of the
labor force just when we need them the most. Teens in New York
City, however, have a labor force participation rate of 25 percent.

Rather than taking them out of the labor force, we think nation-
al service holds the promise of reclaiming them.

These then are the things we think Alyssa needs. But leaving
her needs aside for a moment, America also has urgent needs.

When you look with an open mind, it will be obvious the Nation-
al Service can help meet some of thoge urgent needs, and we do
need more from Alyssa, than that she just complete her high
school education and be gainfully employed. Providing service is
something that we need fromn Alyssa and her friends.

Since our inception, City Volunteers have given nearly three mil-
lion hours of service to New Yorkers. We help the frail elderly,
tutor children in public schools, as we are teacher aids in day treat-
ment programs for the developmentally disabled; we turn empty
lots into community playgrounds, and enhance our public parks
with exercise courses and nature trails, so that they can be places
for reflection and living more healthful lives in an urban area.

People have expressed doubts that young people can actually pro-
vide service of real value. One critic I heard on television actually
spluttered that “work cannot be done by children but must be done
by highly skilled licensed professionals.”

Apuroaching from the polar opposite direction, others are con-
cerned that youth involved in National Service will displace work-
ers, and we heard a lot about that earlier this morning, especially
workers at the lower end of the scale.

So which is it? Can kids get themselves together enough to make
a real contribution? If they are making a real contribution, will
they displace workers at the fraéilrt;end of the lower scale?

Five years of City Volunteer $ experience are instructive.

The first point I want to make, or observation, is that Barry
Feinstein, who is head of Local 237 of the Teamsters Union and a
well-known leader in the Labor Movement in New York City, was
an original Board member of the City Velunteer Corps, and contin-
ues to serve in that important policy-making capacity.

After five years and nearly three million hours of service in
what I think everyone would regaré as a heavily unioned fown, we
have yet to receive our first complaint, and we are very optimistic
about maintaining that good record.

I should note that many of the service projects that the AFSCME
representatives mentioned earlier this morning, are exactly the
projects that we involve City Volunteers in.

Projects are also chosen by us so that they teach kids about
social issues. We want them to understand the issues that society
faces, and we only choose service projects that meet that criteria.

We also do not stay in a service project for more than three
months. That is the longest time we will stay.

We do not accept projects—and this is on the side of making a
real contribution—unl._ss the receiving agency can give us enough
work for a full team of volunteers. We insure that there is a match
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with the jobs and the skills of the kids. They must train us and
provide site supervision.

We hate now served more than 400 sponsors in the period of our
demonstration, and 92 percent of them give us a positive approval
rating.

I do also want to remind the committee members that, through-
out the human service fields, we face serious problems in recruit-
ing young peop'e to the work force, and I do hope that our repre-
sentatives this moming from the public service unions will pay
note to this point.

This is another kind of desperate need, something that we need
from Alyssa and her friends. The need is evident in the small
number of young people who want to be school teachers and social
workers, in a nursing shortage that is so severe in New York City
that we actively import nurses from the Philippines to supplement
our work force.

We are very proud that many of our City Volunteers have
chosen careers in public and human service. Alyssa herself is going
on to nursing school.

Turning now to Chairman Hawkins' questions. He asked us how
we attract at-risk youth. I do not have any research to cite here. I
will just tell you what kids tell me.

Atrisk youth—and they don’t like being called that, by the
way—ijoin our program because We have a reputation of being good
and being tough. They know it is not a program for dropouts.

I believe they come to us having chosen to make a change, but
that having made that choice, doesn’t spell success for them. We,
the grownups around them, have to be smart enough to help them
set realistic goals for themselves, and to keep them chalienged.

We need longer-term, intensive programs. If someone is reading
four or five grades behind average, we should not expect them to
get a GED and a job in four to six months.

For those who might become part of the forgotten half, because
they do not coinplete college, we need to make college more reach-
able academically and economically.

City Volunteers are entitled to a $5,000 college scholarship after
one year of service. We used to require that they go to college full-
time, We are finding that this makes college unreachable, both eco-
nomically and academically, so we are now counseling them indi-
vidually to develop plans, and we encourage them to go to college '
part-time. :

As a private citizen, I also fee! that someone has to get college
costs under control. I am reminded of a City Volunteer who came
back to visit, and she is now paying $18,000 in tuition per year.

Finally, on the appropriate role of Federal Government. We wel-
come the opportunity to comment on Con[gl"essman Owens’ invita-
tion to advise the committee on the role of VISTA and Action, and
we will do that in writing at a separate time,

President Bush and Greg Petersmeyer have been insistent on
three policy points, which I find disturbing.

First, that his proposal is for a movement and not a program. I
have heard reference to not creating a Federal bureaucracy.

Second, in the “true spirit of volunteer work,” they propose no
bribes or incentives.

e
~
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Third, the issue called a service, in all sectors, public and pri-

vate.
For ti-e record, I think no one here is calling for a Federal bu-
reancracy. Many of us do believe that there is a strong existing
network of more than 400 programs that could be strengthened,
stabilized and e¢nhanced, with the addition of dedicated Federal
funding, and that means that we are not borrowing from someone
else’s pot, or pretending that we are something that we are not.

What would this Federal funding pay for? Structure is essential
to a meaningful volunteer program. Training, service assignments
that are well-planned and smoothly executed, feedback and evalua-
tion.

In addition, most volunteer programs do inclnde reimburseraent
for expenses to insure that all can participate regardless of their
family income.

Federal involvement should create program guidelines and devel-
op strategies for program development. It should make technical
assistance available to localities, and create a system of awards and
recognition.

Mostly, we need bipartisan leadership and Federal fi.iancial sup-
port for service programs, so that community service and national
service are something that we truly value with the nation.

Yes, this will cost some money. I leave it to those more expert
than me to decide how much. I suspect programs do cost more
money than movements, but I'll bet we can get more accomplished,

Shouldn’t we get started some time soon, since there is lots of
work to get done?

When Alyssa was asked in a television interview if she thought
National Service was a good idea, here is what she said. She said:
“National Service will get youth involved in the issnes that face
the nation today, and maybe they will feel like they are a part of
things. Maybe they won’t feel so alienated and like they don’t
belong. By providing quality national service, youth can really be a
part of the United States history, giving youth today a more posi-
tive outlook on the nation’s future, and making them feel a little
better about themselves in the long run, and,” she said, “it will
definitely benefit the nation as a whole. Serving in the City Volun-
teer Corps, I realize that there were things I could do to help my
city.”

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Gail M. Kong follows:]
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Chalrman Hawkins. Chalrs end members of the Subcommittaes present. my
name Is Call Xong, | 3m the Executive Director of the Natlonal Service
Corporatlon for the Clty of New York, which operates & program called the City
Volunteer Corps. Thank you for this opportunity to testify.

Today | will talk about issues relevant to full-time and Ppart-time youth
service. We do not operate school-based service Pprograms. Rather than
prasenting the customary description of our CVC program. | thought it would
be mare helpful to direct our Bttentlon to young Amerlcans and ask ourselves If
any of the vast range of programs which have been proposed are at all relevant
to them.

In my 15 years of public service, It seems that everyone aiways has an
ample supply of Ideas and attitudes about kids, what's wrong with them. what's
great about them, how to fix thelr problems which gtherwise Wil become a
burden to soclety. whather they'll be ready to shoulder the burden when It's
their turn to run the country.

I thought talking about a young City Velunteer named Alyssa would Inform
your deliberations.

Alyssz Is 19 years gld. When she joined the City Volunteer Corps. the,
her baby brother, and her mother were living In & hotel for homeless families.
She describes herself as ®not bsing very productive” at the time. .

| thought we should think thls morning about what Alyssa needs for her
future and what we need from Alyssa.

Inharent in the mission of the City Voluntesr Corps, which is 2 model for

national service In America's urban areas. #re answers to both of those

g my
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que;tlons: What does Alyssa need for har future? And what do we¢ peed from
Alyssat

Let's begin by looking flrst at any adolescant. since natlonal service
should 2ppeal to all our youth. Any adolescant wants respect, to make more
personal cholces, to take on mors responsibility. This is trus aven though
they often are not sure what they want to do with thelr lives. whether It's
cholce of a college major or choice of & Job.

Urban adolescents are not diffsrent In this regard, but there are other
things that affect thelr llves wvery deeply. Most have aducation deficlis:
they're reading well below grode level, may have already droppad out of school
sitogether. Perhabs most overwhelming Is the relentless call t© them from the
marketplice, the call t¢ buy and have muslc mechines, sneakers. jeweiry or

drugs.

S0 what does Alyssa nesd undar these clrcumstances?

First, she needs a place and & chance to make & changs., & structure to
make the transition to a productive and thoughtful sduit lifa.

When wa promote CVC we talk zbout making a c¢hange or making a
difference In your iife. We undarstand  adolescents' desire o take on more
responsibliity and meka declslons for themselves, in essence tp be tested. We
also promote CVC as a program that Is not essy and Is 2 challenga.

Young men and women who jaln ths progrem know that we have required
uniforms. & unlform that sveryone wesrs rich or poor. They know that they
must successfully complets rigorous residentisl tralning. that attandence rules
tor service and school are enforced and that you must be drug free to Join.

Becausa they often do not know whare or what kind of work thay want to
do, becausa meny zre not educationally ready to work, we promise varlety.

When Alyssa finishas her yesr of service as a Clty Volunteer, she wlll have
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completed & to B service projects. She will have vastly incressed her
experience working In different anvironments and with different suparvisors,
and In travelling bayond tha boundarles of her own familler neighborhood, she
wlll have met many othsr Young People from similar and different backgrounds,
and worked closely with thém to care for the slderly, tutor children, and teach
Ife skills to mentally retarded aduits. She'li also have & clezrer Ides of which
work best suits her skllis. An independent svalustion by the New York Clty
Comptreiler found concrate employment and sducation gains for City Volunteers.

During this period of service. Clty WVolunteers =sre not asked to nor
expected to postpone thelr aducation. We offer & completa range of education
programs. from English as » Second Language and Baslc Educatlon courses, to

GED, college prep anc college credit-besring courses. 5S¢ service as a
City Volunteer Is not # substitute for continuing education. In fact, educators
tell us that by linking the service exbPerience with classroom work, we schieve
higher than averege reading gains and GED pass rates. Every Corps member
who has served for ons yesr Is sliglble for & $5,000 college scholarship.

All Clty Volunteers are assigned to servico prolacts In teams and all of the

work Is completed for nen=profit or public sgencies. Teams always Include a

mix of CIty Volunteers from differant neighborhoods and each team Is rotated

to projects throughout the Citys Each team IS suPtrvised by 8 full~time staff
membar: Volunteers learn how to work batter with one another and thay learn
about esch other's nelghborhoods. The CVC exParlence guaranteas that Alyssa
will laave with a desper understanding of her neighbors and thet she wlll know
now to traval around when she goes on to coliege or Interviews for that first

Important job.
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dynamics, and & clear priority placed on continuing sducation, are sl things we
think Alyss8 pesds. A etudy titled The Forgotten Haif published by The

williem T. Grant Foundatlion Commission on Work, Femily and Citizenship,
predicted that young adults will have incraasing difficuity making the transition
te adulthcod aven with a high school diplomz. They argued that snrichad
programs ars cruclal for Alyssa and her frisnds.

"These young people face a series of high hurdles In their gearch for a
rewarding caresr. Lacking a coliege credential. thay are incraasingly locked
out of most high-saleried occupations. Moreover, stable, good-paying jobs
which do not require advanced tralning are rapidly diseppearing. Betwesn 137%
and 1985, the United States sufferod & npet loss pf 1.7 milllon manufacturing
jobs,

-~ln 1986, young males ages 20-2% who had high school diplfomas and had
Jobs garnad 28 percent less In ¢Onstant doflers than the comparable group of
youth in 1973, The income drop was 24 percent for whites and %% percant for
blecks.

«=High gchoo! dropouts suffersd Bn aven larger income decline, Those
20-24 years ofd earned 92 percent Tess in 1986 In constant dollars than tha same
group In 1973,

~=Whils earning power among working youth has declined, more of these
young people alse raport ne esrnings. in 1984, 12 parcent of all 20-24 year old
males said they hed no earnings. up from 7.3 percent in 1973."

From another perspective soms have srgued that the pool of young people
Is declining and that national service would divert this Iabor exsctly at the time
we need them most. This Objection Ignores the harsh reality of the labor force
participation rate for youth, which In New york Clty Is 25%. Young people
drop out before even sntering tha abor market. The problems are at the root
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of the labor force shortaga. National servics would not exacerbate the problem
by pulling people out of the workforce: rather it would reclalm them.

Leaving Alyssa's nseds aside for a momant. pur soclety also has urgent
needs.

IT wa allow Oourselves some diatance from the youth rescus mentailty that is
often associated with this program design, you will find that national service
can help meet some of thuse urgent needs. We need more than for Alyssa just
to finlsh hlgh school or to be gaintully employed: providing service lIs
something we need from Alyssa and her generation as wall,

Since our Incaption City Voiunteers have glven nearly 3 milllon hours of
service to New Yorkers, helping the frall elderly. tutoring chlidren In pubilc
schools, as teacher aldes In day treatment programs for the developmentally
disabled, turning an empty lot into a community playground, snhancing our
public parks with exercise¢ courses &nd ndture trails so they can be piaces for
reflection and [lving more heatthful urban lives, This Is a2 uniquely urban

agenda.

During this most recant public debste. some have oxpressed doubts that

young Peopie can provide service of raat value. One critic spiuttersd that the
work canmot be done "by children™ but must be done by "highiy skliled.
licensed professionals.” Approaching from the polar opposite direction, others
are concarned that youth involved In national service will displace workers,
sspoeclally &t tha lower end of the jub § wage scale. So which Is It?

Can kids redlly get themselves together encugh to make 2 real
contribution?

If they ars making a real contribution wiil they dispiace workers at the
tragiie lower and of the job &nd wage scale?

1 hope some Informatson about the City Voluntear Corps experience will
help shad some Light an both questions,
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Five key points for your consideration:

For background | should mentlon that CVC I3 chartersd to serva Only
not=for-proflt or pubilc agencles,

So the firet Point te thet the not-for-profit sgency hes t9 have anough
work for Bn entire team of voluntesrs (usually 10 to 15 Corps members) betore
we'll even accept the project, The work has to be Important enough for the
receiving agency, which we call a sponsor, to provide tralning and supervision
to the volunteers. In essence, we ask ail sponsors te svaluate If the work we
can compiete has real vajue to them. We make an independent evaluation of the
match betwean the tasks snd the skills snd abllitles of ocur Corps mambers.
Hinety-two percent of our sponsors. which number more than 400 now, glve us
3 positive approval rating.

Second. A senior reprasentative of lsbor, Barry Feinsteln, of Locst 237 of
the Internationzl Brotherhcod of Tesmsters. was an original member of our
Board of Directors, and contlnues to serve In that Important policy-making
capacity. After 5 years and neefly 3 mililon hours of service. We have yet to
recelve our first complaint, and wa're optimistic about malntaining that good
record.

Third. A teem does not serve On the same project for more than 3
months, regardless of the sponsor's service needs. We have found this system
of project rotation helps cur young Corps members learn mors sbhout soclal
Issuss. At thelr 2ga. they slso sevm to enjoy the variety.

Fourth. When & team begins a service project, the sponsoring agency
usuelly works with our CVC staff to select service Bssionments that suit the
interests of the votunteer.

Fifth and fimally. Many of our sponsor age :ies actually face serlous
problems recrulting young people to thelr workforce., This Is another kind of

desperats Need, something we need from Alyssé & har friends. [t i$ evident in
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the 3mall number of young peopls who want to bt school teachers and social
workers. In a nursing shortage So severs that New York City actively Imports
nurses from the Phillipines to supplement Its workforce. We are very proud
that many of our Clty Volunteers have chosen caresrs In pubilc or human
service, Aiyssa, herself, 15 going on to nursing school.

[n the final sectlon of my testimony, | will respond to the remaining
questions Posed by Chairman Hawkins end offer remarks on President Bush's
statements of i2st week.

Before proceeding, | thought ) should briefly summarize for the record the
key slements of the Clty Voluntesr Corps progrem Including some statistics.

We are primarily & full-time service corps, though we do have 2 part-time
component.  Voluntears recelve & weskly stipend of $97 for expenses. After
one year of sarvice they recelve a Peace Corps-type cash payme ° T $2.500 or
a college scholarship of $5,000.

City Voluntesrs work 4 days a waeek. The fifth day plus one evening are
devoted to formal education pregrems and team=based sducatlon activitles,

We are currently funded by the Clty of New York. Our 1989 budget Is $5
millien. We enroll 750 Corps members each yeor.

CVC Is open to all. With redulred residentia) trelning. service uniforms
(which must be purchazsed by Itha Corps membaer). team acsignments and team
isaders, we Intend to be & high-spirited 3srvice progrem in which Corps
members feoel 8 sansa of sacrifice and 9lving back to community.

Team leaders are the service supervisor for sach group of woluntesrs,
They are also like youth counseliors.

We have school and attendancs reduirements te help moaintain the spirit of
the Corps experience and to further . .mote adult responsibliity.

Education programs whila In the Corps rangs from ESL and Basic Education
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tevels through college ecredit bearing courses.

Service projects Include physical work and human service. We only work
tor not-for-profit organizations and public agencies. Service Projects must be
damanding and expose young people to a varlety of work environments and they
must teach Corps members about thae issues facing socletg today .

CVC does exit planning for each Corps member, hut we sre not fupded to
do job placement. When we respond %o a request for a service project, we do
not consider whether the projact wili impert ob skills or job training.

Attachment A [s a statistical summary.

Turning now to Chairman Hawkins’questions.

First. how can we attract at risk youth 235 well 8s encourage those youth
whe are not In danger of dropping out of high school to pursue higher
education? | don't have 2ny research to cite here; 1'll Just tell you what young
people say to me,

At-risk youth {and they don't ifke being called that. by the way)} join our
program because wa have a reputation of being good and belng tough. They
know it's a pregram tor all young pecple: that it's mot a program for drop
outs. From experience. ! beneve they come to Us having chosen to make a
change in thelr 1lves. 8t that choice alone' doesn't spell success,

The grown-ups around them--people lke you and me--have to be smart
enough to help them set realistic goals for themselves. A high school drop out
can Join the Clty Wlunteer Corps for one-year. During that time, tha chances
are very good that drop-out's reading leve! wlll increase. In part because we
are, comparatively speaking. &n intense, longer-term program. But Is It falr to
send 2 message to any young person, espaclally ome reading weli below the
eighth grade level that they can be so far behind 2nd get the!r 6ED in one

year? It took each of us 12 years %0 get that far. Why do we keep faulting

15-864 0 - 8% - 16
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ourselves far nol being able to correct deficits of four and five years In the
course of & six month program?

For those who might bacoms part of "The Forgotten Haif" because they do

not complete a college education. ! trink making college more reachable
academlcally and ecomomlcelly s cructal,

When we started. we required that the LVC college scholarship only be
used for attending college fuil time. We did not recognize tne sconcmics and
the academic backgrounds of our young people. Many could not efford just to
attend college. So they would work full gr part-time and attend school

full-time. Many were not ready academically for full=time college. And somz of

them falled. Now we »ssass sach case, and sometimes encourage students to

attend college part-time,

An aslde. as @ private cltlzen. Encouraging students to pursus higher
education will continue to be daunting. unless someope can get some of these
costs under control. 1'm reminded of gur young City Voluntear who came back
for a visit and to meet with her fellow grads. She and her parents are paying
$18,000 per year for collage. And she's just In the first year.

Finally, you had asked that | comment on the appropriate role for Federal
government in promoting youth service and potential drawbacks., | would Nke
to comblne these remsrks with observations uwboui ®resident Bush's spesch last
week.

Prasident Bush and hls Director of Natlonal Servics, Gragg Pstersmeyer
are insistent upon three policy polnts. First, that his proposal Is for a
movement, not & program. ['ve heard refersnce to not creating & federal
bureaucracy. Second In the "true spirit® of voluptesr work thay propose no
bribes or incantives. Third, they is5ue » broad call to service |n all sectors.

private and publlc,
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For the record, no one Is calling for the creation of ® tederal bureaucracy
here. Many of us do baelleve thet the strong existing network o more than 400
programs across the country deserva Yyour attention. and could be

strengthenad, stabllized, and enhanced with the addition of dedicated federal

funding, iInstead of berrowlng from some reisted stream of +tunding or
pratending that we're something that we're not. Also, | belleve 10 ope Is
proposing federa! funding exefusively.

What would this federal funding pay for at minimum? The most
experiencad veterans of the volunteer flsld agree that structure s essentlal to
a meaningful wvoluntesr program. Training, service assignmznis that are wetl
planned and smoothly executed. Feedback and evaluation. Most volunteer
programs inciude rstmbursemant for expenses to ensure that 2]l can participate.
Federal involvement should creats program guldelines and develop strategles for
program development, It should make techntcal &ssistarie availsble to locallties,
and creale a system of awards and recognition.

Mostly we need bi-partisan leadership, so that community service ang
national service are something we truly value as 3 nation.

Yes, this will cost some money. [ [eave it to those more expert than me to
decide how muth. | suspect programs do cost mare money than movements, but
Il bet we can get a lot more accomplished, too. And shouldn't we get started
sometime soon. since times a wasting? ’

When Alyssa was asked In 3 television Interview If she thought national
service was 3 good idea, heré's what she sald:

U{National servicel will get youth involved In the Issues that tacs the
natlon togday. And maybe they'll feel like 2 part of things. Maybe they wen't
fes| so alienated. . .llke they don't belong. By providing quallty pationat

service, youth can really be a part of U, 5, history." She went on that service

l‘,-rt.-
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can "give youth today a more positive cutlook on the nation's futurs and make
them feel a |littls battsr sbout thamsalves in the long run. And it will
definitely benefit the nation 35 8 whole.  Serving in the City Volunteer Corps.
I realized there were things | could do to heip my Clty."
Thank you.
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Actatnenanc A

JUNE 1989

CITY VOLVNTFER CORPY
EACTIHEED

The City Voluntaer CorPe Of Naw York City waw-lounded 1T 19B4 to demonntrate
that young Pecple in Urban arcas Can work together to hilp thelr tomsunities
winile buildiny ekille and confidenca te autteed ad adult cititena. As &
aodel for nationsal aervit®, CUC works touard several gokles  Glving a  wide
range of aervica to New Yorkars in néwd; enrelling young PecPla froz all
batkgrounda to work cooberatively on teapa}; healFing Ehe voluntesrs make a
aucteesfu) transition to sdulthood through learning from adrvice and through
a Apscialliy=tailorwd education prograw} and propoting federal support of
naticnal service. CVC'a first four years bave ahown the value of natichal
sorvice to NHew Yorkare, the nation, and the naticn’a youth:

1. CVC Attracty & Diverse Grour of Mew Yorkx Youth
o CVC enrolla 5p0 youth at &ny point in time,

o 400 volunteera Wwork full-time for oOha year and récalve &
waekly atipend plua #5000 4in atholarship or $1500 1h cash.
Ona-~hundred h!.qg school and £Cllede students WOk part=time
while in atheol and full-time during the auouar and alad
reteiva pro-rated stipends and schaolarshipa.

Clty Voluntesrs (CVa) coms from neighborhosds throughdut all
five boroughp, and from BARY Aifferant Sultural backgrounda
(Caribbean,; Latin Americs, India, Pakiatan, China, Boutheast
Asia: nativa New Yorkera: Native Anericans).

65% of CorFs membara are blacks 26% Hispanity 9% Asian and
whika.

48% are male) 52% famale,

2%% of full-time CVo are high athool graduates) 75% bavt
dropped out of athool.

C¥e Learo fhila They Serve

Afttr the aervice day, CVg attend tlasoes arranged by CVC
with the Clty UniveraltY of Now York and the New School,
Given their divcrae batkgrounds, tha CVa are placed in a
wide rance of claaats: English as a Stcond Eanguage; Adult
Rasic Education (for thouse Faading below the sighth grade

HATIONAZ SERVICE DONPORATICN FOR THE CIFY OF NEW YOXE
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lavelly GEDy collega preparstory classes for high athool
greds; pand college coursew.

CVUC srrenge$ S.mpar schogl for mpost volunteerss ".'o Pravent
the loss Of ekille sttsinsd during ths School Yesr.

CVC also Sponeors Corps Meadber Developtent, sight modules
Par Yesr that build on the service aexPerisncs to ensure
learning through doing. Modules include the politieal
procsss, cultural and sthnic diversity, and caréer Planning.

IIT., BResearch Illustrates the Special Bensfits of Youth Jervice

In an eudit published in November 1588, the Hew York City
CosPtrollsr found that CVC {3 & “winner™ and "sueceaa,”
vhere B0 of woluntssrs obtsinsd enoPloyment after CVC,
uavally above minioun wage, comparsd with 49% prior to
enrollment, and one-half obtained Tfurthsr sducation. He
soncluded that these Dbenefits “...coupled with CVC's
cantribution to the City's Public service Sector indicate
that the coet of CVC... is mone¥ well sPent.*

The Report of ths Ma¥or's Conmission o0 Bleck ¥ew Yorksrs
(Dacember 1968) found that “the City Voluntesr CorpPs im the
bast Youth-orisnted Program asPOneored by the Koch
AMpinistration.”

The Ford Foundation sponssred ressarch by Public/Privats
venturea, Their Fall 1987 study found thst enrollees in CVC
have tha highest completion rate of nine major corpd
nationallY. and the beet GED combPlstion rate. Tho¥ also
surveyed sponsord and found = digh level of satisfaction
wich services provided, FinallY, thaey eoneluded hat “ths
integration and har=ony asong the diffarent grouds serving
in the Corpe i8¢ notible... Ethed youth and their tean
lesders consistently comaxtit on the eye-opening experience
ef 2ot working enculder~to-shoulder with wemen, of Blacke
and Hiepanice gesting to know each other, of high school
graduates tutoring dropouts, of "bad sttitude’ Youth being
sncouraged to rhate up by their teanmatss, and <f youth
gaininy expoeure to the wide wvariety and opportunities of
lifs in the cit¥...”

EATIONAL SENVICE CORPOLATION FOR THE CTTY OF NEW YORK
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Chairman MARTINEZ. Thank you. Ms. Kong. Professor Harkavy?
Dr. Harkavy. Thank you, Congressman Martinez. I want to indi-
cate that I was most impressed with the comments made earlier by
g:e chairman, by you, Congressman Martinez, and by Congressman
wens.

Referring to those comments, Chairman Hawkins indicated that
there should be a focus on the re-invigoration of our schools and
their communities.

There also was a discussion about the need to work with existing
organizations, Mr. Congressman Owens discussed, and your re-
sponse, Congressman Martinez, that, in fact. we need to work with
local organizations.

I would, in part, like to submit that that is precisely why school-
based efforts make a great deal of difference, precisely because
they are a uniquely American-decentralized institution that can be
precisely community-bas

Finally, I would [ike to—before beginning my general remarks
on this—to note the very imporfant point you made, Congressman
Martinez, about “it is time for bold action.” Indeed, that really is
what I believe has called this committee together.

What I would like to do in the time I have before you is to
present five general points. That is, first of all, to describe what I
believe is the appropriate overall orientation of this kind of pro-
gram, discuss what universities can do, describe Penn’s experi-
ence—University of Pennsylvania, where I function as the Director
of the Office of Community Oriented Policy Study, and the Vice
Dean of the School of Arts and Sciences; what Penn has done with
the specific concrete project, called the “West Philadelphia Im-
provement Corps,” and then discuss some of the ideas we have
learned, and about how that relates to national service.

I will try to do all of those things briefly, and try to conclude by
noting possible directions for this committee’s consideration.

First, let me talk about an orientation. I think that there is an
agreement that we have heard stated here that civic concern is a
crucial aspect of American society. We need to heighten that.

There are two questions we have to look at.- Those questions are,
how, in fact, to develop the civic passion; and how do we help
insure that the service truly benefits those being served?

If I might note, at times, discussion of these issues looms so large
with civic passion that we sometimes do not look hard enough on
the benefits of those being served. I think that that is the question
we have to look at the immediate needs of people and their com-
munities first.

The pressing problems that we face, and my notion is that press-
ing problem would be to look at, in fact, people in need who are
living in conditions of poverty and neglect in this society. That we
need to look at those most in need

In order to do that, it seems to me, we need people oriented and
problem-solving oriented service, to help engage those populations
in changing their world, their neighborhood, their communities, for
the better.

Let me try to put a specific aspect to that general orientation.

i
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I want to discuss what universities can do, and I an going to do
that in the concrete case of the University of Pennsylvania and its
involvement with the West Philadelphia Improvemerit Corps.

I believe that the West Philadelphia Improvement Corps is a
people-oriented, problem solving, oriented approach.

There is a prior notion to that. That is, that universities, if they
engage their academic resources to solve concrete problems in their
geographic commungg, can make a greater contribution to the ad-
vancement of knowledge, and to human welfare.

That notion is the notion of academically-based public service. It
is service rooted in and tied to the academic mission of institutions.
It notes, in fact, that the trichotomy that exists between the three
so-called missions of higher education, research teaching, and serv-
ice, that that trichotomy is a false one.

It is necessary for institutions to unite those missions for the
sake of each of them. That they will do better research, better
teaching, and better service, if they work with communities; do not
research on communities, research with communities; where they,
in fact, study problems to help solve problems, and contribute to
the solution of those problems, and they learn from people.

That overall orientation then sees, not just the University of
Pennsylvania but overall, institutions of higher learning, not only
have a responsibility to work with their geographic communities,
but they, in fact, would be better institutions.

In part, it is what we heard Mr. Shanker talk about, and what
we have heard from these wonderful cases of the schools in Spring-
field, Massachusetts, and in California, where institutions become
mission-oriented institutions.

That is to help solve the real problems of societ,y at all levels. At
all levels, of their own communities, from “K,” I would like to
submit, through graduate education and through, in fact, professor-
ius work focusing on these issues, also.

Let me talk a bit about the West Philadelphia Improvement
Corps. Again, I will just provide a bare outline to that, and can
take questions if people are interested.

We pick—although I have heard some statements made—we pick
as the acronym about not talking about movements, it really is a
school-based neighborhood, and school revitalization movement. It
is not currently in six public schools in West Philadelphia, in an
economically and socially distressed community surrcunding the
University of Pennsylvania.

Although it initially focussed on the question of engaging youth,
it now serves to work toward the creation of staff controlled and
managed university-assisted community schools serving the entire
population.

That is very important. University-assisted, not university-con-
trolled. Staff-controlled, teachers, and principals. Teachers and
principals.

What we pick, and I have submitted in my testimony some state-
ments made about it from Secretary of Labor, Elizabeth Dole, who
indicated it is an outstanding example of education, business, labor
cooperation, I should also note that we have worked exceedingly
closely with both the Philadelphia Federation of Teachers, the
Building Trade Council of Philadelphia, in particular, the United
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Bliotherhood of Carpenters, have played an absolutely outstanding
role.

I should also note that in the WIPEC Program, four young
people have recently passed the apprentice exam, four seniors, and.
now having graduated high school yesterday, have been admitted
to the Carpenter’s Apprentice Program, one of the schools and
have joined starting July 1 in that program. One of the results of
the WIPEC project.

The notion of this project that emerged out of a seminar at the
University of Pennsylvania. A seminar that was taught in 1985 on
Urban University-Community Relationships, focusing on, concrete-
ly, Penn and the West Philadelphia community.

I was fortunate to have as a co-teacher in that course the Presi-
dent of the University of Pennsylvania, Sheldon Hackney and the
historian, Lee Benson. The role of the president was quite impor-
tant for gaining an orientation in the city that made people enor-
mously interested.

Every student in this history seminar had to research the notion
of how does the university improve its relationships with the com-
munity, and four young people studied youth employment.

Those four young people submitted a proposal, the creation of
The West Philadelphia Improvement Corps, which was to be a
school-based, as I noted before, neighborhood and school revitaliza-
tion program, but really focusing on, at that time, young people.

They said, as undergraduates often do, “We coulg do it better
and cheaper,” because they have a sense of their own abilities.
They said, “We can do it better and cheaper,” and they brought to-

gether existing aﬁencies. It began on a small scale in 1985, and, as I

noted before, to be more specific, involves over 400 children, their
parents, and community members, in year-round activities, includ-
ing after-school, during the day academic programs, and, in fact, on
Saturdays; activities from building construction, housing rehabilita-
tion, landscaping, concert organ repair, computer workshops, arts
and crafts, drama and dance. I can again describe that at some
future time.

What that program has also done is to unite all these disciplines
at the university, so that activities and seminars, and nursing,
medicine, history, social work, education, engineering, landscape
" architecture, architecture, have all come together to work, to help
these schools and communities solve the most pressing problems
facing the poor in the United States, particularly in urban areas.

What have we learned from this? We have learned that schools
can be the center of the change. That schools, indeed, need not
merely reflect their environment. theﬁ can change their environ-
ment. But they only can do that if they are part of broad-based
partnerships.

That schools left alone will not be able to. achieve those results,
and, in fact, it is working together with business, labor, and higher
education institutions, that thoge changes could be made.

I just should note for the record that in the WIPEC coalition, the
Phil]adelphia Urban Coalition, the Private Industry Council, Feder-
al Government, State Government, Labor Unions, as I noted, and
the University of Pennsylvania and other groups have all been
working together.
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We have also learned that it is hard to develop mutually benefi-
Ci?'ll iaartnerships between higher educational institutions and
schools.

We have also learned—and this relates particularly to youth
service—that it is very difficult to develop mutually-beneficial cre-
ative volunteerism. That that is easier said than is often done, and,
}n fact, we need to think hard about how to develop these prob-
ems.

The familiar adage that “it is more blessed to give than to re-
ceive,” I think has pertinence for our discussions today, because
the notion is also often said that volumteers often benefit more
than those served.

The task, I believe before this committee, is to assure that all are
equally blessed. That those served and those being served are, in
fact, equally blessed, and all make contributions.

In order to move on that issue, an undergraduate seminar—an-
other seminar was created on volunteerism in American society,
increasing the effectiveness of university college volunteers in the
West Philadelphia Public Schools.

How does that get done in a concrete real world case? What we
saw as we looked at those issues and what the students did, is that
there are an enormous number of problems that exist with volun-
teer programs that need to be looked at. Resource allocation, place-
ment, coordination among agencies, evaluation and follow-through.
They are problems that can be overcome. At this time there is a
need for bold action. It can be done if volunteerism is viewed as a
serious activity in which visible structures get created.

At a recent conference that was supported by the Common wealth
of Pennsylvania through the good offices of PennSERVE in par-
ticular and Mr. Briscoe, there was a Delaware Valley Conference
on university collége volunteers and public schools. All of the
higher ed’s in the vicinity and school districts attended. The stu-
dents in the seminar I mentioned presented an integrated system
linking West Philadelphia Schools and the university and student
volunteers.

They call for a whole range of things, but among them were Fed-
erall{-supported pilot demonstration project, to engage higher eds
and local schools in partnerships to transform at-risk schools in
their communities.

Taking that orientation that they presented, I would like to pro-
vide six general ideas to the consideration of this committee,
thoughts on youth service.

The first notion that I would like to indicate is whatever legisla-
tion has passed needs to be seen as a first step, as part of an ongo-
ing policy and ongoing process of learning an actual demonstra-
tions. This has been said before, research alone won't do it and
there is a need for what I would call “action-based research,” real
world developments, real world initiatives, and library-based re-
search and brought together; first step.

Second, I again commend the comments made on this by the
Committee, that this program, this legislation should focus on corp
problems of saciety. SPeciﬁcally, it should focus on the problem of
transforming “at-risk” schools and their communities, spe~ifically
dealing with the issue of this scandalously large number of Ameri-
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cans living in conditions of poverty and neglect and, therefore, how
specifically can those communities and schools be transformed.

Third, it should link other efforts to help the disadvantaged and
it shouldn’t be part of an overall strategy to make a difference to
help establish a sense of hope and possibility.

It should forth focus on the schools, focus on the schools as the
institution that most naturally can bring together partnerships,
that most naturally can engage all segments of the population, ac-
tivate all segments of the population, educate all segments of the
population, and make substantive differences in these neighbor-
hoods.

Also, another point would be to focus on organization building.
To focus on institutions and not individuals is a_primary thrust, I
believe, for this kind of legislation. The notion, if we are going to
transform communities and schools, is to engage institutions, to in-
volve all of the institutions in this society. Specifically this means
focusing on institutions with coordinating structures that would be
created to bring them together.

A very important connected point then is the creation of pilot
projects among school districts and higlier educational institutions,
indeed, though, with its matching money provided by those school
districts and by the higher educational institutions, where there is
a primary thrust on leveraging and, in fact, giving those supports,
for instance, to higher eds who have proven that they take volun-
teericm seriously, who have had a track record and it is by engag-
ing the institutions, as I would argue, with higher eds in schools
districts, that we could obtain both more and more effective volun-
teers.

I want to end this testimoay on perhaps a disarming note be-
cause I will note not only do yhysical constraints lead to this lever-
aging principle, and the coming together of programs, but even if
resources were plentiful, I would argue for demonstration learned
from experience approach.

I would argue for that approach because these are very difficult
questions and we need to show successes. There needs to be at this
time no false promises and no false new beginnings to the poor.
They have had t0o0 many new beginnings turn into the same old
ending, too many false promises remain unfulfilled.

The question is to make this part of the overall development, to
really make a difference and I believe that if national service
begins carefully, modestly, deliberately, and creatively and has as
its focus the transformation of at-risk schools and their communi-
ties, I do believe that it will signal a real new beginning for those
most in need.

It will prove by its early successes the concrete value of public
service to the individual and society and it will most significantly
generate hope that through our combined efforts, the lives of all
Americans can be made better. I thank you very much,

[The prepared statement of Professor Ira Harkavy follows:]
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TESTIMNY COF
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYILVANTA
HEFORZE THE
CIMITTEE O EDUCRTIQN AND TABCR
U.5. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

»

JRE 28, 1989

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Coamittes:

In 1510+ the American philcscpher: Willism James wrote an essay entitled
e Moral Emuivalent of War." In that essay, he called for creating a spirit
of solidarity: unity of paposs, selflessness and honor through civic rather
than military engegement. James directly stated that therw shoald ba “instead
of military conscription. a conscription of the whole youthful population to
farm for a certain mmbwr of years a patt of the army enlisted against
Hature." James used the tarm nature to refer to the imjustices and problems
that afflicted American scciety during the early years of this century.

During the closing years of this cantixy, the call to instill a civie
passion @ty tha young is coming from a wide varlety of samces. Az in
Jemes' dayr the question is rot whether civie concern, an ethic of service
arcl youth serving othars are good for the individual ard society. The
cuestions rather are the necessarily linked questions of how to encourage the
develepment of civie pasaion and how To help insure that service truly
benefits thnse being served.

Thase gquestions should be linked questions because there is a tendency
for the geal of creating civic passien to loom 50 large that the needs of
those in need may be forgotten., As we all Jowow, for service to be effective
and for it to achieve the larger goal of creating gemuine lopg-lasting
solidariry, it must place the immediate amd cuxrets problems of pecple and
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their compmities first. It should be service to help solve, in particatar,
the myriad interrelated problems facing the scandalously large ramber of
pmericans living in poverty ard neglect. Amd it should be service that helps
commmnities engage in divect, immediate and constructive activities that
coreretaly improve conditions. That kird of people—crientsd, problem solving
criented service has as its most inportant result the develomwent of feslings

of hopa and canfidence amonyg those receiving assistance--hopa and confidence
that they can irdeed change their lives for the better.

The University of Pennsylvania's work with the West rhiladelphia
Improvement Corps (WEFIC) attempts to be both poople and problem solving
orierted. It springs from the notion that wniversities can make increasingly
significant contributions to both the advancement of Jnewledge and the
improvement of Inman welfare if they dirvect their academic resances toward
helping to solve the concrete, immediate, real-world problems of thelr local
geographic cammities. We have called this approach academically-based
public servica, service rocted in, and Intringically tied to, teachiey ard
research. Among other things, it is an approach that seeks to integrata the
research, teaching and service miszsions of the wniversity, while alsc spnring
intellectual integration across disciplines. In putting scademically-hased
piblic service into practice through werk with WEPIC, we have seen
mndergradiiates play a particularly significant role.

WEPIC ia a school-based neighborhood and scheol revitalization movement:
that is working with six public schools in the econamically and socially
distressad area surrounding the University of Permsylvania. Althown
initially fecusing an youth, WEPIC is designed to produce Etatf controlled and
maraged, unlversity-assisted, comprehensive cammmity schools that involve,
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educata, Serve, and activate all members of the comamity. The program

energed from research of Penn wdergraduates in a Spring 1985 honors history
seminar en "Urban Universities-Commmnity Relaticnships" that I co-taught with
Perm’s President Shelden Hacktey ard History Professor les Bensan. Pach
urdergraduate in that seminar focused his or her resesarch on a problem in the
West Philadelphia commmity. Four sbidents studied the issue of yorth
unamployment, That student research resulted in a2 proposal to create a better
ard cheaper youth corps—a youth corps that would utilize existing agencies
and resources.

The proposal received finapeial support and a program of SO youth in 5
West Fhiladelphia neighborhoods was get to begin in July. The MVE fire oo
Osage Averme in PhiladelPUa radically changed both the size and schedule of
the PrOJIam, WEPIC was asked to involve all of the youny pecple affected by
the fire and to begin the first wesk in June. Needless to say, the visibility
of the program was significamtiy increased. At ANY rater, WEPIC focused much
of its activity areund a reddhbortead elementary school~—the Bryant Scheol.
Murals were painted aromd the school kuilding, trees were plamted, and a
general clean—up of tha area ccourred. Fram the posjtive reactian of the
neighbers, we Pegan to see that public schools could function as centers of
redghboehood revitalization., bDuring the £all of 1985, WEPIC became an after—
school program at Bryant. Some of the teachers increasingly Linked the after—
school, projects to their teaching during the day. The making of Christmas
wreaths for the families affected by the MWE Fire became, for example, the
foous for mth lessons.

From that elementary school, the predect spread to a large comprelemsive
high schnol, two middle schools, and two other elementary schools. WEPIC is
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cnrently a year-round program invelving over 400 children, their parents ard
commmity merbers in landscaping, housing rehabilitation, concert pipe organ
repalr, canstruction work, commmity histery projects, work with the elderly,
graffiti and litter removal, mmal painting, coppiter workshops, Tecreation,
arts and crafts, drama and dance, WEPIC has also utilized the work of
subsequent Perm seminars in history, nedicine, architechrre, musing
education, engineering, landscape architectinrs, commmications, and social
work.

In a recent address o an American Federation of Teachers/Department: of
.Labor Oonference on “Participatory Ieadership: School and the Workplase,”

Secretary of Iabor Elizabeth H, Dole described WEPIC ard its omcrete

accomp) iskments as follows:
rlet ma depart a momedtt to yelate €0 you a very moving story of
kusinsss-labor-sducation cooperations called tha West Philadelphia
Partnership, which has significantly touched the lives of all
concerned, A subsidiary of the Parthership called the West
Philadelphia Tmprovement Corpe (WEPIC) acrmired a dilapidated row
hoase, and with cooperation of local cmft unicre, the
Philadelphia Fedaration of Teachers, the local school district,
the State of Fermsylvania, and the Miiladelphia Area Iabor-
Management Comiittee, not anly rehabilitated the structpre, but
the lives of a group of at-risk youth as well, Teachers and the
school district previged a curricudum ard instruction which linked
the real world skills of the building trades with academic
subjects, Members of the Unitad Brotherhood of Carpenters tutorsd
the students alangside their high school teachers, 2s a spin-off
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projact, ... piblic scheols opened “Saturday schools", which

instruct same 250 Sstudents [and adults] in a range of subjects.

The commmity has been revitalized in substance ard SPivit, and

the Federal grant money immolved has been leveraged by a factor of

10 threugh commmity suppert and participation by the varicus

participating individualis and arganizations.

But that is not all. Four high school senicrs tutored by

members of the Carpentars' Union and the Philadelphia Fedaration

of Teachers, have Just passed the entrance test for the

Carpentars’ Approvticesnip Program, Tpen their graduaticn from

high school in a few weeks time, they will have keaten the odds

against them and embarked on a real career in an hopest and

respected trade.

That is o task ... to educats every child to thelr highest

potential ... to fimd the means to inspdre thew ... to use every

imput to develop the mudes of instruction that can veach them.”

A8 Secretary foule's descriPtion makes clear, a school need not merely
reflect its enwirormant, but it can change its envircmment for tha benefit of
its students and tha ertire rejghborhood. A echool can be a center for change,
however, only when 1t becomes the center of a bruad-based partnership,
invelving a variety of organizaticns and instititiens, including colleges and
wniversities., A public school, as a neutra) institatiaon, belonging to all
membors of tha copmmity, is partiadarly suited to be the eatalytic hub around
which 1oea)l partherships are generated and formed. Indead, the business-laber-
educaticn cooperation, which, as Secretary Dole notes, is the very basis of
WEPIC, is carTied-out in practice tnreugh school-based programs amd activites.
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An impartant aspect of these school-based programs is that they benefit each
of the partners jmvolved. This is certainly the cass when college shudants
have been imvolved at the various WEPIC schools. I=t me provide just one
axarple.,

This past academic year, Julie Dressner, & student in a seminar an creating
commity schools, was warking as a tutor at a cemtar for WEPIC—the Turnec
Middle Schosl, Julie decided to tuter in part to learn more about the school
she was studying in seminar. one day as Julie was leaving Twrner, the art
teachey camented an her “artsy" clothes and asked Juiile if she was an art
major. Julie respemded that although she rsas not an art major, she was an
artist of ecrts—a potter, Tha art teacher, leslye Clemmons, remarked €F-..
there was an entire pottery stidis that was not in use becausa of her lack of
knowledge of the craft.

Under Mrs. Clemoons' directicn, Julie established a pottery sondio and
taucht: both sixth and eighth grads classas two days a2 week. She served as a
volunteer on Saturdays, teaching pottery in Turper's cammmity school programg
and Bmcticned as an assistant and translater for a rencwned potter who was the
school's artist in residence for a brief time. Julie, moreover, was given
acoess to the Turner pottery studic for her own work-—Perm does not have
caramics faci)ities, Finally, Julie wrote a supexb thesis entitled "Toewards a
Maltiodtural Social studies Curriculun for the Urban Commmity Scheol: A
Pottery and Cultiral Studies Workshep at the Turner Middle School, as a Casa
Study." Julie's experience illustrates the kind of creative mrtually-
bheneficial volunteerism that can emerge fram academically-based public service
ard a gawmine working partnership invelving a wniversity and a local public
school .
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Establishing a working partmership between a university and a local public
school is, however, an enormously Aifficnlt thing to do.  Amd creativa,
mrtually-bensficial voluntesrism is certainly tha exception rather than the
mle.mmm, this is why we have emphasized arademically-based
Public service, rather than traditiona)l student velumteerism. The feudliar
adage that it is more blessed to give than to receive may, in fact, be helpful

when thinking about volunteer programs, That is, volunteers, it is often said,
recelve mope benefits than those being assisted. Tha key goal: of coursse, is
to ba sure that both the volunteer ard these being assisted are equally
blessed. For that to happen, for both parties to truly benefit, requires hard
ard serious thought.

Undergraduatas in a WEPIC-related history seminar an *Voluntarism in
Imarican Society: Incressing the Effectivensss of University/College Volurteors
in wWegt Philadslphia Public Scivols" have been doing just that. The seminar
bhas, for earple: fonxd that wniversity-public schacl voluntees programs
frequently suffer from a perfunctory :nal¥Y®ls of neads and resources, haphazard
plasement, inadaguate trainirg, amd poor coordination, followsthrough and
evaluation. To remedy these ard other difficilties, volunteering haa to pe
seen as a serlons activity. As such, the stixients concluded that well-
suppceted, visible struchres with arsite ccordinatars are necessary for
effective, meaningful ard mutually-beneficial volurteerism.

A 1jttle over a weck agos these.sbudents presented their firdings at a'
Delavare Valley canferenco on University/College Volurteers and Public
Schools" co-sponscred by the University of Permsylvania, National Association
of Partners in Bhucatian, Mational Oomopmity Bducation Asseciaticon
Commusealth of Parmsylvania Department of Laber and Incdustry, Coumomsealth of
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Pennsylvania Department of Education, PernnSERVE, Pennsylvania Cammmity
Bducation Associaticn. School Distmict of Fhiladalphia, Philadelphia Fedaration
of Teachers, and femsylvania Association for Volunteerism.

Tha aanferencer which irmvolved representatives from higher educational
institutions and school districts fram throughar: the five couty area of
Southeastern Permsylvania, Southern New Jersey and Horthern Delaware, examined
and assessed current volunteer activities and locked to ways to improve
volurteerism in the fubare. It was agreed that the meeting would be merely the
begimming of a contimous productive dialoque amang institrtions of higher
education, amng school districis, and amomg institutions of higher education
and school, districts on how to develop outstanding, mituslly-beneficial
volunteer effcrts. A mmber of representatives of higher edurational
institicns have, for example, already agresd to form a Delawars Valley
Consortiun on University/College Volunteers and Public Schoals that would
inciude a sumer training institute for representatives of higher educaticnal
institotions and school disteicts,

Tha studerrst presentaticn at the conference specifically focusad on using
the University of Permsylvania and West Philadelphia pablic echeols as a case
study for an inteqrated user-supplier voluntesr system. The stidents dlscussed
the sppropriate roles and activities that different institutions including
Perm, West Philadelphia Parinership, Permsylvania Department of Educatien.
School District of Philadedphia, West Fhiladelphia -subdistrict, and local
miblic schools may play in such a system. They moted that an integrated,
decentralized system requived different coordinating struchures at different
kinds of instituticns. They also noted that the next phase of their research
would be increasingly focused on working to understand amd help create the

ERIC
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appropriate struchoes for each organization. Relating the Perm/West
Philadelgtiia case to tha issue of natiamal youth servics, the Perm
undergradustes called for Federally-supperted pilet demmstraticn projects to
engage institrticns of higher education and local public schools in effective
partnershirs €o help trarsform at-risk schools ard thair cormmities.

let ma take that roticn ard expand upen it 50 as to provide some thougats as
to how national youth service legislation might lock. These thoughts emerge
from a canbinatien of iwary-based and action-lased poljicy research focused en
our work with WEPTC. We have learnsd a great desl over the past five years
from linking these two owmplementary approaches, The strategy of creating
pilet projects, in part, stems frem TY balief that learning #rem actual deman-
strations as well as {roe more gereral sources is necessary for an effective
understanding and the farmiation of effective hroad-based policy. Mare
specificall¥, I belisve that any Federal legislation should be seen as the
first step of a process irvolving angoing learning, research, and program
develcpment.

The suppart provided for naticnal sexvice should ke relatively medest and
linked to other efforts to halp America's poor ard diasdvantaged. The suppat

7 should not be focused on irdividuals: kot rather on institutions. That is,
funds ehould be provided for the creation of organizetional structures that are
designed to Prodice pborh more and more-effective volunteers.

The institnticn that should be at the center of the legislaticn is the
public school. There are a mamber of reasens for this choice. Most cbviously,
that is vhere young pecple are faund, More lmportant, schools are the mest
strategic institutions that we can charge. As discussed throughout my
testinany, schools can fnction as enviromment changing Institutions. They can

Q
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gttract, involve ard engage the entire population of an area. And schools cans
more than other institutions in American society, attract support from a wide
variety of agenciss, crganizations and bosinesses,

Focuaing an our schools also enables us to get at the fundamental problem
facing our comtry—tha failure of our educational system. sStated directly,
the goowth of an increasingly dynamic skills-basad ecanamy requires an
increasingly skilled and edurated work force. Schools in genaral, and urhan
schools in particular, are not produsing individuals with the skills,
attitodes, and TEOblem solving abilities that are so dasperatsly needed,
Mi'limns of individuals are therefore at-risk of being left outside the
econanic mainstream, consigned to lives of hopelessness ard despair. And

Mnericats competitive position iz at risk unless schwols are changed to meet

tha unprecedented demands Of tha late twentieth ard the emerging twenty-first
centanrles.

Far reasens, then, of both ecammy ard effectiveness, I am convineed that a
national sexvice program should be school-based. Bafore briefly sketching what
the lagislation might do, I should note that schools have ancther virtue—they
allow for a decentrzlized, localistic, comumity-hased responsa to problem
solving. The decentralized neighberhosd schocl is in DNy respects a uniquely
American institution. Although it 1s a local institution par excellence, it is
ahletno;arateefﬁectivelymlywimmtmms‘tmarﬂmﬁm
goverrments. AS such, it exemplifies the great power of American federalism—
democratic, local decision making within ths cortedt of 2 national system,

I would see naticnal service legislation providing matching money to a
selact mmber of school districts and higher educaticnal institutions for the
purpose of establishing and gtrengthening crgenizaticnal mechanisms o promete
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effective volunteer projrams. Funds would ke targeted to thosa colleges and
universities, farample,thathwemidedtheirammtman
mmimsm,hmammrmmﬂmamitﬁa
serious comitment to promoting effective velunteerism, Finally, the furds
umldbap:widedmasndj:gscalehasadmabﬂitytopay. For example,
mmmmmiugmtmawzmmmmm
Bo%oftheirmmﬁesforanon;anizationalmumn:e. For poarer
instituticns: the percertages could be reversed.

mmum:moffmmmyammimmrmum
service legislatien, The appreach does, however, have the strength of
attempting to create mmerous miltiplier effects. It recognizes that there is
only a limited amount of meney available for such efforts. Every dollar,
therefore, mist cowtt. The emphases on focusing maticnal service on cze
Froblens, linking it to other efforta to hely the disadvantaged, focusing it on
sdimls,andlevemgj:gmtdd:gnrﬂsmdasigmdtoma:dmizethehpa:tof
the program, Hore generally, the arganizatienal-bedlding crlemtation of tha
Froposal is rocted in the assumpticon that existing institutiens mst ke
mmymﬁmmmdmmﬂumﬁﬂmofm'smﬁply-
distressed cammmities.

To conclude on 2 samewhat disamming nete. Even if ressrces were move
Plentiful, I believe that a deponstratian, learn-from-experience approach makes
tha most sense. Ik makes the most sense becanse there are a great muber of
questions that need to be resolved before anything like an effective large-
scale naticnal service effort can be mountad, We mist avoid at all costs false
starts and false promises. The poor have “n too many new begimnings resnit
in the same 0ld sad ending apd too many prams._
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If a national service program begins carefully, medestly, dalibarately and
creatively, and has as itg foous the transformation of at-risk schools and

‘their communties, it will, I believe, signal a real new begiming for these

most in need. Tt will prova by its sarly sucoesses the concrute value of
public sarvice to the individua) and society. And it will, most significantly,
geneats hope that through our cambined efforts the lives of all Americans can
be mada better.
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Mr. MIARTINEZ. Thank you, Professor Harkavy. We have had a
new deal, we have had a new beginning and I don’t know what we
are going to call this one. We have the war on poverty and the war
on drugs and we didn’t win them anymore than we won the Viet-
nam War.

So, I reaily don’t know where we are going, but we have got to do
something. You talk about school’s involvements, right now I am
talking generally, not about specific incidences, but aren’t the
schools really isolated from their communities now?

Mr. Harkavy. Congressman, my sense is that is, in fact, the
future as Mr. Shanker indicated in part of schools in the United
States, but it need not be this way. There is a growing movement
that we have heard by members of this panel of a change and the
change is that schools cannot meet their fuaction of educating
young people unless they are part of helping to transform the -
neighborhoods these young people live in.

We can no longer afford as a nation a situation where our
schools are failing because we can’t compete then as a society in
the world that we live in. So, rather than consigning millions of
young people to situations of hopelessness, schools are changing
and I think that what you are beginning to see now and will in-
creasingly see is a return to how schools often functioned in a pre-
vious state.

Cumprehensive community schools are not a new found inven-
tion by academics. They are deeply rooted in the American tradi-
tion of decentralized institutions that teach democracy. They are
deeply rooted in a whole educational history of the United States
and with my colleagues on this panel have indicated, they are rein-
venting at a higher level what happened before, at a higher level
because the society needs it more than ever.

So, yes, Congressman, they have been isolated in the recent
period, but we are learning that the schools can’t do it alone, and
for our society and the functioning of those schools, change is hap-
pening.

Mr. MarTiNEZ. Thank you. Ms. Kong, you referred in your testi-
mony about the proposal of the President and they are particularly
interested in movement rather than program. To me movement
means like when you say no to drugs because it doesn’t cost any-
thing to tell them to say no to drugs, but program to them means
it is going to cost some money because we are going to have to ac-
tually do something concrete.

Do you really understand what they mean by “movement”
rather than “program” because to me it is confusing?

Ms. Kong. No, I didn’t. I am willing to wait to see if they have
more specifics on their propesal, but I think we should be asking
them exactly what they have in mind. I do believe that if you think
of the two goals in mind which is youth development for the pur-
pose of learning more about citizenship and providing service that
you can’t get that out of a movement, you can get it out of fully
funded programs.

Mr. MairTINEZ. IS there a fear on the part of the Administration
and shouid we be scared off by the label of creating another new
bureaucracy or creating a bureaucracy?
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Ms. Kong. The folks I have been working with in the field—we
all refer to the 400 programs that are working now—none of us are
looking for a new bureaucracy. What we are%ooking for is the sta-
bility and the expansion potential that Federal funds can offer us.

W}t; found something that we think works and we would like to
see it expanded and only Federal funding ¢an help us with that.

Mr. MARTINEZ. That goes back to what Professor Harkavy said,
you know, we don’t have to reinvent the wheel. The wheel is al-
ready out there; all we have to do is find the motor to drive it and
part of that is the stability you talked about.

That has been presented before in testimony. Let me take a
moment to say that your testimony wasg very succinet and to the
point and you really covered the whole nuts and bolts of it and it
was very, very good testimony.

The thing that I am concerned about as we try to progress here
is that we get bogged down with the idea that there is not enough
money or there isn’t appropriations for it, but it is funny how we
find money and we will fund programs, for example in the next
week or so for the super collider.

Now, we are suppose to be behind that 100 percent because it im-
proves things, it enhances the quality of life, but for whom? For
those who can afford it because they have the mone{ to buy the
energy that it produces, but how about the quality of life for those
who can’t afford it.

When do we take the money and the time to afford programs
that improves the quality of life for people at the very bottom end
of the spectrum, that really need it so that they might be able to
receive some of that quality of life.

That is a question that I keep asking and I haven't gotten a sub-
stantial answer yet. I think that if we want to, we can find the
money for a program like this simply because it is important and
because it is going to cost us less in the long run.

Someone testified earlier that a program that they participate re-
turned a $1.31 for every dollar invested. I see that in a program
like the Job Corps, for every dollar invested, a $1.41 is returned.
Even when the Administration in trying to do away with Job Corps
tried to insist that it was closer to a $1.20 than it was a $1.77, that
if I were a businessman, and I was a businessman before I got into
Congress, if I could make 20 percent profit on every dollar I invest-
ed, I would be ecstatic, and so that is a profit any way you look at
it.

I am going to have to rush off because there is another vote and
I don’t want to miss anymore votes today, although there are a lot
of questions that I haven't asked of you. I want to commend all of
you, especially Mr. Jones, because you come from an area that I
am very familiar with.

You know, I am from East I.A. and I grew up in neighborhoods
where there were plenty of gangs and I know that it is not always
easy to take the high road and do the things that are right and
responsible because you always have others pulling at you trying to
get you back into their misery or their gang activity and every-
thing else.

So, it really takes courage for a person in that kind of environ-
ment to come;forward. I talked to a young man—he was enrolled
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in Job Corps and determined to make something of himself—and I
asked him because so many of the young people in there are drop-
outs, I said, “Are you a dropout?”

He said, “No, I am not a dropout; I am a forceout,” and I won-
dered, “What do you mean by that?’, and he says, “My environ-
ment, my family life, and society forced me out because it didn’t
provide the tools that I needed to stay in.”

He said, “But I am doing something about that now because I
found some tools that they did provide and I am taking advantage
of them.” He pointed very proudly to a poster in his dormitory. It
was a poster from a Marine Corps unit that he was going to be a
part of because he had already signed a contract with Marine
Corps for when he graduated from Job Corps and got his high
school equivalency degree.

He had signed the contract to receive that kind of training. I
don’t have any doubt that that young man isn’t going to succeed. It
took him courage, it took you courage, it takes people hike you to
turn things around. It takes courage for young people to volunteer
to do things like you do in consideration of other people other than
yourself.

That unselfishness is what we have got to try to change this
country to be and it was once that way. In recent years, everybody
15 looking out for themselves and to heck with everybody else. But
I think we have an opportunity to change that attitude in America
and in changing that attitude, we can all be bettered by it.

Thank you very much for coming before us. We are adjourned.

[Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 1:05 p.m.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]
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June 15, 1989

The Honorable Augustus F. Hawkine, Chairman
House Education and Labor Committee

0.S. House of Representatives '

Washington, B.C. 20515

Dear Rep:esontative Hawkine:

GENERATIONE UMITED: A National Coalition On Intergeverational
Issues and Programd which is co.Wwriced of more than )00 national
organizations representing Americans of all ages beli.aves that
national service is an ideal embodying the best of Amdrican’
values. Thess values include a concern for others, active
contributions by individuals to the life of the community and
working together as partners to meet majJor social challenges in
American society.

We believe that the most affective programe in cur emarging
national service systom ghare certain common principles whioh
dietinguish them from traditional volunteerism and public service
work or traiping programs. And since our coalition is in the

unigue position of representing Apericans of all agesa, it ias

from this perspective that we recommend a comprehensive national
gervice system that recognizes Americans of all generatione as .
valuahle regsources capable of making important contributions to
their compunities and the nation.

Therefore, as the Housé prepares to craft comprehengive National
Sarvice legislation we ask that vyou congider the attached
*Principles On National Service* approved by the Public Policy
Committee Of GENERATIONS UNITED.

GENERATIONS UMITED stands roady to asgist you in the development

of a comprehensive, intergenerational naticnal service system and
urges your support of the attached principles.

w Chiid welfore League Of America. inc. The National Counctl On The Aging. Inc. m
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David Liade:man

Co-Chair, Generations United
Executive Director

Child Welfare League of America

éJack Koskowitz
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5 CWLA, 440 First Streel. Nw, Suite 310, washingron. DG 200012085, (202} 6352052
GENEEATIONS UNITED PRINCIPLEE ON HMATIONAL SERVICE

OCur socliety has snormcus nasd for agervicas in such fields as
haslth, education, consarvation, and care for ths young and old.
Genaretions United: A National Coalition On Intergenerational
Issuas and Programs supports a coaprehensive aPproach to
National Bervice which would huilld on existing service programs
A% & VaY Americans ©f all agas could help meet uny of these
needs. .

Gansrations United also views national garvice as a way to
" fulfill one of its four stated purposes which 4is *To participate
in endeavors that bring the gensrations together for service to
tha community and to ons another.®

Mational Servica has garnered gignificant attention in the
media, tha Congress and the new adninistration. A variety of
Hational Sarvice hills hava already been introduced in the 10ist
Congresa and it i expected that several mors will he introduced
this Year. Gonarations United will use the following principles
to evaluate and take positions on the variocus proPOsals when
nacassary.

' ‘Gensraticns United: A Mationsl Coalition On Intergenerational
. Issues and Programs andorses proposala for natiopal service
which:

© Recognize that adequate adninistrative and financial support
are saaential to the success of programs in a national aarvice

- © Recognizs pacpla of all ages as resources and provide all

" generations with opportunitias tc serve in ways that will snhance
. their self-ssteem, knovlsdgs, lsadarship, employahility, s.nn of
- ‘ming for othars, and commitment t¢ their communities.

K beﬂ.ﬂ. substantive and sustaired ssrvice meeting widely
‘uoknowledged service naeds

motloro, Genarations United halisves that & naticnal service
- systes should encompass the following fastures:
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GENERATIONS UNITED PRINCIPLEE ON MATIOMAL BSBRVICE-continued

© Existing and noew pervice programs for older persons and youth
should coordinate with other service programs.

© All pervice brograms should provide opportunities for people
from different backgrounds and cultures to work together and
learn from each other.

© All programs ghould offer incentives and rewards in order to
encourage participation and to emphasize the value our society
places on the ethic of service.

o Program options should include a range of service oppertunities
including part-time and full-time., volunteer and compensated as
appropriate. Participation in National Service Programs ghould
not be a precondition for eligibility for existing neods based
programe.

© All gervice programs should assure that participante receive
the supervieion., training and eupportive pervices necegsary for
auccessful pacticipation.

© Participants in pervice progdrama ghould not displace paid
workers.

© All gervice Programs ehould be an integral part of the
communities they serve, responding to local needs apd

- gtrengthened by local rescurces, support apnd participation.

© Service programs should be obPeratered through a variety of
vebicles including non-prefit corganizations., atate apd local
governmenta., schoolsa, public-private partnerships, and national
and federal programs,

© New national service programs should expand and support
exieting service models that are guccessfully operating in
thousands of commuziiies throughout the country.

© Punds for new pational service programs should be used to
leverage additicnal private and public Bupport for service
programa, with governors, corporations and foundations ag full
partners in this effort. New npational efforte should not compete
with local programs in efforts to securs private asupport.
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CHILD WELFARE LEAGUE OF AMERICA, INC.
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June 23, 1949

The Henorabiu hugustue F. Hawkins. Chairman
House EBducatien and Labor Committee

0.5. Houze of Reproszentatives

Washington, DC 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman;

The Child Welfaxe League of America appreciates your
leadership oh national ¥outh service and requests that
the followinT commonts and princiPles ke included in the
record of the June 2B,1%B% hearing on National Youth
Service.

The enclosed "Principles for National Youth Service™
wore adopted by the Board of The Child Welfare League of
Amoriea, a national asgociation of 525 leading puklic
and voluntar¥ agencties throughout the country.

We Iequest that you consider incorporating thece
principles into the final version of national youth
service legislation. We particularly urde You to include
the following sPecifiq referente to putreach to Youth
who are “aging aut” of the foster care System:

Mational Youth Service programs gould provide
otherwise unavallable oPportunities for youth who
are "aglng out" of foster care. Therafore, Programs
in a pational service system Bhould make special
efforts to recrult ¥Youth who are "aging ouk™ of
fogter cara, who are hemelssgp: O are otharwise
digconnected from thelr communities.

CWLA and its 525 members throughout the country stand
ready to assist you in crafting National Youth Service
legislation that reaches out and enables all Young
People to contrikute through service.

Sincerely., .
/Ekih(ai’?‘LZCﬁdgﬁnn-u_)

David $. Liederman
Executive Director
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UEHLD WELFARE LEAGUE OF apMEmICIL o

CWLA PRINCIPLES ON NATIONAL YOUTH SERVICE

National Youth Service programs could Provide otherwisw
unavailable oPPortunities for ¥Youth who are aging out of foster
car® and should include Provisions that make special efforts to
recruit that population and other at-risk Youth who are
disconnectad from their fapilies and communities.

Thecefore, CWLA endopses Youth service opportunities which:

o Provide suybstantive and sustained sepvice
m@eting widely-acknovwledged community naeds

o Dev2lop younyg Americans in ways that enhance
their self-ecsteem, Sducation. leadershib.
employablility and sense ¢f caring for otheps

© Fromote the concept of Young people as community
resources

Furthermore, CWLM believes that youth SepEvice Programs should
include the folléwing featuzes:

(1) Programa should make apecial efforts to recruit Youth vho
are "aging out“ of foster cape, who are homeless, or arce
ctherwiae diaconnected from families and communities;

(2) Programs should ke entirely voluntary and non-participation
should not Aisqualify Young Americans from any exleting
educational lcans, grants or opportunities;

(3) Programs should include an inservice educaticonal cemponent
and Post service education and job training access and benefits;

(4} Programs ghould assure that Young People from different
backgrounds have oPPortunities to work todether and learn from
@ach othsor;

(5} Programs ghould be administered throudh a vapiety of
vehicles including community-based organizations. non-Prefit
organizations, local governments, public-Drivate partnerships,
and schools;
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CRILD WELFARE LEAGUE OF AMERICA, INC.

(6) Programeé should be an intagral part of the commuenities they
serve, rasponding te local needs and srrangthened by local
rescurces and suppert; and,

(7} Pregrams should previde for a range of sarvies opportunitias
ineluding intergenerational exPeriences, searviees to ¢hildren,

tutoring, #nd eother human serviees as well as housin§
rehabilitation, concecvation and military service.

A NG CRULLHIEN 3 RIGH TS ¢ SERVING CHILDREN 3 NEELDS

R

l9-864 O - 89 - 17
:
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SR D WE! FARE LEAGUE OF AMEPICA, INT

June 22, 1989

Statement by David §, Liederman, Executive Director, Child
Walfare League of America on the "Points of Light Initiative"

We applayd the President's leadecehip in challenging the natien
toe become gngaged in 2 movenment of communitY service, and are
particularly pleaged that young pecple are being called on to
lead the movement. The “"Points ¢f Light Initiative® can be an
important component of a larger national service s¥stem that
reaches out to youth whe are disconnected from their communities
and unlikely to be associaced with a school, businesas or
religioys group. These Young People ape valuable untapped
regeurces in their communities but theY need stipends and othec
supports in oprdec to be able to make cheir contcibutions. The
Pcasident‘s proposal is & good fipgt atep but cannot be viewed as
che answer to a comprehensive national service a¥Yetem or a
substitute for increased government epending on housing, child
chce, adueation, child welfare and social eervices.
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June 28, 1989

The Honorable RAugustus F. Hawkins
Chairman, Education and Labor Committee
U.£. House of Representativas

Room 21el REOB

washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Chairman Hawkins:

We respectfully submit the a statement of gur Council
aa presented by Judith Billings, State Superintendent of
Public Instruction of the State of Washington, in support
of federzl legislation to Promote school based community
service prodrams.

We would be pleased to cohsult with Y0u and other
Committee Members in Your efforts to draft & comprehensive
youth service bill.

Thank you for this opportunity to submit this statement
for your record.

ginc 1y,

rdon M. Ambach
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NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE
A Statement of the Council of Chief State Sthool Officers
Submitted to the

Subtommittee on Elementary, Setondar¥, and Vocational Education;
Subcommittee on Human Resources! Subtommitcae on Postsecondary
Education; Subtomftree on Eaployment Opportuniries; and
Subtommities on Selpcr Education

By
Judith Billings
State Superintendent of Publit Instruction
State of Yashington

June 28, 198%

COUNCIL OF CHIEF $STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS
379 Hall of the States, 400 North Caphol Strect. N, W.. Washington, £.C. 200011511
202:393-816) = FAX 201 3931228
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Mr. Chairman and Members of che Gommittee. I thank you

for chis opportunity to tescify on proposed legislacion co

encourage youth service. My stacement represencs the viaws
of grate superintendents and commissioners of educacion
across the nation through our Council of Chief State School
Officers. We copmend Chairman Hawlkins. Congressman Ford.
and ocher Coumircee Members for their leadership in
considering legislacion ro provide more exrensive

opporrunities for youth to serve thelr comsunities.

Our Council endorsea rhe following key principles for

federal supporr to expand youth community service programs:

Elemencary. secondary and poscsecondary students
should be eligible co partlcipate in community

setvice programs.

School-based communlty gervice programs should be
well-connecred To the student’s academic and
vocational study. The concepr of compunilry
service shoyld be integrared inte the ¥-12
curricula. with opportunlty for srudent reflaction

on and analysia of the experience.

Schovl-based community service programs should
include; crzining for reachers. adminisrrators.

and placement supervisors; collaborarive offorcs
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For projects with Youth serving organizatiens,
private sector organizations. communicy-based
organizations. and colleges and universicles: ang

avaluation components.

4, Communicy service programs should Include
educational components to help disadvantaged
students acquira basic skills and attain high

school equivalency diplomas.

5.  Although communiry or national service legislation
may be volunrtarily connected to Teceipt of a
goverrment benefir. such service ghouyld not be a
tequirenent for receiving federal student

financial aid.

6. School-based community sarvice programs ghould be
adbinistered by srate and local education

agencies.

For the past Year and a half. the Council of Chief
State School Officers has engaged in sccivities to
encoutage the development of gffactive Yourh communicy
servica programs, focusing primarily on school-based
programs for youth in grades K-12. We urBe thisz Committes
to include In any omnibus youth service legislation a
component ¢o SUPpo¥t the expansion and development of
Quality school and campus-based communicy service

programs. We further wEge You to base tha school component

on the princlples we have endorsed. +
-2-
£«
Bt
b,

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




513

Sthool-based communicy service (s Imporcanc for chree

TEASONS: N

Flrse, American elementary and setondaty education has
entompassed. since its beginn'rz., the mission of
insclilling the value of good cltizenship. Researth and
experience shows that mosc studencs learn best by
applying and practicing abscr&cc toncepts. School-
based tommunicy service incegrates the concept of
service into the curricula and involves students in the

practlce of sarvice.

Setond. ¢lementaty and sécondary schools can provide
opportunity for all youch -- withour regard o abilicy.
sotlo-etonomle scatus, race or ethnicicy -- o

parcicipate in effecclive compmunicy service accivicies.

Finally, school-based community service expands a young

person's cognlrive development oucside of classroom

study. In some cases school-based service programs

re-engage disinterescted scudencs 4T risk of dropping 8
out, School-based communlty service programs offer

such youth experience, perhaps for the first time i{n

their lives, of whar L1t {5 like to serve and pg make a

difference in cheir communicies.

b-u&

)
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Youth community service embodies the best of Amerfcan
values -+ concern for others. accive participaricn iu and
contributions to the life of ¢he community, sharing and
working wich others toward commen gcals. Tadays more than

ever. there i5 a need te call young peaple to serve. We

applaud rhat and urge federal leadership in che advancement

of the youth service agenda in this councry.

Thank You. Mr. Chairman and Members of the Cummittee.
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ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED $TATES ARMY

2415 WILSON BOULEVAAD, ARLINGTON, VIAGINIA 222010105 (FO3F841.4300

STATEMENT BY
GENERAL JACK M. MERRITT, UGSA KETIRED
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
ASS0CIATION OF THE UNLTED STATES ARMY
\ BEFORE THE
ELEMEMTART» SECONDARY & VOUATIONAL EDUCATIOR SUBCOMMITIEE
HUMAN RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE
TOSTSECONDARY EDUCATION SUBCOMMITIEE
EMPLGYMENT OFPORTUNITIES SUBCOMMITTEE
SELECT EDUCATION SUBCOMMITTER
OF THE HDYST EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMUTTZE
U.5. HOUSE OF RETRESENTATIVES

FIRST SESSION: 1015T CONGRESS

NATIORAL SERVICE

28 JUNE 1989
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A Statement co the
Elemencacyr Secondary & Vocational Education Subecommiccee
Humsn Resoucces Subcommictee
Postsecondary Education Subcommittee
Enployment Qppotrunicies Subcommictes
Select Educarion Subcommictee
of the House Education and Labot Comrittee

U.S. House of Reptesencatives

28 June 1989

1 ow Genecal Jack N. Meccitt, USA tetired, Executive Vice President
of the Assoclation ©f che United Staces Army. I very much cppreciate chis
afectunicy to present te you coday the views of our Assoeclation on

nacional service legislacion ptesentiy being conmsideted by this Congtess.

Service o the nation 15 cenccal to che idea of service in out Atmed
Fotces. Accotdinoglyr out Agsocilacion suppotts che concept of national
service for our youth. The value of carly involvement in public service
is ipescimable in my view. However, any specific form of nacional service
ought to be compatibl: wich che fundamental requitements of national

defense; it would be conceptually inconsisteacr for it to be otherwise.

1 am awace chat you have at least four Jdifferent nacional Bervice
proposcls before You. But racher chan comment on each ¢one individually, I
thought it mighc be moce helpful to you if I wecre €0 describe just a few

of the basic nesds of che Armed Porces 28 they relate po manpower. In

RIC 524
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this way you will be able to judge each national service proposal by how

well it does or does not meet these Lilitary service needs.

What are these needs of the Armed Services? Let me list four of
them. As a4 recired Army general officer 1 will confine my comments to the
Armys howvever, I am confident that much of what I have to say applies to

the other Services as well.

Need #1. Capability of the Force. As I sald, the defense of the

pation 15 and must remain our nueber one priority. This capabilic¥
demands quality people. Existing &ptitu’e and educational standards for
Army service must be maintained as well as turrent medicel and moral
standards. The total pumber of accessions into the Army peeds to be

suf ficient to support congressionally approved end strength and forece
atructure (the oumber and t¥pe of units). The pool of firsc te;m soldiers
has to be sufficient to provide an adequate base from which to select the
future noncommissioned officer torps. The distribution of aceessions by
skill and length of enlistment mist Support Ammy requirements. Terms of
service should be long enough to offset the investment iun traiaing. The
Army at ite present strength and fotte structure can readily accept
batween 15,000 and 20,000 two-year ealistments. AR amount above this
figure inereases personnel turbulence and ttainiag costs. Could a larger
nunber be atceptable? Of course. But at gome finaneigl cost gnd at some
larger number there would be effectiveness costs ae well. Personnel
officiale from each of the other Services have testified recently before

the Armed Servites Committee that they do not want any two year egplistees.

Need f2. Atey must continue to be competitive., The Army gust temain

compztitive in the youth matket with the tivilian Portion of patiomal
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service, and with the other Services. Incentive programs mandated solely
for the Army should continue bezause of the rigors of Army life which are
less readily appealing than life in other Services. These inelude the
Armgy College Fund and a limited two-year enlistmenc. Other incenrives
must compete favorably with benefits for sivilian servite. The longest

terms of national gervice should be for sarvice in the milirary.

Need #3. Demographic Compositiocn of the Army. It is important for

the Army to remain representative of the nation's population mwix. Re-
truiting should centinue on a gender and racilally neutral basis. No
patiopal service proposal should attempt to skew the current geographic,
soclp-economicr genderr and racial balance of the Army in the interests of
social engineering. The Army must not be made 2 sociclogical test tube:
it is and must remain ap armed, strategles sombat ready force prepared teo

fight and to win.

Need #4. Funding. In this time of fiscal copstraint and budBet
deficits funding a new program such as national service ocughr oot come at
the expense Of current Defemse Pepartment or Service Programs. Congress
will have te authorize and sppropriate funde to cover any ipnsreased cCosta
asegociared with a new proéram. For exampler the sdditicnal cost assoccilat~—
ed with 50,000 two-year enlistments compared ro am equal oumber of enlist~
ments for three Fears 1s asbout %150 million and iovolves additiconal
manpower in the training base. I Should also peint cut thst many current
essential ArmY programe go under funded; to impese a uew program on the

Army without adequate addirional funds would be imprudent at rhe least.

Finally, let me say just a few words about testing a pational gervice

program. In the opinion of AUSA almost any narional service program will

El{fC‘
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corpete with military recrulting in the youth market. There are bound to
be other costs and impacts that remain unseen uptil a program is imple~
weoced. Therefore, this Assoclation believes It would be Prudent to test
any natlonal service program. We believe such a cest would help ro
determine its feasibility, its impact on wmilictary recruiting in a shrink-
ipg youth market, and the costs assoclated with such a far-reachinog

pProSram.

Thank you for providing me and the Assoclation of the United States
Army this oppertunlty to express oul view of national service for Ameri-

ca's youth.
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TESTIMONY OF DONALD J. EBERLY
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR

JUNE 28. 1989

¥r. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

1 am Donald J. Eberly, executive director ©f the Hational
Service Secretariat and of the Coalition for Natiomal Service.
The Secretariat was founded in 1966 to stimulate and facilitate
the serious consideration of npational serviece and as a sourc¢e of
information of national service.

The Coalition for National Service was fouhded in 1986 and
conPrises some 150 individuals and organizations which faver a
voluntaryY natienal service that would challenge all young peaple
to serve, that would pay stipends to those in full-time service,
that would link service with learning., that would award a GI Bill
tor the further education and training of those who serve. and
thet would create a national service foundation to adminiater
national Service in a decentralized fashion. Further details are
available in the Ceoalition's publication entitled Natiohal
Service: An Action_hgends for the 15%0s (5140 Sherier Place, NW,
Washington, DC 20016).

Today I am testifying in my Primary pesitien, that of United
States citizen. As a citizen, I have been a student of patioral
service for some 40 years. During this time, I have been
invelved in all aspects of national serviece -= milikary and
civilian, domestic and international. and as a volunteer.
administrator, researcher and advocate. Much of what I have
learned apout naticnal serviece during this period aPPears in my
latest boOk, Natrional Service: A Promise ro Heep [John Alden
Books, 1988}.

From my persPective, ir aPPears that we are now on the
threshheld ©f the Ureatest advance toward national service since
the introduction of the Peace CorpPs in 1961. This progress is
due in large measure te the commitment t© pational service of
several of the nation's political leaders.

I aPplaud President Bush for his renewed Pledge last week to
create & national service foundation and for his proclamation
that "from now on in Amerieca. any definition of & successful life
must inelude serving others.”

I aPplaud Sen. Nunn. Rep. Dave MeCurdy and the Democreatic
Leadership council for their beld national service plan that
caught the attention of the nation's educaters anhd manyY others.

T applaud Rep. Panetta., Rep. Morris dall and others for
their peraistence in proposing legislation that would build on
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small but successful state and local Youth service programs by
establishing financial incentives to increase their size and make
it sasier for other states and localities to establish similar
effortsa.

And by no means least, Wr. Chairman, I appland you for Your
sustained efforts over decades to give all ¥Young Americans
opportunites for constructive work experience so the¥ can become
contributing members of societ¥ and realize their personal
petential as human beings.

In 1985, Chairman Martinez of ¥Your Subcommittee on
Employment OpPortunities Posed several questions to me about
national service and I respeonded with a long statement. What 1
said then is still germane to Your present delibesrations.
However, I shall not repeat it as it is in the Printed record
{Serial No, 99-52) of the hearing of September 27, 1985.

What I will focus on today is the issue that faces You and
your felleow members of Congress; namely, how to craft a piece of
national service legislation that is right for the future of the
United States. I shall make recommendations in three areas;
namely, (a) the @elements to include in the bill, (b) a suggested
level of appropriations, and {¢} an outline of two nmational
service pilot projects that I think will best Provide the
intformation needed for the future directions of national service.

First, I would include in the bill the Panetta=Udall-Dodd
measure that would provide matching grants to states ang
localities with Youth service programs. The number of 18-24 ¥Year
olds in full-time civilian Youth mervice has grown verY¥ slowly in
recent Years because of the lack of faderal suPnort. Since
reaching 5,000 at the end ©f 1983, enrollment c¢limhed only to
9,000 at the end of 1988. And those figures include the number
of 18-24 ¥Year olds in both VISTA and the Peace Corps. Given the
present size ©f the state and local Programs, and given the
interest of other states and c¢ities in starting their own such
programs, I believe the sug@ested appropriation level of $152
million is the correct one.

second., I would include Part I of Senator Kenned¥'s bill
that would stimulate student volunteering and would add tp its
quality by relating service to learning and learning to service.
Instead ©f hig figure of $100 million a Year for five Years. I
would start with 530 million a ¥Year and add to that in a way that
maintains a high quality¥ program. Mr. Kennedy's figure of 5500
million over a five-year period is about right for making
constructive service-learning oppertunities available te all high
schoel and ¢ollege students.

Third., I woulQd create one O more Pilot Projects to teach us
things we do not already know about national service. I am

2
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astonished when I read some of the things editorial writers and
athers claim is not known about national service, If we repeat
tests of what is already known, it will deo little to advance the
debate over where national service should go. The major unknownd -
have teo do with the impact of national service {a) when all young
peoPle in A communit¥ have a chance to serve, and (b} when a
community¥ is assured of g= man¥ national servers as it needs.

At the conclusion of my testimon¥: I outline a set of pilot
projects that I am confident would add substantially te what is
know about national service. It woyld cost $15 million in the
first ¥Year in which young people serve and $292 million over irts
eight-year life sban.

Fourth:. I would accept President Bush's proposal for a
national service foundation. A national service particibPant
exhibits characteristics that are at times those of (a) a
volunteer, {b} an employee, (c) an intern, and {d) an apprentice.
A new entity¥ is needed to house an aganc¥ that will handle A new
set of resources, Each of the ahove programs should be aperated
oyt of this national service foundation.

I would then move Mr. Bush's "YES to America”™ activities --
which appear to be limited to unbPaid volunteers =-- to ACTION, the
federal volunteer agency: or ro VOLUNTEER, a private sesctor
arganization that was spun off by ACTION some Years aga.

Fifth., I would double the size of vISTA and transfer it from
ACTION to the new national service foundation. vISTA has all the
characteristics of natiomal service and only some of the
characteristics of a voluntemer program as Mr. Bush is using the
term. That would cost $22 million.

Sixth. I would charde the Commission on Natinnal Service
Oopportunities that would be created by the Panetta-Udall-Dadd
Bill with the additional function of exPloring a Narianal Senior
service Program and outlining projects to test their ideas.

In my juddment. these six stebPs wold enable the United
States to benefit from what is knoun about naticnal service while
conducting tests to determine the futuyre directions of national
service. An expenditure of 5219 million can be Paid for from the
savings of demobilizing 30.000 active duty military service
personnel now in EBurope and still leave a balance of some $400
million.

& PAIR oF PILOT PROJECTS

dutlined below are designs for what I consider to he the tun
most critical national service pilot Projects. They will tell us
things that can be learned only from testing in real life. One
will tell us how many¥ younhd peoble will volunteer for various
national service abtions: the other will tell us how mahy
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nacional servers a communicy can uysefuylly engage. The resulcs
can be extrapolated to give much more accuyrate national estimates
chan cthe figures we pyze today.

At the same time, the projects will test che ideas put
forward by Senators Nunn., Pell. Mikulski and others in recent
legislation. For background information on the suggested

projects, see pp. 114-128 of National Service: A Promise to Reep.

The Service Choicesg Praject. This test project will run for
eight Years and will offer a variety of civilian and military
options to the young men and women of the selected area as they
become 18 years old. A four-year cohort =- those 14-17 during
the first year of the project == will becoms eligible when they
turn 12 and will remain eligible to enter =ervice until the end
of the seventh year. They will then be ages 21-24 S0 it will
give g a fairly good test of service choices by 18=-24 Year alds.

The 18 ¥ear old cohort comPrises about 1.4% of the
population go a t¥Pical area of one million population shoyld
have about 14,000 gaining eligibilicty each year. Of that number.
I estimate some 2,100 will enter military service and 3,500
civilian service. The largest group of entrants will be 18-19
Year olas.

The first year of the project will be devoced to organizing,
daca gachering., regiscracion of 17 year olds, and oriencation of
the Public and nonprofit sponsors.

While most civilian service will take place in the given
SMSA, arrandements will be made with exiscing youth serwviece

‘programs —— especially conservation corps == to accePt

ERI
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parcicipants from the test area.

Here are the steps a national service foundation would take
to get the Droject under way.

1. Invite SM3As of 750,000 to 1,250,000 population to sybmit
proposals for hosting the pilot preject. Proposals will have to
demonstrate that they have the suppoert of community educators.
business people, union leaders. young peopPle, the wolunteer=
nonprofit sectoer, and city and county Jovernments. The socin-
economic profile of the SMSA should be fairly clese to that of
the USA. Examples of $MSAs that are within the pobulation range
are Albany., Birmingham, Buffale, Dayton., Greensbaro,
Indianapolis. Hemphis, Milwaukee. Oklahoma City, Portland (OR),
Rochester (NY)}, and San Antonio.

2. A3 soon as the site is selected: obtain baseline data on
demograPhics, unemployment. Poverty, crime, welfare. etc. Some
of these measures will entail nAw surveys since, e.g.. the
menthly unemployment data from BLS for a community this size is
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hot very accurate.

3, Invite all residents of the selected SMSA who turn 17
during the first Year to register for national service. Everyone
who registers will receive an information Packet describing the
various oPtions (see No. S below). Registration of 17 ¥Year olds
will continue for four Years.

4. As registrants become 18, they will be asked to make
choices along these lines {(administrative actions follow in
parentheses}:

a, "I want to begin service now.” (Report to a given
address for interview.}

b. "I expect to enter Option X on (date}),” (Reep registrant
informed of Possibilities in area of choice and invite for
interview a few weeks before date indicated.)

c, "I maY decide to serve sometime in the next several
years." (Reep informed by way of Jeneral bewsletter,)

d. "I have no .intention of serving."” (Naote in data file.}
5. Here are the oPtions:

a. Enter the Armed Forces under ohe of the existing
enlistment plans.

b. Enter the Armed Forces for two years A%t two=thirds the
normal salary and receive a $20,000 educational hehefir or
57,000 cash honhus on combletion of the two-Year enlistment.

¢, Enter full-time civilian service for one Year. Raceive
weekly stipends of $120. health benefits. life insurance,
and a choice of a $7,.500 educational benefit or $3,000 in
cash on completion of service, These opting for a secand
year of service recelve weekly stipends of $140 and a cheoice
of $10,000 educational henafit or $3,300 cash. ({The
educational benefit for twe Years of civilian service would
total $17.500.)

d. Enter part-time civilian service (two weekenhds a monhth
plus two weeks in summer) with a commitment of at least
three Years. Receive no stipemds. Receive choice of $2.500
education benefit or $1.000 cash per yYear of service.

e. Make no choice but retain the obtion of making a choice
within the life ¢f the project.

Throughout the life of the ProJect, maintain Joo0d statisties
on everything counted in the hase-line survey and on the
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decisions made by eligible youny people. Emphasize hard data,
keeping attitudinal surve¥s to a minimum.

The Nepds Project. This project will run for six vears and
will measyre a community's absorptive capacity for natisnal
sarvice participants. As in the Service Cheoices Projecr. SMSAs
of about one million pobulation will be invited to submit
proposals and will have to demonstrate that the full community
will cooperate oh the Project.

Sponsors ma¥Y be public agencies or nonprofit groups which
meat human of enviroumental needs and which neither disc¢riminate
nor violate other boiler-plate regulations. To guard against
make-work positions. sponsors will be required to provide the
nacessary supervision, training and 10% of the participant’'s
stipend in cash., Sponsors will be encouraged to raise the ¢ash
from local ¢ivic elubs, unions, businesses, churches, etc., and
to connect members of such grouPs with national servers in
mentoring relationships.

Sponsors. may alsc ehgage participants who serve only fwa
weekends a mohth plus two weeks in the m=ummer, and the elderly
who serve part—time for $5 an hour. As with thase in full-time
service, sponseors should provide necessary supPrV1Q1onf training
and a c¢ash ¢ontribution proportional to time in =mervice.

Emphasis during the first Year will be on orienting the
potential sponsors to the nature of the proleck, identifying
positions for which national servers are needed, and collenting
data on such things as service nesds and the numher of voaluntesrs
and empPloYees engagded by the respective sponsors. At the
beginning of year two, as the first partic¢ipants enrer service,
there should be a few thousand positions in a few hundred
agencies.

Administration of the proiegcts. The test projects should be
directed by the national service foundation cited ahove. The
national service foundation should play the major role in prnjﬂct
des1gn and evaluation while the grantee should play the majar
role in local administratien.

I estimate unit costs on the civilian side at $10,000 per
year of service and £7,000 for the post-service benefits.

Ideally, the test projects should be carried on in separate
SMSAs. Budget considerations may dictate that they he done in
the same SMSA.

ESTIMATED NUMBERS AND C5TS

The budget will have to be somewhat oPen-ended becans. of
the nature of the expariment. Estimated numbers and costz are
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given below for the Service Choices Project. 1 assume that the
military costs will be picked up by the Pentagon budget. HNumbers
and costs for the Needs Project probably weuld be about the same,
with & slightly smaller number of full-time participants balanced
off by a number of part-time volunteers.

Year Enter Enter civilian Civilian Total
Civilian Military Service Benefits civiiian
Service Service {5miil) (smill) {8mill}
\' 1 {40) {1600}
. 2 1500 1700 815 - 515
3 2500 1900 25 10 a5
4 A500 2100 a5 17 52
5 4000 2100 40 25 65
6 A000 2000 a0 28 58
7 2000 1900 20 21 a3
8 1000 1800 10 14 24
Totals 17,500 13,500 8175 5115 $292
{Yrs 2-8)
7
E o
e
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Mr. Chalrman. dtstinguished memters of this Committee. My name is StaPhen
Janger. As President of the Close Up Foundation. it fis my distinct

Privilege to Dresent this testimany.

I woukd like to exPress my personal thanks to you for conducting this series
of hearings and for your commitment to @xplore ways ko create incentives and
opportunities for young people to become involved in community service. It
15 personally heartening to witness the growing recognition of the importance
of giving back to one's own community. All of us at Close Up share your
stated fesling that community and nationa! service efforts. where necessary.

stiould be linked with aducational goals,

It is our bellef at Close Up that voluntary community service and good
citizenshiP 9o hand o hand. MWe are convinced thak community s@rvice 1s as

benefictal to the Individual as 1t ¥s to the communlty. For nearly 20 years

we have str}qga'to impart this meéssage to young People.

DEMOCRACY AND INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS

Close Up was founded with a singular mission: to teach young pecple about
their vights and responsibilities in our pleralistic democracy. He wanted
to demonstrate to students that government s both accessible and
responsive. and that a single voice can be heard. MHe believe that democracy
works best at 2% levels when cttizens participate 4n the political
Process. He also believe that we need participants who have the caPacity to
Judge and evaluate the actlons of thelr rsprésentatives. In short, we work

to Inspire individeats to become informed and active citizens.
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Eath of us is a cltizen with rights and respoasibilities, whether we take an
active or a passive role. For this reason. Close UP's work has always
involved students and edycators of 411 backgrounds. regardless of geographic
location, academic oc leadership ability, physical naadicap. or economic
circumstances. We |Involve students and teach2rs from all 50 states. the
Bistrict of Columbia. the Commonwealth of Puerto Rigo. the United States
territories and other Former Wnited Nations Trust Territories 1in  the
Pacific. And although we traditionally pave worked with high school
students and their teachers, over the years we have ldentified other groups
to serve, sych as senlor citizens and recent fimmigrants. He have designed

special currtcula For their participation in our HWashington ProYram.

In order to reach as many tadivtduais as Do;sible and to reinforce our
message of comaunity invelvement. Close Up pas also develoPed 2 series of
gutreach activities such as the Cltizen B8ee competition. high Aduality
academic publications. a nationally alred weekly public affalrs television

praogram. and community-based government studies Programs.

CLOSE UP VOLUNTEER NETWORKS
Clase Up Js not intended to be simpiy a one week ewxperience. He help
Participants Tdentify ways to channel their enthuslasm $nto community
efforts when they return home. The result has been the astablishment of

strong volunteer networks acrass the country.

Each of our activities 1s given life by countless volunteer hours of service
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by parents. teachers. students. apnd civic leaders. Senior participan®s tase
our messade of Personal involvement seriously and have undertaken a wide
variety of activities in their communities. They become involved with our
students fo establish inkergenerational programs both here in Washingbon and

throughout the country.

Our student partlcipanis return home inspired to create community-based pro-
grams for thejr peers. and in the case of our Program for New Americans. for
their parents as well., I would certainly pe rémiss not ta also mention the
significant amount of time Members of ConSress and congressional staff. both
here in Hashington and in home districts. devote to Close Up's educational
activities. These volunteer efforts are truly & source of greak pride at

Clase Up,

He have spoken with a number oF our alumni who now reside in the Hashington
area. Hithout exception. all have Indicated that the decision to Pursue &
career 1In pubiic service was strongly influenced by their Close Up
expérience, Mr. Chairman. while 1t 1s gratifying to kmow that Close Up has
touched so many Tiveés. we believe that we cannot afford to walt urkil high

school age or beyond to instill a strong sense of community pride and

personal responsibliity,

CIVIC INVOLVEMENT FOR MIDOLE SCHOOL STUDENTS

Almost three years age, Close Up initiated discussions with & number of
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agycators. Members of Congress. ang the Matignal Associabion of Elementary
Schogl Principals (NAESP), Me wanted 10 find & way to reack youn3er
students in 3 meaningful way. The educational and develoPmeatal exPerts we
consulted Pointed to grades five Lthrough 2ight as the critical “gateway”
years. The more research we dig. the more we were Convinced that a civic
education Program for this age grouP wa$s much needed. It had to be not Oniy
instructional, but also $nsRirattonal and enjoyakle. It was important to
develop a Program that worked for all %kinds of kids -- an epducational

equalizer, 1F you will,

In resPonding to the need for such 2 Prodram. a strong bimartisan coalition
of Members of Congress took the itad to sPonsor a tongressiomal inttiative.
Congress those to honor the Office of Sheaker, the highest comstitutional
officer in the Legislative Branch of government -~ the branth closest to the
People. And Condress acknowledged “the need to improve the level of civic

Titeracy of American elementary school students.”

CIVIC ACHIEVEMENT AWARD PROGRAM IH HONOR OF
THE OFFICE OF SPEAXER OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
The Clvic Achlevement Award Program (Caap) is cOMased of three bas!c
components:  the Learning Project. the Research Project, and the Civic
Praizyt. The Llearning Project Provides students with a common body of
kaowledge relating to American history. government. GeograPhy. economics,
culture. and current events. CAAP provides them with a comPrehensive.

coheront view of this information and teaches students how to make
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tonnettions between what they are 12arning in each of the areas and row 2ach

is related Lo the others. to society, and to their Own lives.

The materials for this component consist of essays. study sheets, a map, and
a timeling from which test items ar2 drawn. The test, however, is a mastery
test. Students are encouraged L0 continue to take the test until they pass
-= until they know the tsformation. Both students and teachers indicated
that CAAP demonstrates that learning can be enlovabie ang thak the Brogram
helps students establish a positive self image.

To tell you the truth, [ didn’t know a thing about history. 1

used to fail every test. But, thanks o your book I was able to

pass the last test we took. [ went from a 59, which is a "fail,"

to a 72, which is a "C."

Hnat [ Vike most about this program are the questions that the

book asks. They ara wvery good qQuestions, because they ask you

things that you really have to think aboyt, not just "whem did

Christopher Columbus discover America?"
The Rasearch Project teaches students that the ability to find informaticn
and to communicate it to others is necessary for full participatios in our
democraty. The Projact requires students to gather and Process information
using libraries and other sources and to report their findings. In carrying
out this second <OMpoment of CAAP, students o¢aln wverbal and written
communfcation skills and increase their reading. orSapizational. and

analytical abilities.

The Civic Project complements the Research pProject by having students

conduct researeh om a clvie issue of their own choosing. It then takes them
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further by requiring them to identify alternatives. assess tha conszqueacss
of the alternatives. select t-= alternative they think will best addrass the

issue, and e@xpress thelr opinion pubiiciy. In most cases. studenks. working

cooperatively in groups. will them take some inikial form of civic actien

under adult supervision.

Mr. Chairman, tet me give you an idea of some of the ¢ommunity service

projects our CAAP studénts have done during the pilot and field test years:

¢ Students identified fire code violations in their school. They
worked with the fire department to research the problems and
determine possible solutions. Students and members of the fire
department presented their findings to the Schopl Board. and
funds were appropriated to correct the violations.

Students developed an *adopt-a-grandparent” program in which
they chose an elderly person to help for a period of several
weeks. Students volunteerad thelr time to belp the "adopted"
individuals, such as running errands, grocery shopping,
;lf?ninq house, dcing yard work. and helping the senicors pay
ilis.

Students developed an educational campaign promoting the
importance of writing to one's representatives about 1ssues of
concern. They produced a booklet outlining the hows and whys
of copmunicating thelr concerns by lebter. distributed it to
citizens 1in their community, and wrote letters to their
representatives. In the booklet. the students stated:

We believe that the power is In the written word.
With Just the cost of a postage stamp. we can
change the Fukture. Even though we are not volers.
we feel strongly about such issues as drug abuse,
environmental protection, and education. For the
cost of & twenty-five cent stamp, our class members
exfressed our views on jmportant issues ta our U.S.
represéntative.
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Participatind students regeive a certificate, siOned by the Speaker of the
House of RePresentaltives ang ths House Minority Leader. $SPesial doid stars
and a congressional seal are affived to the certificate as a sign of
successful  completion of ail  three Projects. In  many cases., (AsP
certificates are Presented to the Students in an award$ assembly. This past
shring. several Members of Congr@ss attended the assemblies to make the

award presentations.

Mr. Chairman. you shouid know that the response te this congressional
initiative has been overwh2iminQly positive. Evan thoudh the ProOram was
conducted on a limited pilet and field tegt basis. you amd your calleaguas
cao take great pride in knowing that Your actions of two years ado have
inspired some 30,000 young People. Each has a newfound sense of the con-
¢apt of clvic responsibility and the benefits of community service, During
this currént academic year (the ‘launch year). dependind uPon the level
private sector rescurces., the CAAP program will iavolve between 60.000 and

$00.000 students.

RECOMMENDED CRITERIA FOR NATIONAL SERVICE PROGRANS

It is encouraging to note that many educationai organlZations and institu=
tions are exploring ways in which to strenOthen service comPonents of their
own programs. For example, [ recently had the oPPortunity to keynote the
national conference of the Parent Teacher Assoclation (PTA), and I would 1ike

to include a few recommendations that I shared with thé PTA about community

iy
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servite based UPOn the C10sa Up experience. As you censider these issues. [
would resPectfully suggest that several keéy criteria be kept in mind:
1. - Opportunities should begin early. Elements of any approach
that ts uitimately accepted should reach into the lowest
alementary 9rades. Indeed, service oppartunitles should pe
encouraded for Americans of every age,
Programs should not distriminate between the rich and the
poor. Questlons of incentives and compensation need to be
carefully thought out. Disadvantaged youth should have the
opportunity to be “"givers” as well as "receivers.”
Programs, when school obased, should reinforce or enhange
the curricuilum and allow students Lo make critical
connections batween their studies and the real world.
Programs or aPpDbroaches also should contain infrinsic
educational goals. OPPortunities must be bullt in to
reflect ypon, share, and Process the service experiepce.
Volunteers need to be able to articulate what impact they
have had and what they've learmed about the probiem and
about themselves.
The Civi¢ Achtevement Award Program 1s a model designed to mee! these key
criteria, and,* after two years, has proven o be an effective tool In
invelving young people in meaningful community service. It also meets needs
that have been recentl¥ substantiated by a number of major studies and

reports.

A few months ago. the Carnegie Councll on Adolescent OeveloPment, for
example, issued Tindings after a two-yedr study examining the risks and
opportunities of the adolescent years. AmONg its conclusions. the Carnegie

study recommends that:
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e sPecial attention should be given to the middle school years
¢  curritulum Shoulu Promote critical thinking skills

¢ curriculum should inciude a communtfy service comPonent

These recommendations resnforte our own evaluations of the CaAP model. The

¢ompatible findings of the Carnegie study and the CAAP evaluations should

provide this Committee with the assurance that education and commuaity

service are an effective and powerful combination.
We at Close Up walcome the oPPortunity to work with Congress to stréngthen
and @xPand the CAAP program and to develop other significant ways of

responding t0 this growing natlonal priority.

Thank you.
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